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LETTER TO STOCKHOLDERS FROM THE PRESIDENT AND CEO

Fellow Shareholders,

For First Industrial Realty Trust, 2012 was a year in which we wanted to “get after growth.” We were
successful in many areas, while we would have liked to do better in others. Overall, I am pleased with the steps
we are taking to move our Company forward. We achieved a total shareholder return of 37.6%, placing us in the
Top 17% of all REITS in the MCSI REIT Index for the entire year and second among our industrial-only REIT
peers.* Our stock price performance reflected our continued execution on driving cash flow and value by leasing
our properties, enhancing our portfolio quality through new investments and disposition of assets that do not fit
our portfolio objectives, and strengthening our balance sheet. Clearly all of our efforts were supported by the
growth in the overall U.S. economy. My teammates around the country, however, are essential to — and deserve
much credit for — our success, and I thank them for their contributions.

Driving Cash Flow and Value from Our Portfolio

Through the focus and efforts of our team on leasing, we achieved year-end occupancy of 8§9.9%, a 200
basis point increase from year-end 2011. The fourth quarter was especially strong as we grew occupancy 140
basis points with gains coming across the country. We also delivered industrial sector-leading same store net
operating income growth that averaged 5.8% for the four quarters of 2012.

A major win for us was the long-term lease we signed at our First Inland Logistics Center, our 692,000
square foot distribution center in Southern California — which is our largest market based on percentage of
rental income. Given that this was our first development project following the financial crisis (and speculative),
we knew that all eyes were on this execution — especially ours. With limited competing supply of large-box
facilities in that submarket and a site plan that offered the rare, in-demand feature of excess trailer parking, we
leased the facility for more than 15 years with a growing specialty retailer with economics that exceeded our pro-
forma. This win demonstrated the capabilities of our platform, and helped set the stage for more new investments
that I will discuss shortly.

Industry fundamentals remain favorable on both the demand and supply sides of the equation. As the
economy continues its slow and steady growth, businesses are seeking space to accommodate growing demand.
New supply of industrial space remains quite limited compared to historical standards, and development is
focused largely in markets where rents have recovered sufficiently to justify it — like Southern California’s
Inland Empire and Los Angeles markets, as well as Houston, South Florida, Central Pennsylvania, and
Indianapolis. There are certainly one-off projects in all markets, but rents still need to recover significantly to
warrant speculative development in most regions. Given the short development time in our sector, it is our job to
keep an eye on this new supply.

In light of this solid fundamental backdrop, tenants are now faced with fewer choices in the marketplace. As
a result, concessions continue to subside and retention is trending positively for us and the sector on the whole.
Tenant retention is especially important to improving cash flow, as downtime is avoided and leasing costs on
renewals are significantly lower than those for new leasing. We continued to face rental rate declines on a cash
basis on the whole for our portfolio in 2012, as we rolled down leases signed at the market’s prior peaks. We
expect overall rental rate rolldowns again in 2013, but one further sign of the market’s improvement is that we
expect rates on renewals to be flat to slightly positive.

Our leasing progress in 2012, along with supportive industry fundamentals, have us on the right path to
achieving our year-end 2013 occupancy goal of 92% that we established at our Investor Day in November 2011.
We have work to do to reach that goal and our team is focused on it. Beyond 2013, we believe we have the
opportunity to drive more cash flow from our existing portfolio as we make further progress to a stabilized
occupancy level in the mid-nineties.



Investing for Growth and Quality

One of our biggest disappointments during 2012 was our inability to find quality stabilized or value-add
assets to acquire. A big reason for our light volume was asset pricing. For quality leased or partially-leased
distribution assets in top locations, values continued to escalate. With additional capital funneling into the sector,
this trend shows no sign of abating. While this makes acquisitions ever more challenging, the bright side is the
implication for the value of our portfolio. We are going to keep competing, but we are also going to maintain our
discipline in demanding appropriate returns and appropriate asset quality. We completed only one leased
property acquisition during the year, buying our joint venture partner’s 85% interest in a 390,000 square-foot
distribution center in York, PA with a total investment of $21.8 million including our original interest. This
facility certainly met our quality and market criteria, but we would have liked to acquire more buildings like
this one.

To grow our portfolio and deliver risk-adjusted returns superior to acquisitions, we are using our platform to
develop in strategic submarkets. These submarkets enjoy current demand that exceeds supply for the types of
buildings we are constructing and offer above-average prospects for long-term rental rate growth. We are
investing in quality facilities with sought-after features like wide truck courts and ample trailer parking that will
compete well across real estate cycles.

2012 saw us launch $115 million of new development investments which will serve the dual shareholder
interests of providing solid risk-adjusted returns and improving the quality of our portfolio. These developments
total 1.7 million square feet comprised of the 300,300 square-foot First Chino Logistics Center in the Inland
Empire of Southern California, the 489,000 square-foot First Bandini Logistics Center at a strategic in-fill
location in the Los Angeles market, the 708,000 square-foot First Logistics Center @ I-83 in the York submarket
in Central Pennsylvania, and a 155,867 square-foot leased expansion in Minneapolis that we delivered prior
to year-end.

We reported the good news in our fourth quarter earnings release that our First Chino Logistics Center has
already been leased. Our tenant is slated to take occupancy in the middle of the second quarter, a year ahead of
pro-forma with above pro-forma returns. We are making progress on the other two developments and, consistent
with our track record, we are focused on getting them built on-time and on-budget — and leased!

Our strengthened balance sheet can support up to approximately $250 million of new speculative
development at any one time. We want to grow our Company but we also want to effectively manage risk. Some
of the balance sheet actions I address shortly have put us in a position to accommodate this limit. We view our
development capacity as a revolver, such that if we lease up a project, we effectively reduce the risk associated
with that asset, freeing up the related capital for additional developments.

We will soon be adding to our roster of developments on a site we acquired near our First Inland Logistics
Center in Moreno Valley in Southern California for $6.3 million in the first quarter of 2013. This parcel can
accommodate a distribution center of approximately 550,000 square feet with total estimated investment of $32
to $34 million. We expect to begin work on this project this year. We also recently acquired a site in the high-
occupancy North submarket of Houston that can accommodate approximately 350,000 square feet. We expect to
start construction on the Houston development in 2014.

Including these newly acquired parcels, our land bank totals more than 570 useable acres that can
accommodate in excess of 7.4 million square feet of additional development. While some sites may be suitable
for speculative development, we are also pursuing built-to-suit projects and will selectively consider purchase
offers as well. Ultimately, as with all of our properties, our job is to maximize the value of these assets.

Asset Management Progress — Addition by Subtraction

Last year, I discussed our portfolio enhancement efforts which we like to describe as “addition by
subtraction.” We remain keenly focused on the sale of assets that do not fit our long-term portfolio objectives,
continuing the process that we began in late 2010.



In 2012, we sold $85.6 million of properties, comprised of 4.2 million square feet and a land parcel, meeting
our volume target and significantly enhancing our portfolio. Sales for the year exceeded our written-down book
value by 29%.

We continue to target certain buildings for sale to users, while others require further lease-up to achieve
better pricing as we market them to investors. Our sales approach is multi-faceted and we will continue to
employ what we believe is the best strategy for a given asset, not simply one that will sell it the fastest.
Consistent with our overall approach, we want to maximize value for our shareholders in our sales process, so we
will continue to be disciplined.

Our largest sale during the year was our Columbus portfolio. While not a “home run” in terms of pricing, we
were pleased with our execution given our view of the fundamentals in that market and the profile of the assets.

For 2013, we are again targeting $75 million to $100 million of sales as we continue our “addition by

subtraction” strategy. As we have noted before, asset management is an ongoing process and we will keep
shaping our portfolio through additional sales in the coming years.

Balance Sheet Foundation

Underlying all of our activities is our balance sheet, and we have done a good job as a team of further
strengthening this foundation of our business. Our focus has been on delevering, reducing capital costs, ensuring
we have capital for growth, and maintaining our flexibility.

Our key capital market actions during the year demonstrated this focus. Through our April tender offer, we
repurchased $87 million of primarily longer-dated senior notes with high coupon rates, and we opportunistically
repurchased $19 million of bonds in the open market during the year. We completed a $117 million common
equity offering in August that pre-funded our development projects, on top of $18 million we raised in the first
quarter via our ATM to fund our Central Pennsylvania acquisition. We also closed on $100.6 million of
secured financing on a 10-year basis at a very attractive rate of 4.03% that provided capital to paydown other
higher rate mortgages.

Our redemption of $50 million of our 7.25% Series J Preferred Stock during the fourth quarter efficiently
redeployed some of our excess sales proceeds and is another example of our efforts to reduce capital costs.
Overall, our 2012 capital actions resulted in a reduction in net debt of $139 million and lower leverage ratios,
while providing capital to fund our investments.

During the first quarter of 2013, we followed up on these actions by announcing the redemption of the
remaining $100 million of the 7.25% Series J Preferred Stock which was funded by a $132 million common
equity raise. The additional $32 million of proceeds initially reduced our balance on our line of credit and will
ultimately be deployed in new investments. In 2013, we will reduce our capital costs by retiring a total of $72
million of mortgage debt with an average coupon of 7% and we have similar opportunities in 2014 through 2016
to retire approximately $150 million of mortgage debt with an average coupon of 6.7%.

We are making strides on our overall path to becoming an investment grade rated company once again.
Achieving investment grade will enhance our financial flexibility by providing us with more efficient and cost-
effective access to the unsecured debt markets. Improving our fixed charge coverage ratio is an important step on
our path to investment grade. The retirement of the 7.25% Series J Preferred Stock and the refinancing of higher-
cost mortgages will accelerate this improvement. Driving incremental cash flow from our existing portfolio and
executing on our new developments are also critical steps on that path.

We endeavor to be judicious with our issuance of equity, in terms of amounts, timing and uses. As a fellow
shareholder along with my colleagues on the FR team, we hold equity very dear. We know that effective capital
sourcing, along with effective capital allocation, is critical as we seek to create shareholder value from our
growth initiatives.



Working for Shareholders

As a team, we embrace our job of delivering value for and being responsive to shareholders. Two ways we
are doing so is our return to paying a dividend to common stockholders and partnership unitholders as well as
through the governance initiatives we are putting forth for shareholder approval in our proxy statement.

We were pleased to re-join the club of dividend-paying REITs, as announced on our fourth quarter 2012
earnings call. The Board declared a common dividend of $0.085 per share for the first quarter of 2013. The
Board decided that an initial payout ratio of 50% to 60% of adjusted funds from operations was appropriate. At
this level, we established a base from which we hope to grow the dividend that also enables us to retain capital
for cash needs, including principal amortization payments on mortgage debt, as well as new investments.

In the proxy statement, we are asking shareholders to approve certain amendments to our charter. There are
several changes that we ask that you review before voting, but the driving force behind these changes is our
proposal to eliminate our classified board of directors, which provides for each director to stand for election once
every three years. With shareholder approval of the charter amendments, we will move to annual elections for all
board members. The Board has determined that given our stabilized operations, strengthened balance sheet and
growth trajectory, the time is right to make this change.

With Gratitude

On behalf of the Company and my fellow Board members, I would like to thank Kevin Lynch, who resigned
from the Board earlier this year, for his many years of service to First Industrial. His insights, assistance and
support greatly benefited the management team and shareholders, and we wish him the best.

I would also like to again thank the entire First Industrial team, as each and every one of them is an integral
part of where we are today and where we are going tomorrow.

In Closing

As our team knows, 2013 is about more of the same, with an emphasis on more — more leasing,
investments, targeted asset sales, and taking care of our customers. By doing so, we can deliver more value to our
shareholders as we improve cash flow, enhance our portfolio, further demonstrate the power of our platform, and
narrow the gap in valuation that the market ascribes to us compared to our direct industry peers.

We thank you for entrusting us with your capital. We are focused on continuing to earn that trust by meeting
our goals.

Sincerely,

7 2N

Bruce W. Duncan
President and Chief Executive Officer

April 11,2013
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FIRST INDUSTRIAL REALTY TRUST, INC.
311 South Wacker Drive
Suite 3900
Chicago, Illinois 60606

NOTICE OF ANNUAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS

To Be Held on May 9, 2013

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the 2013 Annual Meeting of Stockholders (the “Annual Meeting”) of
First Industrial Realty Trust, Inc. (the “Company”) will be held on Thursday, May 9, 2013 at 9:00 a.m. at the
10% Floor Conference Room, 311 South Wacker Drive, Chicago, Illinois 60606 for the following purposes:

1. To consider and act upon a Company proposal to amend the Company’s charter:
A. to declassify the Company’s Board of Directors;

B. to provide that, consistent with the Company’s current director removal standard, directors may
be removed by the stockholders of the Company only for cause;

C. to provide more complete and modern ownership and transfer restrictions, designed to, among
other things, assist us in complying with requirements related to our qualification as a REIT;

D. to delete the current definition of “Independent Director” so as to ensure consistency with
NYSE standards; and

E. to remove an existing exception from the Company’s election to be governed by the provisions
of the Maryland Business Combination Act;

2. If each of the Charter Proposals (as defined below) is approved, to elect six directors to the Board of
Directors to serve until the 2014 Annual Meeting of Stockholders, and until their successors are duly elected
and qualify;

3. If any of the Charter Proposals is not approved, to elect two Class I Directors of the Company to
serve until the 2016 Annual Meeting of Stockholders and one Class II Director of the Company to serve
until the 2014 Annual Meeting of Stockholders, and in each case until their successors are duly elected and
qualify;

4. To approve, on an advisory (i.e. non-binding) basis, the compensation of the Company’s named
executive officers as disclosed in the Proxy Statement for this meeting;

5. To ratify the appointment of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP as the Company’s independent registered
public accounting firm for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2013; and

6. To consider and act upon any other matters that may properly be brought before the Annual Meeting
and at any adjournments or postponements thereof.

The implementation of any of Proposals 1A, 1B, 1C, 1D and 1E (each, a “Charter Proposal” and,
collectively, the “Charter Proposals”) is conditioned on the approval of all such Charter Proposals. Thus, none of
the Charter Proposals will be implemented unless all of the Charter Proposals are approved by the
applicable required shareholder vote.

Any action may be taken on the foregoing matters at the Annual Meeting on the date specified above, or on
any date or dates to which, by original or later adjournment, the Annual Meeting may be adjourned, or to which
the Annual Meeting may be postponed.



The Board of Directors has fixed the close of business on March 19, 2013 as the record date for the Annual
Meeting. Only stockholders of record of the Company’s Common Stock at the close of business on that date will
be entitled to notice of and to vote at the Annual Meeting and at any adjournments or postponements thereof.

You are requested to fill in and sign the enclosed Proxy Card, which is being solicited by the Board of
Directors, and to mail it promptly in the enclosed postage-prepaid envelope. Any proxy may be revoked by
delivery of a later dated proxy. Stockholders of record who attend the Annual Meeting may vote in person, even
if they have previously delivered a signed proxy. “Street name” stockholders who wish to vote in person will
need to obtain a duly executed proxy form from the institution that holds their shares prior to the Annual
Meeting.

By Order of the Board of Directors

W. Ed Tyler Bruce W. Duncan
Chairman of the Board President and CEO

Chicago, Illinois
April 11, 2013

WHETHER OR NOT YOU PLAN TO ATTEND THE MEETING, PLEASE COMPLETE, SIGN,
DATE AND PROMPTLY RETURN THE ENCLOSED PROXY CARD IN THE POSTAGE-PREPAID
ENVELOPE PROVIDED.
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FIRST INDUSTRIAL REALTY TRUST, INC.
311 South Wacker Drive
Suite 3900
Chicago, Illinois 60606

PROXY STATEMENT
FOR THE 2013 ANNUAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS

To Be Held on May 9, 2013

This Proxy Statement is furnished in connection with the solicitation of proxies by the Board of Directors of
First Industrial Realty Trust, Inc. (“First Industrial” or the “Company”) for use at the 2013 Annual Meeting of
Stockholders of the Company to be held on Thursday, May 9, 2013, and at any adjournments or postponements
thereof (the “Annual Meeting”). At the Annual Meeting, stockholders will be asked to vote (i) upon a Company
proposal to approve Articles of Amendment to the Company’s articles of incorporation (as amended to date, the
“Charter”) (a) to declassify the Board of Directors; (b) to provide that, consistent with the Company’s current
director removal standard, directors may be removed by the stockholders of the Company only for cause; (c) to
provide more complete and modern ownership and transfer restrictions, designed to, among other things, assist us
in complying with requirements related to our qualification as a REIT; (d) to delete the current definition of
“Independent Director” so as to ensure consistency with NYSE standards; and (e) to remove an existing
exception from the Company’s election to be governed by the provisions of the Maryland Business Combination
Act (each, a Charter Proposal” and, collectively, the “Charter Proposals™), (ii) if each of the Charter Proposals is
approved, to elect six directors to the Board of Directors to serve until the 2014 Annual Meeting of Stockholders,
and until their successors are duly elected and qualify, (iii) if any of the Charter Proposals is not approved, to
elect two Class I Directors of the Company to serve until the 2016 Annual Meeting of Stockholders and one
Class II Director of the Company to serve until the 2014 Annual Meeting of Stockholders, and in each case until
their successors are duly elected and qualify, (iv) to approve, on an advisory (i.e. non-binding) basis, the
compensation of the Company’s named executive officers as disclosed in this Proxy Statement, (v) to ratify the
appointment of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP as the Company’s independent registered public accounting firm
for the current fiscal year and (vi) to act on any other matters properly brought before them.

This Proxy Statement and the accompanying Notice of Annual Meeting and Proxy Card are first being sent to
stockholders on or about April 11, 2013. The Board of Directors has fixed the close of business on March 19, 2013
as the record date for the Annual Meeting (the “Record Date”). Only stockholders of record of Common Stock at
the close of business on the Record Date will be entitled to notice of and to vote at the Annual Meeting. As of the
Record Date, there were 107,485,907 shares of Common Stock outstanding and entitled to vote at the Annual
Meeting. Holders of Common Stock outstanding as of the close of business on the Record Date will be entitled to
one vote for each share held by them on each matter presented to the stockholders at the Annual Meeting.

Stockholders of the Company are requested to complete, sign, date and promptly return the
accompanying Proxy Card in the enclosed postage-prepaid envelope. Shares represented by a properly
executed Proxy Card received prior to the vote at the Annual Meeting and not revoked will be voted at the
Annual Meeting as directed on the Proxy Card. If a properly executed Proxy Card is submitted and no
instructions are given, the persons designated as proxy holders on the Proxy Card will vote (i) FOR the
approval of each of the Charter Proposals, (ii) FOR the election of the six nominees for director named in
this Proxy Statement if each of the Charter Proposals is approved, (iii) FOR the election of the two nominees
for Class I Directors and one nominee for Class II Director named in this Proxy Statement if any of the
Charter Proposals is not approved, (iv) FOR the approval, on an advisory basis, of the compensation of our
named executive officers, (v) FOR the ratification of the appointment of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP as the
Company’s independent registered public accounting firm for the current fiscal year and (vi) in their own
discretion with respect to any other business that may properly come before the stockholders at the Annual
Meeting or at any adjournments or postponements thereof. It is not anticipated that any matters other than
those set forth in the Proxy Statement will be presented at the Annual Meeting.



PROXY STATEMENT

The presence, in person or by proxy, of holders of at least a majority of the total number of outstanding shares
of Common Stock entitled to vote is necessary to constitute a quorum for the transaction of business at the Annual
Meeting. The affirmative vote of the holders of two-thirds of the votes entitled to be cast with a quorum present at
the Annual Meeting is required for the approval of each of the Charter Proposals. The affirmative vote of the
holders of a majority of the votes cast with a quorum present at the Annual Meeting is required (i) for the election of
directors, (ii) for the approval, on an advisory basis, of the compensation of our named executive officers and
(iii) for the ratification of the appointment of the Company’s independent registered public accounting firm. With
respect to the Charter Proposals, abstentions will not be counted as votes cast but will be counted as entitled to vote,
and, accordingly, will effectively be treated as votes against the Charter Proposals. The Board of Directors has
determined that the implementation of each of the Charter Proposals is conditioned on the approval of all of
the Charter Proposals. Thus, none of the Charter Proposals will be implemented unless all of the Charter
Proposals are approved by the applicable required shareholder vote.

A stockholder of record may revoke a proxy at any time before it has been exercised by filing a written
revocation with the Secretary of the Company at the address of the Company set forth above, by filing a duly
executed proxy bearing a later date, or by appearing in person and voting by ballot at the Annual Meeting. Any
stockholder of record as of the Record Date attending the Annual Meeting may vote in person whether or not a
proxy has been previously given, but the presence (without further action) of a stockholder at the Annual
Meeting will not constitute revocation of a previously given proxy. “Street name” stockholders who wish to vote
in person will need to obtain a duly executed proxy form from the institution that holds their shares prior to the
Annual Meeting.

Appendix C to this Proxy Statement contains the Company’s 2012 Annual Report, including the Company’s
financial statements for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2012 and certain other information required by the
rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”). The Company’s 2012 Annual
Report, however, is not part of the proxy solicitation material. See “Other Matters — Incorporation by
Reference” herein.

BROKER NON-VOTES

Stockholders of the Company who have received this Proxy Statement from their broker or other fiduciary
should have received instructions for directing how that broker or fiduciary should vote the stockholder’s shares.
It will be the broker’s or fiduciary’s responsibility to vote the stockholder’s shares for the stockholder in the
manner directed. The stockholder must complete, execute and return the voting instruction form in the envelope
provided by the broker.

Under the rules of the New York Stock Exchange (the “NYSE”), brokers generally may vote on routine
matters, such as the ratification of an independent public accounting firm, but may not vote on non-routine matters
unless they have received voting instructions from the person for whom they are holding shares. If there is a non-
routine matter presented to stockholders at a meeting and the stockholder’s broker or fiduciary does not receive
instructions from the stockholder on how to vote on that matter, the broker or fiduciary will return the proxy card to
the Company, indicating that he or she does not have the authority to vote on that matter. This is generally referred
to as a “broker non-vote” and may affect the outcome of the voting on those matters, as discussed below.

The proposal described in this Proxy Statement for the ratification of the appointment of
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP as the Company’s independent registered public accounting firm for 2013 is
considered a routine matter under the NYSE rules. Each of the other proposals is considered a non-routine matter
under NYSE rules and could result in broker non-votes. With respect to the Charter Proposals, broker non-votes
will not be counted as votes cast but will be counted as entitled to vote, and accordingly, will effectively be
treated as votes against the Charter Proposals. With respect to each of the proposals other than the Charter
Proposals, broker non-votes will not be counted as votes cast and, accordingly, will have no effect on the result
of the vote, although they will be counted for quorum purposes. We therefore encourage stockholders to provide
directions to their broker as to how the stockholder wants their shares voted on all matters to be brought before
the Annual Meeting. The stockholder should do this by carefully following the instructions the broker gives the
stockholder concerning its procedures. This ensures that the stockholder’s shares will be voted at the meeting.
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PROXY STATEMENT

PROPOSAL 1
AMENDMENTS TO THE COMPANY’S CHARTER

BACKGROUND OF THE PROPOSALS

Our Board of Directors is committed to strong and effective corporate governance and monitors regularly
our corporate governance policies and practices to ensure we meet or exceed the requirements of applicable laws,
regulations and rules, and the NYSE’s listing standards. As part of its continuing review of corporate governance
matters, the Company’s Nominating/Corporate Governance Committee determined that a declassified board of
directors has become a corporate governance “best practice,” particularly among real estate investment trusts
(“REITs”). As such, the Nominating/Corporate Governance Committee elected to present for the consideration of
the Board of Directors a proposal to approve and recommend an amendment to the Company’s Charter to
provide for declassification of the Board of Directors.

In connection with this analysis, the Nominating/Corporate Governance Committee also initiated a
comprehensive review of our Charter and our Amended and Restated Bylaws (the “Existing Bylaws”), and engaged
our internal staff and external advisors to make recommendations regarding any necessary or desirable amendments
to the Charter and Existing Bylaws. During the course of this review, we identified certain elements of the
Company’s corporate governance infrastructure in need of updating in light of the proposed declassification
amendment, current market practices, changes in the Company’s ownership structure and changes in corporate
governance best practices since the principal provisions of the Company’s Charter and Existing Bylaws were
initially drafted and implemented in 1994. After the completion of its review, the Nominating/Corporate
Governance Committee recommended certain proposed modifications for consideration by the Board of Directors.
Each of these proposed modifications are described below, though the Company’s stockholders are only being
asked to vote on modifications to be effected through an amendment to the Company’s Charter.

Upon the recommendation of the Nominating/Corporate Governance Committee, after careful consideration,
the Board of Directors has approved, and recommends to our stockholders that they approve, amendments to our
Charter (a) to declassify the Board of Directors; (b) to provide that, consistent with the Company’s current director
removal standard, directors may be removed by the stockholders of the Company only for cause; (c) to provide
more complete and modern ownership and transfer restrictions, designed, among other things, to assist us in
complying with requirements related to our qualification as a REIT; (d) to delete the current definition of
“Independent Director” so as to ensure consistency with NYSE standards; and (e) to remove an existing exception
from the Company’s election to be governed by the provisions of the Maryland Business Combination Act. The
general description of these proposed amendments is qualified in its entirety by reference to the complete text of the
proposed Articles of Amendment, which are attached as Appendix A to this Proxy Statement.

In addition, the Board of Directors, upon recommendation from the Nominating/Corporate Governance
Committee, has provisionally approved an amendment and restatement of our Existing Bylaws to implement the
declassification of our Board of Directors and other Charter Proposals, and to make other changes to reflect
current market practices and corporate governance best practices. The modifications to our Existing Bylaws are
described below. See “Amendment and Restatement of the Company’s Bylaws.” The general description of these
proposed modifications is qualified in its entirety by reference to the complete text of the Second Amended and
Restated Bylaws (the “Amended Bylaws™), which are attached as Appendix B to this Proxy Statement. Additions
to the Existing Bylaws are indicated by underlined text and deletions from the Existing Bylaws are indicated by
strike-through text. The Company’s stockholders are not required to approve, and are not being asked to vote to
approve, the Amended Bylaws. Our Board of Directors also has approved amendments to our Corporate
Governance Guidelines to add a director resignation policy consistent with the majority vote standard applicable
to uncontested elections. The amended Corporate Governance Guidelines will require each incumbent nominee
to submit an irrevocable contingent resignation letter prior to the mailing of the proxy statement for an annual
meeting at which the nominee’s candidacy will be considered. If the nominee does not receive more votes cast
“For” than “Against” his or her election, our Nominating/Corporate Governance Committee will recommend to
the Board of Directors that it accept the nominee’s contingent resignation, unless the Board determines that
acceptance of the resignation would not be in the Company’s best interests.

3
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Approval of each of the Charter Proposals requires the affirmative vote of at least two-thirds of all votes
entitled to be cast by our stockholders on the matter. Because the Board of Directors believes that the proposed
modifications to the Company’s Charter, Existing Bylaws and Corporate Governance Guidelines cumulatively
provide for an appropriate and effective updating of the corporate governance infrastructure, the Board of
Directors has determined that the implementation of each of these modifications is to be conditioned on the
approval of all of such modifications. Thus, none of the Charter amendments described in the Charter Proposals,
nor any of the amendments to the Existing Bylaws described below, will be implemented unless all of the Charter
Proposals are approved by the applicable required shareholder vote.

If each of the Charter Proposals is approved, we will temporarily recess the Annual Meeting to file an
Articles of Amendment setting forth the aforesaid amendments to our Charter. The amendments will become
effective upon acceptance for record of the Articles of Amendment setting forth these amendments by the State
Department of Assessments and Taxation of Maryland.

PROPOSAL 1A
DECLASSIFICATION

Our Charter currently provides that the Board of Directors be divided into three classes, with each class
elected every three years. After careful consideration, our Board of Directors has unanimously approved, and
recommends that all stockholders approve, an amendment to our Charter eliminating the classified structure of
the Board effective at the Annual Meeting. This will allow our stockholders to vote on the election of our entire
Board of Directors each year, rather than on a staggered basis as provided under our current classified board
structure. We urge you to review carefully this proposed amendment to Article VI, Section 6.2 of the Charter, as
set forth in Appendix A, in its entirety, because this summary may not contain all of the information concerning
this amendment that is important to you.

BACKGROUND

In determining whether to propose declassification to our stockholders, the Board of Directors considered
the advantages and disadvantages of maintaining the classified board structure as compared to providing for an
annual election of all directors.

The Board of Directors recognizes that classified boards have a long history in corporate law, and have
many advantages. A classified board may promote board continuity, and is considered by some to provide
stability in the management of the business and affairs of a company because a majority of directors will have
prior experience as directors of a company. Classified boards also encourage directors to take a long-term
perspective and may, in some circumstances, enhance stockholder value by forcing an entity seeking control of a
company to initiate discussions at arms’-length with the board of the company, because the entity cannot replace
the entire board in a single election.

However, the Board of Directors also considered that classified boards are sometimes seen to reduce the
accountability of directors to stockholders, because stockholders are unable to evaluate and elect all directors on
an annual basis. Director elections provide stockholders with an opportunity to express their views on the
performance of individual directors, and many institutional investors believe that the election of directors is the
primary means for stockholders to influence corporate governance policies and to hold management accountable
for implementing these policies. A classified board structure affords stockholders this opportunity only once
every three years for any particular director.

After deliberating over the considerations noted above, the Board of Directors unanimously determined that it
is in the best interests of the Company and its stockholders to eliminate the classified Board structure, as proposed.
As such, the Board of Directors has decided to submit this proposal to eliminate the classified Board structure.

IMPLEMENTATION OF THE PROPOSAL

If our stockholders approve this Proposal 1A (as well as the other Charter Proposals), then effective upon
acceptance for record of the Articles of Amendment setting forth the aforesaid amendments by the State
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Department of Assessments and Taxation of Maryland, and in connection with Proposal 2, all of our directors
whose terms do not expire at this Annual Meeting will resign and have been nominated to stand for election to a
one-year term expiring at the 2014 Annual Meeting of Stockholders, and the three directors whose terms expire
at this Annual Meeting have also been nominated to stand for election to a one-year term expiring at the 2014
Annual Meeting of Stockholders. Thereafter, all of our directors would be subject to annual elections to serve
until the next annual meeting of stockholders and until their successors were duly elected and qualify.

If our stockholders fail to approve any of the Charter Proposals, the Board of Directors will continue to be
divided into three classes of directors elected for three-year terms, and the stockholders will vote on Proposal 3
for the election of the three directors whose terms expire at this Annual Meeting and have been nominated to
stand for election. In such event, the directors whose terms do not expire at this meeting will not resign and will
continue to serve for the remainder of the terms for which they were elected.

The Board of Directors recommends a vote FOR this proposal to approve the amendment to our
Charter to declassify the Board of Directors.

PROPOSAL 1B
REMOVAL OF DIRECTORS

In addition to the Charter amendment described above, a second proposed amendment to the Charter
provides that the stockholders may remove any director or the entire Board of Directors only for cause.

The Existing Bylaws currently provide that a director may only be removed by the stockholders for cause.
The Maryland General Corporation Law (the “MGCL”) provides that, absent a provision in a company’s charter
to the contrary, a member of a board of directors that is not classified may be removed by a majority vote of the
stockholders, with or without cause. Thus, if our Board of Directors were declassified, our directors would be
subject to removal as provided in the MGCL unless our Charter were amended to include the director removal
standard currently provided in our Existing Bylaws. After deliberation, the Board of Directors has unanimously
determined that, because declassification of the Board of Directors will afford stockholders the opportunity to
evaluate and elect all directors on an annual basis, the Company’s existing standard permitting the interim
removal of directors only for cause remains appropriate and in the best interests of the Company. As such, the
Board of Directors has decided to submit this proposal to amend the Company’s Charter to maintain the
Company’s existing standard of providing for the removal of directors only for cause.

If our stockholders approve this Proposal 1B (as well as the other Charter Proposals), Article VI, Section 6.2
of the Charter will be amended to provide that directors may be removed from office only for cause and only
upon the majority vote of the stockholders. We urge you to review carefully this proposed amendment to
Article VI, Section 6.2 of the Charter, as set forth in Appendix A, in its entirety, as well as the potential anti-
takeover effects discussed in “Anti-Takeover Effects”, because this summary may not contain all of the
information concerning this amendment that is important to you. In addition, because the director removal
provision in the Existing Bylaws will have no legal effect following the declassification of the Board of
Directors, Section 2.13 of the Existing Bylaws will be amended to provide that directors of the Corporation may
be removed only as provided in the Company’s Charter.

The Board of Directors recommends a vote FOR this proposal to approve the amendment to our
Charter to retain our existing director removal standard.

PROPOSAL 1C
REIT OWNERSHIP AND TRANSFER RESTRICTIONS

The Company is a REIT, subject to Sections 856 through 860 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as
amended (the “Code”). For the Company to qualify as a REIT under the Code, among other things, not more than
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50% in value of its outstanding capital stock may be owned, actually or by attribution, by five or fewer
individuals (as defined in the Code to include certain entities) during the last half of a taxable year. Our capital
stock must also be beneficially owned by 100 or more persons during at least 335 days of a taxable year of 12
months or during a proportionate part of a shorter tax year. For various purposes, including ensuring that we
remain a qualified REIT, Article IX of our Charter, subject to certain exceptions, currently provides that no
holder may own, or be deemed to own by virtue of the attribution provisions of the Code, more than an aggregate
of 9.9% in value of our capital stock.

Since the original drafting and implementation of these provisions in 1994, significant changes in REIT
industry practice have occurred with respect to transfer restrictions designed to ensure REIT compliance.
Accordingly, in connection with its review of the Company’s corporate governance infrastructure, the Board of
Directors is recommending a comprehensive revision of the provisions of Article IX of our Charter to bring these
provisions in line with current practice. The Board of Directors has thus adopted, and recommends that the
stockholders approve, a complete amendment of Article IX of the Charter in the form included in Appendix A to
this Proxy Statement. In addition, the Board of Directors has adopted, and recommends that the stockholders
approve, certain conforming amendments to Section 7.3 of the Charter.

The provisions of Article IX, as it is proposed to be amended pursuant to this Proposal 1C, are summarized
below. We urge you to review carefully these proposed amendments to Section 7.3 and Article IX of the Charter,
as set forth in Appendix A, as well as the potential anti-takeover effects discussed in “Anti-Takeover Effects”, in
their entirety because this summary may not contain all of the information concerning these amendments that is
important to you.

Article IX of our Charter currently provides that, subject to certain exceptions, no person may own or be
deemed to own by virtue of the attribution provisions of the Code, more than an aggregate of 9.9% in value of our
capital stock. As amended, Article IX would modify and expand this ownership restriction such that no person (or
“group”, as defined in Section 13(d) of the Securities Exchange Act) may own or be deemed to own more than an
aggregate of 9.8% of our total capital stock, or more than 9.8% of either our Common Stock or our preferred stock,
as a class. Article IX will continue to provide that any transfer of capital stock or any security convertible into
capital stock that would create a direct or indirect ownership of capital stock in excess of the ownership limit or that
would result in our disqualification as a REIT, including any transfer that results in the capital stock being owned by
fewer than 100 persons or results in us being “closely held” within the meaning of Section 856(h) of the Code, will
be null and void, and the intended transferee will acquire no rights to the capital stock.

Capital stock owned, or deemed to be owned, or transferred to a stockholder in excess of the ownership
limit will automatically constitute shares of “excess stock,” as defined in our Charter, that will be transferred, by
operation of law, to a trust for the exclusive benefit of one or more charitable organizations selected by the
Board. Under amended Article IX, the trustee of the charitable trust will have the right to vote the shares while
the excess stock is held in trust instead of the voting rights being lost as under the existing provisions. While,
under the existing provisions of Article IX, excess stock would not be entitled to participate in the accumulation
or payment of dividends or other distributions, the proposed amendments to Article IX would provide that any
dividend or distribution be paid to the trustee of the charitable trust.

In addition, Article IX, as amended, provides that we will have the right, for a period of 90 days after the
later of the date of any event that resulted in excess stock or the date on which the Board determines that such an
event has occurred, to purchase all or any portion of the excess stock from the original stockholder at the lesser
of the price paid for the capital stock by the original stockholder (or, in the case of a transfer without value or an
event other than a transfer that results in excess stock, the market price on the date of such event) and the market
price of the capital stock on the date we exercise our option to purchase, as determined in the manner set forth in
our Charter. The 90-day period begins on the date of the violative event if the original stockholder gives notice to
us of the event or, if no such notice is given, the date the Board determines that a violative event has occurred.
We may also direct the trustee to transfer the shares to a third party whose ownership would not violate
Article IX. For this transfer, proceeds would be distributed in a manner comparable to the distribution of
proceeds from a Company purchase.
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The Board of Directors recommends a vote FOR this proposal to approve the amendment to Article IX of
our Charter and the conforming amendment to Section 7.3 of our Charter to provide for more complete
and modern ownership and transfer restrictions, designed to, among other things, assist us in complying

with requirements related to our qualification as a REIT.

PROPOSAL 1D
DELETION OF DEFINITION OF “INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR”

Article VI, Section 6.1 of our Charter currently provides, among other things, that a majority of the
Company’s directors shall be “Independent Directors,” which term is defined to require that he or she be neither
an employee of the Company nor a member of The Shidler Group, an affiliate of the Company’s founder and
former Chairman of the Board of Directors, Jay Shidler. In addition, as discussed in Proposal 2 of this Proxy
Statement, in determining the independence of its members, the Board of Directors also applies the following
standards, consistent with the Company’s Corporate Governance Guidelines:

1) After taking into account all relevant facts and circumstances, the Board of Directors must determine
that the member has no material relationships with the Company (either directly or as a partner, shareholder
or officer of an organization that has a relationship with the Company). Relationships to be considered
include commercial, industrial, banking, consulting, legal, accounting, charitable and familial relationships.

2) The member must satisfy the independence tests set forth in Section 303A.02(b) of the Listed
Company Manual of the NYSE.

The Board of Directors believes that the definition of “Independent Director” set forth in Article VI,
Section 6.1 of the Charter is no longer meaningful in analyzing the independence of a director. Mr. Shidler
resigned from the Board of Directors on February 1, 2010, and since that time has not participated in the
management of the Company. In light of Mr. Shidler’s resignation, and considering that no member of The
Shidler Group has served as a director of the Company since such resignation, the Board of Directors believes
that the express reference to The Shidler Group in the Company’s Charter is no longer necessary. Moreover,
because the Board of Directors is required by the independence tests established by the NYSE to consider all
material relationships that a director has with the Company in analyzing the director’s independence, any
reference in the Charter to one specific potential relationship that must be considered is not appropriate. The
Board of Directors has thus determined that it is in the best interests of the Company to amend Article VI,
Section 6.1 of the Charter to delete the definition of “Independent Director”. We urge you to review carefully this
proposed amendment to Article VI, Section 6.1 of the Charter, as set forth in Appendix A, in its entirety because
this summary may not contain all the information about this amendment that is important to you.

The Board of Directors recommends a vote FOR this proposal to approve the amendment to Article VI,
Section 6.1 of our Charter to delete the definition of “Independent Director” so as to ensure consistency
with NYSE standards.

PROPOSAL 1E
DELETION OF EXEMPTION FROM MARYLAND BUSINESS COMBINATION ACT

Under the Maryland Business Combination Act, certain “business combinations” (as defined in the MGCL)
between a Maryland corporation and an interested stockholder are prohibited for five years after the most recent
date on which the interested stockholder became an interested stockholder. Under the MGCL, an “interested
stockholder” includes a person who is:

* the beneficial owner, directly or indirectly, of 10 percent or more of the voting power of the outstanding
voting stock of the corporation; or
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e an affiliate or associate of the corporation and was the beneficial owner, directly or indirectly, of
10 percent or more of the voting power of the then outstanding stock of the corporation at any time within
the two-year period immediately prior to the date in question.

Business combinations for the purposes of the preceding paragraph are defined by the MGCL to include
certain mergers, consolidations, share exchanges and asset transfers, some issuances and reclassifications of
equity securities, the adoption of a plan of liquidation or dissolution or the receipt by an interested stockholder or
its affiliate of any loan advance, guarantee, pledge or other financial assistance or tax advantage provided by the
Company.

Article XIII of the Charter currently provides that, pursuant to Section 3-603(e)(1)(iii) of the MGCL, the
Company expressly elects not to be governed by the Maryland Business Combination Act with respect to any
business combination in which the only interested stockholder is Jay Shidler.

As discussed in Proposal 1D, Mr. Shidler, the Company’s founder and former Chairman of the Board of
Directors, stepped down as Chairman and resigned from the Board of Directors on February 1, 2010, and since
that time has not participated in the management of the Company. Moreover, according to reports filed with the
SEC, Mr. Shidler is currently the beneficial owner of approximately 1.7% of the Company’s Common Stock, and
has not in the past 2 years beneficially owned in excess of 6.9% of the Company’s Common Stock. As such,
Mr. Shidler is not currently an “interested stockholder” for purposes of the Maryland Business Combination Act.

In light of Mr. Shidler’s reduced ownership of the Company, and the cessation of his involvement in the
management of the Company, the Board of Directors has determined that it is no longer appropriate for the
Charter to include an express exemption from the Maryland Business Combination Act for transactions in which
Mr. Shidler is the only “interested stockholder.” As such, and with the express intention the Maryland Business
Combination Act shall apply to the Company and to each and all of its stockholders, the Board of Directors has
unanimously approved, and recommends that all stockholders approve, an amendment to the Charter to delete
Article XIII in its entirety.

The Board of Directors recommends a vote FOR this proposal to approve the amendment to our
Charter to delete Article XIII in its entirety.

AMENDMENT AND RESTATEMENT OF THE COMPANY’S BYLAWS

The Board of Directors has approved, subject to stockholder approval of each of the Charter Proposals, the
Amended Bylaws, in order to modify our Existing Bylaws so as to conform with the Charter amendments and/or
comply with current market practices and corporate governance best-practices. The modifications to our Existing
Bylaws do not require stockholder action. These Amended Bylaws will only take effect if each of the Charter
Proposals is approved by our stockholders. The general description of these proposed modifications presented
below is qualified in its entirety by reference to the complete text of the Amended Bylaws, which are attached as
Appendix B to this Proxy Statement. Additions to the Existing Bylaws are indicated by underlined text and
deletions from the Existing Bylaws are indicated by strike-through text.

Deletion of Director Removal Standard

As discussed in Proposal 1B, the Existing Bylaws currently provide that a director may only be removed by the
stockholders for cause. The MGCL provides that, absent a provision in a company’s charter to the contrary, a
member of a board of directors that is not classified may be removed by a majority vote of the stockholders, with or
without cause. As such, if each of the Charter Proposals were approved, the director removal standard currently set
forth in the Existing Bylaws would have no legal effect and could potentially be misleading. The Board of Directors
has thus approved an amendment to Section 2.13 of the Existing Bylaws to provide that directors of the Company
may be removed only as provided in the Company’s Charter. We urge you to review carefully this modification to
Section 2.13 of the Existing Bylaws, as set forth in Appendix B, in its entirety because this summary may not
contain all of the information concerning this modification that is important to you.
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Modification of Advance Notice Bylaw

Our Existing Bylaws provide that any stockholder of record wishing to nominate a director or have a
stockholder proposal considered at an annual meeting must provide written notice and certain supporting
documentation to the Company relating to the nomination or proposal not less than 75 days nor more than 180
days prior to the anniversary date of the prior year’s annual meeting or special meeting in lieu thereof. The Board
of Directors has determined that, since the adoption of this “advance notice” bylaw by the Company, market
practices have changed such that many advance notice bylaws now require that written notice relating to a
nomination or proposal be submitted by stockholders not less than 120 days nor more than 150 days before the
anniversary date of the mailing date of the proxy statement for the prior year’s annual meeting (the “Mailing
Date Anniversary”). The Board of Directors has thus approved modifications to Section 1.3 and Section 2.4 of
the Existing Bylaws to provide that any stockholder of record wishing to nominate a director or have a
stockholder proposal considered at an annual meeting must provide written notice and certain supporting
documentation to the Company relating to the nomination or proposal not less than 120 days nor more than 150
days prior to the Mailing Date Anniversary. We urge you to review carefully these amendments to Section 1.3
and Section 2.4 of the Existing Bylaws, as set forth in Appendix B, in its entirety because this summary may not
contain all of the information concerning this amendment that is important to you. Additionally, we urge you to
review the potential anti-takeover effects of our advance notice provision discussed in “Anti-Takeover Effects”.

Plurality Vote Standard in Contested Elections of Directors

Our Existing Bylaws currently provide that a majority of the votes cast at a meeting of our stockholders duly
called and at which a quorum is present shall be sufficient to take or authorize action upon any matter which is
properly brought before the meeting, unless more than a majority of the votes cast is specifically required by
statute, the Charter or the Existing Bylaws. As such, our directors are elected by a majority of the votes cast in
the election of directors.

As a part of its review of our corporate governance, our Board of Directors determined that it is in the best
interests of the Company and our stockholders to retain a majority vote standard in uncontested director
elections. The Board of Directors concluded that the retention of a majority vote standard will reinforce the
Board’s accountability to our stockholders, by requiring that a nominee must obtain more “For” than “Against”
votes in order to be elected.

The Board of Directors believes, however, that a plurality vote standard should be implemented in contested
director elections. Under this plurality vote standard, the director nominees who receive the highest number of
affirmative votes cast for each seat on the Board are elected as directors. Accordingly, a director may be elected
without receiving a majority of votes cast “For” his or her election and even if the number of “Withheld” votes
exceeds the number of “For” votes. If a majority vote standard is used in a contested election, fewer candidates
could be elected to the board than the number of authorized board seats.

Additionally, because the Company is incorporated in Maryland, our Board of Directors also has approved
amendments to our Corporate Governance Guidelines so as to add a director resignation policy consistent with
the majority vote standard in uncontested elections. Under the MGCL, even if an incumbent director does not
receive the vote required for re-election, that director will continue to serve as a “holdover director” until a
successor is elected and qualified. The amended Corporate Governance Guidelines will require each incumbent
nominee to submit an irrevocable contingent resignation letter prior to the mailing of the proxy statement for an
annual meeting at which the nominee’s candidacy will be considered. If the nominee does not receive more votes
cast “For” than “Against” their election, our Nominating/Corporate Governance Committee will recommend to
the Board of Directors that it accept the nominee’s contingent resignation, unless it determines that acceptance of
the resignation would not be in the Company’s best interests. The Board of Directors will decide whether to
accept or reject the contingent resignation offer at its next regularly scheduled meeting, but in no event later than
120 days following certification of the election results. The Board’s decision and its reasons will be promptly
disclosed in a periodic or current report filed with the SEC.
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We urge you to review carefully this amendment to Section 1.8 of the Existing Bylaws, as set forth in
Appendix B, in its entirety because this summary may not contain all of the information concerning this
amendment that is important to you.

General Updating Amendments

In addition to the modifications described above, the Board of Directors has approved various modifications
to the Existing Bylaws to make conforming changes consistent with the Charter Proposals, to fix typographical
errors, to delete or modify outdated provisions and to update notice provisions and provisions relating to the
conduct of annual and special meetings to conform with current industry and market standards.

Anti-Takeover Effects

Our Board of Directors unanimously recommends that the Charter amendments be approved for the reasons
set forth in this Proxy Statement. You should be aware, however, that certain of the proposed Charter
amendments, in particular amending the Charter (a) to provide that, consistent with the Company’s current
director removal standard, directors may be removed by the stockholders of the Company only for cause and
(b) to modify Article IX of the Charter as described in Proposal 1C, may have anti-takeover effects in that such
amendments may impede the removal of incumbent directors and restrict the ability of a stockholder to
accumulate substantial holdings of our Common Stock, respectively. Proposals 1B and 1C have not been made in
response to, and are not being presented to deter, any effort to obtain control of the Company and are not being
proposed as anti-takeover measures. Nevertheless, these Charter amendments may have the effect of impeding
the removal of incumbent directors and management, even if such removal may be beneficial to all of our
stockholders. In addition, these Charter amendments may impede or discourage an acquisition of our Common
Stock, tender offer or other transaction, even if such a transaction may be favorable to the interests of some or all
of our stockholders. This might prevent our common stockholders from realizing an opportunity to sell all or a
portion of their shares of our stock at higher than market prices. For these reasons, our incumbent directors and
executive officers may have an interest in the approval of the Charter amendments that other stockholders of our
Company may not share.

The anti-takeover effect of Proposals 1B and 1C should also be considered in light of other existing
circumstances applicable to us, which could also have the effect of preventing a change of control. For example,
if each of the Charter Proposals is approved by our stockholders, certain provisions of our Charter and our
Amended Bylaws could have the effect of discouraging, delaying or preventing transactions that involve an
actual or threatened change in control of our Company. These provisions include the following:

 Preferred Stock. Under our Charter, our Board of Directors has the power to issue preferred stock from
time to time in one or more series and to establish the terms, preferences and rights of any such series of
preferred stock, all without approval of our stockholders.

e Advance Notice Bylaws. Our Amended Bylaws require advance notice procedures with respect to
nominations of directors and shareholder proposals.

e Stockholder Action by Written Consent. Our Amended Bylaws contain a provision that permits our
stockholders to take action by written consent in lieu of an annual or special meeting of stockholders only
if the unanimous consent of the stockholders is obtained.

e Ability of Stockholders to Call Special Meeting. Under our Amended Bylaws, we are only required to call
a special meeting at the request of the stockholders if the request is made by at least a majority of all votes
entitled to be cast by our stockholders generally in the election of directors.

* Maryland Control Share Acquisition Act. Our Amended Bylaws contain a provision exempting
acquisitions of our shares from the Maryland Control Share Acquisition Act.
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PROPOSAL 2
ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

Pursuant to the Company’s Charter, the maximum number of members allowed to serve on the Company’s
Board of Directors is twelve. Following the resignation of Kevin W. Lynch from the Board of Directors on
February 25, 2013, the Board of Directors of the Company reduced its size from seven seats to six seats. The
Board of Directors is divided into three classes, with the directors in each class serving for a term of three years
and until their successors are duly elected and qualify. The term of one class expires at each Annual Meeting of
Stockholders. Pursuant to the Existing Bylaws, vacancies on the Board of Directors may be filled by a majority
vote of the directors, and directors elected to fill vacancies shall hold office until the next Annual Meeting of
Stockholders.

Our Board of Directors has approved an amendment to our Charter that, if approved by the stockholders at
this Annual Meeting (together with the other Charter Proposals), will eliminate the three-year staggered terms of
our directors effective at the Annual Meeting. As a result, if all of the Charter Proposals are approved by our
stockholders, any directors whose terms do not expire at this Annual Meeting will resign and have been
nominated to stand for election to a one-year term expiring at the 2014 Annual Meeting of Stockholders, and the
three directors whose terms expire at this Annual Meeting have also been nominated to stand for election to a
one-year term expiring at the 2014 Annual Meeting of Stockholders. If our stockholders do not approve all of the
Charter Proposals, this Proposal 2 will not be submitted to a vote of our stockholders at the Annual Meeting, and
instead Proposal 3 (Election of Classified Directors) will be submitted in its place.

The Board of Directors has nominated Matthew S. Dominski, Bruce W. Duncan, H. Patrick Hackett,
Jr., John Rau, L. Peter Sharpe and W. Ed Tyler to serve as directors (the “Nominees”). All of the Nominees are
currently serving as directors of the Company. Each of the Nominees has consented to be named as a nominee in
this Proxy Statement. The Board of Directors anticipates that each of the Nominees will serve as a director if
elected. However, if any person nominated by the Board of Directors is unable to accept election, the proxies will
vote for the election of such other person or persons as the Board of Directors may recommend.

The Board of Directors recommends a vote FOR the Nominees.

INFORMATION REGARDING THE NOMINEES

The following biographical descriptions set forth certain information with respect to the six Nominees for
election as directors and certain executive officers, based on information furnished to the Company by such
persons. The following information is as of March 19, 2013, unless otherwise specified.

Matthew S. Dominski Director since 2010

Mr. Dominski, 58, has been a director of the Company since March 2010. He also presently serves as a
director of CBL & Associates Properties, Inc., one of the largest shopping mall real estate investment trusts in the
United States. From 1993 through 2000, Mr. Dominski served as Chief Executive Officer of Urban Shopping
Centers (“Urban”), formerly one of the largest regional mall property companies in the country and also a
publicly traded real estate investment trust. Following the purchase of Urban by Rodamco North America in
2000, Mr. Dominski served as Urban’s President until 2002. In 2003, Mr. Dominski formed Polaris Capital,
LLC, a Chicago, Illinois based real estate investment firm of which he currently is joint owner. From 1998 until
2004, Mr. Dominski served as a member of the Board of Trustees of the International Council of Shopping
Centers. Mr. Dominski’s extensive experience leading other public and private real estate companies, both as a
senior executive and a director, is a valuable asset to the Board of Directors.

Bruce W. Duncan Director since 2009

Mr. Duncan, 61, has been President, Chief Executive Officer and a Director of the Company since January
2009. He also presently serves as the chairman of the Board of Directors of Starwood Hotels & Resorts
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Worldwide, Inc. (NYSE: HOT) (“Starwood”), a leading worldwide hotel and leisure company, a position he has
held since May 2005. From April 2007 to September 2007, Mr. Duncan served as Chief Executive Officer of
Starwood on an interim basis. Mr. Duncan has served as a Director of Starwood since 1999 and as a trustee of the
REIT subsidiary of Starwood from 1995 to 2006. He also was a senior advisor to Kohlberg Kravis & Roberts &
Co. from July 2008 until January 2009. From May 2005 to December 2005, Mr. Duncan was Chief Executive
Officer and Trustee of Equity Residential (NYSE: EQR) (“EQR”), a publicly traded apartment company. From
January 2003 to May 2005, he was President, Chief Executive Officer and Trustee, and from April 2002 to
December 2002, President and Trustee of EQR. From December 1995 until March 2000, Mr. Duncan served as
Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer of Cadillac Fairview Corporation, a real estate operating
company. From January 1992 to October 1994, Mr. Duncan was President and Co-Chief Executive Officer of
JMB Institutional Realty Corporation providing advice and management for investments in real estate by tax-
exempt investors and from 1978 to 1992, he worked for JMB Realty Corporation where he served in various
capacities, culminating as Executive Vice President and a member of the Board of Directors. Mr. Duncan’s
extensive experience leading other publicly traded real estate companies, both as a senior executive and a
director, is critical to his ability to lead the Company as its Chief Executive Officer, and is a valuable asset to the
Board of Directors. Moreover, as the Company’s Chief Executive Officer, Mr. Duncan brings to our Board of
Directors his in-depth knowledge of our business, strategy, operations, competition and financial position.
Mr. Duncan’s membership on the Board of Directors is critical to ensuring appropriate coordination and
communication between the Company’s executive officers and the Board of Directors.

H. Patrick Hackett, Jr. Director since 2009

Mr. Hackett, 61, has been a director of the Company since December 2009. Mr. Hackett is the Chief
Executive Officer of HHS Co., a real estate company located in the Chicago area. Previously, he served as the
President and Chief Executive Officer of RREEF Capital, Inc. and as Principal of The RREEF Funds, an
international commercial real estate investment management firm. Mr. Hackett taught real estate finance at the
Kellogg Graduate School of Management for 15 years when he also served on the real estate advisory boards of
Kellogg and the Massachusetts Institute of Technology. He serves on the boards of Wintrust Financial
Corporation (NASDAQ: WTFC) and Textura Corporation. Mr. Hackett is a director of North Shore Bank.
Mr. Hackett provides the Board of Directors with valuable real estate finance expertise, and the Board of
Directors further benefits from Mr. Hackett’s experience on other boards in the financial services sector. In
addition, Mr. Hackett’s financial expertise is valuable to the Company’s Audit Committee, which he has chaired
since June 2010 and within which he is an “audit committee financial expert.”

John Rau Director since 1994

Mr. Rau, 64, has been a director of the Company since June 1994. Since December 2002, Mr. Rau has
served as President and Chief Executive Officer and as a director of Miami Corporation, a private asset
management firm. From January 1997 to March 2000, he was a director, President and Chief Executive Officer
of Chicago Title Corporation (NYSE: CTZ), and its subsidiaries, Chicago Title and Trust Co., Chicago Title
Insurance Co., Ticor Title Insurance Co. and Security Union Title Insurance Co. Mr. Rau was a director of
BorgWarner, Inc. from 1997 to 2006, a director of William Wrigley Jr. Company from March 2005 until the
company was sold to Mars, Inc. in September 2008 and a director of Nicor, Inc. from 1997 until it was sold to
AGL Resources Inc. in December 2011, and continues as a director of AGL Resources Inc. Mr. Rau is a director
of BMO Financial Corp. and BMO/Harris Bank, and served as a director of LaSalle Bank, N.A. until its 2007
sale to Bank of America. From July 1993 until November 1996, Mr. Rau was Dean of the Indiana University
School of Business. From 1991 to 1993, Mr. Rau served as Chairman of the Illinois Economic Development
Board and as special advisor to Illinois Governor Jim Edgar. From 1990 to 1993, he was Chairman of the
Banking Research Center Board of Advisors and a Visiting Scholar at Northwestern University’s J.L. Kellogg
Graduate School of Management. During that time, he also served as Special Consultant to McKinsey &
Company, a worldwide strategic consulting firm. From 1989 to 1991, Mr. Rau served as President and Chief
Executive Officer of LaSalle National Bank. From 1979 to 1989, he was associated with The Exchange National
Bank, serving as President from 1983 to 1989, at which time The Exchange National Bank merged with LaSalle

12



PROXY STATEMENT

National Bank. Prior to 1979, he was associated with First National Bank of Chicago. Mr. Rau’s extensive experience
in the banking and title insurance industries provides the Board of Directors with valuable insight into the matters of
corporate and real estate finance, as well as financial services management and risk management. Moreover, Mr. Rau’s
financial expertise is valuable to the Company’s Audit Committee, on which he currently serves.

L. Peter Sharpe Director since 2010

Mr. Sharpe, 66, has been a director of the Company since November 2010. He served as President and Chief
Executive Officer of Cadillac Fairview Corporation from March 2000 through December 31, 2010. Prior to
March 2000, Mr. Sharpe held various positions at Cadillac Fairview Corporation, including serving as its
Executive Vice President of Operations from 1990 to 2000. Mr. Sharpe currently serves as a director of
Postmedia Network Canada Corp., Morguard Corporation and Allied Properties Real Estate Investment Trust.
From 2009 through 2010, Mr. Sharpe served as Chairman of the Board of Directors of the International Council
of Shopping Centers, the global trade association of the shopping center industry, and also served as a director of
Multiplan Empreendimentos Imobilidrios S.A. (Bovespa: MULT3), one of the leading developers, owners and
operators of shopping centers in Brazil. Previously, Mr. Sharpe served as a director on the boards of Legacy
REIT, from 1997 to 2001, and Fairmont Hotels & Resorts, from 2001 to 2006. Mr. Sharpe’s experience
managing large real estate development companies, and serving on the boards of real estate investment trusts, has
provided him with real estate knowledge and corporate organizational skills that benefit our Board of Directors
tremendously. In addition to his executive experience, inclusive of managing a substantial real estate entity for an
institutional ownership constituency, Mr. Sharpe has a substantial background in real estate investment leasing
and operations activities. Moreover, Mr. Sharpe’s financial expertise, and his experience serving on the Audit
Committees of other publicly traded real estate companies, is valuable to the Company’s Audit Committee, on
which he currently serves, and the Compensation Committee, of which he currently serves as Chairman.

W. Ed Tyler Director since 2000

Mr. Tyler, 60, has been a director of the Company since March 2000, served as Lead Director from October
2008 to January 2009 and has served as non-executive Chairman of the Board of Directors since January 2009.
Mr. Tyler also served as the Company’s interim Chief Executive Officer from October 2008 to January 2009.
Mr. Tyler is a director of Nanophase Technologies Corporation (NASDAQ: NANX). Mr. Tyler was appointed
CEO of Ideapoint Ventures in 2002. Ideapoint Ventures is an early stage venture fund that focuses on
nanotechnologies. Prior to joining Ideapoint Ventures, Mr. Tyler served as Chief Executive Officer and a director
of Moore Corporation Limited, a provider of data capture, information design, marketing services, digital
communications and print solutions, from 1998 to 2000. Prior to joining Moore Corporation, Mr. Tyler served in
various capacities at R.R. Donnelley & Sons Company, most recently as Executive Vice President and Chief
Technology Officer, from 1997 to 1998, and as Executive Vice President and Sector President of Donnelley’s
Networked Services Sector, from 1995 to 1997. Mr. Tyler’s extensive experience as a senior executive and
director of other companies, both private and publicly traded, is extremely valuable to the Board of Directors.
Moreover, this experience, coupled with Mr. Tyler’s prior service as interim Chief Executive Officer of the
Company, affords Mr. Tyler a unique perspective, and helps him facilitate communications between the
Company’s senior executives and the Board of Directors in his role as Chairman of the Board.

INFORMATION REGARDING EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND OTHER SENIOR MANAGEMENT
Scott A. Musil

Mr. Musil, 45, has been Chief Financial Officer of the Company since March 2011 and Chief Accounting
Officer of the Company since March 2006. He served as acting Chief Financial Officer of the Company from
December 2008 to March 2011. Mr. Musil has also served as Senior Vice President of the Company since March
2001, Treasurer of the Company since May 2002 and Assistant Secretary of the Company since July 2012.
Mr. Musil previously served as Controller of the Company from December 1995 to March 2012, Assistant
Secretary of the Company from May 1996 to March 2012 and Vice President of the Company from May 1998 to
March 2001. Prior to joining the Company, he served in various capacities with Arthur Andersen & Company,
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culminating as an audit manager specializing in the real estate and finance industries. Mr. Musil is a non-
practicing certified public accountant. His professional affiliations include the American Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and National Association of Real Estate Investment Trusts (“NAREIT”).

Johannson L. Yap

Mr. Yap, 50, has been the Chief Investment Officer of the Company since February 1997 and Executive
Vice President — West Region since March 2009. From April 1994 to February 1997, he served as Senior Vice
President — Acquisitions of the Company. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Yap joined The Shidler Group in
1988 as an acquisitions associate, and became Vice President in 1991, with responsibility for acquisitions,
property management, leasing, project financing, sales and construction management functions. Between 1988
and 1994, he participated in the acquisition, underwriting and due diligence of several hundred million dollars of
commercial properties. His professional affiliations include Urban Land Institute, NAREIT and the Council of
Logistics Management.

David Harker

Mr. Harker, 54, has been Executive Vice President — Central Region since March 2009. From April 2005
to March 2009 he served as Executive Director — Investments of the Company. From 2002 to April 2005, he
served as a Senior Regional Director of the Company and from 1998 to 2002 he served as a Regional Director of
the Company, with responsibility for the Company’s portfolio in Nashville, St. Louis, Louisville and Memphis.
Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Harker was a Vice President of the Trammell Crow Company from 1992 to
1998. His professional affiliations include the Society of Industrial and Office Realtors.

Peter O. Schultz

Mr. Schultz, 50, has been Executive Vice President — East Region since March 2009. From January 2009
to March 2009 he served as Senior Vice President — Portfolio Management of the Company. From November
2007 to December 2008, he served as a Managing Director of the Company, with responsibility for the
Company’s East Region. From September 2004 to November 2007, he served as a Vice President — Leasing of
the Company, with responsibility for the Company’s leasing team and asset management plan implementation in
the East Region. From January 2001 to September 2004, he served as a Senior Regional Director of the
Company, with responsibility for the Company’s portfolio in Eastern Pennsylvania and Southern New Jersey.
From March 1998 to December 2000, he served as a Regional Director of the Company, with responsibility for
the Company’s portfolio in Eastern Pennsylvania. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Schultz served as President
and Managing Partner of PBS Properties, Inc. from November 1990 to March 1998, prior to which time he was
Director of Marketing and Sales for the Pickering Group and Morgantown Properties. His professional
affiliations include the National Association of Industrial and Office Properties.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Board of Directors. The Board of Directors currently consists of six seats. A majority of the members
of the Board of Directors are independent as affirmatively determined by the Board of Directors. In determining
the independence of its members, the Board of Directors applied the following standards:

1) The member must meet the definition of “Independent Director” contained in the Company’s
Charter, which requires that he or she be neither an employee of the Company nor a member of The Shidler
Group.

2) After taking into account all relevant facts and circumstances, the Board of Directors must determine
that the member has no material relationships with the Company (either directly or as a partner, shareholder
or officer of an organization that has a relationship with the Company). Relationships to be considered
include commercial, industrial, banking, consulting, legal, accounting, charitable and familial relationships.

3) The member must satisfy the independence tests set forth in Section 303A.02(b) of the Listed
Company Manual of the NYSE.
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Applying such standards, the Board of Directors has affirmatively determined that each of Messrs. Dominski,
Hackett, Lynch, Rau, Sharpe and Tyler are independent directors.

The Board of Directors held six meetings and acted five times by unanimous consent during 2012. Each of
the directors serving in 2012 attended at least 75% of the total number of meetings of the Board of Directors and
of the respective committees of the Board of Directors of which he was a member. Although the Company does
not have a formal policy regarding director attendance at Annual Meetings of Stockholders, all of the directors
then serving attended the 2012 Annual Meeting of Stockholders. During 2012, Mr. Tyler, in his capacity as
Chairman of the Board, presided at meetings of non-management directors.

The Board of Directors has adopted Corporate Governance Guidelines to reflect the principles by which it
operates. These guidelines, as well as the charters of the Audit Committee, Compensation Committee and
Nominating/Corporate Governance Committee of the Board of Directors, are accessible at the investor relations
pages of the Company’s website at www.firstindustrial.com and are available in print free of charge to any
stockholder or other interested party who requests them. The Company has adopted a Code of Business Conduct
and Ethics, which includes the principles by which the Company expects its employees, officers and directors to
conduct Company business and which is accessible at the investor relations pages of the Company’s website at
www.firstindustrial.com and is available in print free of charge to any stockholder or other interested party who
requests it. The Company intends to post on its website amendments to, or waivers from, any provision of the
Company’s Code of Business Conduct and Ethics. We also post or otherwise make available on our website from
time to time other information that may be of interest to our investors and other interested parties. However, none
of the information provided on our website is part of the proxy solicitation material. See “Other Matters —
Incorporation by Reference” herein.

The Board of Directors has appointed an Audit Committee, a Compensation Committee, an Investment
Committee and a Nominating/Corporate Governance Committee.

Audit Committee. The Audit Committee is directly responsible for the appointment, discharge,
compensation, and oversight of the work of any independent registered public accounting firm employed by the
Company for the purpose of preparing or issuing an audit report or related work. In connection with such
responsibilities, the Audit Committee approves the engagement of independent public accountants, reviews with
the independent public accountants the audit plan, the audit scope, and the results of the annual audit
engagement, pre-approves audit and non-audit services and fees of the independent public accountants, reviews
the independence of the independent public accountants and reviews the adequacy of the Company’s internal
control over financial reporting.

In 2012, the Audit Committee consisted of Messrs. Hackett, Sharpe and Rau. Each of Messrs. Hackett,
Sharpe and Rau, in the judgment of the Company’s Board of Directors, is independent as required by the listing
standards of the NYSE and the rules of the SEC. Also, in the judgment of the Company’s Board of Directors,
each member is financially literate as required by the listing standards of the NYSE. Further, in the judgment of
the Company’s Board of Directors, Mr. Hackett is an “audit committee financial expert,” as such term is defined
in the SEC rules, and has “accounting or related financial management expertise,” as defined in the listing
standards of the NYSE. See Mr. Hackett’s biography above. Mr. Hackett is also the current Chairman of the
Audit Committee. The Audit Committee met seven times in 2012.

Compensation Committee. The Compensation Committee has overall responsibility for approving and
evaluating the compensation plans, policies and programs relating to the executive officers of the Company. The
Compensation Committee administers, and has authority to grant awards under, the First Industrial Realty Trust,
Inc. 1994 Stock Incentive Plan (the “1994 Stock Plan”), the First Industrial Realty Trust, Inc. 1997 Stock
Incentive Plan (the “1997 Stock Plan”), the First Industrial Realty Trust, Inc. Deferred Income Plan, the First
Industrial Realty Trust, Inc. 2001 Stock Incentive Plan (the “2001 Stock Plan”), the First Industrial Realty Trust,
Inc. 2009 Stock Incentive Plan (the “2009 Stock Plan”) and the 2011 Stock Incentive Plan (the “2011 Stock
Plan”). Prior to Mr. Lynch’s resignation, the Compensation Committee consisted of Messrs. Tyler, Lynch and
Sharpe, each of whom, in the judgment of the Company’s Board of Directors, is independent as required by the
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listing standards of the NYSE. Prior to his resignation, Mr. Lynch served as Chairman of the Compensation
Committee. From and after Mr. Lynch’s resignation, the Compensation Committee consists of Messrs. Tyler and
Sharpe, and Mr. Sharpe currently serves as the Chairman of the Compensation Committee. The Compensation
Committee met ten (10) times in 2012.

Investment Committee. The Investment Committee provides oversight and discipline to the investment
process. Investment opportunities are described in written reports based on detailed research and analyses in a
standardized format applying appropriate underwriting criteria. The Investment Committee meets with the
Company’s acquisition personnel, reviews each submission thoroughly and approves acquisitions and
dispositions of land of greater than $5 million and all other acquisitions, dispositions and development projects of
greater than $20 million. The Investment Committee makes a formal recommendation to the Board of Directors
for all acquisitions, dispositions and development projects in excess of $50 million. The membership of the
Investment Committee currently consists of Messrs. Hackett, Dominski and Duncan. The Investment Committee
met four times in 2012.

Nominating/Corporate Governance Committee. The Nominating/Corporate Governance Committee
recommends individuals for election as directors at the Annual Meeting of Stockholders of the Company and in
connection with any vacancy that may develop on the Board of Directors. The Board of Directors, in turn, as a
whole by a majority vote either approves all of the nominations so recommended by the Nominating/Corporate
Governance Committee or rejects all of the nominations in whole, but not in part. In the event that the Board of
Directors as a whole by a majority vote rejects the recommended nominations, the Nominating/Corporate
Governance Committee would develop a new recommendation. In addition, the Nominating/Corporate
Governance Committee develops and oversees the Company’s corporate governance policies. The membership
of the Nominating/Corporate Governance Committee currently consists of Messrs. Dominski, Hackett and Rau,
each of whom, in the judgment of the Company’s Board of Directors, is independent as required by the listing
standards of the NYSE. Mr. Rau is the current Chairman of the Nominating/Corporate Governance Committee.
The Nominating/Corporate Governance Committee met three times during 2012 and met in February 2013 to
determine its nominations for this Proxy Statement.

The Nominating/Corporate Governance Committee will consider nominees recommended by stockholders
of the Company. In order for a stockholder to nominate a candidate for election as a director at an Annual
Meeting, proper notice must be given in accordance with the bylaws of the Company to the Secretary of the
Company. As described in Proposal 1, the Board of Directors has adopted Amended Bylaws relating to notice
that must be provided to nominate a candidate for election as a director. If the Charter Proposals are adopted by
the stockholders at this Annual Meeting, the Amended Bylaws will become effective and, to be timely, such
notice of director nominees will be required to be provided to the Secretary of the Company not more than 150
days nor less than 120 days prior to the Mailing Date Anniversary. If the stockholders do not adopt each of the
Charter Proposals at this Annual Meeting, the Amended Bylaws will not become effective and, to be timely, such
notice of director nominees will be required to be provided to the Secretary of the Company not more than 180
days nor less than 75 days prior to the first anniversary of the preceding year’s Annual Meeting. The fact that the
Company may not insist upon compliance with the requirements contained in its bylaws should not be construed
as a waiver by the Company of its right to do so at any time in the future.

In general, it is the Nominating/Corporate Governance Committee’s policy that, in its judgment, its
recommended nominees for election as members of the Board of Directors of the Company must, at a minimum,
have business experience of a breadth, and at a level of complexity, sufficient to understand all aspects of the
Company’s business and, through either experience or education, have acquired such knowledge as is sufficient
to qualify as financially literate. In addition, recommended nominees must be persons of integrity and be
committed to devoting the time and attention necessary to fulfill their duties to the Company. While the
Nominating/Corporate Governance Committee has not adopted a formal diversity policy, diversity is one of the
factors that the Nominating/Corporate Governance Committee considers in identifying director nominees. As
part of the nomination process, the Nominating/Corporate Governance Committee evaluates how a particular
individual would affect the diversity of the Company’s Board of Directors in terms of how that person may
contribute to the Board of Directors’ overall balance of perspectives, backgrounds, knowledge, experience, skill
sets and expertise in matters pertaining to the Company’s business.
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The Nominating/Corporate Governance Committee may identify nominees for election as members of the
Board of Directors of the Company through its own sources (including through nominations by stockholders
made in accordance with the Company’s bylaws), through sources of other directors of the Company, and
through the use of third-party search firms. The Company has previously engaged a third party search firm to
identify potential nominees and may do so again in the future. Subject to the foregoing minimum standards, the
Nominating/Corporate Governance Committee will evaluate each nominee on a case-by-case basis, assessing
each nominee’s judgment, experience, independence, understanding of the Company’s business or that of other
related industries, and such other factors as the Nominating/Corporate Governance Committee concludes are
pertinent in light of the current needs of the Company’s Board of Directors.

Communications by Stockholders and Other Interested Parties. Stockholders of the Company and other
interested parties may send communications to the Board of Directors as a whole, its individual members, its
committees or its non-management members as a group. Communications to the Board of Directors as a whole
should be addressed to “The Board of Directors”; communications to any individual member of the Board of
Directors should be addressed to such individual member; communications to any committee of the Board of
Directors should be addressed to the Chairman of such committee; and communications to non-management
members of the Board of Directors as a group should be addressed to the Chairman of the Nominating/Corporate
Governance Committee. In each case, communications should be further addressed “c/o First Industrial Realty
Trust, Inc., 311 South Wacker Drive, Suite 3900, Chicago, Illinois 60606.” All communications will be
forwarded to their respective addressees and, if a stockholder marks his or her communication “Confidential”,
will be forwarded directly to the addressee.

Board Leadership Structure and Role in Risk Management. Mr. Tyler is chairman of the Board of
Directors. Mr. Tyler served as the Company’s interim Chief Executive Officer from October 22, 2008 until
January 9, 2009. Prior to and since the completion of his service as interim Chief Executive Officer, Mr. Tyler
has not served as an officer of the Company and, as discussed above, Mr. Tyler is an independent director as
affirmatively determined by the Board of Directors. We believe that having board leadership independent of
management helps ensure critical and independent thinking with respect to the Company’s strategy and
performance. Mr. Duncan, the Company’s President and Chief Executive Officer, is also a member of the Board
of Directors. The presence of Mr. Duncan on the Board of Directors helps to ensure that management’s insight is
directly available to the directors in their deliberations.

The Board of Directors oversees the business of the Company and our stockholders’ interests in the long-
term financial strength and overall success of the Company’s business. In this respect, the Board of Directors is
responsible for overseeing the Company’s risk management. The Board of Directors delegates many of these
functions to the Board’s committees. Each committee of the Board of Directors is responsible for reviewing the
risk exposure of the Company related to the committees’ areas of responsibility and providing input to the Board
of Directors on such risks. The Board of Directors and its committees regularly review material strategic,
operational, financial, compensation and compliance risks with management.

For example, under its charter, the Audit Committee is required to assist the Board of Directors in fulfilling
its oversight responsibilities by reviewing the financial information that will be provided to the stockholders, the
systems of internal controls that management and the Board of Directors have established and the audit process.
The Audit Committee is responsible for facilitating communication between the Company’s independent auditors
and the Board of Directors and management, and for reviewing with the independent auditors the adequacy of the
Company’s internal controls. The Audit Committee also reviews with management and the independent auditors
significant risks which impact financial reporting and operations to which the Company is exposed, including
risks faced in the ordinary course of business and risks resulting from extraordinary circumstances. In addressing
these risks, the Audit Committee assesses management’s response and the effectiveness of the Company’s
internal controls.

Similarly, the Compensation Committee strives to adopt compensation incentives that encourage appropriate
risk-taking behavior that is consistent with the Company’s long-term business strategy. We do not believe that our
compensation policies and practices are reasonably likely to have a material adverse effect on the Company. The
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Compensation Committee has focused on aligning our compensation policies with our stockholders’ long-term
interests and avoiding short-term rewards for management or awards that encourage excessive or unnecessary risk
taking. For example, a substantial amount of compensation provided to the Company’s executive officers is in the
form of equity awards for which the ultimate value of the award is tied to the Company’s stock price and which are
subject to long-term vesting schedules. In addition, annual cash and equity bonuses provided to management for
2012 were contingent upon the Company’s satisfaction of a prescribed level of “funds from operations,” which is a
supplemental performance measure not included in generally accepted accounting principles (“GAAP”) commonly
used to evaluate the performance of real estate investment trusts. Because these awards are directly tied to increased
earnings and stock price, in line with our stockholders’ interests, we believe that none of these types of awards
contribute to excessive or unnecessary risk taking.

DIRECTOR COMPENSATION

Directors of the Company who are also employees, namely Mr. Duncan (our Chief Executive Officer),
receive no additional compensation for their services as a director.

Compensation of non-employee directors is reviewed annually by the Compensation Committee of the
Board of Directors, which makes any recommendations of compensation changes to the entire Board of
Directors. Non-employee directors are not entitled to retirement benefits, incentive compensation or perquisites,
although they are reimbursed for their out-of-pocket expenses for meeting attendance.

Compensation for non-employee directors of the Company in 2012 consisted of an annual director’s fee
equivalent in value to $120,000. No fees are paid for attendance at in-person or telephonic meetings of the Board
of Directors and its committees. Additional annual fees for service as Chairman of the Board of Directors,
Chairman of the Audit Committee, Chairman of the Compensation Committee and Chairman of the Nominating/
Corporate Governance Committee are $50,000, $20,000, $10,000 and $10,000, respectively.

DIRECTOR COMPENSATION SUMMARY

Fees Earned

or Paid in Stock All Other Total
Name Cash ($) Awards ($) Compensation ($) Compensation ($)
Matthew S. Dominski . ..................... $120,000 $0(1) $0 $120,000
H. Patrick Hackett, Jr. . ..................... $140,000 $0(2) $0 $140,000
Kevin W.Lynch .......... ... . ... ....... $130,000 $0(3) $0 $130,000
JohnRau ....... ... ... ... . $126,398 $0(4) $0 $126,398
L.Peter Sharpe ................c..cuiino... $120,000 $0(5) $0 $120,000
Robert J. Slater(6) .. ....... ... ... $ 46,828 $0(7) $0 $ 46,828
W.EdTyler ........ .. .. ... .. $170,000 $0(8) $0 $170,000

(1) As of December 31, 2012, Mr. Dominski held 0 shares of unvested restricted Common Stock.
(2) As of December 31, 2012, Mr. Hackett held O shares of unvested restricted Common Stock.
(3) As of December 31, 2012, Mr. Lynch held 8,592 shares of unvested restricted Common Stock.
(4) As of December 31, 2012, Mr. Rau held 5,666 shares of unvested restricted Common Stock.
(5) As of December 31, 2012, Mr. Sharpe held O shares of unvested restricted Common Stock.

(6) Mr. Slater’s service as a director concluded effective as of May 10, 2012.

(7) As of December 31, 2012, Mr. Slater held 9,505 shares of unvested restricted Common Stock.
(8) As of December 31, 2012, Mr. Tyler held 8,180 shares of unvested restricted Common Stock.
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EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
2012 ACCOMPLISHMENTS

2012 was another successful year for the Company marked by continued execution of our strategy by
driving value from leasing, strengthening our balance sheet and refining our portfolio through active asset
management and new investment. Decisions by the Board of Directors on executive compensation are reflective
of the Company’s strong performance during the year, including:

* Delivering total return to shareholders of 37.6%, ranking 19 out of 111 REITs in the MSCI US REIT
Index for all of 2012 (Source: REITZone Publications), and more than double the total return of the S&P
500;

* Increasing portfolio occupancy to 89.9% at year-end 2012, up 200 basis points from year-end 2011;

* Launching $115 million of new developments totaling 1.7 million square-feet comprised of the 300,000
square-foot First Chino Logistics Center in the Inland Empire in Southern California (subsequently leased
in the first quarter of 2013), the 489,000 square-foot First Bandini Logistics Center in Bell, California
(suburban Los Angeles), the 708,000 square-foot First Logistics Center in Central Pennsylvania, and a
156,000 square-foot leased expansion in Minneapolis, MN;

* Acquiring the remaining 85% interest from our joint venture partner of a 390,000 square-foot distribution
center in York, PA with a total investment of $21.8 million, including our original interest;

» Leasing First Inland Logistics Center, our 692,000 square-foot speculative development in the Inland
Empire in Southern California;

¢ Selling $85.6 million of assets as part of our asset management strategy to upgrade the portfolio; and

» Continuing to strengthen our balance sheet through a combination of strong operating results and capital
markets activities, including debt buybacks, equity and secured debt issuances and a preferred stock
redemption.

OBJECTIVES AND DESIGN OF COMPENSATION PROGRAM

The Company maintains the philosophy that compensation of its executive officers and other employees
should serve the best interests of the Company’s stockholders. Accordingly, the Company believes that its
executive compensation program should not only serve to attract and retain talented and capable individuals, but
should also provide them with proper incentives linked to performance criteria that are designed to maximize the
Company’s overall performance. To this end, the Company’s compensation program consists of a mix of
compensation that is intended to compensate executive officers for their contributions during the year, and to
reward them for achievements that lead to increased Company performance and increases in stockholder value.

THE EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION PROCESS AND THE ROLE OF EXECUTIVE OFFICERS IN
COMPENSATION DECISIONS

The Compensation Committee of the Company’s Board of Directors (the “Compensation Committee”) has
overall responsibility for approving and evaluating the compensation plans, policies and programs relating to the
executive officers of the Company. The Compensation Committee typically formulates senior executive
compensation beginning in the month of December preceding and in the first quarter of the applicable fiscal year,
by setting that year’s salary and, if applicable, target maximum cash and equity bonus for the Chief Executive
Officer, the Chief Financial Officer and other senior executive officers (“Senior Management”). Also, typically,
in the first quarter of the applicable fiscal year, the Compensation Committee adopts, and the full Board of
Directors ratifies, the performance criteria to be used in determining the incentive compensation of Senior
Management (other than those covered by separate plans or agreements) for that year. Then, after the end of the
applicable fiscal year, the Compensation Committee meets to determine incentive compensation to be paid to
Senior Management with respect to that year, pursuant to the performance criteria or, as applicable, pursuant to
separate plans or agreements. Per such determination, the Company pays cash bonuses, typically in February or
March, and issues restricted Common Stock, typically in March.
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Historically, the Company’s Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer have participated in
meetings with the Compensation Committee at various times throughout the year. During the first quarter of the
applicable fiscal year, they typically meet with the Compensation Committee to present and discuss
recommendations with respect to the applicable fiscal year’s salaries and target maximum cash and equity
bonuses for Senior Management not covered by separate plans or agreements. Also, in the first quarter of each
year, they typically meet with the Compensation Committee to present and discuss recommendations with
respect to incentive compensation for the year just ended. In addition, they traditionally meet with the
Compensation Committee regarding employment agreements that the Company has entered into (if any), and
assist the Compensation Committee in providing compensation information to outside consultants engaged to
evaluate the Company’s compensation programs.

Periodically, though not every year, the Company and the Compensation Committee engage the services of
outside consultants to evaluate the Company’s executive compensation program. In 2008, and again in 2012, the
Compensation Committee retained FPL Associates L.P. (“FPL”), an independent outside consultant, to review
the appropriateness of the compensation of the Company’s Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer,
Chief Investment Officer, Executive Vice Presidents and certain other members of management. Consistent with
recently adopted SEC rules, the Company has assessed whether the work of FPL raises any conflict of interest
and has determined that the retention of FPL to advise the Compensation Committee concerning executive
compensation matters does not create a conflict of interest.

In 2012, the Compensation Committee reviewed and approved the terms of a new employment agreement
with Mr. Duncan, the Company’s President and Chief Executive Officer. In connection with this review, the
Compensation Committee retained FPL to assist with this review and to revisit the appropriateness of the
compensation of the Company’s executive officers. As part of this most recent review, FPL surveyed two
separate peer groups, each comprised of 30 real estate companies. The first peer group, which was referenced
primarily to gauge the general appropriateness of the Company’s overall executive compensation structure,
included the following companies, 15 of which have a total capitalization smaller than the Company’s and 15 of
which have a total capitalization larger than the Company’s: Acadia Realty Trust; American Assets Trust, Inc.;
Ashford Hospitality Trust, Inc.; Colonial Properties Trust; CubeSmart; DCT Industrial Trust Inc.; DiamondRock
Hospitality Company; Dupont Fabros Technology, Inc.; EastGroup Properties, Inc.; EPR Properties; Equity One,
Inc.; Extra Space Storage Inc.; Felcor Lodging Trust Incorporated; Glimcher Realty Trust; Hersha Hospitality
Trust; LaSalle Hotel Properties; Lexington Realty Trust; Medical Properties Trust, Inc.; Omega Healthcare
Investors, Inc.; Pennsylvania Real Estate Investment Trust; Post Properties, Inc.; PS Business Parks, Inc.; RLJ
Lodging Trust; Saul Centers, Inc.; Sovran Self Storage, Inc.; Strategic Hotels & Resorts, Inc.; Sun Communities,
Inc.; Sunstone Hotel Investors, Inc.; W. P. Carey Inc.; and Washington Real Estate Investment Trust. Given the
Compensation Committee’s belief that Mr. Duncan’s skills and experience, including as former Chief Executive
Officer of EQR and as former interim Chief Executive Officer of Starwood, are commensurate with executives at
our largest and most sophisticated peers, and that any candidate who might replace Mr. Duncan would most
likely need to be drawn from such a pool, a second peer group was utilized, for purposes of Mr. Duncan’s
contract renewal, to gain insight into the compensation generally paid to chief executives of larger REITs. This
peer group included the following 30 companies, all with a total capitalization larger than the Company’s:
American Campus Communities, Inc.; Ashford Hospitality Trust, Inc.; BioMed Realty Trust, Inc.; Brandywine
Realty Trust; BRE Properties, Inc.; Brookdale Senior Living Inc.; Colonial Properties Trust; DCT Industrial
Trust Inc.; Dupont Fabros Technology, Inc.; EPR Properties; Equity Lifestyle Properties, Inc.; Equity One, Inc.;
Extra Space Storage Inc.; Highwoods Properties, Inc.; Kilroy Realty Corporation; LaSalle Hotel Properties;
Lexington Realty Trust; Mack-Cali Realty Corporation; Mid-America Apartment Communities, Inc.; National
Retail Properties, Inc.; Omega Healthcare Investors, Inc.; Pennsylvania Real Estate Investment Trust; Piedmont
Office Realty Trust, Inc.; Post Properties, Inc.; PS Business Parks, Inc.; Regency Centers Corporation; RLJ
Lodging Trust; Sunstone Hotel Investors, Inc.; Tanger Factory Outlet Centers, Inc.; and Washington Real Estate
Investment Trust. The Compensation Committee used these surveys not as a benchmark per se, but rather to
gauge generally the appropriateness of the compensation under Mr. Duncan’s new employment agreement and
the appropriateness of the Company’s executive compensation programs.
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In reviewing and approving the terms of Mr. Duncan’s new employment agreement and the compensation
provided for thereunder, the Compensation Committee considered, among other things:

* Mr. Duncan’s experience and skill;

e Mr. Duncan’s reputation in the industry, and the positive effect it has had and will continue to have on the
Company’s credibility in the capital market, inclusive of creating and maintaining investor confidence in
the Company as an effective and reliable custodian of capital;

e The transformative impact that Mr. Duncan has had on the Company’s corporate culture and the success
of the Company during Mr. Duncan’s tenure, notwithstanding the challenges that he inherited and a
challenging overall economic environment;

e Mr. Duncan’s leadership abilities and the cohesive and stabilizing impact that he has had and will
continue to have in the executive ranks and at all levels within the Company; and

e The difficulty in identifying, and the compensation that would likely be payable to, an equally capable
alternative candidate for the position.

In conjunction with entering into the employment agreement, the Company granted to Mr. Duncan 200,000
restricted shares of the Company’s Common Stock. These shares are fully transferrable and will vest over a
period of three years, with 33.33% vesting on each of December 17, 2013, 2014 and 2015. Also in connection
with entering into the employment agreement, existing equity awards scheduled to vest in subsequent years will
either vest in accordance with their terms or, if more favorable to Mr. Duncan, pursuant to the vesting terms set
forth in the restricted stock agreement entered into in connection with his new employment agreement.

EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION COMPONENTS

The components of the Company’s executive compensation program are base salary, incentive bonuses
(both cash and equity awards) and benefits/perquisites. Benefits/perquisites currently include premiums paid by
the Company on term life insurance and long-term disability insurance; standard health, life and disability
insurance; car allowances; a personal financial planning allowance in the case of Mr. Yap in accordance with his
employment agreement; and, if and when approved by management, 401(k) matching contributions. In the past,
benefits/perquisites have also included moving allowances.

Each component of the Company’s executive compensation program serves to attract and retain talented,
capable individuals to the Company’s management ranks. Incentive bonuses serve the added purpose of
providing such individuals with proper incentives linked to performance criteria that are designed to maximize
the Company’s overall performance.

The Company considers base salary, incentive bonuses and benefits/perquisites as independent components
of the Company’s executive compensation program. Base salary and benefits/perquisites are intended to
compensate Senior Management for services rendered, and increases to their base salary are a function of
individual performance and general economic conditions. Incentive bonuses, by contrast, are linked to, and are a
function of, the achievement of performance criteria that are designed to maximize the Company’s overall
performance. Historically, base salary and benefits/perquisites have constituted approximately 1/3 of Senior
Management’s compensation in a typical year, while incentive bonus has made up approximately 2/3. Although
this proportion may vary from year to year, this allocation between base salary and incentive compensation is
consistent with the Compensation Committee’s compensation philosophy that Senior Management’s
compensation should be largely tied to performance criteria designed to maximize the Company’s overall
performance.

The Compensation Committee does not have a specific policy regarding the mix of cash and non-cash
compensation awarded to Senior Management, although it believes that a significant portion of Senior
Management compensation should be paid in the form of equity. For members of Senior Management with
employment agreements, the mix of target maximum cash and non-cash incentive compensation they are entitled
to receive is set forth in their respective employment agreements. Although the exact percentages vary among
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individuals, non-cash compensation makes up approximately 40% of the potential incentive compensation for
executive officers as a group. For Mr. Duncan, annual bonuses will typically be payable in a combination of cash
and shares of restricted Common Stock, and it is expected that the portion paid in Common Stock will be
proportionate to the non-cash incentive compensation received by the Company’s senior executives generally.

When granting non-cash compensation to Senior Management, the Compensation Committee has typically
utilized restricted Common Stock awards. Typically, these awards vest ratably over three years and, for awards
granted under the 2010 Executive Officer Bonus Plan, the 2011 Executive Officer Bonus Plan and the 2012
Executive Officer Bonus Plan, these awards were denominated based on the closing price of the Company’s
Common Stock on the day the Compensation Committee met to make its award determinations.

The Compensation Committee believes that restricted Common Stock awards and restricted stock unit
awards play an important role in aligning management’s interests with those of the Company’s stockholders in
that restricted Common Stock and restricted stock units (other than the vesting and transfer restrictions applicable
to them) are economically identical to stockholders’ Common Stock. For this reason, restricted Common Stock
and restricted stock unit awards have been a significant part of executive compensation, although the
Compensation Committee may use other forms of equity compensation, such as stock options, in the future.

On July 7, 2010, July 12, 2011 and July 17, 2012, the Compensation Committee approved additional
retention cash bonuses to certain employees of the Company, including members of Senior Management, other
than Mr. Duncan.

ADVISORY VOTE ON EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

At the 2012 Annual Meetings of Stockholders, we conducted an advisory vote on executive compensation.
While the results of this vote were non-binding, we believe that presenting this matter to our stockholders is an
important means of obtaining investor feedback on our compensation policies. At the 2012 Annual Meeting,
more than 96% of the votes cast in the vote on executive compensation (Proposal II) were in favor of our named
executive officer compensation as disclosed in the proxy statement for that meeting, and as a result our named
executive officer compensation was approved by our stockholders on an advisory basis. In light of this support,
the Board of Directors and Compensation Committee elected not to make any changes to our executive
compensation policies at this time.

We have determined that our stockholders should vote on a say-on-pay proposal each year, consistent with
the preference expressed by our stockholders at the 2011 Annual Meeting. To the extent that the advisory vote
indicates a lack of support for the compensation of our named executive officers as disclosed in the Proxy
Statement, we plan to consider our stockholders’ concerns and expect that the Compensation Committee will
evaluate whether any actions are necessary to address those concerns.

SETTING EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION
Base Salary

The Company provides Senior Management with base salary to compensate them for services rendered
during the fiscal year. The base salaries of Senior Management are a function of either the minimum base salaries
specified in their employment agreements or the base salary negotiated at the time of their hire, and any
subsequent increases to such base salaries approved by the Compensation Committee. In determining increases
to such base salaries for the following year, the Compensation Committee considers individual performance of
Senior Management in the most recently completed year, including organizational and management development
and sales leadership exhibited from year-to-year and peer information provided by compensation consultants.
The Compensation Committee also considers general economic conditions prevailing at the end of such year,
when the increases for the following year are typically determined. For example, due to the general economic
conditions prevailing at the end of 2009 and in order to conserve cash, no salary increases were approved for
Mr. Duncan and the other members of Senior Management for 2010. In addition, effective August 1, 2010,
salaries for Mr. Duncan and the other members of Senior Management were voluntarily reduced for the
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remainder of 2010. For 2011, recognizing that the economic conditions in effect during 2009 and 2010 had
abated to a degree, the Compensation Committee approved salary increases aimed at restoring the salaries of
members of Senior Management to levels in effect at the beginning of 2010. For 2012, the Compensation
Committee approved salary increases for Senior Management of approximately 4% to compensate for prior years
with no increases. In December 2012 we entered into a new employment agreement with Mr. Duncan that
provides, among other things, for a minimum annual base salary of $850,000.

Annual Incentive Bonuses

The Company provides its senior executives with annual incentive compensation, which currently includes
cash and equity awards, in the form of restricted Common Stock, to incentivize and reward them for Company
and individual performance in specified areas that serve the best interests of the Company’s stockholders.

Performance Measures

As discussed in greater detail below, for 2012, 2011 and 2010 Messrs. Duncan, Musil, Yap, Harker and
Schultz participated in an incentive compensation plan (each, an “Executive Officer Bonus Plan”) which was
recommended by the Compensation Committee and adopted by the Board of Directors. Under each Executive
Officer Bonus Plan, compensation determinations of the Compensation Committee were based on (1) the
Company’s achievement above a minimum level of funds from operations (“FFO”) (1) per share per annum, as
may be adjusted in the Compensation Committee’s discretion to, among other things, exclude the effects of
impairment charges and certain other extraordinary items, (2) the target maximum cash and equity bonus
opportunity of the executive officers, expressed as a percentage of their base salaries and (3) the Chief Executive
Officer’s self-evaluation and individual recommendations, with respect to Messrs. Musil, Yap, Harker and
Schultz, to the Compensation Committee.

In establishing these performance criteria, the Compensation Committee determined that FFO represented
the best single measure to appropriately capture the Company’s performance, and adopted FFO as the sole
performance criterion. Informed by the survey conducted in 2012 by our outside compensation consultant, FPL,
as part of its evaluation of the Company’s executive compensation program, the Compensation Committee has
since determined that additional criteria should also be considered in analyzing the Company’s performance.
Therefore, although compensation determinations of the Compensation Committee under each Executive Officer
Bonus Plan were based primarily on FFO, in evaluating the Company’s performance in 2013, the Compensation
Committee will also consider same store net operating income growth as well as the Company’s fixed charge
coverage ratio. Additionally, the Compensation Committee has assigned weighting factors to each of the
performance categories, such that performance in certain categories will have a more pronounced impact than
will performance in other categories. The weighting factors for each performance category are as follows:

Category Weighting Factor
FFO pershare . ... ... 65%
Same store NOI growth . . ... 10%
Fixed charge coverage ratio .. ...... ...ttt 10%
Discretionary ObJECLIVES . .. ..ot i ittt et e e e 15%

2012 Executive Officer Bonus Plan

For 2012, Messrs. Duncan, Musil, Yap, Harker and Schultz participated in an incentive compensation plan
(the “2012 Executive Officer Bonus Plan”) which was recommended by the Compensation Committee and
adopted by the Board of Directors on March 8§, 2012.

Achievement by the Company above certain minimum FFO thresholds for 2012 would generally qualify
each executive officer covered by the 2012 Executive Officer Bonus Plan to receive a certain percentage of his
stated target maximum cash and equity bonus opportunity (up to a maximum of 125%), depending on the level of
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FFO achieved (the “FFO Percentage”). For Messrs. Duncan and Yap, the targets are based on requirements in
their employment agreements and subject to increase by the Compensation Committee; and, for Messrs. Musil,
Harker and Schultz, the targets are a function of Company policy applicable to employees generally. In each
case, the targets reflect the Compensation Committee’s belief that an individual’s incentive compensation should
be comprised of approximately 60% cash compensation and 40% equity compensation.

The target maximum bonuses for 2012 for Messrs. Duncan, Musil, Yap, Harker and Schultz for purposes of
the 2012 Executive Officer Bonus Plan were as follows:

Target Maximum Target Maximum
Cash Bonus Equity Bonus

w (% of Base Salary) (% of Base Salary)
Bruce W.Duncan . ..........o i e 200% 140%
Scott A. Musil . .. ..o 150% 100%
Johannson Yap . ...t 200% 140%
David Harker . ........ ... i e 150% 100%
Peter Schultz . ... ... .. . 150% 100%

(1) FFO is a non-GAAP measure that the Company defined (for all 2012 purposes) as net income available to
common stockholders and participating securities, plus depreciation and amortization on real estate minus
accumulated depreciation and amortization on real estate sold less economic gains that are not included
within the NAREIT definition. Investors in and analysts following the real estate industry utilize FFO,
variously defined, as a supplemental performance measure. The Company considers FFO, given its wide use
by and relevance to investors and analysts, an appropriate supplemental performance measure. FFO,
reflecting the assumption that real estate asset values rise or fall with market conditions, principally adjusts
for the effects of GAAP depreciation/amortization of real estate assets. In addition, FFO is commonly used
in various ratios, pricing multiples/yields and returns and valuation calculations used to measure financial
position, performance and value. FFO does not represent cash generated from operating activities in
accordance with GAAP and is not necessarily indicative of cash available to fund cash needs, including the
repayment of principal on debt and payment of dividends and distributions. FFO should not be considered as
a substitute for net income available to common stockholders (calculated in accordance with GAAP) as a
measure of results of operations or cash flows (calculated in accordance with GAAP) as a measure of
liquidity. FFO as calculated by the Company may not be comparable to similarly titled, but differently
calculated, measures of other REITs. Please see the reconciliation of FFO to net income available to
common stockholders contained in our Current Report on Form 8-K dated February 21, 2013.

The Company established a bonus pool to be distributed among the members of Senior Management
representing the aggregate cash and equity bonuses for an FFO Percentage of 90%. The Company’s FFO per
share achieved for 2012 generally qualified each participant to receive cash and equity bonuses equal to 90% of
their respective target maximum cash and equity bonuses. However, individual bonuses paid to the members of
Senior Management from this bonus pool were not uniform, and the actual bonuses paid to the members of
Senior Management varied from the 90% level (the “Individual Cash Percentage” and the “Individual Equity
Percentage”; collectively, the “Individual Percentages”). The variability of the Individual Percentages applied to
the members of Senior Management is attributable to differences in individual subjective performance
evaluations. For example, the Compensation Committee rewarded Mr. Harker the highest overall percentage
payout, in particular, for the Central region obtaining the highest overall occupancy levels in 2012.
Notwithstanding the level of FFO per share achieved and, more importantly, the level of shareholder value
delivered by the Company in 2012, Mr. Duncan again recommended relatively lower Individual Percentages for
Mr. Yap and himself. In Mr. Duncan’s view, the Company’s most highly compensated employees should receive
lower Individual Percentages than those of the rest of the team. The Compensation Committee accepted
Mr. Duncan’s recommendation.
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The cash bonus payments and equity grants made in the first quarter of 2013 to each of our named executive
officers, together with the applicable Individual Percentage, are reflected in the following table:

Individual Individual Shares of
Cash Cash Bonus Equity Restricted Stock

Executive Officer Percentage (%) Paid ($) Percentage (%) Granted
Bruce W.Duncan ........................ 75 1,200,000 90 60,759
Scott A.Musil ........................... 99 380,000 106 16,275
Johannson Yap ........ ... ... ... .. ... .. 85 620,000 90 27,728
DavidHarker ........................... 110 380,000 122 16,878
Peter Schultz .. ....... ... ... ... ... ...... 100 360,000 108 15,672

For each of 2010 and 2011, Messrs. Duncan, Musil, Yap, Harker and Schultz participated in an incentive
compensation plan which was recommended by the Compensation Committee and adopted by the Board of
Directors on November 3, 2010 and March 10, 2011, respectively. Determinations regarding compensation under
each plan were made by the Board of Directors in the same manner as the determinations made under the 2012
Executive Officer Bonus Plan as described above.

The cash bonus payments and equity grants made for the last three fiscal years to each of our named
executive officers, together with the applicable Individual Percentage, are reflected in the following table:

Individual Individual

Cash Cash Bonus Equity Grant Date

w Year Percentage (%) Paid ($) Percentage (%) Market Value
Bruce W.Duncan ................... 2012 75 1,200,000 90 1,007,992
2011 81 1,292,000 81 906,999
2010 62 975,000 70 767,412
Scott A.Musil ...................... 2012 99 380,000 106 270,002
2011 84 313,000 84 208,998
2010 77 255,878 82 180,004
Johannson Yap ...................... 2012 85 620,000 90 460,008
2011 81 589,000 81 414,003
2010 63 450,000 70 350,232
DavidHarker ....................... 2012 110 380,000 122 280,006
2011 94 324,000 94 216,002
2010 85 286,856 70 157,906
Peter Schultz . ...................... 2012 100 360,000 108 259,998
2011 89 319,000 89 212,494
2010 96 336,670 70 164,450

Long-Term and Retention Bonus Plans
Long-Term Bonus Plan

On July 13, 2009, the Compensation Committee approved certain long-term incentive awards (collectively,
the “Long-Term Bonus Awards”) to certain employees of the Company, including certain members of Senior
Management other than Mr. Duncan, to align the interests of Messrs. Musil, Yap, Harker and Schultz with the
interests of Mr. Duncan. Grantees of a Long-Term Bonus Award were issued a specified number of restricted
stock units (the “Senior Management Performance RSUs”), each of which represents the right to receive, upon
vesting, one share of the Company’s Common Stock plus any dividend equivalents that have accrued prior to the
date of vesting.
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The Senior Management Performance RSUs and associated dividend equivalents have a performance-based
vesting component and a service-based vesting component, and each Senior Management Performance RSU
vests upon the later to occur of the satisfaction of the relevant performance-based and service-based vesting
component. The performance-based component is satisfied with respect to installments of 25% of the Senior
Management Performance RSUs in the event that the Company maintains, for a period of 15 consecutive trading
days prior to June 30, 2014, stock price targets of $9.00, $13.00, $17.00 and $21.00, respectively. The service-
based component, which is subject to a grantee’s continued employment over a period of four years, is satisfied
with respect to 25% of the Senior Management Performance RSU’s on each of June 30, 2010, 2011, 2012 and
2013. Upon the consummation of a change of control of the Company, all Senior Management Performance
RSUs vest in full. In the event of a termination of a grantee’s employment due to his death or disability, each
unvested Senior Management Performance RSU vests to the extent that:

* the service-based component relating to that Senior Management Performance RSU would have been
satisfied had the grantee remained employed for an additional 24 months; and

* the performance-based component relating to that Senior Management Performance RSU is satisfied at
any time through the earlier of the 24-month anniversary of the grantee’s termination and June 30, 2014.

All vested Senior Management Performance RSUs will be distributed in shares of the Company’s Common
Stock. At the Company’s option, the Company may pay dividend equivalents in cash or Common Stock. The
Senior Management Performance RSU awards awarded to our named executive officers other than Mr. Duncan
were as follows:

Senior Management

Executive Officer Performance RSUs
Scott A, MUSIL . .o 28,000
Johannson Yap . . ..o 40,000
David Harker . ... ..o 28,000
Peter SChUultz . ... 28,000

The performance-based component was satisfied with respect to 25% of the Senior Management
Performance RSUs on each of (i) January 24, 2011 when the Company had maintained for a period of 15
consecutive trading days a stock price target of $9.00 and (ii) October 17, 2012 when the Company had
maintained for a period of 15 consecutive trading days a stock price target of $13.00. Additionally, on each of
June 30, 2010, 2011 and 2012, the service-based component was satisfied with respect to 25% of the Senior
Management Performance RSUs.

The Long-Term Bonus Awards were intended by the Compensation Committee to be commensurate with
awards issued to similarly situated individuals under comparable long-term bonus plans adopted by some of our
peers. In this regard the Compensation Committee relied in part on the survey conducted in 2008 by our outside
consultant, FPL, discussed above, with a particular focus on the long-term incentive plans adopted by AMB
Property Corporation, Eastgroup Properties, Inc., ProLogis and DCT Industrial Trust Inc. The Compensation
Committee did not use this survey as a benchmark, but rather to gauge generally the appropriateness of the levels
of compensation payable to its executive officers in connection with the Long-Term Bonus Awards.

Mr. Yap’s receipt of a larger Long-Term Bonus Award than Messrs. Musil, Harker and Schultz was an
acknowledgement of Mr. Yap’s additional responsibilities as Chief Investment Officer, in addition to his role as
head of the Company’s West Region.

The Company is currently evaluating a new long-term bonus plan with a continued focus on long-term
stockholder value creation.
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2012 Retention Bonus Plan

On July 17, 2012 the Compensation Committee approved additional service-based incentive awards to
certain employees of the Company, including members of Senior Management other than Mr. Duncan, to
promote retention of employees that were important to the ongoing repositioning of the Company. Under the
2012 Retention Bonus Plan grantees who remain employed with the Company through and including June 30,
2013 are eligible for a specified cash bonus (the “2012 Retention Cash Bonus”). In the event (i) a grantee’s
employment with the Company is terminated on or prior to June 30, 2013 as a result of grantee’s death or by the
Company due to grantee’s disability or (ii) a change of control is consummated on or prior to June 30, 2013 and
the grantee remains employed with the Company through the date of such change of control, the grantee is
eligible for an amount in cash equal to one times the 2012 Retention Cash Bonus, in lieu of the 2012 Retention
Cash Bonus. The 2012 Retention Cash Bonus awards for our named executive officers, other than Mr. Duncan,
are as follows:

2012
w Retention Cash Bonus
SCott A MIUSIL .« .ot $135,555
JOhanNSON YaD oo v ettt et $193,650
David Harker . . . ... $135,555
Peter SChUlLZ . . . oo $135,555

No shares of restricted Common Stock or restricted stock units were granted under the 2012 Retention
Bonus Plan.

Awards under the 2012 Retention Bonus Plan were intended by the Compensation Committee to be
commensurate with awards issued to similarly situated individuals under comparable retention bonus plans
adopted by some of our peers. In this regard the Compensation Committee relied in part on the survey discussed
above conducted in 2008 by our outside consultant, FPL, as part of its evaluation of the Company’s executive
compensation program.

Mr. Yap’s receipt of a larger 2012 Retention Cash Bonus than Messrs. Musil, Harker and Schultz was an
acknowledgement of Mr. Yap’s additional responsibilities as Chief Investment Officer, in addition to his role as
head of the Company’s West Region.

The Company granted similar retention bonuses in 2010 and 2011.

Benefits/Perquisites

The Company provides Senior Management with certain benefits/perquisites, which, depending on the
officer, have included premiums paid by the Company on term life insurance and long-term disability insurance,
car allowances, personal financial planning allowances, and, when applicable, moving and housing allowances.
Senior Management, along with all of the Company’s other full time employees, are also eligible to receive
401(k) matching contributions and standard health, life and disability insurance. Premiums have been paid by the
Company on term life insurance and long-term disability insurance and personal financial planning allowances
have been provided only to those with, and as specified in, employment agreements. Any car allowances are a
function of the market rates to lease and operate an executive class vehicle prevailing when the allowance was
set. 401(k) matching payments are a function of each member of Senior Management’s contribution to his 401(k)
account during the year and the percentage match which the Board of Directors determines to apply to the
Company’s 401(k) Plan for that year. Standard health, life and disability insurance benefits are a function of the
group benefit packages the Company is able to negotiate with third party providers.

Termination and Change-in-Control Triggers

Certain members of Senior Management have an employment agreement, and all Senior Management have
agreements in respect of their restricted Common Stock awards or restricted stock unit awards granted pursuant
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to the Company’s Stock Plans, and such agreements specify events, including involuntary termination and
change-in-control, that trigger the payment of cash and/or vesting in restricted Common Stock or restricted stock
unit awards. The Company believes having such events as triggers for the payment of cash and/or vesting in
restricted Common Stock or restricted stock unit awards promotes stability and continuity of management. See
“Potential Payments Upon Termination or Change of Control” below for more information on the payments
triggered by such events.

Stock Ownership Guidelines and Other Policies

The stock ownership guidelines for the Company’s directors and senior executive officers are as follows:

Retainer/
Base Salary
Position Multiple
DT 0TS . oottt 3x
Chief Executive Officer . ... ... 5x
Chief Financial Officer, Chief Investment Officer and Executive Vice Presidents ................ 4x

The stock ownership goal for each person subject to the ownership guidelines is determined on an individual
basis, using their current retainers or base salaries and using the greater of (i) the market price on the date of
purchase or grant of such Common Stock (or equity valued by reference to Common Stock) or (ii) the market
price of such Common Stock (or equity valued by reference to Common Stock) as of the date compliance with
the stock ownership guidelines is measured. For directors and executives who were in office as of January 1,
2008, the stock ownership goal must have been achieved by January 1, 2013. All such directors and senior
executive officers achieved their respective stock ownership goals as of January 1, 2013. For persons assuming a
director or executive level position after January 1, 2008, the stock ownership goal is determined using their
retainers and base salaries in effect on the date they become subject to the ownership guidelines and must be
achieved within five years after that date. In addition, our insider trading policy prohibits our employees from
engaging in hedging transactions with respect to our shares. A copy of the Stock Ownership Guidelines can be
found on the Investor Relations/Corporate Governance section of the Company’s website at
www firstindustrial.com.

Stock Retention Requirements

Until the directors and senior executive officers reach their respective stock ownership goal, they will be
required to retain shares that are owned on the date they became subject to the Stock Ownership Guidelines and
at least seventy-five percent (75%) of “net shares” delivered through the Company’s executive compensation
plans. “Net shares” deducts from the number of shares obtained by exercising stock options or through the
vesting of awards the number of shares the director or executive sells to pay exercise costs or taxes. If the
director or executive transfers an award to a family member, the transferee becomes subject to the same retention
requirements. Until the director and executive stock ownership goals have been met, shares may be disposed of
only for one or more of the exclusion purposes as set forth in the Company’s Stock Ownership Guidelines.

Tax Implications

Section 162(m) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”), generally limits the
deductible amount of annual compensation paid by a public company to a “covered employee” (the chief
executive officer and four other most highly compensated executive officers of the Company) to no more than $1
million. The Company does not believe that Section 162(m) of the Code is applicable to its current arrangements
with its executive officers.
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COMPENSATION COMMITTEE REPORT

The Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors of the Company has reviewed, and discussed with
management, the Compensation Discussion and Analysis included above in this Proxy Statement. Based on such
review and discussions, the Compensation Committee recommended to the Board of Directors of the Company
that the Compensation Discussion and Analysis be included in this Proxy Statement and, through incorporation
by reference from this Proxy Statement, the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the Company’s fiscal
year ended December 31, 2012.

Submitted by the Compensation Committee:

L. Peter Sharpe, Chairman
W. Ed Tyler
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EXECUTIVE SUMMARY COMPENSATION TABLE

The Summary Compensation Table below sets forth the aggregate compensation for Bruce W. Duncan, the
Company’s President and Chief Executive Officer; Scott A. Musil, the Company’s Chief Financial Officer; and
certain of the Company’s other highly compensated executive officers. The 2012 Grants of Plan Based Awards
Table following the Summary Compensation Table provides additional information regarding incentive
compensation granted by the Company to these officers in 2012.

Non-Equity
Stock Incentive Plan All Other
Salary Bonus Awards Compensation Compensation
Name and Principal Position Year (©)) $) 3D (6)] $)2) Total ($)
Bruce W.Duncan ............. 2012 802,083 —  3,644,999(3) 1,200,000(6) 24,141 5,671,223
President and CEO 2011 796,667 — 767,412(3) 1,292,000(6) 21,254 2,877,333
2010 783,333 — 615,576(3 975,000(6) 12,069 2,385,978
Scott A.Musil ................ 2012 255,000 122,745(4) 208,998(5) 380,000(6) 18,209 984,952
Chief Financial Officer 2011 249,083 48,195(4) 180,004(5) 313,000(6) 15,836 806,118
2010 220,416 46,830(4) 195,866(5) 255,878(6) 15,500 734,490
Johannson L. Yap ............. 2012 365,000 175,350(4) 414,003(7) 620,000(6) 34,120 1,608,473
Chief Investment Officer 2011 363,500 68,850(4) 350,232(7) 589,000(6) 34,106 1,405,688
and Exec. Vice President — 2010 357,500 66,900(4) 335,767(7) 450,000(6) 20,336 1,230,503
West Region
David Harker ................ 2012 230,400 122,745(4) 216,002(8) 380,000(6) 24,873 974,020
Exec. Vice President — 2011 229,450 48,195(4) 157,906(8) 324,000(6) 22,119 781,670
Central Region 2010 225,650 46,830(4) 128,709(8) 286,856(6) 15,640 703,685
Peter Schultz . ................ 2012 240,000 122,745(4) 212,494(9) 360,000(6) 26,609 961,848
Exec. Vice President — 2011 239,000 48,195(4) 164,450(9) 319,000(6) 23,775 794,420
East Region 2010 235,000 46,830(4) 162,291(9) 336,670(6) 15,640 796,431

(1) Amounts reflect the aggregate grant date fair value of each award as determined under FASB ASC Topic 718.
See note 13 to our consolidated financial statements included in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year
ended December 31, 2012 for a discussion of the assumptions used in valuing the 2012 awards.

(2) For 2012, includes medical benefits of $7,898, $11,566, $11,566, $11,030 and $11,566 paid on behalf of
Messrs. Duncan, Musil, Yap, Harker and Schultz, respectively; a term life insurance premium of $710 paid
on behalf of each of Messrs. Duncan, Musil, Yap, Harker and Schultz; short-term and long-term disability
insurance premium of $683 paid on behalf of each of Messrs. Duncan, Musil, Yap, Harker and Schultz;
401(k) matching payments of $5,250 paid on behalf of each of Messrs. Duncan, Musil, Yap, Harker and
Schultz; car allowances of $9,600, $14,400, $7,200 and $8,400 paid on behalf of Messrs. Duncan, Yap,
Harker and Schultz, respectively; and a personal financial planning allowance of $1,512 for Mr. Yap. For
2011, includes medical benefits of $7,529, $10,911, $11,051, $10,594 and $11,150 paid on behalf of
Messrs. Duncan, Musil, Yap, Harker and Schultz, respectively; a term life insurance premium of $624 paid
on behalf of each of Messrs. Duncan, Musil, Yap, Harker and Schultz; a long-term disability insurance
premium of $626 paid on behalf of each of Messrs. Duncan, Musil, Yap, Harker and Schultz; 401(k)
matching payments of $3,675 paid on behalf of each of Messrs. Duncan, Musil, Yap, Harker and Schultz;
car allowances of $8,800, $13,200, $6,600 and $7,700 paid on behalf of Messrs. Duncan, Yap, Harker and
Schultz, respectively; and a personal financial planning allowance of $4,930 for Mr. Yap. For 2010,
includes medical benefits of $6,995, $10,426, $10,566, $10,566 and $10,566 paid on behalf of Messrs.
Duncan, Musil, Yap, Harker and Schultz, respectively; a term life insurance premium of $686 paid on
behalf of each of Messrs. Duncan, Musil, Yap, Harker and Schultz; a long-term disability insurance
premium of $626 paid on behalf of each of Messrs. Duncan, Musil, Yap, Harker and Schultz; 401(k)
matching payments of $3,675 paid on behalf of each of Messrs. Duncan, Musil, Yap, Harker and Schultz;
and a personal financial planning allowance of $4,696 for Mr. Yap.

(3) Amounts for 2012 reflect an award of 76,540 shares of service-based restricted Common Stock, granted in
2012 in connection with the 2011 Executive Officer Bonus Plan, valued at $11.85 per share under FASB
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ASC Topic 718, as well as 200,000 shares of service-based restricted Common Stock, granted in 2012 in
connection with an employment agreement entered into on December 17, 2012, valued at $13.69 per share
under FASB ASC Topic 718. Both grants of shares have an aggregate value of $3,644,999. Amounts for
2011 reflect an award of 69,074 shares of service-based restricted Common Stock, granted in 2011 in
connection with the 2010 Executive Officer Bonus Plan, valued at $11.11 per share under FASB ASC Topic
718 for an aggregate value of $767,412. Amounts for 2010 reflect an award of 105,769 shares of service-
based restricted Common Stock, granted in 2010 in connection with the 2009 Executive Officer Bonus Plan,
valued at $5.82 per share under FASB ASC Topic 718 for an aggregate value of $615,576.

Amounts for 2012 reflect awards paid in July 2012 under the 2011 Retention Bonus Plan. Amounts for 2011
reflect awards paid in July 2011 under the 2010 Retention Bonus Plan. Amounts for 2010 reflect awards
paid in July 2010 under the 2009 Retention and Long-Term Bonus Plan.

Amounts for 2012 reflect an award of 17,637 shares of service-based restricted Common Stock, granted in
2012 in connection with the 2011 Executive Officer Bonus Plan, valued at $11.85 per share under FASB
ASC Topic 718 for an aggregate value of $208,998. Amounts for 2011 reflect an award of 16,202 shares of
service-based restricted Common Stock, granted in 2011 in connection with the 2010 Executive Officer
Bonus Plan, valued at $11.11 per share under FASB ASC Topic 718 for an aggregate value of $180,004.
Amounts for 2010 reflect an award of 33,654 shares of service-based restricted Common Stock, granted in
2010 in connection with the 2009 Executive Officer Bonus Plan, valued at $5.82 per share under FASB
ASC Topic 718 for an aggregate value of $195,866.

Amounts for 2012 reflect awards paid in March 2013 under the 2012 Executive Officer Bonus Plan.
Amounts for 2011 reflect awards paid in March 2012 under the 2011 Executive Officer Bonus Plan.
Amounts for 2010 reflect awards paid in March 2011 under the 2010 Executive Officer Bonus Plan.

Amounts for 2012 reflect an award of 34,937 shares of service-based restricted Common Stock, granted in
2012 in connection with the 2011 Executive Officer Bonus Plan, valued at $11.85 per share under FASB
ASC Topic 718 for an aggregate value of $414,003. Amounts for 2011 reflect an award of 31,524 shares of
service-based restricted Common Stock, granted in 2011 in connection with the 2010 Executive Officer
Bonus Plan, valued at $11.11 per share under FASB ASC Topic 718 for an aggregate value of $350,232.
Amounts for 2010 reflect an award of 57,692 shares of service-based restricted Common Stock, granted in
2010 in connection with the 2009 Executive Officer Bonus Plan, valued at $5.82 per share under FASB
ASC Topic 718 for an aggregate value of $335,767.

Amounts for 2012 reflect an award of 18,228 shares of service-based restricted Common Stock, granted in
2012 in connection with the 2011 Executive Officer Bonus Plan, valued at $11.85 per share under FASB
ASC Topic 718 for an aggregate value of $216,002. Amounts for 2011 reflect an award of 14,213 shares of
service-based restricted Common Stock, granted in 2011 in connection with the 2010 Executive Officer
Bonus Plan, valued at $11.11 per share under FASB ASC Topic 718 for an aggregate value of $157,906.
Amounts for 2010 reflect an award of 22,115 shares of service-based restricted Common Stock, granted in
2010 in connection with the 2009 Executive Officer Bonus Plan, valued at $5.82 per share under FASB
ASC Topic 718 for an aggregate value of $128,7009.

Amounts for 2012 reflect an award of 17,932 shares of service-based restricted Common Stock, granted in
2012 in connection with the 2011 Executive Officer Bonus Plan, valued at $11.85 per share under FASB
ASC Topic 718 for an aggregate value of $212,494. Amounts for 2011 reflect an award of 14,802 shares of
service-based restricted Common Stock, granted in 2011 in connection with the 2010 Executive Officer
Bonus Plan, valued at $11.11 per share under FASB ASC Topic 718 for an aggregate value of $164,450.
Amounts for 2010 reflect an award of 27,885 shares of service-based restricted Common Stock, granted in
2010 in connection with the 2009 Executive Officer Bonus Plan, valued at $5.82 per share under FASB
ASC Topic 718 for an aggregate value of $162,291.
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2012 GRANTS OF PLAN BASED AWARDS TABLE

All Other Grant Date

Estimated Future Payouts Under Estimated Future Payouts N

Non-Equity Incentive Under Equity Incentive A%vtglc'(ll(S' F(z)l;rS:;aclll(l €
Plan Awards(2) Plan Awards(3) Shares of and Option

Grant  Threshold Target(2) Maximum Threshold Target(3) Maximum Stock Awards

Date(1) $) ($) $) #) (#) (#) #) @

(b) (©) (d) (e) (f) () (h) (i) @)

2/14/2012  n/a $1,292,000 n/a n/a 76,540 n/a 200,000(5) 3,644,999
2/14/2012  n/a $ 313,000 n/a n/a 17,637 n/a — 208,998
2/14/2012  n/a $ 589,000 n/a n/a 34,937 n/a — 414,003
2/14/2012  n/a $ 324,000 n/a n/a 18,228 n/a — 216,002
2/14/2012  n/a $ 319,000 n/a n/a 17,932 n/a — 212,494

(1) Represents the date such awards were approved by the Compensation Committee.

(2) Amounts included in the “target” column represent the cash incentive bonus granted and paid to the recipient
in 2012 under the 2011 Executive Officer Bonus Plan. No threshold amounts were established with respect

to such awards.

(3) Amounts included in the “target” column represent the number of shares each recipient could receive from
the vesting of service-based restricted Common Stock awards granted in 2012 under the 2011 Executive
Officer Bonus Plan. No threshold amounts were established with respect to such awards.

(4) Amounts reflect the aggregate grant date fair value of each stock award as determined under FASB ASC

Topic 718.

(5) Represents 200,000 shares of service-based restricted Common Stock granted in connection with an
employment agreement entered into on December 17, 2012, 66,667 shares of which vest on December 17,
2013, 66,667 shares of which vest on December 17, 2014 and 66,666 shares of which vest on December 17,

2015.
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OUTSTANDING EQUITY AWARDS AT FISCAL YEAR-END 2012

Option Awards Stock Awards
Number of Number of Number
Securities Securities of Shares Market Value
Underlying Underlying or Units of Shares or
Unexercised Unexercised Option Of Stock Units of Stock
Options Options Exercise Option That Have That Have
# # Price Expiration Not Vested Not Vested
Exercisable Unexercisable $) Date # $@@)
Name (a) (b) (c) (e) (®) (g) (h)
Bruce W.Duncan ....... — — — — 274,051(2) $3.858,638
— — — — 300,000(3) $4,224,000
Scott AMusil .......... — — — — 17,158(4) $ 241,585
— — — — 17,500(5)(6) $ 246,400
Johannson L. Yap ...... — — — — 33,799(7) $ 475,890
— — — — 25,000(5)(8) $ 352,000
David Harker .......... — — — — 16,890(9) $ 237,811
— — — — 17,500(5)(6) $ 246,400
Peter Schultz .......... — — — — 16,889(10)  $ 237,797
— — — — 17,500(5)(6) $ 246,400

(1) The dollar amounts shown in column (h) are approximately equal to the product of the number of shares or
units reported in column (g) multiplied by the closing price of the Company’s Common Stock as reported by
the NYSE on December 31, 2012, the last trading day of the year ($14.08). This valuation does not take into
account any diminution in value that results from the restrictions applicable to such Common Stock.

(2) Represents 274,051 shares of unvested restricted Common Stock, 115,204 shares of which vest in January
2014, 92,181 shares of which vest in January 2015 and 66,666 shares of which vest in January 2016. In light
of political uncertainty with respect to the federal income tax rates, the Board of Directors accelerated the
vesting of 58,281 shares that were originally scheduled to vest in January 2013 to December 2012.

(3) Represents unvested restricted stock units (the “Duncan Performance RSUs”) which have a performance-
based vesting component and a service-based vesting component, with each Duncan Performance RSU
vesting upon the later to occur of the satisfaction of the relevant performance-based and service-based
vesting component. 400,000 Duncan Performance RSU’s were originally granted in 2009. Of these 400,000
RSU’s, the performance-based component was satisfied with respect to 25% of the Duncan Performance
RSUs on February 11, 2013 when the Company had maintained for a period of 15 consecutive trading days
a stock price target of $15.00. For the remaining Duncan Performance RSUs, the performance-based
component will be satisfied with respect to installments of 25% of the total amount of Duncan Performance
RSUs in the event that the Company maintains, for a period of 15 consecutive trading days prior to
December 31, 2013, stock price targets of $19.00 and $23.00, respectively. The service-based component
was subject to Mr. Duncan’s continued employment over a period of four years, and was satisfied with
respect to 25% of the total amount of the Performance RSU’s on each of December 31, 2009, 2010, 2011
and 2012.

(4) Of the shares of unvested restricted Common Stock reported here, 11,279 vest in January 2014 and 5,879
vest in January 2015. In light of political uncertainty with respect to the federal income tax rates, the Board
of Directors accelerated the vesting of 23,780 shares that were originally scheduled to vest in January 2013
to December 2012.

(5) Represents unvested Senior Management Performance RSUs which have a performance-based vesting
component and a service-based vesting component, with each Senior Management Performance RSU
vesting upon the later to occur of the satisfaction of the relevant performance-based and service-based
vesting component. The performance-based component was satisfied with respect to 25% of the Senior
Management Performance RSUs on October 17, 2012 when the Company had maintained for a period of 15
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consecutive trading days a stock price target of $13.00. For the remaining Senior Management Performance
RSUs, the performance-based component will be satisfied with respect to installments of 25% of the total
amount of Senior Management Performance RSUs in the event that the Company maintains, for a period of
15 consecutive trading days prior to June 30, 2014, stock price targets of $17.00 and $21.00, respectively.
The service-based component is subject to a grantee’s continued employment over a period of four years,
and is satisfied with respect to 25% of the total amount of the Performance RSU’s on each of June 30, 2010,
2011, 2012 and 2013.

(6) 1,750 of such Senior Management Performance RSUs vested on June 30, 2012 and 5,250 vested on
October 17, 2012.

(7) Of the shares of unvested restricted Common Stock reported here, 22,154 vest in January 2014 and 11,645
vest in January 2015. In light of political uncertainty with respect to the federal income tax rates, the Board
of Directors accelerated the vesting of 46,744 shares that were originally scheduled to vest in January 2013
to December 2012.

(8) 2,500 of such Senior Management Performance RSUs vested on June 30, 2012 and 7,500 vested on
October 17, 2012.

(9) Of the shares of unvested restricted Common Stock reported here, 10,813 vest in January 2014 and 6,076
vest in January 2015. In light of political uncertainty with respect to the federal income tax rates, the Board
of Directors accelerated the vesting of 19,074 shares that were originally scheduled to vest in January 2013
to December 2012.

(10) Of the shares of unvested restricted Common Stock reported here, 10,911 vest in January 2014 and 5,978
vest in January 2015. In light of political uncertainty with respect to the federal income tax rates, the Board
of Directors accelerated the vesting of 21,103 shares that were originally scheduled to vest in January 2013
to December 2012.

2012 OPTION EXERCISES AND STOCK VESTED

In 2012, no options were exercised by the officers specified in the table below and an aggregate of 524,404
shares of restricted Common Stock and restricted stock units held by such officers vested.

Option Awards Stock Awards
Number of Number of
Shares Shares
Acquired on Value Realized Acquired on Value Realized
Exercise on Exercise Vesting on Vesting
Name #) $) #) ($)
(a) (b) (©) (d) (e)
Bruce W.Duncan .................... .. .. .... — — 317,076(1) $4,268,020
Scott A.Musil ........ ... ... . — — 48,682(2) $ 620,283
Johannson L. Yap ............................ — — 91,843(3) $1,167,966
DavidHarker ............ ... .. ... ... ....... — — 39,073(4) $ 501,512
Peter Schultz . ........ ... ... ... . — — 43,230(5) $ 552,871

(1) The shares of Common Stock reported herein were acquired as a result of the vesting of (a) 58,282 shares of
restricted Common Stock on January 1, 2012, the value of which is based on the closing price of the
Common Stock as reported by the NYSE for January 3, 2012 ($10.71), the first trading day following the
date of vesting of such award, (b) 175,000 restricted stock units on December 31, 2012, the value of which is
based on the closing price of the Common Stock as reported by the NYSE for such date ($14.08), and
(c) 83,794 shares of restricted Common Stock on December 31, 2012, the value of which is based on the
closing price of the Common Stock as reported by the NYSE for such date ($14.08). In light of political
uncertainty with respect to the federal income tax rates, the Board of Directors accelerated the vesting of
83,794 shares of restricted Common Stock that were originally scheduled to vest in January 2013 to
December 2012.
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The shares of Common Stock reported herein were acquired as a result of the vesting of (a) 17,902 shares of
restricted Common Stock on January 1, 2012, the value of which is based on the closing price of the
Common Stock as reported by the NYSE for January 3, 2012 ($10.71), the first trading day following the
date of vesting of such award, (b) 1,750 restricted stock units on June 30, 2012, the value of which is based
on the closing price of the Common Stock reported by the NYSE for July 2, 2012 ($12.91), the first trading
day following the date of vesting of such award, (c) 5,250 restricted stock units on October 17, 2012, the
value of which is based on the closing price of the Common Stock as reported by the NYSE for such date
($13.55), and (d) 23,780 shares of restricted Common Stock on December 31, 2012, the value of which is
based on the closing price of the Common Stock as reported by the NYSE for such date ($14.08). In light of
political uncertainty with respect to the federal income tax rates, the Board of Directors accelerated the
vesting of 23,780 shares of restricted Common Stock that were originally scheduled to vest in January 2013
to December 2012.

The shares of Common Stock reported herein were acquired as a result of the vesting of (a) 35,099 shares of
restricted Common Stock on January 1, 2012, the value of which is based on the closing price of the
Common Stock as reported by the NYSE for January 3, 2012 ($10.71), the first trading day following the
date of vesting of such award, (b) 2,500 restricted stock units on June 30, 2012, the value of which is based
on the closing price of the Common Stock reported by the NYSE for July 2, 2012 ($12.91), the first trading
day following the date of vesting of such award, (c) 7,500 restricted stock units on October 17, 2012, the
value of which is based on the closing price of the Common Stock as reported by the NYSE for such date
($13.55), and (d) 46,744 shares of restricted stock on December 31, 2012, the value of which is based on the
closing price of the Common Stock as reported by the NYSE for such date ($14.08). In light of political
uncertainty with respect to the federal income tax rates, the Board of Directors accelerated the vesting of
46,744 shares of restricted Common Stock that were originally scheduled to vest in January 2013 to
December 2012.

The shares of Common Stock reported herein were acquired as a result of the vesting of (a) 12,999 shares of
restricted Common Stock on January 1, 2012, the value of which is based on the closing price of the
Common Stock as reported by the NYSE for January 3, 2012 ($10.71), the first trading day following the
date of vesting of such award, (b) 1,750 restricted stock units on June 30, 2012, the value of which is based
on the closing price of the Common Stock reported by the NYSE for July 2, 2012 ($12.91), the first trading
day following the date of vesting of such award, (c) 5,250 restricted stock units on October 17, 2012, the
value of which is based on the closing price of the Common Stock as reported by the NYSE for such date
($13.55), and (d) 19,074 shares of restricted Common Stock on December 31, 2012, the value of which is
based on the closing price of the Common Stock as reported by the NYSE for such date ($14.08). In light of
political uncertainty with respect to the federal income tax rates, the Board of Directors accelerated the
vesting of 19,074 shares of restricted Common Stock that were originally scheduled to vest in January 2013
to December 2012.

The shares of Common Stock reported herein were acquired as a result of the vesting of (a) 15,127 shares of
restricted Common Stock on January 1, 2012, the value of which is based on the closing price of the
Common Stock as reported by the NYSE for January 3, 2012 ($10.71), the first trading day following the
date of vesting of such award, (b) 1,750 restricted stock units on June 30, 2012, the value of which is based
on the closing price of the Common Stock reported by the NYSE for July 2, 2012 ($12.91), the first trading
day following the date of vesting of such award, (c) 5,250 restricted stock units on October 17, 2012, the
value of which is based on the closing price of the Common Stock as reported by the NYSE for such date
($13.55), and (d) 21,103 shares of restricted stock on December 31, 2012, the value of which is based on the
closing price of the Common Stock as reported by the NYSE for such date ($14.08). In light of political
uncertainty with respect to the federal income tax rates, the Board of Directors accelerated the vesting of
21,103 shares of restricted Common Stock that were originally scheduled to vest in January 2013 to
December 2012.
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POTENTIAL PAYMENTS UPON TERMINATION OR CHANGE OF CONTROL
Employment Agreements

The Company has entered into written employment agreements with Messrs. Duncan and Yap. These
employment agreements provide for payments and benefits to these executives by the Company in some
circumstances in the event of a termination of their employment or of a change of control.

Severance amounts payable to Mr. Yap upon his termination will be reduced if such amounts become
payable after Mr. Yap’s 67th birthday. In addition to his rights under the standard grant agreements under our
stock incentive plans, Mr. Yap is entitled to the accelerated vesting of his restricted Common Stock and stock
options in the event his employment is terminated without cause.

In addition to the events of termination of employment identified in the following table, the employment
agreements provide for payments in the event of an executive’s death or disability. Upon death or disability,
Mr. Duncan is entitled to (i) his base salary and vacation pay accrued through the date of his death or disability,
(i1) his accrued bonus for the fiscal year prior to the year of his death or disability, to the extent not paid, (iii) his
unreimbursed business expenses incurred through the date of his death or disability and (iv) certain health care
benefits and any other benefits he may be eligible for under the Company’s plans, policies or practices. Upon
death, Mr. Yap is entitled to 75% of the maximum cash bonus for which he would have been eligible, prorated
through the date of his death. Upon a work-related disability, Mr. Yap is entitled to severance in an amount equal
to three times his annual base salary, plus 75% of his maximum cash bonus potential for the then-current year.

The employment agreements also contain important non-financial provisions that apply in the event of a
termination of employment or of a change of control. Benefits payable upon a merger, acquisition or other
changes in control are payable upon consummation of such transactions regardless of whether the executive is
terminated. Mr. Duncan has agreed to a one-year covenant not to compete after his termination, but his new
employment agreement no longer provides for a gross-up payment in the event of any excise tax. Mr. Yap has
agreed to a one-year covenant not to compete after his termination, except in connection with certain changes in
control of the Company. Mr. Yap has also agreed to a six-month covenant not to compete in connection with
certain changes in control of the Company.

Stock Incentive Plans

Under the 1994, 1997, 2001, 2009 and 2011 Stock Plans (the “Stock Plans”), unvested restricted Common
Stock vests in the event of a change of control. In addition, the Stock Plans empower the Compensation
Committee to determine other vesting events in the individual restricted Common Stock awards, including
vesting events such as involuntary termination of employment with or without cause. Assuming that the
triggering event occurred on December 31, 2012, Messrs. Duncan, Musil, Yap, Harker and Schultz would have
vested in restricted Common Stock having the respective values set forth in the table below.
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Termination and Change of Control Payments

The following table includes estimated payments owed and benefits required to be provided to our named
executive officers under the employment agreements and Stock Plans described above, exclusive of benefits
available on a non-discriminatory basis generally, in each case assuming that the triggering event described in the
table occurred on December 31, 2012.

Accelerated Medical

Equity Insurance
Triggering Severance Awards Premiums
Name Event ) ® $Q2)
Bruce W. Duncan ....... Change of Control(3) — 8,082,638 —
Termination Following Change of Control 7,575,000 — 56,953
Termination w/o Cause(4) 6,300,000 4,224,000 56,953
Termination for Cause — — 56,953
Scott A. Musil(5) ....... Change of Control — 241,585 —
Termination w/o Cause — — —
Termination for Cause — — —
Johannson L. Yap ....... Change of Control(3) — 827,890 —
Termination Following Change of
Control(6) 2,920,000 — 34,262
Termination w/o Cause(4)(6) 1,642,500 352,000 34,262
Termination for Cause(6) — — —
David Harker(5) ........ Change of Control — 237,811 —

Termination w/o Cause — _ _
Termination for Cause — _ _
Peter Schultz(5) ........ Change of Control — 237,797 —
Termination w/o Cause — _ _
Termination for Cause — _ _

(1) For purposes of estimating the value of awards of restricted Common Stock and restricted stock units which
vest the Company has considered any applicable employment agreement limitations and assumed a price per
share of its Common Stock of $14.08, which was the closing price of its Common Stock on the NYSE on
December 31, 2012, the last trading day of the year.

(2) Present value of estimated premiums required to be paid by the Company or cash payments in lieu of
benefits required to be provided.

(3) Upon a change of control of the Company, the vesting of any unvested restricted Common Stock or restricted
stock units held by the named executive officer shall accelerate.

(4) Includes constructive discharge under the terms of Mr. Duncan’s and Mr. Yap’s employment agreements.

(5) None of Messrs. Musil, Harker or Schultz have entered into an employment agreement with the Company.
As such, the amounts disclosed in this table relate only to awards of restricted Common Stock and restricted
stock units granted to Messrs. Musil, Harker and Schultz under the Company’s stock incentive plans.

(6) Mr. Yap is entitled to a supplemental payment of one month’s base salary in addition to amounts reflected if
requisite notice is not provided prior to his termination by the Company.
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COMPENSATION COMMITTEE INTERLOCKS AND INSIDER PARTICIPATION

The Compensation Committee currently consists of Messrs. Tyler and Sharpe. Mr. Lynch also served on the
Compensation Committee through February 25, 2012. Except for Messrs. Tyler’s, Lynch’s and Sharpe’s services
as directors, none of Messrs. Tyler, Lynch or Sharpe had any other business relationship or affiliation with the
Company in 2012 requiring disclosure by the Company under Item 404 of Regulation S-K.

REPORT OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE

Pursuant to meetings of the Audit Committee on February 15, 2013, the Audit Committee reports that it has:
(1) reviewed and discussed the Company’s audited financial statements with management; (ii) discussed with the
independent registered public accounting firm the matters (such as the quality of the Company’s accounting
principles and internal controls) required to be discussed by Statement on Auditing Standards No. 61; and
(iii) received written confirmation from PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP that it is independent and written
disclosures as required by applicable requirements of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
regarding the independent accountant’s communications with the Audit Committee concerning independence,
and discussed with PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP its independence. Based on the review and discussions referred
to in items (i) through (iii) above, the Audit Committee recommended to the Board of Directors that the audited
financial statements be included in the Company’s annual report for the Company’s fiscal year ended
December 31, 2012.

Submitted by the Audit Committee:

H. Patrick Hackett, Jr., Chairman
John Rau
L. Peter Sharpe

TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PERSONS, PROMOTERS AND CERTAIN CONTROL PERSONS

Review, Approval or Ratification of Transactions with Related Persons. Transactions involving the
Company and its executive officers and directors that are reportable under Item 404 of Regulation S-K are
required by the Company’s written policies to be reported to and approved by the Nominating/Corporate
Governance Committee of the Board of Directors. The Nominating/Corporate Governance Committee addresses
such transactions on a case-by-case basis, after considering the relevant facts and circumstances.

COMPLIANCE WITH SECTION 16(A) OF THE EXCHANGE ACT

Section 16(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (as amended, the “Exchange Act”) requires the
Company’s officers and directors, and persons who own more than ten percent of a registered class of the
Company’s equity securities, to file reports of ownership and changes in ownership with the SEC and the NYSE.
Officers, directors and “greater than ten-percent” stockholders are required by SEC regulations to furnish the
Company with copies of all Section 16(a) forms so filed.

Based solely on review of the copies of such forms furnished to the Company for 2012, all of the
Company’s officers, directors and “greater than ten-percent” stockholders timely filed all reports required to be
filed by Section 16(a) of the Exchange Act during 2012, except that Messrs. Harker, Musil, Schultz and Yap each
filed a Form 4 on July 11, 2012 related to transactions on June 30, 2012.

SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF MANAGEMENT AND CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS

The following table presents information concerning the ownership of Common Stock of the Company and
limited partnership units (“Units”) of First Industrial, L.P. (which generally are redeemable for Common Stock
on a one-for-one basis or cash at the option of the Company) by:

« all directors named and nominees named in this Proxy Statement (the “named directors”);

« all executive officers identified in the Summary Compensation Table;

38



PROXY STATEMENT

« all directors and named executive officers of the Company as a group; and

 persons and entities known to the Company to be beneficial owners of more than 5% of the Company’s
Common Stock.

The information is presented as of March 19, 2012, unless otherwise indicated, and is based on
representations of officers and directors of the Company and filings received by the Company on Schedule 13G
under the Exchange Act. As of March 19, 2012, there were 107,485,907 shares of Common Stock and 4,702,341
Units outstanding.

Common Stock/Units

Beneficially Owned
Percent
Names and Addresses of 5% Stockholders Number of Class
The Vanguard Group(l) .. ... i e e e 12,295,791 11.44%
100 Vanguard Blvd.
Malvern, PA 19355
FMR LLC(2) . . oot e e e 8,360,800 7.78%

82 Devonshire Street, Boston,
Massachusetts 02109

Cohen & Steers, InC.(3) . ..o 7,149,830 6.65%
280 Park Ave., 10t Floor
New York, NY 10017

BlackRock, INC.(4) . ... o 6,393,243 5.95%
40 East 52nd Street
New York, NY 10022

Vanguard Specialized Funds — Vanguard REIT Index Fund(5) .................... 6,182,369 5.75%
100 Vanguard Blvd.
Malvern, PA 19355

Principal Global Investors, LLC(6) ... ..... ...t 6,377,381 5.93%
801 Grand Avenue
Des Moines, IA 50392

Names and Addresses of Directors and Officers*

Bruce W.Duncan(7) . . ... e 1,042,679 *k
Matthew S. Dominski . . .. ..ot 9,000 wE
H. Patrick Hackett, Jr. . . ... 67,423 w*
John Rau(8) ...t e 47,392 o
L. Peter Sharpe . . .. ... o 50,000 Hk
WL EA TYIer(9) .o 82,232 o
Scott A. MUSil(10) . ..o e 113,773 ok
Johannson L. Yap(11) ... .o 371,329 wk
David Harker(12) ... ..o e 104,001 *k
Peter Schultz(13) ... o 88,215 ok
All named directors and currently-serving executive officers as a group
(10 persons)(14) . .ot e e 1,974,364 1.84%

* The business address for each of the directors and executive officers of the Company is 311 South Wacker
Drive, Suite 3900, Chicago, Illinois 60606.
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** Less than 1%

(1) Pursuant to a Schedule 136/A filed February 12, 2013 of The Vanguard Group (“Vanguard Group”). Of the
shares reported, Vanguard Group has the sole power to vote 287,828 shares and the sole power to dispose of
12,067,163 shares.

(2) Pursuant to a Schedule 13G/A filed February 14, 2013 of FMR LLC (“FMR”). Of the shares reported, FMR
has the sole power to vote 70,760 shares and the sole power to dispose of 8,360,800 shares.

(3) Pursuant to a Schedule 13G/A filed February 14, 2013 of Cohen & Steers, Inc. (“C&S”). Of the shares
reported, C&S has the sole power to vote 2,234,485 shares and the sole power to dispose of 7,149,830
shares.

(4) Pursuant to a Schedule 13G/A filed February 6, 2013 of Blackrock Inc. (“Blackrock™). Blackrock has the
sole power to vote and dispose of all 6,393,243 shares reported.

(5) Pursuant to a Schedule 13G/A filed February 14, 2013 of Vanguard Specialized Funds — Vanguard REIT
Index Fund (“Vanguard REIT”). Of the shares reported, Vanguard REIT has the sole power to vote and
dispose of all 6,182,369 shares.

(6) Pursuant to a Schedule 13G filed January 29, 2013 of Principal Global Investors, LLC (“Principal”).
Principal has the shared power to vote and dispose of all 6,377,381 shares reported.

(7) Includes 334,810 shares of restricted Common Stock issued under the 2001 and 2009 Stock Plans.

(8) Includes 4,177 shares of restricted Common Stock issued under the 1997 and 2001 Stock Plans and 27,475
shares of Common Stock held by a trust for his benefit.

(9) Includes 6,028 shares of restricted Common Stock issued under the 1997 and 2001 Stock Plans.

(10) Includes 2,106 shares held through Mr. Musil’s children and 9,507 shares held through his 401(k). Also

includes 33,433 shares of restricted Common Stock issued under the 1997, 2001 and 2009 Stock Plans.

(11) Includes 1,680 Units. Also includes 37,074 shares held through Mr. Yap’s 401(k) and 61,527 shares of

restricted Common Stock issued under the 1997, 2001 and 2009 Stock Plans.

(12) Includes 13,779 shares held in a trust for the benefit of Mr. Harker’s wife and 7,546 shares held in a marital
trust for his benefit. Also includes 33,768 shares of Common Stock issued under the 1997, 2001 and 2009
Stock Plans.

(13) Includes 32,561 shares of restricted Common Stock issued under the 1997, 2001 and 2009 Stock Plans. Also
includes 55,654 shares of Common Stock held in two personal loan accounts at Morgan Stanley.

(14) Includes 1,680 Units. Also includes 506,304 shares of restricted Common Stock issued under the 1997,
2001 and 2009 Stock Plans.
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PROPOSAL 3
ELECTION OF CLASSIFIED DIRECTORS
PROPOSAL 3 WILL NOT BE ADOPTED IF OUR STOCKHOLDERS APPROVE PROPOSAL 1

Our Charter currently provides for a classified board of directors. Matthew S. Dominski, H. Patrick Hackett,
Jr. and L. Peter Sharpe currently serve as Class I Directors, with terms expiring at the Annual Meeting. The
Board of Directors has nominated Mr. Hackett and Mr. Sharpe for election as Class I Directors, and
Mr. Dominski as a Class II Director, ONLY in the event that the Charter Proposals are NOT APPROVED and
the Board of Directors remains classified. Information about each of the nominees as of the date of this Proxy
Statement, including their current positions and offices, business experience, director positions held currently or
at any time during the last five years, tenure as a Company director, involvement in certain legal or
administrative proceedings, if applicable, and the experiences, qualifications, attributes or skills that caused the
Nominating/Corporate Governance Committee and our Board of Directors to determine that the nominees should
serve as one of our directors is set forth in “Proposal 2 — Election of Directors” above. In the event that the
Charter Proposals are NOT APPROVED and the Class I nominees and Class II nominee standing for election at
the Annual Meeting are elected, the directors will serve in the classes specified below:

Class I Class II Class III
(Term expires at 2016 (Term expires at 2014 (Term expires at 2015
Name Annual Meeting) Annual Meeting) Annual Meeting)
Matthew S. Dominski . . . .. X
Bruce W. Duncan ........ X
H. Patrick Hackett, Jr. .. ... X
JohnRau ............... X
L. Peter Sharpe .......... X
W.EdTyler ............ X

The Board of Directors expects each nominee to be able to serve if elected. If a nominee is unable to serve,
your proxy may be voted for any substitute candidate nominated by the Board of Directors. In accordance with
our Charter and the Existing Bylaws, the three nominees receiving the most FOR votes will be elected as
directors.

The Board of Directors recommends a vote FOR Messrs. Hackett and Sharpe to serve as
Class I Directors and Mr. Dominski as a Class II Director.
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PROPOSAL 4
ADVISORY VOTE ON EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

Pursuant to Section 14A of the Exchange Act, our stockholders are entitled to vote to approve, on an
advisory or non-binding basis, the compensation of our named executive officers as disclosed in this Proxy
Statement in accordance with SEC rules.

The Board of Directors believes that its executive compensation program serves the best interests of the
Company’s stockholders by not only attracting and retaining talented, capable individuals, but also providing
them with proper incentives linked to performance criteria that are designed to maximize the Company’s overall
performance. To this end, the Company’s compensation program consists of a mix of compensation that is
intended to compensate executive officers for their contributions during the year and to reward them for
achievements that lead to increased Company performance and increases in stockholder value. Please refer to
“Executive Compensation Discussion and Analysis” for a discussion of the compensation of the Company’s
named executive officers.

We are asking for stockholder approval of the compensation of our named executive officers as disclosed in
this Proxy Statement in accordance with SEC rules, which disclosures include the disclosures under “Executive
Compensation Discussion and Analysis” and the compensation tables and the narrative discussion following the
compensation tables. This vote is not intended to address any specific item of compensation, but rather the
overall compensation of our named executive officers and the policies and practices described in this Proxy
Statement.

This vote is advisory and therefore not binding on the Company, the Compensation Committee or the Board
of Directors. The Board of Directors and the Compensation Committee value the opinions of the Company’s
stockholders and to the extent there is any significant vote against the named executive officer compensation as
disclosed in this Proxy Statement, we will consider those stockholders’ concerns, and the Compensation
Committee will evaluate whether any actions are necessary to address those concerns.

Accordingly, we ask our stockholders to vote on the following resolution at the Annual Meeting:

“RESOLVED, that the Company’s stockholders approve, on an advisory basis, the compensation of the
named executive officers, as disclosed in the Company’s Proxy Statement for the 2013 Annual Meeting of
Stockholders pursuant to the compensation disclosure rules of the Securities and Exchange Commission under
‘Executive Compensation Discussion and Analysis’ and the compensation tables and the narrative discussion
following the compensation tables.”

The affirmative vote of the holders of a majority of the votes cast with a quorum present at the Annual
Meeting is required for advisory approval of this proposal.

The Board of Directors recommends an advisory vote FOR the approval of the compensation of the
Company’s named executive officers as disclosed in this Proxy Statement.
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PROPOSAL 5
RATIFICATION OF APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED

PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The accounting firm of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP (or its predecessor, Coopers & Lybrand L.L.P.) has
served as the Company’s independent auditors since the Company’s formation in August 1993. On February 27,
2013, the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors appointed PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP as the Company’s
independent registered public accounting firm for the current fiscal year. A representative of
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP will be present at the Annual Meeting, will be given the opportunity to make a
statement if he or she so desires and will be available to respond to appropriate questions.

Our Charter and Existing Bylaws do not require that our stockholders ratify the appointment of our
independent registered certified public accounting firm. We are doing so because we believe it is a matter of
good corporate practice. If our stockholders do not ratify the appointment, the Audit Committee will reconsider
whether to retain PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP but may still retain them. Even if the appointment is ratified, the
Audit Committee, in its discretion, may change the appointment at any time during the year if it determines that a
change in registered certified public accounting firm would be in the best interests of the Company and its
stockholders.

FEES

During 2012 and 2011, the aggregate fees for services provided by PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP in the
following categories and amounts are:

2012 2011
Audit Fees(1) . ..ot $1,119,768 $ 946,097
Audit-Related Fees(2) .. ..o 97,552 80,566
Tax Fees(3) ..o e 51,625 47,439
Other Fees(4) . ..o e 1,944 1,944
Total FEES ..ot $1,270,889  $1,076,049

(1) Audit Fees include amounts related to professional services rendered in connection with the audits of the
Company’s annual financial statements, the reviews of our quarterly financial statements and other services
that are normally provided by the auditor in connection with statutory and regulatory filings or engagements.

(2) Audit-Related Fees include amounts for assurance and related services, including joint venture audits, certain
agreed-upon procedures and an annual employee benefit plan audit.

(3) Tax Fees include amounts billed for professional services rendered in connection with tax compliance, tax
advice and tax planning. These amounts primarily relate to tax services related to tax return preparation,
federal and state regulation consultation and federal and state entity structuring.

(4) Other Fees include amounts related to technical research tools.

PRE-APPROVAL OF SERVICES

The Audit Committee pre-approves all audit, audit-related, tax and other services proposed to be provided
by the Company’s independent registered public accounting firm. Consideration and approval of such services
generally occur at the Audit Committee’s regularly scheduled meetings. In situations where it is impractical to
wait until the next regularly scheduled meeting, the Audit Committee has delegated the authority to approve the
audit, audit-related, tax and other services to each of its individual members. Approvals of audit, audit-related,
tax and other services pursuant to the above-described delegation of authority are reported to the full Audit
Committee.

The Board of Directors recommends a vote FOR ratification of the appointment of
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP as the Company’s independent registered public accounting firm for
fiscal 2013.
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OTHER MATTERS
SOLICITATION OF PROXIES

The cost of solicitation of proxies in the form enclosed herewith will be borne by the Company. In addition
to the solicitation of proxies by mail, the directors, officers and employees of the Company may also solicit
proxies personally or by telephone without additional compensation for such activities. The Company will also
request persons, firms and corporations holding shares in their names or in the names of their nominees, which
are beneficially owned by others, to send proxy materials to and obtain proxies from such beneficial owners. The
Company will reimburse such holders for their reasonable expenses.

Georgeson Shareholder Services, Inc. acts as the Company’s proxy solicitor at a cost of $8,000, plus
reasonable out of pocket expenses, including a telephone solicitation campaign approved by the Company.

STOCKHOLDER PROPOSALS

Stockholder proposals intended to be presented at the 2014 Annual Meeting of Stockholders must be
received by the Secretary of the Company no later than December 9, 2013, in order to be considered for inclusion
in the Proxy Statement and on the proxy card that will be solicited by the Board of Directors in connection with
the 2014 Annual Meeting of Stockholders.

INCORPORATION BY REFERENCE

Appendix C to this Proxy Statement is the Company’s 2012 Annual Report, which includes its consolidated
financial statements and management’s discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operations,
as well as certain other financial and other information required by the rules and regulations of the SEC.
Information contained in Appendix C to this Proxy Statement shall not be deemed to be “filed” or “soliciting
material,” or subject to liability for purposes of Section 18 of the Exchange Act to the maximum extent permitted
under the Exchange Act.

IMPORTANT NOTICE REGARDING THE AVAILABILITY OF PROXY MATERIALS FOR THE
STOCKHOLDERS MEETING TO BE HELD ON MAY 9, 2013

The Proxy Statement, Notice of Annual Meeting, Proxy Card and the Company’s 2012 Annual Report are
available on the “Proxy Statement” tab of the Investor Relations page on the Company’s website, at
www firstindustrial.com.

For directions to attend the Annual Meeting in person, please contact Art Harmon, the Company’s Senior
Director of Investor Relations, at (312) 344-4320.

OTHER MATTERS

The Board of Directors does not know of any matters other than those described in this Proxy Statement that
will be presented for action at the Annual Meeting. If other matters are presented, it is the intention of the persons
named as proxies in the accompanying Proxy Card to vote in their discretion all shares represented by validly
executed proxies.

REGARDLESS OF THE NUMBER OF SHARES YOU OWN, YOUR VOTE IS IMPORTANT TO THE
COMPANY. PLEASE COMPLETE, SIGN, DATE AND PROMPTLY RETURN THE ENCLOSED
PROXY CARD TODAY.
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APPENDIX A

ARTICLES OF AMENDMENT
OF
FIRST INDUSTRIAL REALTY TRUST, INC.

First Industrial Realty Trust, Inc., a Maryland corporation, having its principal office in Baltimore,
Maryland (the “Corporation”), hereby certifies to the State Department of Assessments and Taxation that:

FIRST: The Charter of the Corporation as currently in effect is hereby amended by deleting Section 6.1 of
ARTICLE VI of the Charter in its entirety and inserting the following in lieu thereof:

“6.1 Composition. The Corporation shall have a Board of Directors consisting of six (6) Directors,
which number may be increased or decreased in accordance with the Bylaws of the Corporation, but shall
not be less than the number required by Section 2-402 of the Maryland General Corporation Law nor more
than twelve (12).”

SECOND: The Charter of the Corporation as currently in effect is hereby amended by deleting Section 6.2
of ARTICLE VI of the Charter in its entirety and inserting the following in lieu thereof:

“6.2 Term; Removal. At each annual meeting of stockholders of the Corporation, Directors elected at
such meeting shall serve for a one-year term expiring at the next annual meeting of stockholders and until
their successors are elected and qualify or until their earlier death, resignation or removal. Vacancies
occurring by resignation, enlargement of the Board of Directors or otherwise shall be filled as specified in
the Bylaws. Any Director, or the entire Board of Directors, may be removed from office at any time, but
only for cause and only by the affirmative vote of the holders of at least a majority of the voting power of
the Corporation’s then issued and outstanding capital stock entitled to vote generally at an election of
Directors of the Corporation.”

THIRD: The Charter of the Corporation as currently in effect is hereby amended by deleting Section 7.3.2
of ARTICLE VII of the Charter in its entirety and inserting the following in lieu thereof:

“7.3.2 Rights Upon Liquidation. In the event of any voluntary or involuntary liquidation, dissolution
or winding up of, or any distribution of the assets of, the Corporation, each holder of shares of Common
Stock shall be entitled to receive, ratably with such other holder of shares of Common Stock or Excess
Stock, that portion of the assets of the Corporation available for distribution to the holders of its Common
Stock and Excess Stock as the number of shares of Common Stock held by such older bears to the total
number of shares of Common Stock and Excess Stock then outstanding.”

FOURTH: The Charter of the Corporation as currently in effect is hereby amended by deleting Section 7.3.4
of ARTICLE VII of the Charter in its entirety.

FIFTH: The Charter of the Corporation as currently in effect is hereby amended by deleting the phrase
“Section 9.5” from the last sentence of Section 7.4 of ARTICLE VII of the Charter in its entirety and inserting
the following in lieu thereof:

“Sections 9.14 through 9.19”.
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SIXTH: The Charter of the Corporation as currently in effect is hereby amended by deleting ARTICLE IX
of the Charter in its entirety and inserting the following in lieu thereof:

“ARTICLE IX
RESTRICTION ON OWNERSHIP, TRANSFER, ACQUISITION, AND
REDEMPTION OF SHARES

9.1 Definitions. For the purposes of this ARTICLE IX, the following terms shall have the following
meanings:

“Beneficial Ownership” shall mean ownership of Common Stock or Preferred Stock by a Person, either
(i) directly or (ii) as calculated for purposes of Section 542(a)(2) of the Code, either directly or
constructively through the application of Section 544 of the Code, as modified by Section 856(h)(1)(B) of
the Code. The terms “Beneficial Owner,” “Beneficially Owns,” “Beneficially Own”, “Beneficially Owned”
and “Beneficially” shall have the correlative meanings.

“Beneficiary” shall mean any of the Qualified Charitable Organizations which, from time to time, are
designated by the Corporation to be a beneficiary of the Trust.

“Constructive Ownership” shall mean ownership of Common Stock or Preferred Stock by a Person,
whether the interest in the shares is held directly or indirectly (including by a nominee), and shall include
interests that are actually owned or would be treated as owned through the application of Section 318(a) of
the Code, as modified by Section 856(d)(5) of the Code. The terms “Constructive Owner,” “Constructively
Owns,” “Constructively Own,” “Constructively Owned” and “Constructively” shall have the correlative
meanings.

“Equity Stock” shall mean stock that is either Common Stock or Preferred Stock.

“Excepted Holder” shall mean a stockholder of the Corporation for whom an Excepted Holder Limit is
created pursuant to Section 9.11.

“Excepted Holder Limit” shall mean, provided that the affected Excepted Holder has agreed to comply
with the requirements established by the Board of Directors pursuant to Section 9.11 and subject to
adjustment pursuant to Section 9.9, the percentage limit established by the Board of Directors pursuant to
Section 9.11.

“Market Price” shall mean the last reported sales price reported on the New York Stock Exchange of
Common Stock or Preferred Stock, as the case may be, on the trading day immediately preceding the
relevant date, or if not then traded on the New York Stock Exchange, the last reported sales price of the
Common Stock or Preferred Stock, as the case may be on the trading day immediately preceding the
relevant date as reported on any exchange or quotation system over which the Common Stock or Preferred
Stock, as the case may be, may be traded, or if not then traded over an exchange or quotation system, then
the market price of the Common Stock or Preferred Stock, as the case may be, on the relevant date as
determined in good faith by the Board of Directors of the Corporation.

“Ownership Limit” shall mean, in the case of Common Stock, 9.8% in number of shares or value of the
outstanding Common Stock (or such other percentage as may be determined by the Board of Directors in
accordance with Section 9.9), in the case of Preferred Stock, 9.8% in number of shares or value of the
outstanding Preferred Stock (or such other percentage as may be determined by the Board of Directors in
accordance with Section 9.9), or in the case of Equity Stock, 9.8% in number of shares or value of the
outstanding Equity Stock (or such other percentage as may be determined by the Board of Directors in
accordance with Section 9.9). The number and value of shares of the outstanding Common Stock, Preferred
Stock or Equity Stock of the Corporation shall be determined by the Board of Directors in good faith, which
determination shall be conclusive for all purposes hereof.

“Person” shall mean an individual, corporation, partnership, limited liability company, estate, trust
(including a trust qualified under Section 401(a) of the Code, which is described in Section 856(h)(3)(A)(ii)
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or 501(c)(17) of the Code), a portion of a trust permanently set aside for or to be used exclusively for the
purposes described in Section 642(c) of the Code, association, private foundation within the meaning of
Section 509(a) of the Code, joint stock company or other entity and also includes a “group” as that term is
used for purposes of Section 13(d)(3) of the Exchange Act and shall include any successor (by merger or
otherwise) of such entity or group.

“Prohibited Owner” shall mean, with respect to any purported Transfer, other change in the capital
structure of the Corporation or other event that results in Excess Stock (as defined below in Section 9.3),
any Person who, but for the provisions of Section 9.2, would Beneficially Own or Constructively Own such
shares of Excess Stock.

“Qualified Charitable Organization” shall mean (i) any entity which would be exempt from U.S.
federal income tax under Section 501(c)(3) of the Code and to which contributions are deductible under
each of Sections 170(b)(1)(A), 2055, and 2522 of the Code or (ii) any federal, state or local government
entity.

“Restriction Termination Date” shall mean the first (Ist) day on which the Board of Directors
determines that it is no longer in the best interests of the Corporation to attempt to, or continue to, qualify as
a REIT.

“Transfer” shall mean any sale, transfer, gift, assignment, devise or other disposition of Equity Stock,
including (i) the granting of any option or entering into any agreement for the sale, transfer, gift,
assignment, devise or other disposition of Equity Stock, (ii) the sale, transfer, gift, assignment, devise or
other disposition of any securities (or rights convertible into or exchangeable for Equity Stock) and (iii) any
transfer or other disposition of any interest in Equity Stock as a result of a change in the marital status of the
holder thereof, and in any case of (i), (ii) and (iii) above, whether voluntary or involuntary, whether such
transfer has occurred of record, Beneficially or Constructively (including but not limited to transfers of
interests in other entities which result in changes in Beneficial or Constructive Ownership of Equity Stock),
and whether such transfer has occurred by operation of law or otherwise. The terms “Transfers” and
“Transferred” shall have the correlative meanings.

“Trust” shall mean any of the trusts created pursuant to Section 9.14.

“Trustee” shall mean the Person or Persons serving as Trustee or Co-Trustees of the Trust pursuant to
Section 9.14.

9.2 Ownership Limitation. Subject to the provisions of Section 9.9:

9.2.1 Except as provided in Section 9.11, until the Restriction Termination Date, no Person shall
Beneficially Own or Constructively Own shares of Common Stock, Preferred Stock, or Equity Stock in
excess of the applicable Ownership Limit.

9.2.2 Except as provided in Sections 9.9 and 9.11, until the Restriction Termination Date, any
Transfer that, if effective, would result in any Person Beneficially Owning or Constructively Owning
Common Stock, Preferred Stock, or Equity Stock in excess of the applicable Ownership Limit shall be void
ab initio as to the Transfer of such shares of Equity Stock that would otherwise be Beneficially Owned or
Constructively Owned by such Person in excess of the Ownership Limit; and the intended transferee shall
acquire no rights in such shares of Equity Stock.

9.2.3 Except as provided in Section 9.11, prior to the Restriction Termination Date, any Transfer that,
if effective, would result in the Equity Stock being Beneficially Owned or Constructively Owned by fewer
than one hundred (100) Persons (determined without reference to any rules of attribution) shall be void ab
initio as to the Transfer of such shares of Equity Stock that would otherwise be Beneficially Owned or
Constructively Owned by the transferee; and the intended transferee shall acquire no rights in such shares of
Equity Stock.

9.2.4 Prior to the Restriction Termination Date, any Transfer that, if effective, would result in the
Corporation being “closely held” within the meaning of Section 856(h) of the Code (without regard to
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whether the ownership interest is held during the last half of a taxable year) or otherwise failing to qualify as
a REIT (including, but not limited to, Beneficial Ownership or Constructive Ownership that could result in
the Corporation Constructively Owning an interest in a tenant that is described in Section 856(d)(2)(B) of
the Code) shall be void ab initio as to the Transfer of the shares of Equity Stock that would cause the
Corporation to be ‘“closely held” within the meaning of Section 856(h) of the Code; and the intended
transferee shall acquire no rights in such shares of Equity Stock.

9.3 Excess Stock.

9.3.1 If, notwithstanding the other provisions contained in this ARTICLE IX, at any time prior to the
Restriction Termination Date, there is a purported Transfer, other change in the capital structure of the
Corporation or other event such that any Person would Beneficially Own or Constructively Own Equity
Stock in excess of the Ownership Limit then, except as otherwise provided in 9.9 and 9.11, such shares of
Equity Stock in excess of the Ownership Limit (rounded up to the nearest whole share) shall constitute
“Excess Stock” and be treated as provided in Section 9.14 and all related provisions of this ARTICLE IX.
Such designation and treatment shall be effective as of the close of business on the business day prior to the
date of the purported Transfer or change in capital structure.

9.3.2 If, notwithstanding the other provisions contained in this ARTICLE IX, at any time prior to the
Restriction Termination Date, there is a purported Transfer, other change in the capital structure of the
Corporation or other event that, if effective, would cause the Corporation to become “closely held” within
the meaning of Section 856(h) of the Code, then the shares of Equity Stock being Transferred that would
cause the Corporation to be “closely held” within the meaning of Section 856(h) of the Code (rounded up to
the nearest whole share) shall constitute “Excess Stock™ and be treated as provided in Section 9.14 and all
related provisions of this ARTICLE IX. Such designation and treatment shall be effective as of the close of
business on the business day prior to the date of the purported Transfer, change in capital structure or other
event.

9.4 Remedies. If the Board of Directors or its designee shall at any time determine in good faith that a
Transfer or purported Transfer has taken place in violation of Section 9.2 or that a Person intends to acquire
or has attempted to acquire beneficial ownership (determined without reference to any rules of attribution)
or Beneficial Ownership or Constructive Ownership of any shares of stock of the Corporation in violation of
Section 9.2, the Board of Directors or its designee shall, subject to the provisions of Section 9.20, take such
action as it deems advisable to refuse to give effect to or to prevent such Transfer, including, but not limited
to, refusing to give effect to such Transfer on the books of the Corporation or instituting proceedings to
enjoin such Transfer; provided, however, that the provisions of this ARTICLE IX shall automatically be
effective as provided within ARTICLE IX, irrespective of any action (or inaction) by the Board of
Directors.

9.5 Notice to Corporation. Any Person who acquires or attempts to acquire Beneficial Ownership or
Constructive Ownership of Equity Stock in violation of Section 9.2, or any Person who is a transferee such
that Excess Stock results under Section 9.3, including, without limitation, any Prohibited Owner, shall
immediately give written notice or, in the event of a proposed or attempted Transfer, give at least fifteen
(15) days prior written notice to the Corporation of such event and shall provide to the Corporation such
other information as the Corporation may request in order to determine the effect, if any, of such Transfer or
attempted Transfer on the Corporation’s status as a REIT.

9.6 Information for Corporation. Prior to the Restriction Termination Date:

9.6.1 Each Person who is a Beneficial Owner or Constructive Owner of more than five percent
(5%) (or such other percentage, between one-half of one percent (0.5%) and five percent (5%), as provided
in the income tax regulations promulgated under the Code) of the number or value of outstanding shares of
Common Stock or Preferred Stock of the Corporation shall, within thirty (30) days after January 1 of each
year, give written notice to the Corporation stating the name and address of such Beneficial Owner or
Constructive Owner, the general ownership structure of such Beneficial Owner or Constructive Owner, the
number of shares Beneficially Owned or Constructively Owned of each class of Equity Stock owned and a
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description of how such shares of Equity Stock are held. Each such Beneficial Owner or Constructive
Owner shall provide to the Corporation such additional information as the Corporation may request in order
to determine the effect, if any, of such Beneficial Ownership or Constructive Ownership on the
Corporation’s status as a REIT.

9.6.2 Each Person who is a Beneficial Owner or Constructive Owner of Equity Stock and each
Person (including the stockholder of record) who is holding Equity Stock for a Beneficial Owner or
Constructive Owner shall provide to the Corporation such information that the Corporation may request at
any time in order to determine the Corporation’s status as a REIT, to comply with the requirements of any
taxing authority or governmental agency or to determine any such compliance.

9.7 Other Action by Board. Nothing contained in this ARTICLE IX shall, subject to the provisions of
Section 9.20, limit the authority of the Board of Directors to take such other action as it deems necessary or
advisable to protect the Corporation and the interests of its stockholders by preservation of the
Corporation’s status as a REIT.

9.8 Ambiguities. In the case of an ambiguity in the application of any of the provisions of this
ARTICLE IX, including any definition contained in Section 9.1, the Board of Directors shall have the
power, subject to the provisions of Section 9.20, to determine conclusively the application of the provisions
of this ARTICLE IX with respect to any situation based on the facts known to it. In the event this ARTICLE
IX requires or permits an action by the Board of Directors and the Charter fails to provide specific guidance
with respect to such action, the Board of Directors shall have the power to determine the action to be taken
so long as such action is not contrary to the provisions of this ARTICLE IX.

9.9 Change in Ownership Limit. Subject to the limitations provided in Sections 9.10 and 9.20, the
Board of Directors may from time to time, in its sole discretion, decrease or increase any Ownership Limit;
provided, however, that a decreased Ownership Limit will not be effective for a Person whose percentage
ownership of Common Stock, Preferred Stock, or Equity Stock is in excess of the applicable Ownership
Limit, as decreased pursuant to this Section 9.9, until such time as such Person’s percentage ownership of
such Common Stock, Preferred Stock, or Equity Stock equals or falls below the applicable decreased
Ownership Limit, provided, further, however that until such time as such Person’s percentage of Common
Stock, Preferred Stock, or Equity Stock falls below the applicable decreased Ownership Limit, any further
Transfer of Common Stock, Preferred Stock, or Equity Stock for which such Person is the Prohibited Owner
will be in violation of such Ownership Limit.

9.10 Limitations on Changes in Ownership Limits.

9.10.1 No Ownership Limit may be increased if, after giving effect to such increase, any five
(5) Persons each of whom is treated as an individual for purposes of Section 542(a) of the Code (determined
by taking into account Section 856(h)(3)(A) of the Code) could Beneficially Own or Constructively Own, in
the aggregate, more than forty-nine and one-half percent (49.5%) in number or value of the outstanding
shares of Equity Stock.

9.10.2  Prior to the modification of any Ownership Limit pursuant to Sections 9.9 or 9.10, the Board
of Directors may require such opinions of counsel, affidavits, undertakings or agreements, if any, as it may
deem necessary or advisable in order to determine or ensure the Corporation’s status as a REIT.

9.10.3 The applicable Ownership Limit cannot be increased to a percentage in excess of nine and
eight-tenths percent (9.8%).

9.11 Exemptions by the Board. The Board of Directors, in its sole discretion, may exempt
(prospectively or retroactively) a Person from the restrictions contained in Section 9.2 and may establish an
Excepted Holder Limit for such Person if the Board of Directors obtains such representations, covenants and
undertakings, if any, as the Board of Directors may deem appropriate in order to conclude that granting the
exemption and/or establishing or increasing the Excepted Holder Limit, as the case may be, will not cause
the Corporation to lose its status as a REIT and is otherwise in the best interests of the Corporation. Prior to
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granting any exemption, the Board of Directors may require a ruling from the Internal Revenue Service or
an opinion of counsel, in either case in form and substance satisfactory to the Board of Directors in its sole
discretion, as it may deem necessary or advisable in order to determine that granting the exemption will not
cause the Corporation to lose its status as a REIT. Notwithstanding the receipt or any ruling or opinion, the
Board of Directors may impose such conditions or restrictions as it deems appropriate in connection with
granting such exemption.

9.12  Legend. Until the Restriction Termination Date, each share of Equity Stock, and any certificates
or other documents, certificates or agreements evidencing securities or rights convertible into or
exchangeable for Equity Stock, issued on or after May 9, 2013 shall bear substantially the following legend:

9.12.1 “The shares of Equity Stock or other securities represented by this certificate are subject to
restrictions on Transfer and ownership for the purpose, among others, of the Corporation’s maintenance of
its qualification as a real estate investment trust under the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended from
time to time. No Person may (i) Beneficially Own or Constructively Own shares of Common Stock,
Preferred Stock or Equity Stock in excess of 9.8% (or such other percentage as may be determined by the
Board of Directors as provided in the Corporation’s Charter) of the outstanding Common Stock, Preferred
Stock or Equity Stock of the Corporation, (ii) Beneficially Own or Constructively Own shares of Common
Stock, Preferred Stock or Equity Stock which would result in the Equity Stock being Beneficially Owned or
Constructively Owned by fewer than one hundred (100) Persons or (iii) Beneficially Own or Constructively
Own shares of Common Stock, Preferred Stock or Equity Stock which would result in the Corporation being
“closely held” under Section 856(h) of the Code. If the restrictions on Transfer are violated, the Transfer
shall be void ab initio and, if the restrictions on Transfer or ownership are violated, any or all of the shares
of stock represented hereby shall be deemed Excess Stock and shall be transferred to the Trustee to be held
in trust for the benefit of one or more Qualified Charitable Organizations. In addition, any Person who
attempts to Beneficially Own or Constructively Own shares of Common Stock, Preferred Stock or Equity
Stock in excess of the above limitation must immediately give written notice to the Corporation of such
event. All capitalized terms in this legend have the meanings defined in the Corporation’s charter, a copy of
which, including the restrictions on Transfer and ownership, will be sent without charge to each stockholder
who so requests, within five business days after receipt of a written request therefor.”

9.13  Severability. If any provision of this ARTICLE IX or any application of any such provision is
determined to be void, invalid or unenforceable by any court having jurisdiction over the issue, the validity
and enforceability of the remaining provisions shall not be affected and other applications of such provision
shall be affected only to the extent necessary to comply with the determination of such court. If any of the
restrictions on Transfer or ownership set forth in this ARTICLE IX are determined to be void, invalid or
unenforceable by any court with jurisdiction over the issue, then the Prohibited Owner may be deemed, at
the election of the Board of Directors in its sole discretion, to have acted as an agent of the Corporation in
acquiring such Excess Stock and to hold such Excess Stock on behalf of the Corporation.

9.14 Trust for Excess Stock. Upon any Transfer or purported Transfer, change in capital structure or
other event that results in Excess Stock pursuant to Section 9.2, such Excess Stock shall be deemed to have
been transferred to the Trustee (who shall be unaffiliated with the Corporation and the Prohibited Owner) as
trustee of the Trust for the exclusive benefit of one or more Qualified Charitable Organizations as are
designated from time to time by the Board of Directors in its sole discretion with respect to such Excess
Stock. Shares of Excess Stock held in trust shall be issued and outstanding stock of the Corporation. The
Prohibited Owner shall have no rights in such Excess Stock, except such rights to certain proceeds upon
Transfer of shares of Excess Stock or upon any voluntary or involuntary liquidation, dissolution or winding
up of, or any distribution of the assets of, the Corporation as are expressly set forth in Sections 9.6 and 9.18.

9.15 Dividends with Respect to Excess Stock. Any dividend or distribution (whether taxable as a
dividend, return of capital or otherwise) paid with respect to Excess Stock shall be paid to the Trustee on
behalf of the Trust. Any dividend or distribution paid with respect to Excess Stock prior to the discovery by
the Corporation that shares of Common Stock and/or Preferred Stock have come to constitute Excess Stock
shall be repaid to the Corporation by the Prohibited Owner. Any dividend or distribution declared but
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unpaid as of the Corporation’s discovery that shares of Common Stock and/or Preferred constitute Excess
Stock shall be rescinded as void ab initio with respect to the Prohibited Owner. Any dividends so repaid or
rescinded shall be paid to the Trustee on behalf of the Trust. The Trustee shall distribute to the Beneficiary
of the Trust any such dividends or distributions received with respect to Excess Stock.

9.16 Liquidation Distributions for Excess Stock. The Trustee, as holder of the Excess Stock in trust,
shall distribute any assets received in respect of the Excess Stock in any liquidation, dissolution or winding
up of, or any distribution of the assets of, the Corporation to the Prohibited Owner and the Qualified
Charitable Organizations which are Beneficiaries as provided in this Section 9.16. The Prohibited Owner
shall receive the lesser of (i) the price per share that such Prohibited Owner paid for the Common Stock or
Preferred Stock, as the case may be, in any purported Transfer that resulted in the Excess Stock or, if the
Prohibited Owner did not give value for such Excess Stock (through a gift, assignment, devise or other
disposition), a price per share equal to the Market Price for the shares of the Excess Stock on the date of the
purported Transfer that resulted in the Excess Stock, and (ii) the amount per share received by the Trustee in
respect of the Excess Stock in such liquidation, dissolution or winding up of, or distribution of the assets of,
the Corporation. Any proceeds in excess of the amount payable to the Prohibited Owner shall be payable to
the Trustee for the benefit of the Beneficiary.

9.17 Voting Rights for Excess Stock. A Prohibited Owner of Excess Stock shall be deemed to have
given the Trustee an irrevocable proxy to vote the shares of Excess Stock. Any vote made by a Prohibited
Owner with respect to Excess Stock prior to the discovery by the Corporation that shares of Common Stock
and/or Preferred Stock constitute Excess Stock shall be rescinded as void ab initio; provided, however, that
if the Corporation has already taken irreversible action with respect to a merger, reorganization, sale of all
or substantially all of the assets, dissolution of the Corporation or other action by the Corporation, then the
vote cast by the Prohibited Owner shall not be rescinded. Notwithstanding the provisions of this ARTICLE
IX, until the Corporation has received notification that Excess Stock has been transferred into a Trust, the
Corporation shall be entitled to rely on its share transfer and other stockholder records for purposes of
preparing the list of stockholders entitled to vote at meetings, determining the validity and authority of
proxies and otherwise conducting votes of stockholders.

9.18 Transferability of Excess Stock. Excess Stock shall be transferable only as provided in this
Section 9.18. Within twenty (20) days of receiving notice from the Corporation, the Trustee of the Trust
shall Transfer the shares of Excess Stock held in Trust, to a person designated by the Trustee whose
ownership of the Excess Stock will not violate the ownership limitations set forth in Section 9.2. Upon the
Transfer, the interest of the Beneficiary in the shares of Excess Stock sold shall terminate and, the proceeds
of the sale shall be payable to the Prohibited Owner and the Beneficiary as provided in this Section 9.18.
The Prohibited Owner shall receive an amount equal to the product of the number of shares of Excess Stock
so Transferred multiplied by the lesser of (i) the price per share that such Prohibited Owner paid for the
Common Stock or Preferred Stock, as the case may be, in any purported Transfer that resulted in the Excess
Stock or, if the Prohibited Owner did not give value for such Excess Stock (through a gift, assignment,
devise or other disposition), a price per share equal to the Market Price for the shares of the Excess Stock on
the date of the purported Transfer that resulted in the Excess Stock, and (ii) the price per share received by
the Trustee from the sale or other disposition of the shares of Excess Stock held by the Trust. Any proceeds
in excess of the amount payable to the Prohibited Owner shall be payable to the Beneficiary. The Trustee
shall be under no obligation to obtain the highest possible price for the Excess Stock. Prior to the Transfer of
any Excess Stock held by the Trust, the Trustee shall give advance written notice to the Corporation of the
intended Transfer and the Corporation must have waived in writing its purchase rights under Section 9.19 or
such rights must have expired unexercised. Any Transfer in violation of the foregoing shall be void ab
initio. If, prior to the discovery by the Corporation that shares of Equity Stock have been transferred to the
Trustee, such shares are sold by the Prohibited Owner, then (i) such shares shall be deemed to have been
sold on behalf of the Trust, and (ii) to the extent that the Prohibited Owner received an amount for such
shares that exceeds the amount that such Prohibited Owner was entitled to receive pursuant to this
Section 9.18, such excess shall be paid to the Trustee upon demand for the benefit of the Beneficiary.
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9.19 Call by Corporation on Excess Stock. Excess Stock shall be deemed to have been offered for
sale to the Corporation, or its designee, at a price per share equal to the lesser of (i) the price per share in the
Transfer that created such Excess Stock (or, in the case of devise or gift, the Market Price at the time of such
devise or gift), and (ii) the Market Price of the Common Stock or Preferred Stock constituting such Excess
Stock on the date the Corporation, or its designee, accepts such offer. The Corporation shall have the right to
accept such offer for a period of ninety (90) days after the later of (x) the date of the Transfer that resulted in
such Excess Stock and (y) the date the Board of Directors determines in good faith that a Transfer resulting
in Excess Stock has occurred, if the Corporation does not receive a notice of such Transfer pursuant to
Section 9.5, but in no event later than a permitted Transfer pursuant to and in compliance with the terms of
Section 9.18.

9.20 Transactions Effected on the New York Stock Exchange. Nothing in this ARTICLE IX shall
preclude the settlement of any transaction entered into through the facilities of the NYSE or any other
national securities exchange. The fact that the settlement of any transaction occurs shall not negate the effect
of any other provision of this ARTICLE IX and any transferee in such a transaction shall be subject to all of
the provisions and limitations set forth in this ARTICLE IX.

9.21 Underwritten Offerings. The Ownership Limit shall not apply to the acquisition of Equity Stock
or rights, options or warrants for, or securities convertible into, Equity Stock by an underwriter in a public
offering, provided that the underwriter makes a timely distribution of such Equity Stock or rights, options or
warrants for, or securities convertible into, Equity Stock.

9.22 Enforcement. The Corporation is authorized specifically to seek equitable relief, including
injunctive relief, to enforce the provisions of this ARTICLE IX.

9.23 Non-Waiver. No delay or failure on the part of the Corporation or the Board of Directors in
exercising any right hereunder shall operate as a waiver of any right of the Corporation or the Board of
Directors, as the case may be, except to the extent specifically waived in writing.”

SEVENTH: The Charter of the Corporation as currently in effect is hereby amended by deleting ARTICLE

XIIT of the Charter in its entirety.

EIGHTH: The Board of Directors of the Corporation, by unanimous vote at a duly called meeting, duly

adopted resolutions setting forth the proposed amendments to the Charter, declaring said amendments to be
advisable and directing that said amendments be submitted for consideration by the stockholders.

NINTH: Notice setting forth the said amendments of the Charter and stating that a purpose of the meeting of

the stockholders would be to take action thereon was given as required by law to all stockholders of the
Corporation entitled to vote thereon. The stockholders of the Corporation, by vote at a duly called annual
meeting, approved said amendments.

[Signature page follows]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Corporation has caused these Articles of Amendment to be signed in its
name and on its behalf by its President and its corporate seal to be hereunder affixed and attested to by its
Secretary on this 9™ day of May, 2013, and its said President acknowledges under the penalties of perjury that
these Articles of Amendment are the corporate act of said Corporation and that, to the best of his knowledge,
information and belief, the matters and facts set forth herein are true in all material respects.

First Industrial Realty Trust, Inc.

By:
Name:
Title:

Attest:

By:

Name:

Title:
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ARTICLE I
MEETINGS OF STOCKHOLDERS

1.1 PLACE. All meetings of the holders of the issued and outstanding capital stock of the Corporation (the
“Stockholders”) shall be held at the principal executive office of the Corporation or such other place within the
United States as shall be stated in the notice of the meeting.

1.2 ORGANIZATION MEETING; ANNUAL MEETING. An annual meeting of the Stockholders for the
election of Directors and the transaction of such other business as properly may be brought before the meeting
shall be held on-the-third-Wednesday-in-April-of each-year-or-atsueh-other such date and time as may be fixed by
the Board of Directors:, provided that such meeting shall not be held on a legal holiday. If the date fixed for the
annual meeting shall be a legal holiday, such meeting shall be held on the next succeeding business day. If no
annual meeting is held on the date designated, a special meeting in lieu thereof may be held, and such special
meeting shall have, for purposes of these Bylaws or otherwise, all the force and effect of an annual meeting. Any
and all references hereinafter in these Bylaws to an annual meeting or to annual meetings shall be deemed to
refer also to any special meeting(s) in lieu thereof. Failure to hold an annual meeting shall not invalidate the
Corporation’s existence or affect any otherwise valid act of the Corporation.

1.3 MATTERS TO BE CONSIDERED AT ANNUAL MEETING.

(a) At an annual meeting of Stockholders only such business shall be conducted, and only such
proposals shall be acted upon, as shall have been properly brought before the annual meeting (i) by, or at the
direction of, a majority of the Board of Directors or (ii) by any holder of record (both as of the time notice of
such proposal is given by the Stockholder as set forth below and as of the record date for the annual meeting in
question) of any shares of the Corporation’s capital stock entitled to vote at such annual meeting who complies
with the procedure set forth in this Section 1.3. For a proposal to be properly brought before an annual meeting
by a Stockholder, the Stockholder must have given timely notice thereof in writing to the Secretary of the
Corporatlon and such Stockholder or h1s representatrve must be present in person at the annual meeting. Fer-the

: : all su de et a A Stockholder S not1ce
shall be timely 1f delivered to, or mailed and recelved at, the principal executive offices of the Corporation

(A)notless—than—75—days—nor-mere-than—180-daysi) not later than the close of business on the one hundred

twentieth (120t day nor earlier than the close of business on the one hundred fiftieth (150t) day prior to the first
anniversary date—of—the—immediately—preeedingof the date of the Corporation’s proxy statement released to
Stockholders in connection with the previous year’s annual meeting of Stockholders er-speetal-meeting—inteun
thereof—(the “Anniversary Date”) or (Bii) in the event that the annual meeting of Stockholders is ealtedfor—a
dateadvanced or delayed by more than 7thirty (30) calendar days priorte-the-Anniversary Datenottaterfrom the

ann1versary of the prevrous year s annual meet1ng, not earher than the close of busrness on éH—t-he%Gt-h—ea}eﬂda-r

fﬂefe—&raﬁqée-a-}eﬂd-&r—d-ays—pﬂer—to—the—sehedu-}edthe one hundred f1ft1eth (150‘h) day prror to the date of such

S and not later than the close of

bus1ness on the later to occur of sueh—ﬁeﬁee—er—pu-bhe—dise}os&re—er—éﬁ—&xe%th—ea}eﬂdafthe one hundred
twentieth (120%) day prior to steh-seheduledthe date of such annual meeting tor-if-that-day-is-not-a-business-day
fer—the—@erper&ﬁeﬂ—eﬂ—&te—ne*t—sueeeed-mg—bﬂsmess—dﬂ-ﬁor the tenth (10%) day following the day on which

public announcement of the date of such meeting is first made. The public announcement of a postponement or
adjournment of an annual meeting shall not commence a new time period for the giving of a Stockholder’s notice
as described above.
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(b) A Stockholder’s notice to the Secretary shall set forth as to each matter the Stockholder proposes
to bring before the annual meeting (i) a brief description of the proposal desired to be brought before the annual
meeting and the reasons for conducting such business at the annual meeting, (ii) the name and address, as they
appear on the Corporation’s stock transfer books, of the Stockholder proposing such business and of the
beneficial owners (if any) of the stock registered in such Stockholder’s name and the name and address of other
Stockholders known by such Stockholder to be supporting such proposal on the date of such Stockholder’s
notice, (iii) the class and number of shares of the Corporation’s capital stock which are beneficially owned by the
Stockholder and such beneficial owners (if any) on the date of such Stockholder’s notice and by any other
Stockholders known by such Stockholder to be supporting such proposal on the date of such Stockholder’s notice
and (iv) any financial interest of the Stockholder or of any such beneficial owner in such proposal.

(c) If the Board of Directors, or a designated committee thereof, determines that any Stockholder
proposal was not timely made in accordance with the terms of this Section 1.3, such proposal shall not be
presented for action at the annual meeting in question. If the Board of Directors or a designated committee
thereof determines that the information provided in a Stockholder’s notice does not satisfy the informational
requirements of this section in any material respect, the Secretary of the Corporation shall promptly notify such
Stockholder of the deficiency in the notice. Such Stockholder shall have an opportunity to cure the deficiency by
providing additional information to the Secretary within the period of time, not to exceed five (5) days from the
date such deficiency notice is given to the Stockholder, determined by the Board of Directors or such committee.
If the deficiency is not cured within such period, or if the Board of Directors of such committee determines that
the additional information provided by the Stockholder, together with the information previously provided, does
not satisfy the requirements of this Section 1.3 in any material respect, then such proposal shall not be presented
for action at the annual meeting in question.

(d) Notwithstanding the procedure set forth in the preceding paragraph, if neither the Board of
Directors nor such committee makes a determination as to the validity of any Stockholder proposal as set forth
above, the presiding Officer of the annual meeting shall determine and declare at the annual meeting whether the
Stockholder proposal was made in accordance with the terms of this Section 1.3. If the presiding Officer
determines that a Stockholder proposal was made in accordance with the terms of this Section 1.3, the presiding
Officer shall so declare at the annual meeting. If the presiding Officer determines that a Stockholder proposal
was not made in accordance with the provisions of this Section 1.3, the presiding Officer shall so declare at the
annual meeting and such proposal shall not be acted upon at the annual meeting.

(e) This provision shall not prevent the consideration and approval or disapproval at the annual
meeting of reports of Officers, Directors and committees of the Board of Directors, but in connection with such
reports, no new business shall be acted upon at such annual meeting except in accordance with the provisions of
this Section 1.3.

1.4.1 General. Special meetings of the Stockholders for any purpose or purposes may be called only

by (i) the Chairman of the Board, (ii) the President, (iii) a majority of the Board of Directors or (iv) by the
Secretary upon the written request of Stockholders entitled to cast not less than a majority of all the votes entitled
to be cast at such meeting. The notice of a special meeting shall state the purpose or purposes of the special
meeting, and the business to be conducted at the special meeting shall be limited to the purpose or purposes
stated in the notice. Except in accordance with this Section 1.4, Stockholders shall not be permitted to propose
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business to be brought before a special meeting of the Stockholders. Stockholders who proposed to nominate
persons for election to the Board of Directors at a special meeting or who propose other business at a special
meeting must also comply with the requirements set forth in Section 2.4.

1.4.2  Stockholder Requested Special Meetings.

(a) No Stockholder may request that the Secretary of the Corporation call a special meeting of
Stockholders pursuant to Section 1.4.1 unless a Stockholder of record has first requested, by sending written
notice to the Secretary (the “Record Date Request Notice”) by registered mail, return receipt requested, that the
Board of Directors fix a record date to determine the Stockholders entitled to request a special meeting (the
“Request Record Date”). The Record Date Request Notice shall set forth the purpose of the meeting and the
matters proposed to be acted on at it, shall be signed by one or more Stockholders of record as of the date of
signature (or their agents duly authorized in a writing accompanying the Record Date Request Notice), shall bear
the date of signature of each such Stockholder (or such agent) and shall set forth: (i) as to each requesting
Stockholder, all information relating to each such Stockholder that is required to be disclosed under
Section 2.4(c) and all information relating to each such Stockholder that must be disclosed in connection with the
solicitation of proxies for the election of directors in an election contest (even if an election contest is not
involved), or would otherwise be required in connection with such a solicitation, in each case pursuant to
Regulation 14A (or any successor provision) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and the
rules and regulations promulgated thereunder (the “Exchange Act”); (ii) as to the purpose or purposes of the
special meeting, (A) a reasonably brief description of the purpose or purposes of the special meeting and the
business proposed to be conducted at the special meeting, the reasons for conducting such business at the special
meeting and any material interest in such business of each such Stockholder, and (B) a reasonably detailed
description of all agreements, arrangements and understandings (x) between or among any of the requesting
Stockholders or (y) between or among any requesting Stockholders and any other person or entity (including
their names) in connection with the request for the special meeting or the business proposed to be conducted at
the special meeting; and (iii) if directors are proposed to be elected at the special meeting, the nominee
information set forth in Section 2.4(c) for each person whom such Stockholder expects to nominate for election
as a director at the special meeting. Upon receiving the Record Date Request Notice, the Board of Directors may
fix a Request Record Date. The Request Record Date shall not precede and shall not be more than ten (10) days
after the close of business on the date on which the resolution fixing the Request Record Date is adopted by the
Board of Directors. If the Board of Directors, within ten (10) days after the date on which a valid Record Date
Request Notice is received, fails to adopt a resolution fixing the Request Record Date, the Request Record Date
shall be the close of business on the tenth (10%) day after the first date on which a Record Date Request Notice is
received by the Secretary.

(b) In order for any Stockholder to request a special meeting to act on any matter that may properly
be considered at a meeting of Stockholders, one or more written requests for a special meeting (collectively, the
“Special Meeting Request”) signed by Stockholders of record (or their agents duly authorized in a writing
accompanying the request) as of the Request Record Date entitled to cast not less than a majority of all of the
votes entitled to be cast on such matter at such meeting (the “Special Meeting Percentage”) shall be delivered to
the Secretary. In addition, the Special Meeting Request shall (i) set forth the purpose of the meeting and the
matters proposed to be acted on at it (which shall be limited to those lawful matters set forth in the Record Date
Request Notice received by the Secretary), (ii) set forth the text of the proposal or business (including the text of
any resolutions proposed for consideration), (iii) bear the date of signature of each such Stockholder (or such
agent) signing the Special Meeting Request, (iv) set forth (A) the name and address, as they appear in the
Corporation’s books, of each Stockholder signing such request (or on whose behalf the Special Meeting Request
is signed), (B) the class, series and number of all shares of stock of the Corporation which are owned
(beneficially or of record) by each such Stockholder, (C) the nominee holder for, and number of, shares of stock
of the Corporation owned beneficially but not of record by such Stockholder, (D) the Stockholder information
required to be provided in Section 2.4(c), and (E) all information relating to each such Stockholder that must be
disclosed in solicitations of proxies for election of directors in an election contest (even if an election contest is
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not involved), or is otherwise required, in each case pursuant to Regulation 14A (or any successor provision)
under the Exchange Act, (v) be sent to the Secretary by registered mail, return receipt requested, and (vii) be
received by the Secretary within sixty (60) days after the Request Record Date. Any requesting Stockholder (or
agent duly authorized in a writing accompanying the revocation of the Special Meeting Request) may revoke his,
her or its request for a special meeting at any time by written revocation delivered to the Secretary.

(c) The Secretary shall inform the requesting Stockholders of the reasonably estimated cost of
preparing and mailing or delivering the notice of the meeting (including the Corporation’s proxy materials). The
Secretary shall not be required to call a special meeting upon Stockholder request and such meeting shall not be
held unless, in addition to the documents required by Section 2.4(c), the Secretary receives payment of such
reasonably estimated cost prior to the preparation and mailing or delivery of such notice of the meeting.

(d) In the case of any special meeting called by the Secretary upon the request of Stockholders (a
“Stockholder-Requested Meeting”), such meeting shall be held at such place, date and time as may be designated
by the Board of Directors; provided, however, that the date of any Stockholder-Requested Meeting shall be not
more than ninety (90) days after the record date for such meeting as determined below (the “Meeting Record
Date”); and provided further that if the Board of Directors fails to designate, within ten (10) days after the date
that a valid Special Meeting Request is actually received by the Secretary (the “Delivery Date”), a date and time
for a Stockholder-Requested Meeting, then such meeting shall be held at 2:00 p.m., local time at the location of
the meeting, on the ninetieth (90™) day after the Meeting Record Date or, if such ninetieth (90") day is not a
Business Day (as defined below), on the first preceding Business Day; and provided further that in the event that
the Board of Directors fails to designate a place for a Stockholder-Requested Meeting within ten (10) days after
the Delivery Date, then such meeting shall be held at the principal executive office of the Corporation. In fixing a
date for a Stockholder-Requested Meeting, the Board of Directors may consider such factors as it deems relevant,
including, without limitation, the nature of the matters to be considered, the facts and circumstances surrounding
any request for the meeting and any plan of the Board of Directors to call an annual meeting or a special meeting.
In the case of any Stockholder-Requested Meeting, if the Board of Directors fails to fix a Meeting Record Date
that is a date within thirty (30) days after the Delivery Date, then the close of business on the thirtieth (30™) day
after the Delivery Date shall be the Meeting Record Date. The Board of Directors may revoke the notice for any
Stockholder-Requested Meeting in the event that the requesting Stockholders fail to comply with the provisions
of Section 2.4.

(e) The Secretary shall not accept, and shall consider ineffective, a written demand from a
Stockholder to call a special meeting (i) that does not comply with this Section 1.4, (ii) that relates to an item of
business to be transacted at such meeting that is not a proper subject for Stockholder action under applicable law,
(iii) that includes an item of business to be transacted at such meeting that did not appear on the written request
that resulted in the determination of the Demand Record Date, (iv) that relates to an item of business (other than
the election of directors) that is identical or substantially similar to an item of business (a “Similar Item”) for
which a record date for notice of a Stockholder meeting (other than the Demand Record Date) was previously
fixed and such demand is delivered between the time beginning on the sixty-first (61%") day after such previous
record date and ending on the one-year anniversary of such previous record date, (v) if a Similar Item will be
submitted for Stockholder approval at any Stockholder meeting to be held on or before the ninetieth (90*) day
after the Secretary receives such demand, or (vi) if a Similar Item has been presented at the most recent annual
meeting or at any special meeting held within one year prior to receipt by the Secretary of such demand to call a

special meeting.

(f) If written revocations of the Special Meeting Request have been delivered to the Secretary and the
result is that Stockholders of record (or their agents duly authorized in writing), as of the Request Record Date,
entitled to cast less than the Special Meeting Percentage have delivered, and not revoked, requests for a special
meeting on the matter to the Secretary: (i) if the notice of meeting has not already been delivered, the Secretary
shall refrain from delivering the notice of the meeting and send to all requesting Stockholders who have not
revoked such requests written notice of any revocation of a request for a special meeting on the matter, or (ii) if
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the notice of meeting has been delivered and if the Secretary first sends to all requesting Stockholders who have
not revoked requests for a special meeting on the matter written notice of any revocation of a request for the
special meeting and written notice of the Corporation’s intention to revoke the notice of the meeting or for the
chairman of the meeting to adjourn the meeting without action on the matter, (A) the Secretary may revoke the
notice of the meeting at any time before ten (10) days before the commencement of the meeting or (B) the
chairman of the meeting may call the meeting to order and adjourn the meeting without acting on the matter. Any
request for a special meeting received after a revocation by the Secretary of a notice of a meeting shall be
considered a request for a new special meeting.

(g) For purposes of these Bylaws, “Business Day” shall mean any day other than a Saturday, a
Sunday or a day on which banking institutions in the State of Illinois are authorized or obligated by law or
executive order to close.

(h) If information submitted pursuant to this Section 1.4 by any Stockholder proposing a nominee for
election as a director or any proposal for other business at a special meeting of Stockholders shall be inaccurate
in any material respect, such information may be deemed not to have been provided in accordance with this
Section 1.4. Any such Stockholder shall notify the Corporation of any inaccuracy or change (within two
Business Days of becoming aware of such inaccuracy or change) in any such information. Upon written request
by the Secretary or the Board of Directors, any such Stockholder shall provide, within five Business Days of
delivery of such request (or such other period as may be specified in such request), (A) written verification,
satisfactory, in the discretion of the Board of Directors or any authorized Officer of the Corporation, to
demonstrate the accuracy of any information submitted by the Stockholder pursuant to this Section 1.4, and (B) a
written update of any information (including, if requested by the Corporation, written confirmation by such
Stockholder that it continues to intend to bring such nomination or other business proposal before the meeting)
submitted by the Stockholder pursuant to this Section 1.4 as of an earlier date. If a Stockholder fails to provide
such written verification or written update within such period, the information as to which written verification or
a written update was requested may be deemed not to have been provided in accordance with this Section 1.4.

1.5 NOTICE. Not less than ten (10) nor more than ninety (90) days before the date of every meeting of
Stockholders, written-erprinted-notice of such meeting shall be given, in accordance with Article VIII, to each
Stockholder entitled to vote or entitled to notice by statute, stating the time and place of the meeting and, in the
case of a special meeting or as otherwise may be required by statute, the purpose or purposes for which the
meeting is called. The Corporation may give a single notice to all Stockholders who share an address, which
single notice shall be effective as to any Stockholder at such address, unless such Stockholder objects to
receiving such single notice or revokes a prior consent to receiving such single notice. Failure to give notice of
any meeting to one or more Stockholders, or any irregularity in such notice, shall not affect the validity of any
meeting fixed in accordance with this Article I or the validity of any proceedings at any such meeting.

1.6 SCOPE OF NOTICE. No business shall be transacted at a special meeting of Stockholders except that
specifically designated in the notice of the meeting. Any business of the Corporation may be transacted at the
annual meeting without being specifically designated in the notice, except such business as is required by statute
to be stated in such notice.

1.7 QUORUM. At any meeting of Stockholders, the presence in person or by proxy of Stockholders
entitled to cast a majority of the votes shall constitute a quorum; but this Section 1.7 shall not affect any
requirement under any statute or the Articles of Incorporation of the Corporation, as amended (the “Charter”), for
the vote necessary for the adoption of any measure. If, however, a quorum is not present at any meeting of the
Stockholders, the Stockholders present in person or by proxy shall have the power to adjourn the meeting from
time to time without notice other than by announcement at the meeting until a quorum is present, and the meeting
so adjourned may be reconvened without further notice. At any adjourned meeting at which a quorum is present,
any business may be transacted that might have been transacted at the meeting as originally notified. The
Stockholders present at a meeting which has been duly called and convened and at which a quorum is present at
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the time counted may continue to transact business until adjournment, notwithstanding the withdrawal of enough
Stockholders to leave less than a quorum.

1.8 VOTING.

(a) A majority of the votes cast at a meeting of Stockholders duly called and at which a quorum is
present shall be sufficient to take or authorize action upon any matter which may properly come before the
meeting, unless more than a majority of the votes cast is specifically required by statute, the Charter or these
Bylaws. Unless otherwise provided by statute, the Charter or these Bylaws, each outstanding share (a “Share’) of
capital stock of the Corporation (the “Stock™), regardless of class, shall be entitled to one vote upon each matter
submitted to a vote at a meeting of Stockholders. Pursuant to Section 3-702 of the Maryland General Corporation
Law, any and all acquisitions of Shares of Stock are hereby exempted from the provisions of Title 3, Subtitle 7 of
the Maryland General Corporation Law, which relates to voting rights of certain control shares. Shares of its own
Stock directly or indirectly owned by the Corporation shall not be voted in any meeting and shall not be counted
in determining the total number of outstanding Shares entitled to vote at any given time, but Shares of its own
voting Stock held by it in a fiduciary capacity may be voted and shall be counted in determining the total number
of outstanding Shares at any given time. Notwithstanding anything contained in these Bylaws the rights of
Excess Stock and the holders of Excess Stock shall be limited to rights provided in the Corporation’s Articles of
Incorporation, as amended from time to time.

(b) Notwithstanding the procedures set forth in the preceding paragraph, each Director shall be
elected by the vote of the majority of the votes cast with respect to the Director at any meeting for the election of
Directors at which a quorum is present, provided that if the number of nominees exceeds the number of Directors
to be elected, the Directors shall be elected by the vote of a plurality of the shares represented in person or by
proxy at any such meeting and entitled to vote on the election of Directors. For purposes of this Section 1.8(b), a
majority of the votes cast means that the number of shares voted “for” a Director must exceed the number of
votes cast against that Director. Each Director so elected shall hold office until such Director’s term expires and
until such Director’s successor is duly elected and qualified, or until such Director’s earlier death, resignation or
removal.

1.9 PROXIES. A Stockholder may vote the Shares owned of record by him or her, either in person or by
proxy executed in writing by the Stockholder or by his or her duly authorized attorney in fact. Such proxy shall
be filed with the Secretary of the Corporation before or at the time of the meeting. No proxy shall be valid after
eleven (11) months from the date of its execution, unless otherwise provided in the proxy.

1.10  INSPECTORS OF ELECTION.

1.10.1 Before or at any meeting of Stockholders, the chairman of the meeting may appoint one or
more persons as inspectors for such meeting. Except as otherwise provided by the chairman of the meeting, such
inspectors shall (i) ascertain and report the number of shares of beneficial interest represented at the meeting, in
person or by proxy, and the validity and effect of proxies, (ii) receive and tabulate all votes, ballots or consents,
(iii) report such tabulation to the chairperson of the meeting and (iv) perform such other acts as are proper to
conduct the election or voting at the meeting.

1.10.2 Each report of an inspector shall be in writing and signed by him or her or by a majority of
them if there is more than one inspector acting at such meeting. If there is more than one inspector, the report of a
majority shall be the report of the inspectors. The report of the inspector or inspectors on the number of shares
represented at the meeting and the results of the voting shall be prima facie evidence thereof.

1.11+4+8 CONDUCT OF MEETINGS.
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meeting;—shall preside-ever Every meeting of Stockholders shall be conducted by an indiidual appointed by the
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Board of Directors to be the chairman of the meeting or, in the absence of such appointment or absence of the
appointed individual, by the Chairman of the Board or, in the case of a vacancy in the office or the absence of the
Chairman of the Board, by one of the following Officers present at the meeting in the following order: the
President, the Vice Presidents in their order of seniority or, in the absence of such Officers, a chairperson chosen
by the vote of a majority of the votes cast by Stockholders present in person or by proxy. The Secretary, an
assistant Secretary or a person appointed by the Board of Directors or, in the absence of such appointment, a
person appointed by the chairperson of the meeting shall act as the Secretary of the meeting and record the
minutes of the meeting. The order of business and all other matters of procedure at any meeting of Stockholders
shall be determined by the chairman of the meeting. The chairman of the meeting may prescribe such rules,
regulations and procedures and take such action as, in the discretion of the chairman of the meeting and without
any action by the Stockholders, are appropriate for the proper conduct of the meeting, including, without
limitation, (a) restricting admission to the time set for the commencement of the meeting; (b) limiting attendance
at the meeting to stockholders of record of the Corporation, their duly authorized proxies and such other
individuals as the chairman of the meeting may determine; (c) limiting participation at the meeting on any matter
to Stockholders of record of the Corporation entitled to vote on such matter, their duly authorized proxies and
other such individuals as the chairman of the meeting may determine; (d) limiting the time allotted to questions
or comments; (e) determining when and for how long the polls should be opened and when the polls should be
closed; (f) maintaining order and security at the meeting; (g) removing any Stockholder or any other individual
who refuses to comply with meeting procedures, rules or guidelines as set forth by the chairman of the meeting;
(h) concluding a meeting or recessing or adjourning the meeting to a later date and time and at a place announced
at the meeting; and (i) complying with any state and local laws and regulations concerning safety and security.
Unless otherw1se determined by the chairman of the meetmg, meetlngs of Stockholders—"Phe%eefef&Py—ef—t-he

Qﬁﬁeer—ef—ehe—meefmg—shaﬂ—&ekas—seefef&fy—ef—meh—meefmg— shall not be requlred to be held in accordance w1th

the rules of parliamentary procedure.

1.12  INFORMAL ACTION BY STOCKHOLDERS. An action required or permitted to be taken at a
meeting of Stockholders may be taken without a meeting if a consent in writing, setting forth such action, is
signed by all the Stockholders entitled to vote on the subject matter thereof and any other Stockholders entitled to
notice of a meeting of Stockholders (but not to vote thereat) have waived in writing any rights which they may
have to dissent from such action, and such consents and waivers are filed with the minutes of proceedings of the
Stockholders. Such consents and waivers may be signed by different Stockholders on separate counterparts.

1.13  VOTING BY BALLOT. Voting on any question or in any election may be viva voce unless the
presiding Officer shall order or any Stockholder shall demand that voting be by ballot.
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ARTICLE I
DIRECTORS

2.1 GENERAL POWERS. The business and affairs of the Corporation shall be managed by its Board of
Directors. All powers of the Corporation may be exercised by or under the authority of the Board of Directors,
except as conferred on or reserved to the Stockholders by statute, the Charter or these Bylaws.

2.2 OUTSIDE ACTIVITIES. The Board of Directors and its members are required to spend only such
time managing the business and affairs of the Corporation as is necessary to carry out their duties in accordance
with Section 2-405.1 of the Maryland General Corporation Law. The Board of Directors, each Director, and the
agents, Officers and employees of the Corporation or of the Board of Directors or of any Director may engage
with or for others in business activities of the types conducted by the Corporation. Except as set forth in the
Charter or by separate agreement, none of such individuals has an obligation to notify or present to the
Corporation or each other any investment opportunity that may come to such person’s attention even though such
investment might be within the scope of the Corporation’s purposes or various investment objectives. Any
interest (including any interest as defined in Section 2-419(a) of the Maryland General Corporation Law) that a
Director has in any investment opportunity presented to the Corporation must be disclosed by such Director to
the Board of Directors (and, if voting thereon, to the Stockholders or to any committee of the Board of Directors)
within ten (10) days after the later of the date upon which such Director becomes aware of such interest or the
date upon which such Director becomes aware that the Corporation is considering such investment opportunity.
If such interest comes to the interested Director’s attention after a vote to take such investment opportunity, the
voting body shall be notified of such interest and shall reconsider such investment opportunity if not already
consummated or implemented.

2.3 NUMBER TENURE AND QUALIFICATIONS. The number of Directors of the Corporation shall be
that number set forth in the Charter or such other number as may be designated from time to time by resolution
of a majority of the entire Board of Directors; provided, however, that the number of Directors shall never be
more than the maximum number provided in the Charter nor less than the number required by Section 2-402 of
the Maryland General Corporation Law, as amended from time to time, and further provided that the tenure of
office of a Director shall not be affected by any decrease in the number of Directors. Each Director shall serve
for the term set forth in the Charter and until his or her successor is elected and qualified.

2.4 NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS.

(a) Nominations of candidates for election as Directors of the Corporation at any annual meeting of
Stockholders may be made (i) by, or at the direction of, a majority of the Board of Directors or (ii) by any holder
of record (both as of the time notice of such nomination is given by the Stockholder as set forth below and as of
the record date for the annual meeting in question) of any shares of the Corporation’s capital stock entitled to
vote at such meeting who complies with the procedures set forth in this Section 2.4. Any Stockholder who seeks
to make such a nomination, or his or her representative, must be present in person at the annual meeting. Only
persons nominated in accordance with the procedures set forth in this Section 2.4 shall be eligible for election as
Directors at an annual meeting of Stockholders.

(b) Nominations, other than those made by, or at the direction of, the Board of Directors, shall be made
pursuant to timely notice in writing to the Secretary of the Corporation as set forth in this Section 2.4. Fer-all

Corporation;—a A Stockholder’s notice shall be timely if delivered to, or mailed and received at, the principal
executive offices of the Corporation (i) not less—than—75—days—nor-moere-than—180-dayslater than the close of

business on the one hundred twentieth (120%) day nor earlier than the close of business on the one hundred
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fiftieth (150t) day prior to the Anniversary Date or (ii) in the event that the annual meeting of Stockholders is
ealledfera-dateadvanced or delayed by more than 4th1rtX (30) calendar days pﬁeHe—t-he—A-xmwefs-&fy—d-afe—ﬁef

! ay ay)from the anmversary of the previous
year’s annual meeting, not earher than the close of busmess on the one hundred fiftieth (150) day prior to the

date of such annual meeting and not later than the close of business on the later to occur of the one hundred
twentieth (120%) day prior to the date of such annual meeting or the tenth (10™) day following the day on which
public announcement of the date of such meeting is first made. The public announcement of a postponement or
adjournment of an annual meeting shall not commence a new time period for the giving of a Stockholder’s notice
as described above.

(c) A Stockholder’s notice of nomination shall set forth as to each person the Stockholder proposes to
nominate for election as a Director (i) the name, age, business address and residence address of such person,
(i) the principal occupation or employment of such person for the past five years, (iii) the class and number of
shares of the Corporation’s capital stock which are beneficially owned by such person on the date of such notice,
(iv) such nominee’s written consent to be named in the proxy statement as a nominee and to serve as a Director if
elected, (v) whether such Director is anJIndependentDirector{(as—defined—in—the—Charter“independent” (as
determined in accordance with the Company’s Corporate Governance Guidelines as in effect from time to time)
and (vi) any other information relating to such person that is required to be disclosed in solicitations of proxies
with respect to nominees for election as may be deemed necessary or desirable by the Corporation’s counsel, in
the exercise of his or her discretion. Notice by a Stockholder shall, in addition to the above-referenced
information, set forth as to the Stockholder giving the notice (A) the name and address, as they appear on the
Corporation’s stock transfer books, of such Stockholder and of the beneficial owners (if any) of the stock
registered in such Stockholder’s name; (B) the name and address of other Stockholders known by such
Stockholder to be supporting such nominees on the date of such Stockholder’s notice; (C) the class and number
of shares of the Corporation’s capital stock which are beneficially owned by such Stockholder and such
beneficial owners (if any) on the date of such Stockholder’s notice; and (D) the class and number of shares of the
Corporation’s capital stock which are beneficially owned by any other Stockholders known by such Stockholder
to be supporting such nominees on the date of such Stockholder’s notice. At the request of the Board of
Directors, any person nominated by or at the direction of the Board of Directors for election as a Director at any
annual meeting shall furnish to the Secretary of the Corporation that information which would be required to be
set forth in a Stockholder’s notice of nomination of such nominee.

(d) No person shall be elected by the Stockholders as a Director of the Corporation unless nominated
in accordance with the procedures set forth in this Section 2.4. If the Board of Directors, or a designated
committee thereof, determines that a nomination made by any Stockholder was not timely made in accordance
with the terms of this section, such nomination shall not be considered at the annual meeting in question. If the
Board of Directors, or a designated committee thereof, determines that the information provided in a
Stockholder’s notice does not satisfy the informational requirements of this Section 2.4 in any material respect,
the Secretary of the Corporation shall promptly notify such Stockholder of the deficiency in the notice. Such
Stockholder shall have an opportunity to cure the deficiency by providing additional information to the Secretary
within the period of time, not to exceed five (5) days from the date such deficiency notice is given to such
Stockholder, determined by the Board of Directors or such committee. If the deficiency is not cured within such
period, or if the Board of Directors or such committee determines that the additional information provided by
such Stockholder, together with the information previously provided, does not satisfy the requirements of this
Section 2.4 in any material respect, such nomination shall not be considered at the annual meeting in question.

B-9



(e) Notwithstanding the procedures set forth in the preceding paragraph, if neither the Board of
Directors nor a designated committee thereof makes a determination as to the validity of any
neminatiensnomination by any Stockholder as set forth above, the presiding Officer of the Stockholders’ meeting
shall determine and declare at the Stockholders’ meeting whether a-neminatiens-assuch nomination was made in
accordance with the terms of this Section 2.4. If the presiding Officer determines that a nomination was not made
in accordance with the terms of this Section 2.4, such nomination shall be disregarded, and the Board of
Directors shall make all Director nominations on behalf of the Corporation.

2.5 ANNUAL AND REGULAR MEETINGS. An annual meeting of the Board of Directors may be held
immediately after and at the same place as the annual meeting of Stockholders, or at such other time and place,
either within or without the State of Maryland, as is selected by resolution of the Board of Directors, and no
notice other than this Bylaw of such resolution shall be necessary. The Board of Directors may provide, by
resolution, the time and place, either within or without the State of Maryland, for the holding of regular meetings
of the Board of Directors without other notice than such resolution.

2.6 SPECIAL MEETINGS. Special meetings of the Board of Directors may be called by or at the request
of the Chairman of the Board, the President or a majority of the Directors then in office. The person or persons
authorized to call special meetings of the Board of Directors may fix any place, either within or without the State
of Maryland, as the place for holding any special meeting of the Board of Directors called by them.

2.7 NOTICE. NOthC of any spe01a1 meetmg to be prov1ded herein shall be given, in accordance with
Article VIIL-by—w e e e eeopted to each director-at-his—er-her
business—or—residenee at least twenty four (24) hours or by mall at least five (5) days, prior to the meeting.
Neither the business to be transacted at, nor the purpose of, any annual, regular or special meeting of the Board of
Directors need be specified in the notice, unless specially required by statute, the Charter or these Bylaws.

2.8 QUORUM. A majority of the Board of Directors then in office shall constitute a quorum for the
transaction of business at any meeting of the Board of Directors. If less than a majority of the Board of Directors
is present at said meeting, a majority of the Directors present may adjourn the meeting from time to time without
further notice.

2.9 VOTING. The act of a majority of the Directors present at a meeting at which a quorum is present
shall be the act of the Board of Directors, unless the concurrence of a greater proportion is required for such
action by applicable statute, the Charter or these Bylaws; provided, however, that (1) no act relating to any matter
in which a Director (or affiliate of such Director) has any interest shall be the act of the Board of Directors unless
such act has been approved by a majority of the Board of Directors that includes a majority of the disinterested
Directors and (2) commencing on the Initial Public Offering Date (as defined in the Charter) no decision by the
Corporation whether to issue shares of Common Stock (as defined in the Charter) or to pay cash in exchange for
partnership units of First Industrial, L.P. shall be the act of the Board of Directors unless such act has been

approved by a majority of the IndependentDirectors—(as—defined—in—the—Charterindependent Directors (as

determined in accordance with the Company’s Corporate Governance Guidelines as in effect from time to time).

2.10  CHAIRMAN OF THE BOARD. The Board of Directors may appoint a Chairman of the Board. The
Chairman of the Board shall not be an effieerOfficer of the Company, but may sign and execute all authorized
bonds, contracts or other obligations in the name of the Corporation, except in cases where the execution thereof
shall be expressly delegated by the Board of Directors or by these Bylaws to some other Officer or agent of the
Corporation or shall be required by law to be otherwise signed or executed.

2.11 CONDUCT OF MEETINGS. All meetings of the Board of Directors shall be called to order and
presided over by the Chairman of the Board or, in the absence of the Chairman of the Board, by the President (if
a member of the Board of Directors) or, in the absence of the Chairman of the Board and the President, by a
member of the Board of Directors selected by the members present. The Secretary of the Corporation, or in the
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absence of the Secretary, any Assistant Secretary, shall act as seeretarySecretary at all meetings of the Board of
Directors, and in the absence of the Secretary and Assistant secretaries, the presiding Officer of the meeting shall
designate any person to act as seeretarySecretary of the meeting. Members of the Board of Directors may
participate in meetings of the Board of Directors by conference telephone or similar communications equipment
by means of which all Directors participating in the meeting can hear each other at the same time, and
participation in a meeting in accordance herewith shall constitute presence in person at such meeting for all
purposes of these Bylaws.

2.12  RESIGNATIONS. Any Directors may resign from the Board of Directors or any committee thereof
at any time. Such resignation shall be made in writing and shall take effect at the time specified therein, or if no

time be specified, at the time of the receipt of notice of such resignation by the President or the Secretary.

2.13  REMOVAL OF DIRECTORS. Except as may otherwise be provided in the MGEEMaryland General

Corporatron Law and only for so long as the MGGI:Maryland General Corporatron Law may otherwise prov1de

s&bjeet—te—éﬁeet—wpea-}Drrectors may be removed only as set forth in the Charter

2.14 VACANCIES. The Stockholders may elect a successor to fill a vacancy on the Board of Directors
which results from the removal of a Director. Furthermore, any vacancy occurring on the Board of Directors for
any cause other than by reason of an increase in the number of Directors may be filled by a majority vote of the
remaining Directors, although such majority is less than a quorum. Any vacancy occurring on the Board of
Directors by reason of an increase in the number of Directors may be filled by a majority vote of the entire Board
of Directors. A Director elected by the Board of Directors to fill a vacancy shall hold office until the next annual
meeting of Stockholders and until his or her successor is elected and qualifies.

2.15 INFORMAL ACTION BY DIRECTORS. Any action required or permitted to be taken at any
meeting of the Board of Directors may be taken without a meeting, if a consent in writing to such action is signed
by all of the Directors and such written consent is filed with the minutes of the Board of Directors. Consents may
be signed by different Directors on separate counterparts.

2.16 COMPENSATION. An annual fee for services and payment for expenses of attendance at each
meeting of the Board of Directors, or of any committee thereof, may be allowed to any Director by resolution of
the Board of Directors.

ARTICLE III
COMMITTEES

3.1 NUMBER, TENURE AND QUALIFICATIONS. The Board of Directors may appoint from among its
members an Executive Committee and other committees, composed of two or more Directors, to serve at the
pleasure of the Board of Directors; provided, however, that the Board of Directors will appoint to the

Corporation’s Audit Committee only IndependentDirectors<{as-defined-inthe-Charterindependent Directors (as

determined in accordance with the Company’s Corporate Governance Guidelines as in effect from time to time).

3.2 DELEGATION OF POWER. The Board of Directors may delegate to these committees in the
intervals between meetings of the Board of Directors any of the powers of the Board of Directors to manage the
business and affairs of the Corporation, except those powers which the Board of Directors is specifically
prohibited from delegating pursuant to Section 2-411(a)(2) of the Maryland General Corporation Law.
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3.3 QUORUM AND VOTING. A majority of the members of any committee shall constitute a quorum for
the transaction of business by such committee, and the act of a majority of the quorum shall constitute the act of
the committee.

3.4 CONDUCT OF MEETINGS. Each committee shall designate a presiding Officer of such committee,
and if such Officer is not present at a particular meeting, the committee shall select a presiding Officer for such
meeting. Members of any committee may participate in meetings of such committee by conference telephone or
similar communications equipment by means of which all Directors participating in the meeting can hear each
other at the same time, and participation in a meeting in accordance herewith shall constitute presence in person
at such meeting for all purposes of these Bylaws. Each committee shall keep minutes of its meetings, and report
the results of any proceedings at the next succeeding annual or regular meeting of the Board of Directors.

3.5 INFORMAL ACTION BY COMMITTEES. Any action required or permitted to be taken at any
meeting of a committee of the Board of Directors may be taken without a meeting, if a written consent to such
action is signed by all members of the committee and such written consent is filed with the minutes of
proceedings of such committee. Consents may be signed by different members on separate counterparts:

ARTICLE IV
OFFICERS

4.1 TITLES AND ELECTION. The Corporation shall have a President, Secretary and Treasurer to comply
with MGEL-ss:Section 2-412(a) of the Maryland General Corporation Law, and such other Officers as the Board
of Directors, or any committee or Officer appointed by the Board of Directors for such purpose, may from time
to time elect. The Officers of the Corporation shall be elected annually by the Board of Directors at the first
meeting of the Board of Directors held after each annual meeting of Stockholders. If the election of Officers shall
not be held at such meeting, such election shall be held as soon thereafter as may be convenient. Each Officer
shall hold office until his successor is duly elected and qualified or until his death, resignation or removal in the
manner hereinafter proved. Any two or more offices except President and Vice President may be held by the
same person. Election or appointment of an Officer or agent shall not of itself create contract rights between the
Corporation and such Officer or agent.

4.2 REMOVAL. Any Officer or agent elected or appointed by the Board of Directors may be removed by
the Board of Directors whenever in its judgment the best interests of the Corporation would be served thereby,
but such removal shall be without prejudice to the contract rights, if any, of the person removed. The fact that a
person is elected to an office, whether or not for a specified term, shall not by itself constitute any undertaking or
evidence of any employment obligation of the Corporation to that person.

4.3 OUTSIDE ACTIVITIES. The Officers and agents of the Corporation are required to spend only such
time managing the business and affairs of the Corporation as is necessary to carry out their duties in accordance
with the law and these Bylaws. The Officers and agents of the Corporation may engage with or for others in
business activities of the types conducted by the Corporation. Except as set forth in the Charter or by separate
agreement, none of such individuals has an obligation to notify or present to the Corporation or each other any
investment opportunity that may come to such person’s attention even though such investment might be within
the scope of the Corporation’s purposes or various investment objectives. Any interest (including any interest
within the meaning of Section 2-419(a) of the Maryland General Corporation Law as if the Officer or agent were
a Director of the Corporation) that an Officer or an agent has in any investment opportunity presented to the
Corporation must be disclosed by such Officer or agent to the Board of Directors (and, if voting thereon, to the
Stockholders or to any committee of the Board of Directors) within ten (10) days after the later of the date upon
which such Officer or agent becomes aware of such interest or the date upon which such Officer or agent
becomes aware that the Corporation is considering such investment opportunity. If such interest comes to the
attention of the interested Officer or agent after a vote to take such investment opportunity, the voting body shall
be notified of such interest and shall reconsider such investment opportunity if not already consummated or
implemented.
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4.4 VACANCIES. A vacancy in any office may be filled by the Board of Directors for the unexpired
portion of the term.

4.5 PRESIDENT. Unless the Board of Directors shall otherwise determine, the President shall be the
Chief Executive Officer and general manager of the Corporation and shall in general supervise and control all of
the business and affairs of the Corporation. In the absence of the Chairman of the Board, the President shall
preside at all meetings of the Stockholders and of the Board of Directors (if a member of the Board of Directors).
The President may sign any deed, mortgage, bond, contract or other instruments on behalf of the Corporation
except in cases where the execution thereof shall be expressly delegated by the Board of Directors or by these
Bylaws to some other Officer or agent of the Corporation or shall be required by law to be otherwise signed or
executed. In general, the President shall perform all duties incident to the office of President and such other
duties as may be prescribed by the Board of Directors from time to time.

4.6 CHIEF OPERATING OFFICER. The Board of Directors may appoint a Chief Operating Officer. In
the absence of the President or in the event of a vacancy in such office, the Chief Operating Officer shall perform
the duties of the President and when so acting shall have all the powers of and be subject to all the restrictions
upon the President. The Chief Operating Officer may sign any deed, mortgage, bond, contract or other
instruments on behalf of the Corporation except in cases where the execution thereof shall be expressly delegated
by the Board of Directors or by these Bylaws to some other Officer or agent of the Corporation or shall be
required by law to be otherwise signed or executed. In general, the Chief Operating Officer shall perform all
duties incident to the office of Chief Operating Officer and such other duties as may be prescribed by the Board
of Directors from time to time.

4.7 CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER. The Board of Directors may appoint a Chief Financial Officer. In
general, the Chief Financial Officer shall perform all duties incident to the office of Chief Financial Officer and
such other duties as may be prescribed by the Board of Directors from time to time.

4.8 VICE PRESIDENTS. The Board of Directors may appoint one or more Vice President. In the absence
of both the President and the Chief Operating Officer or in the event of a vacancy in both such offices, the Vice
President (or in the event there be more than one Vice President, the Vice Presidents in the order designated at
the time of their election or, in the absence of any designation, then in the order of their election) shall perform
the duties of the President and when so acting shall have all the powers of and be subject to all the restrictions
upon the President. Every Vice President shall perform such other duties as from time to time may be assigned to
him or her by the President or the Board of Directors.

4.9 SECRETARY. The Secretary shall (i) keep the minutes of the proceedings of the Stockholders and
Board of Directors in one or more books provided for that purpose; (ii) see that all notices are duly given in
accordance with the provisions of these Bylaws or as required by law; (iii) be custodian of the corporate records
of the Corporation; (iv) unless a transfer agent is appointed, keep a register of the post office address of each
Stockholder that shall be furnished to the Secretary by such Stockholder and have general charge of the Stock
Ledger of the Corporation; (v) when authorized by the Board of Directors or the President, attest to or witness all
documents requiring the same; (vi) perform all duties as from time to time may be assigned to him or her by the
President or by the Board of Directors; and (vii) perform all the duties generally incident to the office of
secretary of a corporation.

4.10 TREASURER. The Treasurer shall have the custody of the corporate funds and securities and shall
keep full and accurate accounts of receipts and disbursements in books belonging to the Corporation and shall
deposit all moneys and other valuable effects in the name and to the credit of the Corporation in such depositaries
as may be designated by the Board of Directors. The Treasurer shall disburse the funds of the Corporation as may
be ordered by the Board of Directors, taking proper vouchers for such disbursements, and shall render to the
President and the Board of Directors, at the regular meetings of the Board of Directors or whenever they may
require it, an account of all his or her transactions as Treasurer and of the financial condition of the Corporation.
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The Board of Directors may engage a custodian to perform some or all of the duties of the Treasurer, and if a
custodian is so engaged then the Treasurer shall be relieved of the responsibilities set forth herein to the extent
delegated to such custodian and, unless the Board of Directors otherwise determines, shall have general
supervision over the activities of such custodian. The custodian shall not be an Officer of the Corporation.

4.11 ASSISTANT SECRETARIES AND ASSISTANT TREASURERS. The Board of Directors may
appoint one or more Assistant Secretaries or Assistant Treasurers. The Assistant Secretaries (i) when authorized
by the Board of Directors or the President, shall have the power to attest to or witness all documents requiring the
same and (ii) shall perform such duties as shall be assigned to them by the Secretary or by the President or the
Board of Directors. The Assistant Treasurers shall perform such duties as shall be assigned to them by the
Treasurer or by the President or the Board of Directors.

4.12 OTHER OFFICERS. The Corporation shall have such other Officers as the Board of Directors may
from time to time elect. Each such Officer shall hold office for such period and perform such duties as the Board
of Directors, the President or any designated committee or Officer may prescribe.

4.13 SALARIES. The salaries, if any, of the Officers shall be fixed from time to time by the Board of
Directors. No Officer shall be prevented from receiving such salary, if any, by reason of the fact that he or she is
also a Director of the Corporation.

ARTICLE V
SHARES OF STOCK

5.1 NO CERTIFICATES FOR STOCK. Unless the Board of Directors authorizes the issuance of
certificates pursuant to Section 5.2, none of the Stock shall be represented by certificates.

5.2 ELECTION TO ISSUE CERTIFICATES. The Board of Directors may authorize the issuance of
certificates representing some or all of the Shares of any or all of the classes or series of Stock. If the Board of
Directors so authorizes certificates, such certificates shall be of such form, not inconsistent with the Charter, as
shall be approved by the Board of Directors. All certificates, if issued, shall be signed by the Chairman of the
Board, the President or a Vice President and countersigned by the Treasurer, an Assistant Treasurer, the
Secretary or an Assistant Secretary. Any signature or counter-signature may be either a manual or facsimile
signature. All certificates, if issued, for each class of stock shall be consecutively numbered.

5.3 STOCK LEDGER. The Corporation shall maintain at its principal executive office, at the office of its
counsel, accountants or transfer agent or at such other place designated by the Board of Directors an original or
duplicate Stock Ledger containing the names and addresses of all the Stockholders and the number of shares of
each class held by each Stockholder. The Stock Ledger shall be maintained pursuant to a system that the
Corporation shall adopt allowing for the issuance, recordation and transfer of its Stock by electronic or other
means that can be readily converted into written form for visual inspection and not involving any issuance of
certificates. Such system shall include provisions for notice to acquirers of Stock (whether upon issuance or
transfer of stock) in accordance with Sections 2-210 and 2-211 of the Maryland General Corporation Law, and
Section 8-408 of the Commercial Law Article of the State of Maryland. The Corporation shall be entitled to treat
the holder of record of any Share or Shares as the holder in fact thereof and, accordingly, shall not be bound to
recognize any equitable or other claim to or interest in such share on the part of any other person, whether or not
it shall have express or other notice thereof, except as otherwise provided by the laws of the State of Maryland.
Until a transfer is duly effected on the Stock Ledger, the Corporation shall not be affected by any notice of such
transfer, either actual or constructive. Nothing herein shall impose upon the Corporation, the Board of Directors
or Officers or their agents and representatives a duty or limit their rights to inquire as to the actual ownership of
Shares.

5.4 RECORDING TRANSFERS OF STOCK. If transferred in accordance with any restrictions on transfer
contained in the Charter, these Bylaws or otherwise, Shares shall be recorded as transferred in the Stock Ledger
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upon provision to the Corporation or the transfer agent of the Corporation of an executed stock power duly
guaranteed and any other documents reasonably requested by the Corporation and the surrender of the certificate
or certificates, if any, representing such Shares. Upon receipt of such documents, the Corporation shall issue the
statements required by Sections 2-210 and 2-211 of the Maryland General Corporation Law and SeetiensSection
8-408 of the Commercial Law Article of the State of Maryland, issue as needed a new certificate or certificates
(if the transferred Shares were certificated) to the persons entitled thereto, cancel any old certificates and record
the transaction upon its books.

5.5 LOST CERTIFICATES. The Board of Directors may direct a new certificate to be issued in the place
of any certificate theretofore issued by the Corporation alleged to have been stolen, lost or destroyed upon the
making of an affidavit of that fact by the person claiming the certificate of Stock to be stolen, lost or destroyed.
When authorizing such issue of a new certificate, the Board of Directors may, in its discretion and as a condition
precedent to the issuance thereof, require the owner of such stolen, lost or destroyed certificate or his legal
representative to advertise the same in such manner as it shall require and/or to give bond, with sufficient surety,
to the Corporation to indemnify it against any loss or claim which may arise by reason of the issuance of a new
certificate.

5.6 CLOSING OF TRANSFER BOOKS OR FIXING OF RECORD DATE.

5.6.1 The Board of Directors may fix, in advance, a date as the record date for the purpose of
determining Stockholders entitled to notice of, or to vote at, any meeting of Stockholders, or Stockholders
entitled to receive payment of any dividend or the allotment of any rights, or in order to make a determination of
Stockholders for any other proper purpose. Such date, in any case, shall not be prior to the close of business on
the day the record date is fixed and shall be not more than sixty (60) days, and in case of a meeting of
Stockholders not less than ten (10) days, prior to the date on which the meeting or particular action requiring
such determination of Stockholders is to be held or taken.

5.6.2 If, in lieu of fixing a record date, the stock transfer books are closed by the Board of Directors
in accordance with Section 2-511 of the Maryland General Corporation Law for the purpose of determining
Stockholders entitled to notice of or to vote at a meeting of Stockholders, such books shall be closed for at least
ten (10), but not more than twenty (20) days immediately preceding such meeting.

5.6.3 If no record date is fixed and the stock transfer books are not closed for the determination of
Stockholders, (a) the record date for the determination of Stockholders entitled to notice of, or to vote at, a
meeting of Stockholders shall be at the close of business on the day on which the notice of meeting is mailed or
the thirtieth (30™") day before the meeting, whichever is the closer date to the meeting; and (b) the record date for
the determination of Stockholders entitled to receive payment of a dividend or an allotment of any rights shall be
at the close of business on the day on which the resolution of the Board of Directors declaring the dividend or
allotment of rights is adopted.

5.6.4 When a determination of Stockholders entitled to vote at any meeting of Stockholders has been
made as provided in this section, such determination shall apply to any adjournment thereof, except where the
determination has been made through the closing of the stock transfer books and the stated period of closing has
expired.

ARTICLE VI
DIVIDENDS AND DISTRIBUTIONS

6.1 DECLARATION. Dividends and other distributions upon the Stock may be declared by the Board of
Directors as set forth in the applicable provisions of the Charter and any applicable law, at any meeting, limited
only to the extent of Section 2-311 of the Maryland General Corporation Law. Dividends and other distributions
upon the Stock may be paid in cash, property or Stock of the Corporation, subject to the provisions of law and of
the Charter.
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6.2 CONTINGENCIES. Before payment of any dividends or other distributions upon the Stock, there may
be set aside (but there is no duty to set aside) out of any funds of the Corporation available for dividends or other
distributions such sum or sums as the Board of Directors may from time to time, in its absolute discretion, think
proper as a reserve fund to meet contingencies, for repairing or maintaining any property of the Corporation or
for such other purpose as the Board of Directors shall determine to be in the best interests of the Corporation, and
the Board of Directors may modify or abolish any such reserve in the manner in which it was created.

ARTICLE VII
INDEMNIFICATION

7.1 INDEMNIFICATION TO THE EXTENT PERMITTED BY LAW. To the maximum extent permitted
by Maryland law in effect from time to time, the Corporation, without requiring a preliminary determination of
the ultimate entitlement to indemnification, shall indemnify and shall pay or reimburse reasonable expenses in
advance of final disposition of a proceeding to (a) any individual who is a present or former director or
effieerOfficer of the Corporation and who is made a party to the proceeding by reason of his or her service in that
capacity and (b) any individual who, while a director or effieerOfficer of the Corporation and at the request of
the Corporation, serves or has served another corporation, partnership, joint venture, trust, employee benefit plan
or any other enterprise as a director, effieerOfficer, partner or trustee of such corporation, partnership, joint
venture, trust, employee benefit plan or other enterprise and who is made a party to the proceeding by reason of
his service in that capacity. The Corporation may, with the approval of its Board of Directors, provide such
indemnification and advance for expenses to a person who served a predecessor of the Corporation in any of the
capacities described in (a) or (b) above and to any employee or agent of the Corporation or a predecessor of the
Corporation. Any person who may be entitled to indemnification pursuant to this Section 7.1 shall be referred to
in these Bylaws as an “Indemnified Person”. Neither the amendment nor repeal of this Section 7.1, nor the
adoption or amendment of any other provision of the Bylaws or charter of the Corporation inconsistent with this
Section 7.1, shall apply to or affect in any respect the applicability of the preceding paragraph with respect to any
act or failure to act which occurred prior to such amendment, repeal or adoption.

7.2 INSURANCE. The Corporation shall have the power to purchase and maintain insurance on behalf of
any Indemnified Person against any liability, whether or not the Corporation would have the power to indemnify
him or her against such liability.

7.3 NON-EXCLUSIVE RIGHT TO INDEMNITY; HEIRS AND PERSONAL REPRESENTATIVES.
The rights to indemnification set forth in this Article VII are in addition to all rights to which any Indemnified
Person may be entitled as a matter of law, pursuant to a resolution of the Stockholders or disinterested Directors
as agreed or otherwise, and shall inure to the benefit of the heirs and personal representatives of each
Indemnified Person.

7.4 NO LIMITATION. In addition to any indemnification permitted by these Bylaws, the Board of
Directors shall, in its sole discretion, have the power to grant such indemnification as it deems in the interest of
the Corporation to the full extent permitted by law. This Article VII shall not limit the Corporation’s power to
indemnify against liabilities other than those arising from a person’s serving the Corporation as a Director or
Officer.

ARTICLE VIII
NOTICES

8.1 NOTICES. Whenever notice is required to be given pursuant to these Bylaws, it shall be construed to
mean elther written notlce personally served agalnst wrltten recelpt or notice in writing transmitted-by-mail; by
ep ne—the—same—in 6 e atd—seale apper, to the extent permitted by
Maryland law, by mail, electromc mail or facsimile, addressed if to the Corporatlon at $56-N311 S. Wacker
Drive, Suite 3900, Chicago, Illinois 60606 (or any subsequent address selected by the Board of Directors),
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attention President, or if to a Stockholder, Director or Officer, at the address of such person as it appears on the
books of the Corporation or in default of any other address at the general post office situated in the city or county
of his or her residence. The term “address,” as used in this Section 8.1, means a street address or post office box
number or, provided the recipient of such notice has affirmatively consented to receive notice via such means, an
electronic mail address or facsimile telephone number; provided, however, that in all events and circumstances
the “address” of the Company shall refer to the mailing address set forth above or any subsequent address
selected by the Board of Directors. Unless otherwise specified, notice sent by mail shall be deemed to be given at
the time mailed. Unless otherwise specified, electronic mail notice shall be deemed to be given upon
transmission of the message to the electronic mail address given to the Corporation by the recipient. Unless
otherwise specified, facsimile transmission notice shall be deemed to be given upon completion of the
transmission of the message to the number given to the Corporation by the recipient and receipt of a completed
answer-back indicating receipt.

8.2 SECRETARY TO GIVE NOTICE. All notices required by law or these Bylaws to be given by the
Corporation shall be given by the Secretary or any other Officer of the Corporation designated by the President.
If the Secretary and Assistant Secretary are absent or refuse or neglect to act, the notice may be given by any
person directed to do so by the President, or with respect to any meeting called pursuant to these Bylaws upon the
request of any Stockholders or Directors, or by any person directed to do so by the Stockholders or Directors
upon whose request the meeting is called.

8.3 WAIVER OF NOTICE. Whenever any notice is required to be given pursuant to the Charter or these
Bylaws or pursuant to applicable law, a waiver thereof in writing, signed by the person or persons entitled to such
notice, whether before or after the time stated therein, shall be deemed equivalent to the giving of such notice.
Neither the business to be transacted nor the purpose of any meeting need be set forth in the waiver of notice,
unless specifically required by statute. The attendance of any person at any meeting shall constitute a waiver of
notice of such meeting, except where such person attends a meeting for the express purpose of objecting to the
transaction of any business on the ground that the meeting is not lawfully called or convened-:

ARTICLE IX
MISCELLANEOUS

9.1 BOOKS AND RECORDS. The Corporation shall keep correct and complete books and records of its
account and transactions and minutes of the proceedings of its Stockholders and Board of Directors and of its
executive or other committees when exercising any of the powers or authority of the Board of Directors. The
books and records of the Corporation may be in written form or in any other form that may be converted within a
reasonable time into written form for visual inspection. Minutes shall be recorded in written form, but may be
maintained in the form of a reproduction.

9.2 INSPECTION OF BYLAWS AND CORPORATE RECORDS. These Bylaws, the accounting books
and records of the Corporation, the minutes of proceedings of the Stockholders, the Board of Directors and
committees thereof, annual statements of affairs and voting trust agreements on record shall be open to
inspection upon written demand delivered to the Corporation by any Stockholder or holder of a voting trust
certificate at any reasonable time during usual business hours, for a purpose reasonably related to such holders’
interests as a Stockholder or as the holder of such voting trust certificate, in each case to the extent permitted by
the Maryland General Corporation Law.

9.3 CONTRACTS. The Board of Directors may authorize any Officer(s) or agent(s) to enter into any
contract or to execute and deliver any instrument in the name of and on behalf of the Corporation, and such
authority may be general or confined to specific instances.

9.4 CHECKS, DRAFTS, ETC. All checks, drafts, or other orders for payment of money, notes or other
evidences of indebtedness issued in the name of the Corporation shall be signed by such Officers or agents of the
Corporation and in such manner as shall from time to time be determined by resolution of the Board of Directors.
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9.5 LOANS.

9.5.1 Such Officers or agents of the Corporation as from time to time have been designated by the
Board of Directors shall have authority (i) to effect loans, advances or other forms of credit at any time or times
for the Corporation, from such banks, trust companies, institutions, corporations, firms or persons, in such
amounts and subject to such terms and conditions, as the Board of Directors from time to time has designated;
(ii) as security for the repayment of any loans, advance or other forms of credit so authorized, to assign, transfer,
endorse and deliver, either originally or in addition or substitution, any or all personal property, real property,
stocks, bonds, deposits, accounts, documents, bills, accounts receivable and other commercial paper and evidence
of debt or other securities, or any rights or interests at any time held by the Corporation; (iii) in connection with
any loans, advances or other forms of credit so authorized, to make, execute and deliver one or more notes,
mortgages, deeds of trust, financing statements, security agreements, acceptances or written obligations of the
Corporation, on such terms and with such provisions as to the security or sale or disposition of them as those
Officers or agents deem proper; and (iv) to sell to, or discount or rediscount with, the banks, trust companies,
institutions, corporations, firms or persons making those loans, advances or other forms of credit any and all
commercial paper, bills, accounts receivable, acceptances and other instruments and evidences of debt at any
time held by the Corporation, and, to that end, to endorse, transfer and deliver the same=-

9.5.2 From time to time the Corporation shall certify to each bank, trust company, institution,
corporation, firm or person so designated the signatures of the Officers or agents so authorized. Each bank, trust
company, institution, corporation, firm or person so designated is authorized to rely upon such certification until
it has received written notice that the Board of Directors has revoked the authority of those Officers or agents.

9.6 FISCAL YEAR. The Board of Directors shall have the power, from time to time, to fix the fiscal year
of the Corporation by a duly adopted resolution, and, in the absence of such resolution, the fiscal year shall be the
period ending December 31.

9.7 ANNUAL REPORT. Not later than one hundred twenty (120) days after the close of each fiscal year,
the Board of Directors of the Corporation shall cause to be sent to the Stockholders an Annual Report in such
form as may be deemed appropriate by the Board of Directors. The Annual Report shall include audited financial
statements and shall be accompanied by the report thereon of an independent certified public accountant.

9.8 INTERIM REPORTS. The Corporation may send interim reports to the Stockholders having such
form and content as the Board of Directors deems proper.

9.9 OTHER REPORTS. Any distributions to Stockholders of income or capital assets shall be
accompanied by a written statement disclosing the source of the funds distributed unless at the time of
distribution they are accompanied by a written explanation of the relevant circumstances. The statement as to
such source shall be sent to Stockholders not later than sixty (60) days after the close of the fiscal year in which
the distributions were made.

9.10  BYLAWS SEVERABLE. The provisions of these Bylaws are severable, and if any provision shall be
held invalid or unenforceable, that invalidity or unenforceability shall attach only to that provision and shall not
in any manner affect or render invalid or unenforceable any other provision of these Bylaws, and these Bylaws
shall be carried out as if the invalid or unenforceable provision were not contained herein.



ARTICLE X
AMENDMENT OF BYLAWS

10.1 BY DIRECTORS. The Board of Directors shall have the power, at any annual or regular meeting, or
at any special meeting if notice thereof is included in the notice of such special meeting, to alter or repeal any
Bylaws of the Corporation and to make new Bylaws; provided, that no alteration or repeal of Section 7.1 may
affect the rights of any Indemnified Persons to indemnification arising, and in connection with conduct, prior to
such amendment; and, provided, further, that the Board of Directors shall not alter or repeal this Section 10.1 or
Section 10.2.

10.2 BY STOCKHOLDERS. The Stockholders, by affirmative vote of a majority of the shares of common
stock of the Corporation, shall have the power, at any annual meeting (subject to the requirements of
Section 1.3), or at any special meeting if notice thereof ifis included in the notice of such special meeting, to alter
or repeal any Bylaws of the Corporation and to make new Bylaws; provided, that no alteration or repeal of
Section 7.1 may affect the rights of any Indemnified Person to indemnification arising, and in connection with
conduct, prior to such amendment; and, provided, further, that the Stockholders shall not alter or repeal
Section 10.1 or this Section 10.2.
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SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The following sets forth selected financial and operating data for the Company on a consolidated basis. The
following selected consolidated financial data should be read in conjunction with the Consolidated Financial
Statements and Notes thereto and Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations included elsewhere in this Form 10-K. All consolidated financial data has been restated, as
appropriate, to reflect the impact of activity classified as discontinued operations for all periods presented.

Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended
12/31/12 12/31/11 12/31/10 12/31/09 12/31/08

(In thousands, except per share data)

Statement of Operations Data:

Total Revenues . .............cueuuueno... $ 327,273 $ 315,876 $ 320,702 $ 383,758 $ 478,511
Loss from Continuing Operations . .......... (20,980) (31,054) (171,345) (20,237) (146,226)
Loss from Continuing Operations Available to

First Industrial Realty Trust, Inc’s Common

Stockholders ......................... (35,992)  (46,674) (175,664)  (35,512) (138,025)
Net (Loss) Income Available to First Industrial

Realty Trust, Inc.’s Common

Stockholders ......................... $ (22,069)$ (27,010) $ (222,498)$ (13,783)$ 17,616

Basic and Diluted Earnings Per Share:

Loss from Continuing Operations Available to
First Industrial Realty Trust, Inc.’s Common
Stockholders ............ ... . ... ... $ 0.39) $ (0.58) $ 279 $ 0.73) $ (3.20)

Net (Loss) Income Available to First Industrial
Realty Trust, Inc.”s Common
Stockholders ......................... $ 0.24) $ 0.34)$ (3.53) % (0.28) $ 0.41

Distributions Per Share .. ................. $ 0.00 $ 0.00 $ 0.00 $ 0.00 $ 2.41

Basic and Diluted Weighted Average
Shares Outstanding .................... 91,468 80,616 62,953 48,695 43,193

Balance Sheet Data (End of Period):
Real Estate, Before Accumulated

Depreciation ...................c...... $3,121,448 $2,992,096 $2,618,767 $3,319,764 $3,385,597
Total ASSets . ...t 2,608,842 2,666,657 2,750,054 3,204,586 3,223,501
Indebtedness (Inclusive of Indebtedness Held

forSale) .......... ... ... 1,335,766 1,479,483 1,742,776 1,998,332 2,032,635
Total Equity . ......... ... 1,145,653 1,072,595 892,144 1,074,247 990,716

Cash Flow Data:
Cash Flow From Operating Activities . ...... $ 136,422 $ 87,534 $ 83,189 $ 142,179 $ 71,185
Cash Flow From Investing Activities ........ (42,235) (3,779) (9,923) 4,777 6,274
Cash Flow From Financing Activities ....... (99,407) (99,504) (230,383) 32,724 (79,754)

C-1



MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF
FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following discussion should be read in conjunction with “Selected Financial Data” and the
Consolidated Financial Statements and Notes thereto appearing elsewhere in this Form 10-K.

In addition, the following discussion contains certain forward-looking statements within the meaning of
Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933, and Section 21E of the Exchange Act. We intend such forward-
looking statements to be covered by the safe harbor provisions for forward-looking statements contained in the
Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995, and are including this statement for purposes of complying
with those safe harbor provisions. Forward-looking statements, which are based on certain assumptions and
describe future plans, strategies and expectations of the Company, are generally identifiable by use of the words
“believe,” “expect,” “intend,” “anticipate,” “estimate,” “project,” “seek,” “target,” “potential,” “focus,” “may,”
“should” or similar expressions. Our ability to predict results or the actual effect of future plans or strategies is
inherently uncertain. Factors which could have a materially adverse effect on our operations and future prospects
include, but are not limited to: changes in national, international, regional and local economic conditions
generally and real estate markets specifically; changes in legislation/regulation (including changes to laws
governing the taxation of REITSs) and actions of regulatory authorities (including the IRS); our ability to qualify
and maintain our status as a REIT; the availability and attractiveness of financing (including both public and
private capital) to us and to our potential counterparties; the availability and attractiveness of terms of additional
debt repurchases; interest rates; our credit agency ratings; our ability to comply with applicable financial
covenants; competition; changes in supply and demand for industrial properties (including land, the supply and
demand for which is inherently more volatile than other types of industrial property) in the Company’s current
and proposed market areas; difficulties in consummating acquisitions and dispositions; risks related to our
investments in properties through joint ventures; environmental liabilities; slippages in development or lease-up
schedules; tenant creditworthiness; higher-than-expected costs; changes in asset valuations and related
impairment charges; changes in general accounting principles, policies and guidelines applicable to REITs;
international business risks and those additional factors described in Item 1A, “Risk Factors” and in our other
filings with the SEC. We caution you not to place undue reliance on forward looking statements, which reflect
our analysis only and speak only as of the date of this report or the dates indicated in the statements. We assume
no obligation to update or supplement forward-looking statements.

9 <« ELINY3 9% < 9 LERNY3

The Company was organized in the state of Maryland on August 10, 1993. We are a REIT, as defined in the
Code. We began operations on July 1, 1994. Our interests in our properties and land parcels are held through
partnerships, corporations, and limited liability companies controlled, directly or indirectly, by us, including the
Operating Partnership, of which we are the sole general partner, and through our taxable REIT subsidiaries. We
also conduct operations through other partnerships and limited liability companies, the operating data of which,
together with that of the Operating Partnership and the taxable REIT subsidiaries, is consolidated with that of the
Company, as presented herein.

We also own noncontrolling equity interests in, and provide services to, two joint ventures (the 2003 Net
Lease Joint Venture and the 2007 Europe Joint Venture). During 2010, we provided various services to, and
ultimately disposed of our equity interests in, five joint ventures (the 2005 Development/Repositioning Joint
Venture, the 2005 Core Joint Venture, the 2006 Net Lease Co-Investment Program, the 2006 Land/Development
Joint Venture and the 2007 Canada Joint Venture). The Joint Ventures are accounted for under the equity method
of accounting. Accordingly, the operating data of our Joint Ventures is not consolidated with that of the
Company as presented herein. The 2007 Europe Joint Venture does not own any properties. See Note 5 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements for more information on the Joint Ventures.

We believe our financial condition and results of operations are, primarily, a function of our performance in
four key areas: leasing of industrial properties, acquisition and development of additional industrial properties,

disposition of industrial properties and access to external capital.
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We generate revenue primarily from rental income and tenant recoveries from long-term (generally three to
six years) operating leases of our industrial properties. Such revenue is offset by certain property specific
operating expenses, such as real estate taxes, repairs and maintenance, property management, utilities and
insurance expenses, along with certain other costs and expenses, such as depreciation and amortization costs and
general and administrative and interest expenses. Our revenue growth is dependent, in part, on our ability to
(1) increase rental income, through increasing either or both occupancy rates and rental rates at our properties,
(i) maximize tenant recoveries and (iii) minimize operating and certain other expenses. Revenues generated
from rental income and tenant recoveries are a significant source of funds, in addition to income generated from
gains/losses on the sale of our properties (as discussed below), for our liquidity. The leasing of property, in
general, and occupancy rates, rental rates, operating expenses and certain non-operating expenses, in particular,
are impacted, variously, by property specific, market specific, general economic and other conditions, many of
which are beyond our control. The leasing of property also entails various risks, including the risk of tenant
default. If we were unable to maintain or increase occupancy rates and rental rates at our properties or to
maintain tenant recoveries and operating and certain other expenses consistent with historical levels and
proportions, our revenue would decline. Further, if a significant number of our tenants were unable to pay rent
(including tenant recoveries) or if we were unable to rent our properties on favorable terms, our financial
condition, results of operations, cash flow and ability to pay dividends on, and the market price of, our common
stock would be adversely affected.

Our revenue growth is also dependent, in part, on our ability to acquire existing, and acquire and develop
new, additional industrial properties on favorable terms. The Company seeks to identify opportunities to acquire
existing industrial properties on favorable terms, and, when conditions permit, also seeks to identify
opportunities to acquire and develop new industrial properties on favorable terms. Existing properties, as they are
acquired, and acquired and developed properties, as they are leased, generate revenue from rental income, tenant
recoveries and fees, income from which, as discussed above, is a source of funds for our distributions. The
acquisition and development of properties is impacted, variously, by property specific, market specific, general
economic and other conditions, many of which are beyond our control. The acquisition and development of
properties also entails various risks, including the risk that our investments may not perform as expected. For
example, acquired existing and acquired and developed new properties may not sustain and/or achieve
anticipated occupancy and rental rate levels. With respect to acquired and developed new properties, we may not
be able to complete construction on schedule or within budget, resulting in increased debt service expense and
construction costs and delays in leasing the properties. Also, we face significant competition for attractive
acquisition and development opportunities from other well-capitalized real estate investors, including publicly-
traded REITs and private investors. Further, as discussed below, we may not be able to finance the acquisition
and development opportunities we identify. If we were unable to acquire and develop sufficient additional
properties on favorable terms, or if such investments did not perform as expected, our revenue growth would be
limited and our financial condition, results of operations, cash flow and ability to pay dividends on, and the
market price of, our common stock would be adversely affected.

We also generate income from the sale of our properties (including existing buildings, buildings which we
have developed or re-developed on a merchant basis and land). The gain/loss on, and fees from, the sale of such
properties are included in our income and can be a significant source of funds, in addition to revenues generated
from rental income and tenant recoveries, for our operations. Currently, a significant portion of our proceeds
from sales is being used to repay outstanding debt. Market conditions permitting, however, a portion of our
proceeds from such sales may be used to fund the acquisition of existing, and the acquisition and development of
new, industrial properties. The sale of properties is impacted, variously, by property specific, market specific,
general economic and other conditions, many of which are beyond our control. The sale of properties also entails
various risks, including competition from other sellers and the availability of attractive financing for potential
buyers of our properties. Further, our ability to sell properties is limited by safe harbor rules applying to REITs

C-3



MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF
FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

under the Code which relate to the number of properties that may be disposed of in a year, their tax bases and the
cost of improvements made to the properties, along with other tests which enable a REIT to avoid punitive
taxation on the sale of assets. If we are unable to sell properties on favorable terms, our income growth would be
limited and our financial condition, results of operations, cash flow and ability to pay dividends on, and the
market price of, our common stock could be adversely affected.

We utilize a portion of the net sales proceeds from property sales, borrowings under our Unsecured Credit
Facility, and proceeds from the issuance, when and as warranted, of additional debt and equity securities to
refinance debt and finance future acquisitions and developments. Access to external capital on favorable terms
plays a key role in our financial condition and results of operations, as it impacts our cost of capital and our
ability and cost to refinance existing indebtedness as it matures and to fund acquisitions and developments or
through the issuance, when and as warranted, of additional equity securities. Our ability to access external capital
on favorable terms is dependent on various factors, including general market conditions, interest rates, credit
ratings on our preferred stock and debt, the market’s perception of our growth potential, our current and potential
future earnings and cash distributions and the market price of our capital stock. If we are unable to access
external capital on favorable terms, our financial condition, results of operations, cash flow and ability to pay
dividends on, and the market price of, our common stock could be adversely affected.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Our significant accounting policies are described in more detail in Note 3 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements. We believe the following critical accounting policies relate to the more significant judgments and
estimates used in the preparation of our consolidated financial statements.

e We are subject to tenant defaults and bankruptcies that could affect the collection of rent due under our
outstanding accounts receivable, include straight-line rent. In order to mitigate these risks, we perform
credit reviews and analyses on our major existing tenants and all prospective tenants meeting certain
financial thresholds before leases are executed. We maintain an allowance for doubtful accounts which is
an estimate that is based on our assessment of various factors including the accounts receivable aging,
customer credit-worthiness and historical bad debts.

* Notes receivable are included in prepaid expenses and other assets, net and are loans that are generally
collateralized by real estate. At December 31, 2012, we have notes receivable with a carrying value of
$41.2 million. Notes receivable are considered past due when a contractual payment is not remitted in
accordance with the terms of the note agreement. We evaluate the collectability of each note receivable
on an individual basis based on various factors which may include payment history, expected fair value of
the collateral on the loan and internal and external credit information. A loan is considered to be impaired
when, based upon current information and events, it is probable that we will be unable to collect all
amounts due according to the existing contractual terms. When a loan is considered to be impaired, the
amount of loss is calculated by comparing the recorded investment to the value of the underlying
collateral. As the underlying collateral for a majority of the notes receivable are real estate-related
investments, the same valuation techniques are used to value the collateral as those used to determine the
fair value of real estate investments for impairment purposes. Interest income on performing loans is
accrued as earned. A loan is placed on non-accrual status when, based upon current information and
events, it is probable that we will not be able to collect all amounts due according to the existing
contractual terms. Recognition of interest income on non-performing loans on an accrual basis is resumed
when it is probable that we will be able to collect amounts due according to the contractual terms.

* We review our held-for-use properties on a continuous basis for possible impairment and provide a
provision if impairments are determined. We utilize the guidelines established under the Financial
Accounting Standards Board’s (the “FASB”) guidance for accounting for the impairment of long lived
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assets to determine if impairment conditions exist. We review the expected undiscounted cash flows of
the property to determine if there are any indications of impairment. If the expected undiscounted cash
flows of a particular property are less than the net book basis of the property, we will recognize an
impairment charge equal to the amount of carrying value of the property that exceeds the fair value of the
property. Fair value is generally determined by discounting the future expected cash flows of the
property. The preparation of the undiscounted cash flows and the calculation of fair value involve
subjective assumptions such as estimated occupancy, rental rates, ultimate residual value and hold period.
The discount rate used to present value the cash flows for determining fair value is also subjective.

Properties are classified as held for sale when all criteria within the FASB’s guidance relating to the
disposal of long lived assets are met for such properties. When properties are classified as held for sale,
we cease depreciating the properties and estimate the values of such properties and record them at the
lower of depreciated cost or fair value, less costs to dispose. If circumstances arise that were previously
considered unlikely, and, as a result, we decide not to sell a property previously classified as held for sale,
we will reclassify such property as held and used. We estimate the value of such property and measure it
at the lower of its carrying amount (adjusted for any depreciation and amortization expense that would
have been recognized had the property been continuously classified as held and used) or fair value at the
date of the subsequent decision not to sell. Fair value of operational industrial properties is generally
determined either by discounting the future expected cash flows of the property, third party contract
prices or quotes from local brokers. The preparation of the discounted cash flows and the calculation of
fair value involve subjective assumptions such as estimated occupancy, rental rates, ultimate residual
value, hold period and discount rate. Fair value of land is primarily determined by members of
management who are responsible for the individual markets where the land parcels are located, quotes
from local brokers or by third party contract prices. The determination of the fair value of real estate
assets is also highly subjective, especially in markets where there is a lack of recent comparable
transactions.

We analyze our investments in Joint Ventures to determine whether the joint ventures should be
accounted for under the equity method of accounting or consolidated into our financial statements based
on standards set forth under the FASB’s guidance relating to the consolidation of variable interest entities.
Based on the guidance set forth in these pronouncements, we do not consolidate any of our joint venture
investments because either the joint venture has been determined to be a variable interest entity but we
are not the primary beneficiary or the joint venture has been determined not to be a variable interest entity
and we lack control of the joint venture. Our assessment of whether we are the primary beneficiary of a
variable interest entity involves the consideration of various factors including the form of our ownership
interest, our representation on the entity’s governing body, the size of our investment and future cash
flows of the entity.

On a continuous basis, we assess whether there are any indicators that the value of our investments in
Joint Ventures may be impaired. An investment is impaired if our estimate of the value of the investment
is less than the carrying value of the investment, and such decline in value is deemed to be other than
temporary. To the extent impairment has occurred, the loss shall be measured as the excess of the
carrying amount of the investment over the fair value of the investment. Our estimates of fair value for
each investment are based on a number of subjective assumptions that are subject to economic and market
uncertainties including, among others, demand for space, market rental rates and operating costs, the
discount rate used to value the cash flows of the properties, the cap rate used to estimate the terminal
value of the underlying properties and the discount rate used to value the Joint Ventures’ debt.

We capitalize (direct and certain indirect) costs incurred in developing and expanding real estate assets as
part of the investment basis. Costs incurred in making repairs and maintaining real estate assets are
expensed as incurred. During the land development and construction periods, we capitalize interest costs,
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real estate taxes and certain general and administrative costs of the personnel performing development up
to the time the property is substantially complete. The interest rate used to capitalize interest is based
upon our average borrowing rate on existing debt. We also capitalize internal and external costs incurred
to successfully originate a lease that result directly from, and are essential to, the acquisition of that lease.
Leasing costs that meet the requirements for capitalization are presented as a component of prepaid
expenses and other assets, net. The determination and calculation of certain costs requires estimates by us.

We are engaged in the acquisition of individual properties as well as multi-property portfolios. We are
required to allocate purchase price between land, building, tenant improvements, leasing commissions, in-
place leases, tenant relationships and above and below market leases. Above-market and below-market
lease values for acquired properties are recorded based on the present value (using a discount rate which
reflects the risks associated with the leases acquired) of the difference between (i) the contractual
amounts to be paid pursuant to each in-place lease and (ii) our estimate of fair market lease rents for each
corresponding in-place lease. Acquired above market leases are amortized as a reduction of rental revenue
over the remaining non-cancelable terms of the respective leases and acquired below market leases are
amortized as an increase to rental income over the remaining initial terms plus the terms of any below
market fixed rate renewal options of the respective leases. In-place lease and tenant relationship values
for acquired properties are recorded based on our evaluation of the specific characteristics of each
tenant’s lease and our overall relationship with the respective tenant. The value allocated to in-place lease
intangible assets is amortized to depreciation and amortization expense over the remaining lease term of
the respective lease. The value allocated to tenant relationships is amortized to depreciation and
amortization expense over the expected term of the relationship, which includes an estimate of the
probability of lease renewal and its estimated term. We also must allocate purchase price on multi-
property portfolios to individual properties. The allocation of purchase price is based on our assessment
of various characteristics of the markets where the property is located and the expected cash flows of the
property.

In the preparation of our consolidated financial statements, significant management judgment is required
to estimate our current and deferred income tax liabilities, and our compliance with REIT qualification
requirements. Our estimates are based on our interpretation of tax laws. These estimates may have an
impact on the income tax expense recognized. Adjustments may be required by a change in assessment of
our deferred income tax assets and liabilities, changes due to audit adjustments by federal and state tax
authorities, our inability to qualify as a REIT, and changes in tax laws. Adjustments required in any given
period are included within the income tax provision.

In assessing the need for a valuation allowance against our deferred tax assets, we estimate future taxable
income, considering the feasibility of ongoing tax planning strategies and the realizability of tax loss
carryforwards. In the event we were to determine that we would not be able to realize all or a portion of our
deferred tax assets in the future, we would reduce such amounts through a charge to income in the period in
which that determination is made. Conversely, if we were to determine that we would be able to realize our
deferred tax assets in the future in excess of the net carrying amounts, we would decrease the recorded
valuation allowance through an increase to income in the period in which that determination is made.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
Comparison of Year Ended December 31, 2012 to Year Ended December 31, 2011

Our net loss available to First Industrial Realty Trust, Inc.’s common stockholders was $22.1 million and

$27.0 million for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively. Basic and diluted net loss available
to First Industrial Realty Trust, Inc.”s common stockholders was $0.24 per share and $0.34 per share for the years
ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively.
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The tables below summarize our revenues, property expenses and depreciation and other amortization by
various categories for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011. Same store properties are properties owned
prior to January 1, 2011 and held as an operating property through December 31, 2012 and developments and
redevelopments that were placed in service prior to January 1, 2011 or were substantially completed for the
12 months prior to January 1, 2011. Properties which are at least 75% occupied at acquisition are placed in
service. Acquisitions that are less than 75% occupied at the date of acquisition, developments and
redevelopments are placed in service as they reach the earlier of a) stabilized occupancy (generally defined as
90% occupied), or b) one year subsequent to acquisition or development/redevelopment construction completion.
Properties are moved from the same store classification to the redevelopment classification when capital
expenditures for a project are estimated to exceed 25% of the undepreciated gross book value of the property.
Acquired properties are properties that were acquired subsequent to December 31, 2010 and held as an operating
property through December 31, 2012. Sold properties are properties that were sold subsequent to December 31,
2010. (Re)Developments and land are land parcels and developments and redevelopments that were not:
a) substantially complete 12 months prior to January 1, 2011 or b) stabilized prior to January 1, 2011. Other
revenues are derived from the operations of our maintenance company, fees earned from our Joint Ventures and
other miscellaneous revenues. Other expenses are derived from the operations of our maintenance company and
other miscellaneous regional expenses.

During the period between January 1, 2011 and December 31, 2012, two industrial properties previously
classified within same store, comprising approximately 0.1 million square feet, are included in the redevelopment
classification as of December 31, 2012. As of December 31, 2012, redevelopment activities for both properties
are complete and are classified as in-service. These properties will be moved back to the same store classification
after the properties have been placed in service for at least two consecutive calendar years.

Our future financial condition and results of operations, including rental revenues, may be impacted by the
future acquisition and sale of properties. Our future revenues and expenses may vary materially from historical
rates.

For the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, the average occupancy rates of our same store properties
were 87.5% and 86.3%, respectively.

2012 2011 $ Change % Change
($ in 000’s)
REVENUES
Same Store Properties ...............c..iiiiiiiai.. $319,845 $313,411 $ 6,434 2.1%
Acquired Properties .. ............. i 4,378 1,396 2982 213.6%
SOld Properties . . .. ovvei et 7,049 17,213 (10,164) (59.0)%
(Re) Developments and Land, Not Included Above ... ... 1,521 673 848  126.0%
Other ... 3,181 2,054 1,127 54.9%
$335,974 $334,747 $ 1,227 0.4%
Discontinued Operations . ..............ooiviuen.n.. (8,701) (18,871) 10,170  (53.9)%
Total Revenues ..................cuiiiiiann.n. $327,273 $315,876 $ 11,397 3.6%

Revenues from same store properties increased $6.4 million primarily due to an increase in average
occupancy and an increase in lease cancelation fees. Revenues from acquired properties increased $3.0 million
due to the two industrial properties acquired subsequent to December 31, 2010 totaling approximately 1.1 million
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square feet of GLA. Revenues from sold properties decreased $10.2 million due to the 64 industrial properties
sold subsequent to December 31, 2010 totaling approximately 7.1 million square feet of GLA. Revenues from
(re)developments and land increased $0.8 million primarily due to an increase in occupancy. Other revenues
increased $1.1 million primarily due to several one-time fees and the reversal of an allowance for deferred rent
receivable related to certain tenants, partially offset by a decrease in fees earned from our Joint Ventures.

2012 2011 $ Change % Change
($in 000’s)
PROPERTY EXPENSES

Same Store Properties .. ........... .. .. ... ... $ 94,549 $ 98,650 $(4,101) (4.2)%

Acquired Properties . .......... . . i 888 261 627  240.2%
Sold Properties . ......... ...t 2,610 6,602 (3,992) (60.5)%

(Re) Developments and Land, Not Included Above . . ... .. 1,255 696 559 80.3%

Other . ... 9,484 8,019 1,465 18.3%
$108,786 $114,228 $(5,442) (4.8)%
Discontinued Operations . . ...........c.c.oouvenenen... (3,660)  (7,589) 3,929 (51.8)%
Total Property Expenses .................oooo... $105,126 $106,639 $(1,513) (1.4)%

Property expenses include real estate taxes, repairs and maintenance, property management, utilities,
insurance and other property related expenses. Property expenses from same store properties decreased $4.1
million due primarily to a decrease in real estate tax expense resulting from an increase in refunds received
relating to previous tax years and a decrease in repairs and maintenance expense resulting from lower snow
removal costs incurred due to the mild 2012 winter. Property expenses from acquired properties increased $0.6
million due to properties acquired subsequent to December 31, 2010. Property expenses from sold properties
decreased $4.0 million due to properties sold subsequent to December 31, 2010. Property expenses from
(re)developments and land increased by $0.6 million due to an increase in real estate tax expense related to
developments being placed in service. Other expenses increased by $1.5 million due to an increase in incentive
compensation expense.

General and administrative expense increased $4.5 million, or 21.6%, during the year ended December 31,
2012 compared to the year ended December 31, 2011 due primarily to the acceleration of expense recorded
during 2012 related to restricted stock held by the Company’s CEO in connection with the terms of his
employment agreement that was entered into in December 2012. The increase was also due to an increase in
incentive compensation expense and an increase in franchise tax expense due to the reversal of a state franchise
tax reserve relating to the 1996-2001 tax years during the year ended December 31, 2011.

We committed to a plan to reduce organizational and overhead costs in October 2008 and have subsequently
modified that plan with the goal of further reducing these costs. For the year ended December 31, 2011, we
incurred $1.6 million in restructuring charges to provide for costs associated with the termination of a certain
office lease ($1.2 million) and other costs ($0.4 million) associated with implementing our restructuring plan.

For industrial properties that no longer qualify to be classified as held for sale, any impairment charge or
reversal recorded during the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011 is reflected in continuing operations.
Additionally, any impairment charge or reversal related to a land parcel, whether held for sale or held for use, is
reflected in continuing operations. The impairment reversal included in continuing operations for the years ended
December 31, 2012 and 2011 of $0.2 million and $7.6 million, respectively, is primarily comprised of a reversal
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of impairment relating to certain industrial properties that no longer qualify for held for sale classification and
land parcels that were either sold or no longer qualify for held for sale classification.

2012 2011 $ Change % Change
($ in 000’s)
DEPRECIATION AND OTHER AMORTIZATION

Same Store Properties . ............coiiiiiiiiia.. $116,719 $116,949 $ (230) (0.2)%

Acquired Properties . ......... .. ... 2,625 1,219 1,406 115.3%
Sold Properties .. ......ouuene i 1,248 3,482  (2,234)  (64.2)%

(Re) Developments and Land, Not Included Above . ... ... 840 673 167 24.8%
Corporate Furniture, Fixtures and Equipment ........... 1,077 1,426 (349) (24.5)%
$122,509 $123,749 $(1,240) (1.0)%
Discontinued Operations . . .............c.ouvenenon... (1,612)  (4,473) 2,861 (64.0)%

Total Depreciation and Other Amortization ........... $120,897 $119,276 $ 1,621 1.4%

Depreciation and other amortization for same store properties decreased $0.2 million primarily due to the
accelerated depreciation and amortization taken during the year ended December 31, 2011 attributable to certain
tenants who terminated their lease early, offset by an increase due to depreciation taken for properties that were
classified as held for sale in 2011 but are no longer classified as held for sale in 2012. Depreciation and other
amortization from acquired properties increased $1.4 million due to properties acquired subsequent to
December 31, 2010. Depreciation and other amortization from sold properties decreased $2.2 million due to
properties sold subsequent to December 31, 2010. Depreciation and other amortization for (re)developments and
land and other increased $0.2 million due to an increase in substantial completion of developments. Corporate
furniture, fixtures and equipment depreciation expense decreased $0.3 million due to assets becoming fully
depreciated.

Interest income decreased $1.0 million, or 26.7%, primarily due to a decrease in the weighted average
interest rate for notes receivable for the year ended December 31, 2012 as compared to the year ended
December 31, 2011.

Interest expense, inclusive of $0 and $0.1 million of interest expense included in discontinued operations,
for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively, decreased $16.7 million, or 16.7%, primarily due
to a decrease in the weighted average debt balance outstanding for the year ended December 31, 2012 ($1,427.7
million) as compared to the year ended December 31, 2011 ($1,594.3 million), an increase in capitalized interest
of $1.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2012 as compared to the year ended December 31, 2011 due to
an increase in development activities and a decrease in the weighted average interest rate for the year ended
December 31, 2012 (5.99%), as compared to the year ended December 31, 2011 (6.31%).

Amortization of deferred financing costs decreased $0.5 million, or 12.7%, due primarily to lower deferred
financing costs due to the write-off of financing costs related to the repurchase and retirement of certain of our
senior unsecured notes, the replacement of our previous credit facility with the Unsecured Credit Facility in
December 2011 and the early retirement of certain mortgage loans, partially offset by the costs associated with
the origination of mortgage financings during 2012 and 2011.

In October 2008, we entered into an interest rate swap agreement (the “Series F Agreement”) to mitigate our
exposure to floating interest rates related to the coupon reset of the Company’s Series F Preferred Stock. The
Series F Agreement has a notional value of $50.0 million and is effective from April 1, 2009 through October 1,
2013. The Series F Agreement fixes the 30 year Treasury constant maturity treasury (“CMT”) rate at 5.2175%.
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We recorded $0.3 million in mark-to-market loss, inclusive of $1.2 million in swap payments, for the year ended
December 31, 2012, as compared to $1.7 million in mark-to-market loss, inclusive of $0.6 million in swap
payments, for the year ended December 31, 2011.

For the year ended December 31, 2012, we recognized a net loss from retirement of debt of $9.7 million due
to the partial repurchase of a certain series of our senior unsecured notes and early payoff of certain mortgage
loans. For the year ended December 31, 2011, we recognized a net loss from retirement of debt of $5.5 million
due primarily to the early payoff of certain mortgage loans, the partial repurchase of certain series of our senior
unsecured notes, the write-off of a portion of unamortized fees associated with the previous unsecured credit
facility and a loss on a transfer of a property to a lender in satisfaction of a mortgage loan.

Foreign currency exchange loss of $0.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2011 relates to the
substantial liquidation of operations in Canada.

Equity in income of joint ventures increased $0.6 million, or 59.1%, during the year ended December 31,
2012 as compared to the year ended December 31, 2011 primarily due to an increase in our pro rata share of gain
on sale of real estate from the 2003 Net Lease Joint Venture.

For the year ended December 31, 2012 and the year ended December 31, 2011, gain on change in control of
interests relates to the acquisition of the 85% equity interest in one property in each of those periods from the
institutional investor in the 2003 Net Lease Joint Venture. For the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, we
recognized $0.8 million gain and $0.7 million gain, respectively, which is the difference between our carrying
value and fair value of our equity interest in each of the properties on the respective acquisition date.

Income tax provision (as allocated to continuing operations, discontinued operations and gain on sale of real
estate, as applicable) increased $3.4 million, or 157.1%, during the year ended December 31, 2012 compared to
the year ended December 31, 2011 due primarily to a one-time IRS audit adjustment on the 2009 liquidation of a
former taxable REIT subsidiary, partially offset by a decrease in taxes related to the gain on sale of real estate in
the new taxable REIT subsidiaries for the year ended December 31, 2012 as compared to the year ended
December 31, 2011.

The following table summarizes certain information regarding the industrial properties included in
discontinued operations for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011.

2012 2011
($ in 000’s)

Total REVENUES . . . o et et et e e e e e $ 8,701 $18,871
Property EXPenses . ... ..ottt (3,660) (7,589)
Impairment of Real Estate .. ......... .. ... . .. .. . . (1,410) (4,973)
Depreciation and AmoOrtization . . ...........uuiter ettt (1,612) 4,473)
Interest EXpense .. ... ...t — (63)
Gainon Sale of Real Estate . . .......... .. ... 12,665 20,419
Provision for Income Taxes .............o .. — (1,246)

Income from Discontinued Operations . .................oveineunnnn.. $14,684  $20,946

Income from discontinued operations for the year ended December 31, 2012 reflects the results of
operations and gain on sale of real estate relating to 28 industrial properties that were sold during the year ended
December 31, 2012 and the results of operations of three industrial properties that were identified as held for sale
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at December 31, 2012. The impairment loss for the year ended December 31, 2012 of $1.4 million relates to an
impairment charge related to certain industrial properties that were either sold or classified as held for sale at
December 31, 2012.

Income from discontinued operations for the year ended December 31, 2011 reflects the results of
operations and gain on sale of real estate relating to 36 industrial properties that were sold during the year ended
December 31, 2011, the results of operations of 28 industrial properties that were sold during the year ended
December 31, 2012 and the results of operations of the three industrial properties identified as held for sale at
December 31, 2012. The impairment loss for the year ended December 31, 2011 of $5.0 million relates to an
impairment charge related to certain industrial properties that were sold during the years ended December 31,
2012 and 2011.

The $3.8 million and $1.4 million gain on sale of real estate for the years ended December 31, 2012 and
2011, respectively, resulted from the sale of one land parcel in each respective year that did not meet the criteria
for inclusion in discontinued operations.

Comparison of Year Ended December 31, 2011 to Year Ended December 31, 2010

Our net loss available to First Industrial Realty Trust, Inc.’s common stockholders was $27.0 million and
$222.5 million for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively. Basic and diluted net loss
available to First Industrial Realty Trust, Inc.”s common stockholders was $0.34 per share and $3.53 per share for
the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

The tables below summarize our revenues, property and construction expenses and depreciation and other
amortization by various categories for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010. Same store properties are
properties owned prior to January 1, 2010 and held as an operating property through December 31, 2011 and
developments and redevelopments that were placed in service prior to January 1, 2010 or were substantially
completed for the 12 months prior to January 1, 2010. Properties which are at least 75% occupied at acquisition
are placed in service. Acquisitions that are less than 75% occupied at the date of acquisition, developments and
redevelopments are placed in service as they reach the earlier of a) stabilized occupancy (generally defined as
90% occupied), or b) one year subsequent to acquisition or development/redevelopment construction completion.
Properties are moved from the same store classification to the redevelopment classification when capital
expenditures for a project are estimated to exceed 25% of the undepreciated gross book value of the property.
Acquired properties are properties that were acquired subsequent to December 31, 2009 and held as an operating
property through December 31, 2011. Sold properties are properties that were sold subsequent to December 31,
2009. (Re)Developments and land are land parcels and developments and redevelopments that were not:
a) substantially complete 12 months prior to January 1, 2010 or b) stabilized prior to January 1, 2010. Other
revenues are derived from the operations of our maintenance company, fees earned from our Joint Ventures and
other miscellaneous revenues. Construction revenues and expenses represent revenues earned and expenses
incurred in connection with a subsidiary of the Company acting as development manager to construct industrial
properties. Other expenses are derived from the operations of our maintenance company and other miscellaneous
regional expenses.

Our future financial condition and results of operations, including rental revenues, may be impacted by the
future acquisition and sale of properties. Our future revenues and expenses may vary materially from historical
rates.
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For the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010, the occupancy rates of our same store properties were
86.0% and 82.7%, respectively.

2011 2010 $ Change % Change
($ in 000’s)
REVENUES
Same Store Properties ............... ... $323,665 $326,473 $ (2,808) 0.9%
Acquired Properties .. ........... .. ... i, 3,435 1,133 2,302 203.2%
Sold Properties . . ........viii i 4,726 11,310 (6,584) (58.2)%
(Re) Developments and Land, Not Included Above . .. ... 867 675 192 28.4%
Other . ... 2,054 5,560 (3,506)  (63.1)%
$334,747 $345,151 $(10,404) 3.0)%
Discontinued Operations . .............covuviuen.... (18,871) (25,318) 6,447 (25.5)%
Subtotal Revenues . ..............coiiiiiinino.. $315,876 $319,833 $ (3,957) (1.2)%
Construction Revenues ............................ — 869 (869) (100.0)%
Total REVENUES . ..o ot et e e e $315,876 $320,702 $ (4,826) (1.5)%

Revenues from same store properties decreased $2.8 million due primarily to a decrease in lease cancelation
fees and rental rates, offset by an increase in occupancy. Revenues from acquired properties increased
$2.3 million due to the four industrial properties acquired subsequent to December 31, 2009 totaling
approximately 1.2 million square feet of GLA. Revenues from sold properties decreased $6.6 million due to the
49 industrial properties and one leased land parcel sold subsequent to December 31, 2009 totaling approximately
4.0 million square feet of GLA. Revenues from (re)developments and land increased $0.2 million primarily due
to an increase in occupancy. Other revenues decreased $3.5 million due primarily to a decrease in fees earned
from our Joint Ventures. Construction revenues decreased $0.9 million due to the substantial completion during
2010 of certain development projects for which we were acting in the capacity of development manager.

2011 2010 $ Change % Change
($ in 000’s)
PROPERTY AND CONSTRUCTION EXPENSES
Same Store Properties . ...........ooiiiiiiiiiia.. $102,230 $101,344 $ 886 0.9%
Acquired Properties . ............ i 640 200 440  220.0%
Sold Properties .. .......uuene i 2,369 5,040 (2,671) (53.0)%
(Re) Developments and Land, Not Included Above . ... ... 970 1,153 (183) (15.9)%
Other ... .o 8,019 9,496 (1,477) (15.6)%
$114,228 $117,233 $(3,005) (2.6)%
Discontinued Operations . . .............c.ouveuenan... (7,589) (10,601) 3,012 (28.4)%
Property EXpenses . . ..., $106,639 $106,632 $ 7 0.0%
Construction Expenses . ............. .. ..., — 507 (507) (100.0)%
Total Property and Construction Expenses .. .......... $106,639 $107,139 $ (500) (0.5)%
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Property expenses include real estate taxes, repairs and maintenance, property management, utilities,
insurance and other property related expenses. Property expenses from same store properties remained relatively
unchanged. Property expenses from acquired properties increased $0.4 million due to properties acquired
subsequent to December 31, 2009. Property expenses from sold properties decreased $2.7 million due to
properties sold subsequent to December 31, 2009. Property expenses from (re)developments and land decreased
$0.2 million due to a decrease in real estate tax expense and a decrease in bad debt expense. The $1.5 million
decrease in other expense is primarily attributable to a decrease in compensation resulting from a reduction in
employee headcount. Construction expenses decreased $0.5 million due to the substantial completion during
2010 of certain development projects for which we were acting in the capacity of development manager.

General and administrative expense decreased $6.0 million, or 22.4%, due primarily to a decrease in
compensation expense resulting from the reduction in employee headcount that occurred in 2010, a decrease in
rent expense resulting from a reduction in office space during 2011 and 2010, a decrease in lawsuit settlement
expense and a decrease in franchise tax expense primarily due to the reversal of a state franchise tax reserve
relating to the 1996-2001 tax years.

For the year ended December 31, 2011, we recognized $1.6 million in restructuring charges to provide for
costs associated with the termination of certain office leases ($1.2 million) and other costs ($0.4 million)
associated with implementing our restructuring plan. For the year ended December 31, 2010, we recognized
$1.9 million in restructuring charges to provide for employee severance and benefits ($0.5 million), costs
associated with the termination of certain office leases ($0.7 million) and other costs ($0.7 million) associated
with implementing our restructuring plan.

On October 22, 2010, we amended our existing credit facility. In conjunction with the amendment,
management identified a pool of real estate assets to be classified as held for sale. At December 31, 2010, the
pool of real estate assets classified as held for sale consisted of 192 industrial properties comprising
approximately 15.8 million square feet of GLA and land parcels comprising approximately 695 acres. An
impairment charge of $185.4 million was recorded during the year ended December 31, 2010 related to certain
industrial properties due to a reassessment of the hold period. The impairment charge was necessary in order to
adjust the carrying value of the assets to fair market value less costs to sell. At December 31, 2012, 141 of the
original 192 industrial properties comprising approximately 10.0 million square feet of GLA were reclassified as
held for use. As a result, any impairment charge or reversal recorded during 2011 and 2010 is reflected in
continuing operations. Additionally, any impairment charge or reversal related to a land parcel, whether held for
sale or held for use, is reflected in continuing operations. The impairment reversal included in continuing
operations for the year ended December 31, 2011 of $7.6 million is primarily comprised of a reversal of
impairment of $1.7 million relating to certain industrial properties and land parcels that no longer qualify for held
for sale classification and $5.9 million relating to a sold land parcel.
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In addition to the impairments discussed above, in connection with our periodic review of the carrying
values of our properties and the negotiation of a new lease, we recorded an impairment charge of $9.2 million
during the first quarter of 2010 related to one property located in Grand Rapids, Michigan.

2011 2010 $ Change % Change
($ in 000’s)
DEPRECIATION AND OTHER AMORTIZATION

Same Store Properties . ..., $117,855 $128,137 $(10,282)  (8.0)%

Acquired Properties .......... ... .. i 2,194 603 1,591  263.8%
Sold Properties . . .......vui i 1,521 5,358 (3,837)  (71.6)%

(Re) Developments and Land, Not Included Above . .. ... 753 498 255 51.2%
Corporate Furniture, Fixtures and Equipment .. ......... 1,426 1,975 (549) (27.8)%
$123,749 $136,571 $(12,822) (9.4)%
Discontinued Operations . .................c....o.... (4,473) (10,306) 5,833 (56.6)%
Total Depreciation and Other Amortization .......... $119,276 $126,265 $ (6,989) (5.5)%

Depreciation and other amortization for same store properties decreased $10.3 million primarily due to the
cessation of depreciation and amortization of certain industrial properties that qualified for held for sale
classification during 2011 as well as accelerated depreciation and amortization taken during the twelve months
ended December 31, 2010 attributable to certain tenants who terminated their lease early. Depreciation and other
amortization from acquired properties increased $1.6 million due to properties acquired subsequent to December 31,
2009. Depreciation and other amortization from sold properties decreased $3.8 million due to properties sold
subsequent to December 31, 2009. Depreciation and other amortization for (re)developments and land and other
increased $0.3 million due primarily to an increase in the substantial completion of developments. Corporate
furniture, fixtures and equipment decreased $0.5 million primarily due to assets becoming fully depreciated.

Interest income decreased $0.4 million, or 10.1%, primarily due to a decrease in the weighted average notes
receivable balance outstanding for the year ended December 31, 2011 as compared to the year ended
December 31, 2010.

Interest expense, inclusive of $0.1 million and $0.3 million of interest expense included in discontinued
operations, for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively, decreased $6.0 million, or 5.6%,
primarily due to a decrease in the weighted average debt balance outstanding for the year ended December 31,
2011 ($1,594.3 million) as compared to the year ended December 31, 2010 ($1,867.8 million) and by an increase
in capitalized interest for the year ended December 31, 2011 due to an increase in development activities, offset
by an increase in the weighted average interest rate for the year ended December 31, 2011 (6.31%), as compared
to the year ended December 31, 2010 (5.68%).

Amortization of deferred financing costs increased $0.5 million, or 14.1%, due primarily to an increase in
financing costs related to the amendment of the previous unsecured credit facility in October 2010.

We recorded $1.7 million in mark-to-market loss, inclusive of $0.6 million in swap payments, which is
included in Mark-to-Market Loss on Interest Rate Protection Agreements for the year ended December 31, 2011,
as compared to $1.1 million in mark-to-market loss, inclusive of $0.5 million in swap payments, for the year
ended December 31, 2010.

For the year ended December 31, 2011, we recognized a net loss from retirement of debt of $5.5 million due
primarily to the early payoff of certain mortgage loans, the partial repurchase of certain series of our senior
unsecured notes, the write-off of unamortized fees associated with the previous unsecured credit facility and a
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loss on a transfer of a property to a lender in satisfaction of a mortgage loan. For the year ended December 31,
2010, we recognized a net loss from retirement of debt of $4.3 million due primarily to the redemption of our
7.375% Notes due 2011.

Foreign currency exchange loss of $0.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2011 relates to the
substantial liquidation of our operations in Canada. Foreign currency exchange loss of $0.2 million for the year
ended December 31, 2010 relates to the substantial liquidation of our operations in Europe.

Equity in income of joint ventures increased $0.3 million, or 45.2%, during the year ended December 31,
2011 as compared to the year ended December 31, 2010 primarily due to selling our equity interest in five joint
ventures (the 2005 Development/Repositioning Joint Venture, the 2005 Core Joint Venture, the 2006 Net Lease
Co-Investment Program, the 2006 Land/Development Joint Venture and the 2007 Canada Joint Venture) during
2010. For the year ended December 31, 2010, our pro rata share of net losses from two of the sold joint ventures
of $2.3 million was offset by our pro rata share of net income from three of the sold joint ventures of $2.1
million.

The gain on sale of joint venture interests of $11.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2010 relates to
the sale of our 10% equity interests in each of the 2005 Development/Repositioning Joint Venture, the 2005 Core
Joint Venture, the 2006 Land/Development Joint Venture and the 2007 Canada Joint Venture to our joint venture
partner on August 5, 2010. Additionally, the gain includes approximately $2.7 million of proceeds related to the
separate sales of three industrial properties by the Joint Ventures during August and October 2010 for which, in
accordance with the sale agreement, we were entitled to a final distribution.

For the year ended December 31, 2011, gain on change in control of interests relates to the acquisition of the
85% equity interest in one property from the institutional investor in the 2003 Net Lease Joint Venture. The $0.7
million gain is the difference between our carrying value and fair value of our equity interest on the acquisition
date.

Income tax provision (as allocated to continuing operations, discontinued operations and gain on sale of real
estate, as applicable) decreased $1.2 million, or 35.0%, during the year ended December 31, 2011 compared to
the year ended December 31, 2010 primarily due to an increase in state taxes in 2010 due to a one time
unfavorable court decision on business loss carryforwards in the State of Michigan in 2010 and gain on sale of
joint venture interests in 2010, partially offset by an increase in gain on sale of real estate within our taxable
REIT subsidiaries during the year ended December 31, 2011 compared to the year ended December 31, 2010.

The following table summarizes certain information regarding the industrial properties included in
discontinued operations for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010.

2011 2010
($ in 000’s)

TOtal REVENUES . . . . oo oo e e e e e e e e $18,871  $ 25,318
Property EXpenses . .. ...t (7,589) (10,601)
Impairment of Real Estate ........... .. .. .. .. . i, (4,973) (66,026)
Depreciation and Amortization ... ............ ..o, (4,473) (10,306)
Interest EXPense . ... ... (63) (268)
Gainon Saleof Real Estate ... ........ ... ... 20,419 11,092
Provision for Income Taxes . ............. ... . i (1,246) —

Income (Loss) from Discontinued Operations . .. ...................... $20,946  $(50,791)
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Income from discontinued operations for the year ended December 31, 2011 reflects the results of
operations and gain on sale of real estate relating to 36 industrial properties that were sold during the year ended
December 31, 2011, the results of operations of 28 industrial properties that were sold during the year ended
December 31, 2012 and the results of operations of three industrial properties that were identified as held for sale
at December 31, 2012. The impairment loss for the year ended December 31, 2011 of $5.0 million relates to an
impairment charge related to certain industrial properties that were sold during the years ended December 31,
2012 and 2011.

Loss from discontinued operations for the year ended December 31, 2010 reflects the results of operations
and gain on sale of real estate relating to 13 industrial properties and one land parcel that generated ground rental
revenue that were sold during the year ended December 31, 2010, the results of operations of 28 industrial
properties that were sold during the year ended December 31, 2012, the results of operations of 36 industrial
properties that were sold during the year ended December 31, 2011 and the results of operations of the three
industrial properties identified as held for sale at December 31, 2012. The impairment loss for the year ended
December 31, 2010 of $66.0 million relates to an impairment charge related to certain industrial properties that
were either sold or classified as held for sale at December 31, 2012.

The $1.4 million gain on sale of real estate for the year ended December 31, 2011 resulted from the sale of
one land parcel that did not meet the criteria for inclusion in discontinued operations. The $0.9 million gain on
sale of real estate for the year ended December 31, 2010 resulted from the sale of several land parcels that did not
meet the criteria for inclusion in discontinued operations.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

At December 31, 2012, our cash and cash equivalents were approximately $4.9 million. We also had
$352.0 million available for additional borrowings under our Unsecured Credit Facility, subject to certain
restrictions.

We have considered our short-term (through December 31, 2013) liquidity needs and the adequacy of our
estimated cash flow from operations and other expected liquidity sources to meet these needs. We believe that
our principal short-term liquidity needs are to fund normal recurring expenses, property acquisitions,
developments, renovations, expansions and other nonrecurring capital improvements, debt service requirements,
preferred dividends, the minimum distributions required to maintain our REIT qualification under the Code and
distributions approved by our Board of Directors. We anticipate that these needs will be met with cash flows
provided by operating activities as well as the disposition of select assets.

We expect to meet long-term (after December 31, 2013) liquidity requirements such as property
acquisitions, developments, scheduled debt maturities, major renovations, expansions and other nonrecurring
capital improvements through the disposition of select assets, long-term unsecured and secured indebtedness and
the issuance of additional equity securities, subject to market conditions.

We also financed the development and acquisition of additional properties through borrowings under our
Unsecured Credit Facility and may finance the development or acquisition of additional properties through such
borrowings, to the extent capacity is available, in the future. At December 31, 2012, borrowings under our
Unsecured Credit Facility bore interest at a weighted average interest rate of 1.912%. As of February 28, 2013, we
had approximately $321.0 million available for additional borrowings under our Unsecured Credit Facility, subject
to certain restrictions. Our Unsecured Credit Facility contains certain financial covenants including limitations on
incurrence of debt and debt service coverage. Our access to borrowings may be limited if we fail to meet any of
these covenants. We believe that we were in compliance with our financial covenants as of December 31, 2012, and
we anticipate that we will be able to operate in compliance with our financial covenants in 2013.
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Our senior unsecured notes have been assigned credit ratings from Standard & Poor’s, Moody’s and Fitch
Ratings of BB/Ba3/BB, respectively. In the event of a downgrade, we believe we would continue to have access
to sufficient capital; however, our cost of borrowing would increase and our ability to access certain financial
markets may be limited.

Year Ended December 31, 2012

Net cash provided by operating activities of approximately $136.4 million for the year ended December 31,
2012 was comprised primarily of the non-cash adjustments of approximately $131.4 million and the net change
in operating assets and liabilities of $14.6 million, offset by a net loss of approximately $2.5 million and
payments of premiums and discounts associated with retirement of debt of $7.1 million. The adjustments for the
non-cash items of approximately $131.4 million are primarily comprised of depreciation and amortization of
approximately $138.7 million, the loss from retirement of debt of approximately $9.7 million, a book overdraft of
approximately $1.7 million, the impairment of real estate of approximately $1.2 million, the provision for bad
debt of approximately $0.5 million and the mark-to-market loss on an interest rate protection agreement related
to the Series F Agreement of approximately $0.3 million, offset by the gain on sale of real estate of
approximately $16.4 million, the gain on the change in control of interests in connection with the purchase of the
85% equity interest in one property from the 2003 Net Lease Joint Venture of approximately $0.8 million and the
effect of the straight-lining of rental income of approximately $3.5 million.

Net cash used in investing activities of approximately $42.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2012
was comprised primarily of the acquisition of the 85% equity interest in one property from the institutional
investor in the 2003 Net Lease Joint Venture and several land parcels, the development of real estate, capital
expenditures related to the improvement of existing real estate, payments related to leasing activities and an
increase in lender escrows, offset by the net proceeds from the sale of real estate and the repayments on our notes
receivable.

During the year ended December 31, 2012, we acquired one industrial property comprising approximately
0.4 million square feet of GLA through the purchase of the 85% equity interest in one property from the
institutional investor in the 2003 Net Lease Joint Venture. The acquisition was funded with a cash payment of
$8.3 million and the assumption of a mortgage loan in the amount of $12.0 million, which was subsequently paid
off on the date of acquisition. We also acquired several land parcels. The purchase price of these land parcel
acquisitions totaled approximately $46.7 million, excluding costs incurred in conjunction with the acquisition of
these land parcels.

During the year ended December 31, 2012, we sold 28 industrial properties comprising approximately
4.2 million square feet of GLA and one land parcel. Proceeds from the sales of the 28 industrial properties and
one land parcel, net of closing costs, were approximately $82.5 million. We are in various stages of discussions
with third parties for the sale of additional properties and plan to continue to selectively market other properties
for sale in 2013.

Net cash used in financing activities of approximately $99.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2012
was comprised primarily of repayments on our senior unsecured notes and mortgage and other loans payable,
payments of debt and equity issuance costs, preferred stock dividends, the partial redemption of the Series J
Preferred Stock, the repurchase and retirement of restricted stock, payments on the interest rate swap agreement
and net repayments on our Unsecured Credit Facility offset by the net proceeds from the issuance of common
stock and proceeds from the origination of mortgage loans payable.

During the year ended December 31, 2012, we repurchased $106.3 million of our unsecured notes at an
aggregate purchase price of $110.6 million. Additionally, we also paid off and retired our 2012 Notes, at
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maturity, in the amount of $61.8 million. We may from time to time repay additional amounts of our outstanding
debt. Any repayments would depend upon prevailing market conditions, our liquidity requirements, contractual
restrictions and other factors we consider important. Future repayments may materially impact our liquidity,
taxable income and results of operations.

During the year ended December 31, 2012, we obtained six secured mortgage loans aggregating to $100.6
million. The mortgage loans bear interest at a fixed rate of 4.03% and mature on September 1, 2022. During the year
ended December 31, 2012, we paid off and retired prior to maturity mortgage loans in the amount of $14.1 million.

During the year ended December 31, 2012, we redeemed 2,000,000 Depositary Shares of the Series J
Preferred Stock for $25.00 per Depositary Share, or $50.0 million in the aggregate, and paid a prorated fourth
quarter dividend of $0.407812 per Depositary Share, totaling approximately $0.8 million.

During the year ended December 31, 2012, we issued 9,400,000 shares of the Company’s common stock
through a public offering, resulting in net proceeds of approximately $116.8 million. Additionally, during the
year ended December 31, 2012, we issued 1,532,598 shares of the Company’s common stock via the 2012 ATM
program, resulting in net proceeds of approximately $18.1 million. We may access the equity markets again,
subject to contractual restrictions and market conditions. To the extent additional equity offerings occur, we
expect to use at least a portion of the proceeds received to reduce our indebtedness or fund property acquisitions
and developments.

Contractual Obligations and Commitments

The following table lists our contractual obligations and commitments as of December 31, 2012:

Payments Due by Period
(In thousands)
Less Than
Total 1 Year 1-3 Years 3-5Years Over 5 Years

Operating and Ground Leases(1)(2) ... ... $ 35925 $ 209 $ 3,463 $ 3434 $ 26,938
Real Estate Development(1)(3) ......... 45,793 45,793 — — —
Long TermDebt .. ....... ... ... ... 1,338,175 14,339 297,733 469,462 556,641
Interest Expense on Long Term

Debt(1)(4) ...covii 403,127 74,185 130,182 84,281 114,479
Total ... $1,823,020 $136,407 $431,378 $557,177 $698,058

(1) Not on balance sheet.

(2) Operating lease minimum rental payments have not been reduced by minimum sublease rentals of $8.3
million due in the future under non-cancelable subleases.

(3) Represents estimated remaining costs on the completion of development projects.

(4) Does not include interest expense on our Unsecured Credit Facility.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

At December 31, 2012, we had a letter of credit and several performance bonds outstanding, amounting to $9.5
million in the aggregate. The letter of credit and performance bonds are not reflected as liabilities on our balance
sheet. We have no other off-balance sheet arrangements, as defined in Item 303 of Regulation S-K, other than those
disclosed on the Contractual Obligations and Commitments table above, that have or are reasonably likely to have a
current or future effect on our financial condition, results of operation or liquidity and capital resources.
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Environmental

We paid approximately $0.4 million and $1.1 million in 2012 and 2011, respectively, related to
environmental expenditures. We estimate 2013 expenditures of approximately $1.1 million. We estimate that the
aggregate expenditures which need to be expended in 2013 and beyond with regard to currently identified
environmental issues will not exceed approximately $2.8 million.

Inflation

For the last several years, inflation has not had a significant impact on the Company because of the
relatively low inflation rates in our markets of operation. Most of our leases require the tenants to pay their share
of operating expenses, including common area maintenance, real estate taxes and insurance, thereby reducing our
exposure to increases in costs and operating expenses resulting from inflation. In addition, many of the
outstanding leases expire within six years which may enable us to replace existing leases with new leases at
higher base rentals if rents of existing leases are below the then-existing market rate.

Market Risk

The following discussion about our risk-management activities includes “forward-looking statements” that
involve risk and uncertainties. Actual results could differ materially from those projected in the forward-looking
statements. Our business subjects us to market risk from interest rates, and to a much lesser extent, foreign
currency fluctuations.

Interest Rate Risk

This analysis presents the hypothetical gain or loss in earnings, cash flows or fair value of the financial
instruments and derivative instruments which are held by us at December 31, 2012 that are sensitive to changes
in the interest rates. While this analysis may have some use as a benchmark, it should not be viewed as a forecast.

In the normal course of business, we also face risks that are either non-financial or non-quantifiable. Such
risks principally include credit risk and legal risk and are not represented in the following analysis.

At December 31, 2012, $1,237.8 million (92.7% of total debt at December 31, 2012) of our debt was fixed
rate debt and $98.0 million (7.3% of total debt at December 31, 2012) of our debt was variable rate debt. At
December 31, 2011, approximately $1,330.5 million (approximately 89.9% of total debt at December 31,
2011) of our debt was fixed rate debt and approximately $149.0 million (approximately 10.1% of total debt at
December 31, 2011) was variable rate debt. Currently, we do not enter into financial instruments for trading or
other speculative purposes.

For fixed rate debt, changes in interest rates generally affect the fair value of the debt, but not our earnings
or cash flows. Conversely, for variable rate debt, changes in the base interest rate used to calculate the all-in
interest rate generally do not impact the fair value of the debt, but would affect our future earnings and cash
flows. The interest rate risk and changes in fair market value of fixed rate debt generally do not have a significant
impact on us until we are required to refinance such debt. See Note 6 to the Consolidated Financial Statements
for a discussion of the maturity dates of our various fixed rate debt.

Based upon the amount of variable rate debt outstanding at December 31, 2012 and 2011, a 10% increase or
decrease in the interest rate on our variable rate debt would decrease or increase, respectively, future net income
and cash flows by approximately $0.2 million and $0.4 million per year, respectively. The foregoing calculation
assumes an instantaneous increase or decrease in the rates applicable to the amount of borrowings outstanding
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under our Unsecured Credit Facility at December 31, 2012. Changes in LIBOR could result in a greater than 10%
increase to such rates. In addition, the calculation does not account for our option to elect the lower of two
different interest rates under our borrowings or other possible actions, such as prepayment, that we might take in
response to any rate increase. A 10% increase in interest rates would decrease the fair value of the fixed rate debt
at December 31, 2012 and 2011 by approximately $25.0 million to $1,306.8 million and by approximately $36.7
million to $1,337.3 million, respectively. A 10% decrease in interest rates would increase the fair value of the
fixed rate debt at December 31, 2012 and 2011 by approximately $25.9 million to $1,357.8 million and by
approximately $38.9 million to $1,412.9 million, respectively.

The use of derivative financial instruments allows us to manage risks of increases in interest rates with
respect to the effect these fluctuations would have on our earnings and cash flows. As of December 31, 2012, we
had one outstanding derivative with a notional amount of $50.0 million which mitigates our exposure to floating
interest rates related to the reset rate of our Series F Preferred Stock.

Foreign Currency Exchange Rate Risk

Owning, operating and developing industrial property outside of the United States exposes us to the
possibility of volatile movements in foreign exchange rates. Changes in foreign currencies can affect the
operating results of international operations reported in U.S. dollars and the value of the foreign assets reported
in U.S. dollars. The economic impact of foreign exchange rate movements is complex because such changes are
often linked to variability in real growth, inflation, interest rates, governmental actions and other factors. At
December 31, 2012, we owned one land parcel for which the U.S. dollar was not the functional currency. The
land parcel is located in Ontario, Canada and uses the Canadian dollar as its functional currency.

IRS Tax Refund

On August 24, 2009, we received a private letter ruling from the IRS granting favorable loss treatment under
Sections 331 and 336 of the Code on the tax liquidation of one of our former taxable REIT subsidiaries. On
November 6, 2009, legislation was signed that allowed businesses with net operating losses for 2008 or 2009 to
carry back those losses for up to five years. As a result, we received a refund from the IRS of $40.4 million in the
fourth quarter of 2009 (the “Refund”) in connection with this tax liquidation. As previously reported, the IRS
examination team, which is required by statute to review all refund claims in excess of $2.0 million on behalf of
the Joint Committee on Taxation, indicated to us that it disagreed with certain of the property valuations we
obtained from an independent valuation expert in support of our fair value of the liquidated taxable REIT
subsidiary and our claim for the Refund. We have reached an agreement with the regional office of the IRS on a
proposed adjustment to the Refund. The total agreed-upon adjustment to taxable income is approximately $13.7
million, which equates to approximately $4.8 million of taxes owed. We must also pay accrued interest which
was approximately $0.5 million as of December 31, 2012. During the year ended December 31, 2012, the
Company recorded a charge of $5.3 million related to the agreed-upon adjustment which is reflected as a
component of income tax expense. The settlement amount is subject to final review and approval by the Joint
Committee on Taxation. There can be no assurance that the settlement amount will be approved at the level we
currently anticipate, nor can we provide an estimate of the timing of the final approval.

In addition, we are currently in discussions with the regional office of the IRS to determine the timing of the
impact of the proposed tax settlement on the tax characterization of the distributions to the limited partners of the
Operating Partnership and the stockholders of the Company which is likely to result in additional capital gain
income being allocable to the limited partners of the Operating Partnership and the stockholders of the Company.
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Supplemental Earnings Measure

Investors in and industry analysts following the real estate industry utilize funds from operations (“FFO”) as
a supplemental operating performance measure of an equity REIT. Historical cost accounting for real estate
assets in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (“GAAP”)
implicitly assumes that the value of real estate assets diminishes predictably over time through depreciation.
Since real estate values instead have historically risen or fallen with market conditions, many industry analysts
and investors prefer to supplement operating results that use historical cost accounting. The National Association
of Real Estate Investment Trusts (“NAREIT”) created FFO as a supplemental measure of REIT operating
performance that excludes historical cost depreciation, among other items, from net income (loss) determined in
accordance with GAAP. FFO is a non-GAAP financial measure. FFO available to common stockholders and
participating securities should not be considered as a substitute for its most comparable GAAP measure, net
income (loss) available to common stockholders and participating securities, or any other measures derived in
accordance with GAAP. FFO does not represent cash generated from operating activities in accordance with
GAAP and should not be considered as an alternative to cash flow from operating activities as a measure of our
liquidity, nor is it indicative of funds available for our cash needs, including our ability to make cash
distributions. FFO is calculated by us in accordance with the definition adopted by the Board of Governors of
NAREIT and therefore may not be comparable to other similarly titled measures of other companies.

Management believes that the use of FFO available to common stockholders and participating securities,
combined with net income (loss) (which remains the primary measure of performance), improves the
understanding of operating results of REITs among the investing public and makes comparisons of REIT
operating results more meaningful. Management believes that, by excluding gains or losses related to sales of
previously depreciated real estate assets, real estate asset depreciation and amortization and impairment charges
(reversals) recorded on depreciable real estate, investors and analysts are able to identify the operating results of
the long-term assets that form the core of a REIT’s activity and use these operating results for assistance in
comparing these operating results between periods or to those of different companies.

The following table shows a reconciliation of net income (loss) available to common stockholders to the
calculation of FFO available to common stockholders for the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010.

Year Ended December 31,
2012 2011 2010
(In thousands)
Net Loss Available to First Industrial Realty Trust, Inc.’s Common
Stockholders . ....... ... $(22,069) $(27,010) $(222,498)
Adjustments:
Depreciation and Other Amortization of Real Estate . ............... 119,820 117,850 124,290
Depreciation and Other Amortization of Real Estate Included in
Discontinued Operations . . . .. .......uuutrernineneneenenen .. 1,612 4,473 10,306
Equity in Depreciation and Other Amortization of Joint Ventures ... .. (20) 551 947
Impairment of Depreciated Real Estate .......................... (164) (514) 105,826
Impairment of Depreciated Real Estate Included in Discontinued
OPETAtIONS .« . v vttt ettt e e e e e e 1,410 4,973 66,026
Non-NAREIT Compliant Gain .. ...........ovriininennnnenan .. (12,665) (20,419) (11,073)
Non-NAREIT Compliant Gain from Joint Ventures ................ (902) (616) (231)
Gain on Change in Control of Interests .......................... (776) (689) —
Noncontrolling Interest Share of Adjustments ..................... (5,606) (6,448) (23,067)
Funds from Operations Available to First Industrial Realty Trust,
Inc.’s Common Stockholders . .............oouuneneio. .. $ 80,640 $ 72,151 $ 50,526
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Subsequent Events

From January 1, 2013 to February 28, 2013, we sold one industrial property and one land parcel for
approximately $2.6 million. Additionally, we acquired one land parcel for a purchase price of $6.3 million,
excluding costs incurred in conjunction with the acquisition.

From January 1, 2013 to February 28, 2013, we repurchased and retired $4.0 million of our senior unsecured
notes maturing in 2028 for a payment of $4.6 million.

The Board of Directors approved a first quarter 2013 common dividend of $0.085 per share/unit for
shareholders of record on March 29, 2013 with a payable date of April 15, 2013. The effective record date will be
March 28, 2013 as March 29, 2013 is a New York Stock Exchange holiday. The Board of Directors also
approved a first quarter 2013 preferred dividend of $0.45313 per depositary share related to both the Series J and
the Series K preferred stock for preferred stockholders of record on March 15, 2013, a first quarter 2013
preferred dividend of $13.3125 per depositary share related to the Series F preferred stock for preferred
stockholders of record on March 29, 2013 and a first quarter 2013 preferred dividend of $36.18 per depositary
share related to the Series G preferred stock for preferred stockholders of record on March 29, 2013. All first
quarter 2013 preferred dividends are payable on April 1, 2013.
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Our operations involve various risks that could adversely affect our financial condition, results of
operations, cash flow, ability to pay distributions on our common stock and the market price of our common
stock. These risks, among others contained in our other filings with the SEC, include:

Disruptions in the financial markets could affect our ability to obtain financing and may negatively impact
our liquidity, financial condition and operating results.

From time to time, the capital and credit markets in the United States and other countries experience
significant price volatility, dislocations and liquidity disruptions, which can cause the market prices of many
securities and the spreads on prospective debt financings to fluctuate substantially. These circumstances can
materially impact liquidity in the financial markets, making terms for certain financings less attractive, and in
some cases result in the unavailability of financing. A significant amount of our existing indebtedness was sold
through capital markets transactions. We anticipate that the capital markets could be a source of refinancing of
our existing indebtedness in the future. This source of refinancing may not be available if capital market
volatility and disruption occurs. Furthermore, we could potentially lose access to available liquidity under our
Unsecured Credit Facility if one or more participating lenders were to default on their commitments. If our
ability to issue additional debt or equity securities to finance future acquisitions, developments and
redevelopments and joint venture activities or to borrow money under our Unsecured Credit Facility were to be
impaired by capital market volatility and disruption, it could have a material adverse effect on our liquidity and
financial condition.

In addition, capital and credit market price volatility could make the valuation of our properties more
difficult. There may be significant uncertainty in the valuation, or in the stability of the value, of our properties
that could result in a substantial decrease in the value of our properties. As a result, we may not be able to
recover the carrying amount of our properties, which may require us to recognize an impairment loss in earnings.

Real estate investments’ value fluctuates depending on conditions in the general economy and the real
estate industry. These conditions may limit the Company’s revenues and available cash.

The factors that affect the value of our real estate and the revenues we derive from our properties include,
among other things:

e general economic conditions;

¢ local, regional, national and international economic conditions and other events and occurrences that
affect the markets in which we own properties;

* local conditions such as oversupply or a reduction in demand in an area;

e the attractiveness of the properties to tenants;

¢ tenant defaults;

e zoning or other regulatory restrictions;

e competition from other available real estate;

e our ability to provide adequate maintenance and insurance; and

* increased operating costs, including insurance premiums and real estate taxes.

These factors may be amplified in light of the disruption of the global credit markets. Our investments in
real estate assets are concentrated in the industrial sector, and the demand for industrial space in the United States

is related to the level of economic output. Accordingly, reduced economic output may lead to lower occupancy
rates for our properties. In addition, if any of our tenants experiences a downturn in its business that weakens its
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financial condition, delays lease commencement, fails to make rental payments when due, becomes insolvent or
declares bankruptcy, the result could be a termination of the tenant’s lease, which could adversely affect our cash
flow from operations.

Many real estate costs are fixed, even if income from properties decreases.

Our financial results depend on leasing space to tenants on terms favorable to us. Our income and funds
available for distribution to our stockholders will decrease if a significant number of our tenants cannot pay their
rent or we are unable to lease properties on favorable terms. In addition, if a tenant does not pay its rent, we may
not be able to enforce our rights as landlord without delays and we may incur substantial legal costs. Costs
associated with real estate property, such as real estate taxes and maintenance costs, generally are not reduced
when circumstances cause a reduction in income from the property.

The Company may be unable to sell properties when appropriate or at all because real estate investments
are not as liquid as certain other types of assets.

Real estate investments generally cannot be sold quickly, which will tend to limit our ability to adjust our
property portfolio promptly in response to changes in economic or other conditions. The inability to respond
promptly to changes in the performance of our property portfolio could adversely affect our financial condition
and ability to service debt and make distributions to our stockholders. In addition, like other companies
qualifying as REITs under the Code, we must comply with the safe harbor rules relating to the number of
properties disposed of in a year, their tax basis and the cost of improvements made to the properties, or meet
other tests which enable a REIT to avoid punitive taxation on the sale of assets. Thus, our ability at any time to
sell assets may be restricted.

The Company may be unable to sell properties on advantageous terms.

We have sold to third parties a significant number of properties in recent years and, as part of our business,
we intend to continue to sell properties to third parties. Our ability to sell properties on advantageous terms
depends on factors beyond our control, including competition from other sellers and the availability of attractive
financing for potential buyers of our properties. If we are unable to sell properties on favorable terms or redeploy
the proceeds of property sales in accordance with our business strategy, then our financial condition, results of
operations, cash flow and ability to pay dividends on, and the market price of, our common stock could be
adversely affected.

The Company may be unable to complete development and re-development projects on advantageous terms.

As part of our business, we develop new and re-develop existing properties when and as conditions warrant.
In addition, we have sold to third parties or sold to joint ventures development and re-development properties,
and we may continue to sell such properties to third parties or to sell or contribute such properties to joint
ventures as opportunities arise. The real estate development and re-development business involves significant
risks that could adversely affect our financial condition, results of operations, cash flow and ability to pay
dividends on, and the market price of, our common stock, which include:

* we may not be able to obtain financing for development projects on favorable terms and complete
construction on schedule or within budget, resulting in increased debt service expense and construction
costs and delays in leasing the properties and generating cash flow;

* we may not be able to obtain, or may experience delays in obtaining, all necessary zoning, land-use,
building, occupancy and other governmental permits and authorizations;

 the properties may perform below anticipated levels, producing cash flow below budgeted amounts and
limiting our ability to sell such properties to third parties or to sell such properties to joint ventures.
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The Company may be unable to acquire properties on advantageous terms or acquisitions may not perform
as the Company expects.

We acquire and intend to continue to acquire primarily industrial properties. The acquisition of properties
entails various risks, including the risks that our investments may not perform as expected and that our cost
estimates for bringing an acquired property up to market standards may prove inaccurate. Further, we face
significant competition for attractive investment opportunities from other well-capitalized real estate investors,
including publicly-traded REITs and private investors. This competition increases as investments in real estate
become attractive relative to other forms of investment. As a result of competition, we may be unable to acquire
additional properties as we desire or the purchase prices may be elevated. In addition, we expect to finance future
acquisitions through a combination of borrowings under the Unsecured Credit Facility, proceeds from equity or
debt offerings and debt originations by the Company and proceeds from property sales, which may not be
available and which could adversely affect our cash flow. Any of the above risks could adversely affect our
financial condition, results of operations, cash flow and ability to pay dividends on, and the market value of, our
common stock.

The Company may be unable to renew leases or find other lessees.

We are subject to the risks that, upon expiration, leases may not be renewed, the space subject to such leases
may not be relet or the terms of renewal or reletting, including the cost of required renovations, may be less
favorable than expiring lease terms. If we were unable to promptly renew a significant number of expiring leases
or to promptly relet the space covered by such leases, or if the rental rates upon renewal or reletting were
significantly lower than the current rates, our financial condition, results of operation, cash flow and ability to
pay dividends on, and the market price of, our common stock could be adversely affected. As of December 31,
2012, leases with respect to approximately 8.5 million, 9.7 million and 8.0 million square feet of our total GLA,
representing 15%, 18% and 14% of our total GLA, expire in 2013, 2014 and 2015, respectively.

The Company might fail to qualify or remain qualified as a REIT.

We intend to operate so as to qualify as a REIT under the Code. Although we believe that we are organized
and will operate in a manner so as to qualify as a REIT, qualification as a REIT involves the satisfaction of
numerous requirements, some of which must be met on a recurring basis. These requirements are established
under highly technical and complex Code provisions of which there are only limited judicial or administrative
interpretations and involve the determination of various factual matters and circumstances not entirely within our
control.

If we were to fail to qualify as a REIT in any taxable year, we would be subject to federal income tax,
including any applicable alternative minimum tax, on our taxable income at corporate rates. This could result in a
discontinuation or substantial reduction in dividends to stockholders and in cash to pay interest and principal on
debt securities that we issue. Unless entitled to relief under certain statutory provisions, we would be disqualified
from electing treatment as a REIT for the four taxable years following the year during which we failed to qualify
as a REIT.

Certain property transfers may generate prohibited transaction income, resulting in a penalty tax on the
gain attributable to the transaction.

As part of our business, we sell properties to third parties as opportunities arise. Under the Code, a 100%
penalty tax could be assessed on the gain resulting from sales of properties that are deemed to be prohibited
transactions. The question of what constitutes a prohibited transaction is based on the facts and circumstances
surrounding each transaction. The Internal Revenue Service (“IRS”) could contend that certain sales of properties
by us are prohibited transactions. While we have implemented controls to avoid prohibited transactions, if a
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dispute were to arise that was successfully argued by the IRS, the 100% penalty tax could be assessed against the
profits from these transactions. In addition, any income from a prohibited transaction may adversely affect our
ability to satisfy the income tests for qualification as a REIT.

The REIT distribution requirements may limit the Company’s ability to retain capital and require the
Company to turn to external financing sources.

We could, in certain instances, have taxable income without sufficient cash to enable us to meet the
distribution requirements of the REIT provisions of the Code. In that situation, we could be required to borrow
funds or sell properties on adverse terms in order to meet those distribution requirements. In addition, because we
must distribute to our stockholders at least 90% of our REIT taxable income each year, our ability to accumulate
capital may be limited. Thus, to provide capital resources for our ongoing business, and to satisfy our debt
repayment obligations and other liquidity needs, we may be more dependent on outside sources of financing,
such as debt financing or issuances of additional capital stock, which may or may not be available on favorable
terms. Additional debt financings may substantially increase our leverage and additional equity offerings may
result in substantial dilution of stockholders’ interests.

Debt financing, the degree of leverage and rising interest rates could reduce the Company’s cash flow.

Where possible, we intend to continue to use leverage to increase the rate of return on our investments and
to allow us to make more investments than we otherwise could. Our use of leverage presents an additional
element of risk in the event that the cash flow from our properties is insufficient to meet both debt payment
obligations and the distribution requirements of the REIT provisions of the Code. In addition, rising interest rates
would reduce our cash flow by increasing the amount of interest due on our floating rate debt and on our fixed
rate debt as it matures and is refinanced.

Failure to comply with covenants in our debt agreements could adversely affect our financial condition.

The terms of our agreements governing our Unsecured Credit Facility and other indebtedness require that
we comply with a number of financial and other covenants, such as maintaining debt service coverage and
leverage ratios and maintaining insurance coverage. Complying with such covenants may limit our operational
flexibility. Our failure to comply with these covenants could cause a default under the applicable debt agreement
even if we have satisfied our payment obligations. Consistent with our prior practice, we will, in the future,
continue to interpret and certify our performance under these covenants in a good faith manner that we deem
reasonable and appropriate. However, these financial covenants are complex and there can be no assurance that
these provisions would not be interpreted by the noteholders or lenders in a manner that could impose and cause
us to incur material costs. We anticipate that we will be able to operate in compliance with our financial
covenants in 2013. Our ability to meet our financial covenants may be adversely affected if economic and credit
market conditions limit our ability to reduce our debt levels consistent with, or result in net operating income
below, our current expectations. Under our Unsecured Credit Facility, an event of default can also occur if the
lenders, in their good faith judgment, determine that a material adverse change has occurred which could prevent
timely repayment or materially impair our ability to perform our obligations under the loan agreement.

Upon the occurrence of an event of default, we would be subject to higher finance costs and fees, and the
lenders under our Unsecured Credit Facility will not be required to lend any additional amounts to us. In
addition, our outstanding senior unsecured notes as well as all outstanding borrowings under the Unsecured
Credit Facility, together with accrued and unpaid interest and fees, could be accelerated and declared to be
immediately due and payable. Furthermore, our Unsecured Credit Facility and the indentures governing our
senior unsecured notes contain certain cross-default provisions, which are triggered in the event that our other
material indebtedness is in default. These cross-default provisions may require us to repay or restructure the
Unsecured Credit Facility and the senior unsecured notes or other debt that is in default, which could adversely
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affect our financial condition, results of operations, cash flow and ability to pay dividends on, and the market
price of, our stock. If repayment of any of our borrowings is accelerated, we cannot provide assurance that we
will have sufficient assets to repay such indebtedness or that we would be able to borrow sufficient funds to
refinance such indebtedness. Even if we are able to obtain new financing, it may not be on commercially
reasonable terms, or terms that are acceptable to us.

Cross-collateralization of mortgage loans could result in foreclosure on substantially all of the Company’s
properties if the Company is unable to service its indebtedness.

We may obtain additional mortgage debt financing in the future, if it is available to us. These mortgages
may be issued on a recourse, non-recourse or cross-collateralized basis. Cross-collateralization makes all of the
subject properties available to the lender in order to satisfy our debt. Holders of this indebtedness will have a
claim against these properties. To the extent indebtedness is cross-collateralized, lenders may seek to foreclose
upon properties that are not the primary collateral for their loan, which may, in turn, result in acceleration of
other indebtedness collateralized by properties. Foreclosure of properties would result in a loss of income and
asset value to us, making it difficult for us to meet both debt payment obligations and the distribution
requirements of the REIT provisions of the Code. At December 31, 2012, mortgage loans payable totaling $483.5
million were cross-collateralized.

The Company may have to make lump-sum payments on its existing indebtedness.

We are required to make the following lump-sum or “balloon” payments under the terms of some of our
indebtedness, including indebtedness of the Operating Partnership:

e $11.6 million aggregate principal amount of 7.750% Notes due 2032 (the “2032 Notes”);

e $55.3 million aggregate principal amount of 7.600% Notes due 2028 (the “2028 Notes”);

e $6.1 million aggregate principal amount of 7.150% Notes due 2027 (the “2027 Notes™);

* $106.9 million aggregate principal amount of 5.950% Notes due 2017 (the “2017 II Notes”);
e $55.4 million aggregate principal amount of 7.500% Notes due 2017 (the “2017 Notes”);

e $159.7 million aggregate principal amount of 5.750% Notes due 2016 (the “2016 Notes”);

e $81.8 million aggregate principal amount of 6.420% Notes due 2014 (the “2014 Notes”);

e $668.8 million in mortgage loans payable, in the aggregate, due between January 2014 and September
2022 on certain of our mortgage loans payable; and

e a $450.0 million Unsecured Credit Facility maturing December 12, 2014, under which we may borrow to
finance the acquisition of additional properties, fund developments and for other corporate purposes,
including working capital. The Unsecured Credit Facility contains a one-year extension option.

As of December 31, 2012, $98.0 million was outstanding under the Unsecured Credit Facility at a weighted
average interest rate of 1.912%.

Our ability to make required payments of principal on outstanding indebtedness, whether at maturity or
otherwise, may depend on our ability either to refinance the applicable indebtedness or to sell properties. We
have no commitments to refinance the 2014 Notes, the 2016 Notes, the 2017 Notes, the 2017 II Notes, the 2027
Notes, the 2028 Notes, the 2032 Notes, the Unsecured Credit Facility or the mortgage loans. Our existing
mortgage loan obligations are collateralized by our properties and therefore such obligations will permit the
lender to foreclose on those properties in the event of a default.
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There is no limitation on debt in the Company’s organizational documents.

As of December 31, 2012, our ratio of debt to our total market capitalization was 44.3%. We compute the
percentage by calculating our total consolidated debt as a percentage of the aggregate market value of all
outstanding shares of our common stock, assuming the exchange of all limited partnership units of the Operating
Partnership for common stock, plus the aggregate stated value of all outstanding shares of preferred stock and
total consolidated debt. Our organizational documents do not contain any limitation on the amount or percentage
of indebtedness we may incur. Accordingly, we could become more highly leveraged, resulting in an increase in
debt service that could adversely affect our ability to make expected distributions to stockholders and an
increased risk of default on our obligations.

Rising interest rates on the Company’s Unsecured Credit Facility could decrease the Company’s available
cash.

Our Unsecured Credit Facility bears interest at a floating rate. As of December 31, 2012, our Unsecured
Credit Facility had an outstanding balance of $98.0 million at a weighted average interest rate of 1.912%. Our
Unsecured Credit Facility presently bears interest at LIBOR plus 170 basis points or at a base rate plus 170 basis
points, at our election. Based on the outstanding balance on our Unsecured Credit Facility as of December 31,
2012, a 10% increase in interest rates would increase interest expense by $0.2 million on an annual basis.
Increases in the interest rate payable on balances outstanding under our Unsecured Credit Facility would decrease
our cash available for distribution to stockholders.

The Company’s mortgages may impact the Company’s ability to sell encumbered properties on
advantageous terms or at all.

As part of our plan to enhance liquidity and pay down our debt, we have originated numerous mortgage
financings and from time to time engage in active discussions with various lenders regarding the origination of
additional mortgage financings. Certain of our mortgages contain, and it is anticipated that some future
mortgages will contain, substantial prepayment premiums which we would have to pay upon the sale of a
property, thereby reducing the net proceeds to us from the sale of any such property. As a result, our willingness
to sell certain properties and the price at which we may desire to sell a property may be impacted by the terms of
any mortgage financing encumbering a property. If we are unable to sell properties on favorable terms or
redeploy the proceeds of property sales in accordance with our business strategy, then our financial condition,
results of operations, cash flow and ability to pay dividends on, and the market price of, our common stock could
be adversely affected.

Adverse market and economic conditions could cause us to recognize additional impairment charges.

We regularly review our real estate assets for impairment indicators, such as a decline in a property’s
occupancy rate, decline in general market conditions or a change in the expected hold period of an asset. If we
determine that indicators of impairment are present, we review the properties affected by these indicators to
determine whether an impairment charge is required. We use considerable judgment in making determinations
about impairments, from analyzing whether there are indicators of impairment to the assumptions used in
calculating the fair value of the investment. Accordingly, our subjective estimates and evaluations may not be
accurate, and such estimates and evaluations are subject to change or revision.

From time to time, adverse market and economic conditions and market volatility make it difficult to value
the real estate assets owned by us as well as the value of our interests in unconsolidated joint ventures. There
may be significant uncertainty in the valuation, or in the stability of the cash flows, discount rates and other
factors related to such assets due to the adverse market and economic conditions that could result in a substantial
decrease in their value. We may be required to recognize additional asset impairment charges in the future, which
could materially and adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of operations.
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Earnings and cash dividends, asset value and market interest rates affect the price of the Company’s
common stock.

As a REIT, the market value of our common stock, in general, is based primarily upon the market’s
perception of our growth potential and our current and potential future earnings and cash dividends. The market
value of our common stock is also based upon the market value of our underlying real estate assets. For this
reason, shares of our common stock may trade at prices that are higher or lower than our net asset value per
share. To the extent that we retain operating cash flow for investment purposes, working capital reserves, or other
purposes, these retained funds, while increasing the value of our underlying assets, may not correspondingly
increase the market price of our common stock. Our failure to meet the market’s expectations with regard to
future earnings and cash dividends likely would adversely affect the market price of our common stock. Further,
the distribution yield on the common stock (as a percentage of the price of the common stock) relative to market
interest rates may also influence the price of our common stock. An increase in market interest rates might lead
prospective purchasers of our common stock to expect a higher distribution yield, which would adversely affect
the market price of our common stock.

The Company may incur unanticipated costs and liabilities due to environmental problems.

Under various federal, state and local laws, ordinances and regulations, an owner or operator of real estate
may be liable for the costs of clean-up of certain conditions relating to the presence of hazardous or toxic
materials on, in or emanating from a property, and any related damages to natural resources. Environmental laws
often impose liability without regard to whether the owner or operator knew of, or was responsible for, the
presence of hazardous or toxic materials. The presence of such materials, or the failure to address those
conditions properly, may adversely affect the ability to rent or sell the property or to borrow using the property as
collateral. Persons who dispose of or arrange for the disposal or treatment of hazardous or toxic materials may
also be liable for the costs of clean-up of such materials, or for related natural resource damages, at or from an
off-site disposal or treatment facility, whether or not the facility is owned or operated by those persons. No
assurance can be given that existing environmental assessments with respect to any of our properties reveal all
environmental liabilities, that any prior owner or operator of any of the properties did not create any material
environmental condition not known to us or that a material environmental condition does not otherwise exist as
to any of our properties. In addition, changes to existing environmental regulation to address, among other things,
climate change, could increase the scope of our potential liabilities.

The Company’s insurance coverage does not include all potential losses.

We currently carry comprehensive insurance coverage including property, boiler & machinery, liability,
fire, flood, terrorism, earthquake, extended coverage and rental loss as appropriate for the markets where each of
our properties and their business operations are located. The insurance coverage contains policy specifications
and insured limits customarily carried for similar properties and business activities. We believe our properties are
adequately insured. However, there are certain losses, including losses from earthquakes, hurricanes, floods,
pollution, acts of war or riots, that are not generally insured against or that are not generally fully insured against
because it is not deemed to be economically feasible or prudent to do so. If an uninsured loss, a loss in excess of
insured limits occurs, or a loss is not paid due to insurer insolvency with respect to one or more of our properties,
we could experience a significant loss of capital invested and potential revenues from these properties, and could
potentially remain obligated under any recourse debt associated with the property.

The Company is subject to risks and liabilities in connection with its investments in properties through Joint
Ventures.

As of December 31, 2012, the 2003 Net Lease Joint Venture owned approximately 2.7 million square feet of
properties. Our net investment in this Joint Venture was $1.0 million at December 31, 2012. Our organizational
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documents do not limit the amount of available funds that we may invest in joint ventures and we intend to
continue to develop and acquire properties through joint ventures with other persons or entities when warranted
by the circumstances. Joint venture investments, in general, involve certain risks, including:

e joint venturers may share certain approval rights over major decisions;
¢ joint venturers might fail to fund their share of any required capital commitments;

e joint venturers might have economic or other business interests or goals that are inconsistent with our
business interests or goals that would affect our ability to operate the property;

e joint venturers may have the power to act contrary to our instructions, requests, policies or objectives,
including our current policy with respect to maintaining our qualification as a real estate investment trust;

* the joint venture agreements often restrict the transfer of a member’s or joint venturer’s interest or “buy-
sell” or may otherwise restrict our ability to sell the interest when we desire or on advantageous terms;

e disputes between us and our joint venturers may result in litigation or arbitration that would increase our
expenses and prevent our officers and directors from focusing their time and effort on our business and
subject the properties owned by the applicable joint venture to additional risk; and

* we may in certain circumstances be liable for the actions of our joint venturers.

The occurrence of one or more of the events described above could adversely affect our financial condition,
results of operations, cash flow and ability to pay dividends on, and the market price of, our common stock.

In addition, joint venture investments in real estate involve all of the risks related to the ownership,
acquisition, development, sale and financing of real estate discussed in the risk factors above. To the extent our
investments in joint ventures are adversely affected by such risks our financial condition, results of operations,
cash flow and ability to pay dividends on, and the market price of, our common stock could be adversely
affected.

We are subject to risks associated with our international operations.

As of December 31, 2012, we owned one industrial property and one land parcel located in Canada. Our
international operations will be subject to risks inherent in doing business abroad, including:

e exposure to the economic fluctuations in the locations in which we invest;

e difficulties and costs associated with complying with a wide variety of complex laws, treaties and
regulations;

e revisions in tax treaties or other laws and regulations, including those governing the taxation of our
international revenues;

* obstacles to the repatriation of earnings and funds;

e currency exchange rate fluctuations between the United States dollar and foreign currencies;

e restrictions on the transfer of funds; and

* national, regional and local political uncertainty.

When we acquire properties located outside of the United States, we may face risks associated with a lack of
market knowledge or understanding of the local economy, forging new business relationships in the area and
unfamiliarity with local government and permitting procedures. We work to mitigate such risks through

extensive diligence and research and associations with experienced partners; however, there can be no guarantee
that all such risks will be eliminated.
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Adbverse changes in our credit ratings could negatively affect our liquidity and business operations.

The credit ratings of the Operating Partnership’s senior unsecured notes and the Company’s preferred stock
are based on the Company’s operating performance, liquidity and leverage ratios, overall financial position and
other factors employed by the credit rating agencies in their rating analyses. Our credit ratings can affect the
availability, terms and pricing of any indebtedness and preferred stock that we may incur going forward. There
can be no assurance that we will be able to maintain any credit rating, and in the event any credit rating is
downgraded, we could incur higher borrowing costs or be unable to access certain capital markets at all.

Our business could be adversely impacted if we have deficiencies in our disclosure controls and procedures
or internal control over financial reporting.

The design and effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures and internal control over financial
reporting may not prevent all errors, misstatements or misrepresentations. While management will continue to
review the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures and internal control over financial reporting,
there can be no guarantee that our internal control over financial reporting will be effective in accomplishing all
control objectives all of the time. Deficiencies, including any material weakness, in our internal control over
financial reporting which may occur in the future could result in misstatements of our results of operations,
restatements of our financial statements, a decline in the price of our securities, or otherwise materially adversely
affect our business, reputation, results of operations, financial condition or liquidity.
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Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

We maintain disclosure controls and procedures that are designed to ensure that information required to be
disclosed in our periodic reports pursuant to the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized, and reported
within the time periods specified in the SEC’s rules and forms, and that such information is accumulated and
communicated to our management, including our principal executive officer and principal financial officer, as
appropriate, to allow timely decisions regarding required financial disclosure.

We carried out an evaluation, under the supervision and with the participation of our management, including
the principal executive officer and principal financial officer, of the effectiveness of the design and operation of
our disclosure controls and procedures pursuant to Exchange Act Rule 13a-15(b) as of the end of the period
covered by this report. Based upon this evaluation, our principal executive officer and principal financial officer
concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures were effective as of the end of the period covered by this
report.

Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial
reporting. Our internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.

Our management has assessed the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2012. In making its assessment of internal control over financial reporting, management used the
criteria described in the Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission.

Our management has concluded that, as of December 31, 2012, our internal control over financial reporting
was effective.

The effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2012 has been audited
by PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, an independent registered public accounting firm, as stated in their report
which appears herein on page C-33. See Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm.

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

There has been no change in our internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the fourth
quarter of 2012 that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over
financial reporting.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of
First Industrial Realty Trust, Inc.:

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of First Industrial Realty Trust, Inc. and its subsidiaries (the “Company”’) at December 31,
2012 and 2011, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period
ended December 31, 2012 in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America. In addition, in our opinion, the accompanying financial statement schedule presents fairly, in all
material respects, the information set forth therein when read in conjunction with the related consolidated
financial statements. Also in our opinion, the Company maintained, in all material respects, effective internal
control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2012, based on criteria established in Internal Control —
Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission
(COSO). The Company’s management is responsible for these financial statements and financial statement
schedule, for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the
effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting, included in Management’s Report on Internal Control
Over Financial Reporting appearing on page C-32. Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial
statements, on the financial statement schedule, and on the Company’s internal control over financial reporting
based on our integrated audits. We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company
Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement and whether
effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audits of the
financial statements included examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management,
and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. Our audit of internal control over financial reporting
included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on
the assessed risk. Our audits also included performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the
circumstances. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinions.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting
includes those policies and procedures that (i) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (ii) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made
only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (iii) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the
company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that
controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

&umiﬂlwmﬁw LLp
Chicago, Illinois
February 28, 2013
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FIRST INDUSTRIAL REALTY TRUST, INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

December 31, December 31,
2012 2011

(In thousands except
share and per share data)

ASSETS
Assets:
Investment in Real Estate:
Land . ..o $ 691,726 $ 638,071
Buildings and IMProvements . . . . . ... ...ttt e 2,403,654 2,326,245
Construction in Progress . ... ... 26,068 27,780
Less: Accumulated Depreciation . . ... ..ottt e (732,635) (658,729)
Net Investment in Real EState . ... .. .. ... . . e e 2,388,813 2,333,367
Real Estate and Other Assets Held for Sale, Net of Accumulated Depreciation and Amortization of $3,050
and 830,413 L. 6,765 91,659
Cash and Cash EQUIvalents . .. ... ... . e e e e e 4,938 10,153
Tenant Accounts Receivable, Net . .. ... ... e 4,596 3,062
Investments in JOINt VENTUIES . . . . ..ottt it e e e e e e e e e e 1,012 1,674
Deferred Rent Receivable, Net .. ... ... e 54,563 50,033
Deferred Financing Costs, Nt . .. ... ot e e e 12,028 15,244
Deferred Leasing Intangibles, Net . . ... ... o 33,190 38,037
Prepaid Expenses and Other Assets, Net ... ... ...ttt e e 102,937 123,428
TOtal ASSELS . . o v vt ettt e e e e e e e $2,608,842 $2,666,657
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Liabilities:
Indebtedness:
Mortgage and Other Loans Payable, Net ... ........oiuutt ettt $ 763,616 $ 690,256
Senior Unsecured NOtes, Net . . ... .t e e 474,150 640,227
Unsecured Credit Facility .. ... .. ... .. e 98,000 149,000
Accounts Payable, Accrued Expenses and Other Liabilities, Net . .. ........ ... .. .. ... 81,099 71,470
Deferred Leasing Intangibles, Net . . . ... ... 15,522 16,567
Rents Received in Advance and Security Deposits . . . ... ...ttt 30,802 25,852
Leasing Intangibles Held for Sale, Net of Accumulated Amortization of $0 and $415 .................. — 690
Total LIabilities . . . ..ottt ettt e e e e e e e 1,463,189 1,594,062
Commitments and CONtINZENCIES . . . ... vttt ettt e e e e e e e e e e e e — —
Equity:
First Industrial Realty Trust Inc.’s Stockholders’ Equity:
Preferred StOCK . . ... o — —
Common Stock ($0.01 par value, 150,000,000 shares authorized, 103,092,027 and 91,131,516 shares
issued and 98,767,913 and 86,807,402 shares outstanding) .. ......... ..., 1,031 911
Additional Paid-in-Capital . ...... ... .. 1,906,490 1,811,349
Distributions in Excess of Accumulated Earnings .. ......... ...ttt (657,567) (633,854)
Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss . . ... ... (6,557) (11,712)
Treasury Shares at Cost (4,324,114 Shares) .. ... ...ttt e (140,018) (140,018)
Total First Industrial Realty Trust, Inc.’s Stockholders” Equity ... .......... ... ... ... 1,103,379 1,026,676
Noncontrolling INErest . . .. ... ... e e 42274 45919
TOtal EQUILY .« . oottt et e e e e e 1,145,653 1,072,595
Total Liabilities and EQUIty . . . ... ..ottt e $2,608,842 $2,666,657

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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FIRST INDUSTRIAL REALTY TRUST, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended
December 31, December 31, December 31,
2012 2011 2010

(In thousands except per share data)

Revenues:
Rental INCOME . . .. ... i $255,565 $ 244,451 $ 243916
Tenant Recoveries and Other Income ... ....... .. .. .. .. 71,708 71,425 75917
Construction ReVENUES . .. ... .ot — — 869
Total REVENUES . . .ot e 327,273 315,876 320,702
Expenses:
Property EXPenses . . .. ...t 105,126 106,639 106,632
General and Administrative .. ......... ...t 25,103 20,638 26,589
Restructuring COSES . . . ..ottt ettt et e e e — 1,553 1,858
Impairmentof Real Estate . . ....... ... . (164) (7,634) 128,526
Depreciation and Other AmOrtization . ... ...........uuuunernniunenneenn . 120,897 119,276 126,265
Construction EXPenses . ... ...ttt — — 507
Total EXPENSES . . oo vttt e e e e 250,962 240,472 390,377
Other Income (Expense):
Interest INCOME . . .. ... .o e 2,874 3,922 4,364
Interest EXPENSe .. ... ...t (83,506) (100,127) (105,898)
Amortization of Deferred Financing Costs .. .............. ... (3,460) (3,963) (3,473)
Mark-to-Market Loss on Interest Rate Protection Agreements ................. (328) (1,718) (1,107)
Loss from Retirement of Debt . ......... ... .. . ... (9,684) (5,459) (4,304)
Foreign Currency Exchange Loss . ........ ... ... i — (332) (190)
Total Other Income (EXPENSE) . ... vvuett ettt (94,104) (107,677) (110,608)
Loss from Continuing Operations Before Equity in Income of Joint Ventures,
Gain on Sale of Joint Venture Interests, Gain on Change in Control of
Interests and Income Tax Provision ...................coieuniinon... (17,793) (32,273) (180,283)
Equity in Income of Joint Ventures .................. ..., 1,559 980 675
Gain on Sale of Joint Venture Interests .. ............t .. — — 11,226
Gain on Change in Control of Interests . ........... ... ... ... ... oo, 776 689 —
Income Tax Provision .. ...ttt et (5,522) (450) (2,963)
Loss from Continuing Operations . . . .. .........ueunetuneennennnennaen.. (20,980) (31,054) (171,345)
Discontinued Operations:
Income (Loss) Attributable to Discontinued Operations ...................... 2,019 1,773 (61,883)
Gainon Saleof Real Estate . .......... ... ... i 12,665 20,419 11,092
Provision for Income Taxes Allocable to Discontinued Operations . . ............ — (1,246) —
Income (Loss) from Discontinued Operations . ....................c....... 14,684 20,946 (50,791)
Loss Before Gain on Sale of Real Estate . ............................. (6,296) (10,108) (222,136)
Gainon Sale of Real Estate .. .......... .. ...t 3,777 1,370 859
Provision for Income Taxes Allocable to Gain on Sale of Real Estate ............. — (452) (342)
Nt 0SS+t ettt et e e e e (2,519) (9,190) (221,619)
Less: Net Loss Attributable to the Noncontrolling Interest ...................... 1,201 1,745 18,798
Net Loss Attributable to First Industrial Realty Trust, Inc. .................... (1,318) (7,445) (202,821)
Less: Preferred Dividends . . ....... ... . .. (18,947) (19,565) (19,677)
Less: Redemption of Preferred Stock . ........... ... i (1,804) — —
Net Loss Available to First Industrial Realty Trust, Inc.”s Common
Stockholders . ... ... $(22,069) $ (27,010) $(222,498)
Basic and Diluted Earnings Per Share:
Loss from Continuing Operations Available to First Industrial Realty Trust, Inc.’s
Common Stockholders . ........... ... ... oo $ (0.39) $ (0.58) $ (279
Income (Loss) from Discontinued Operations Attributable to First Industrial Realty
Trust, Inc.’s Common Stockholders .. ............uuuuiinn. $ 0.15 $ 0.24 $  (0.74)
Net Loss Available to First Industrial Realty Trust, Inc.”s Common
Stockholders ... ... $ (029 $  (0.34) $ (353
Distributions Per Share . ............ it $ 0.00 $ 0.00 $ 0.00
Weighted Average Shares Outstanding . ..............c.. i, 91,468 80,616 62,953

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.

C-35



FIRST INDUSTRIAL REALTY TRUST, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Net LoSS . oo

Mark-to-Market on Interest Rate Protection Agreements, Net of
Income Tax Provision ........... ... .. . . .. .. . .. .. ..

Amortization of Interest Rate Protection Agreements ............

Write-off of Unamortized Settlement Amounts of Interest Rate
Protection Agreements ................ ...

Reclassification of Foreign Exchange Loss on Substantial
Liquidation of Foreign Entities, Net of Income Tax Benefit .. ...

Foreign Currency Translation Adjustment, Net of Income Tax
Benefit ... ... .
Comprehensive Income (Loss) .......... ... ...,

Comprehensive Loss Attributable to Noncontrolling Interest ... ...

Comprehensive Income (Loss) Attributable to First Industrial
Realty Trust,Inc. ... .

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended
December 31, December 31, December 31,
2012 2011 2010
(In thousands)
$(2,519) $(9,190) $(221,619)

— — 990
2,271 2,166 2,108
3,247 3,250 (182)
— 179 —

32 (1,480) 563
3,031 (5,075) (218,140)
913 1,494 18,527
$ 3,944 $(3,581) $(199,613)




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Balance as of December 31,

Issuance of Common Stock, Net
of Issuance Costs . .........
Stock Based Compensation
Activity ...
Conversion of Units to
Common Stock ...........
Reallocation — Additional Paid
inCapital ................
Preferred Dividends .........
NetLoss ..................
Reallocation — Other
Comprehensive Income . . ..
Other Comprehensive
Income..................

Balance as of December 31,

Issuance of Common Stock, Net
of Issuance Costs . .. .......
Stock Based Compensation
Activity . ... ..ol
Conversion of Units to
Common Stock ...........
Reallocation — Additional Paid
inCapital ................
Preferred Dividends .........
NetLoss ..................
Reallocation — Other
Comprehensive Income . . ..
Other Comprehensive
Income..................

Balance as of December 31,
2010 .
Issuance of Common Stock, Net
of Issuance Costs . .........
Redemption of Preferred
Stock ...
Stock Based Compensation
Activity .......... ... ..
Conversion of Units to
Common Stock ...........
Reallocation — Additional Paid
inCapital ................
Preferred Dividends .........
NetLoss .........c..oooun.
Reallocation — Other
Comprehensive Income . ...
Other Comprehensive
Income..................

Balance as of December 31,

FIRST INDUSTRIAL REALTY TRUST, INC.

Preferred Common

Distributions
Additional Treasury in Excess of

Paid-in- Shares Accumulated Comprehensive Noncontrolling

Accumulated
Other

Stock Stock Capital At Cost Earnings Loss Interest Total
(In thousands)
$— $ 662 $1,551,218 $(140,018) $(384,013) $(18,408) $ 64,806 $1,074,247
— 64 49,909 — — — — 49,973
— 5 5,736 — — — — 5,741
— 1 315 — — — (316) —
— — 836 — — — (836) —
— — — — (19,677) — — (19,677)
— — — —  (202,821) — (18,798) (221,619)
_ — — — — (139) 139 —
= — — — — 3,208 271 3,479
$— $ 732 $1,608,014 $(140,018) $(606,511) $(15,339) $ 45,266 $ 892,144
— 174 202,158 — — — — 202,332
— 4 3,088 — (333) — — 2,759
— 1 1,108 — — — (1,109) —
— — (3,019) — — — 3,019 —
— — — — (19,565) — — (19,565)
— — — — (7,445) — (1,745) (9,190)
— — — — — (237) 237 —
= — — — — 3,864 251 4,115
$— $ 911 $1,811,349 $(140,018) $(633,854) $(11,712) $ 45919 $1,072,595
— 109 134,327 — — — — 134,436
— — (48,240) — (1,804) — — (50,044)
— 6 6,220 — (1,644) — — 4,582
— 5 4,758 — — — (4,763) —
— — (1,924) — — — 1,924 —
_ _ — — (18,947) — — (18,947)
_ — — — (1,318) — (1,201) (2,519)
_ — — — — (107) 107 —
— — — — — 5,262 288 5,550
$— $1,031  $1,906,490 $(140,018) $(657,567) $ (6,557) $ 42,274 $1,145,653

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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FIRST INDUSTRIAL REALTY TRUST, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended
December 31, December 31, December 31,

2012 2011 2010
(In thousands)
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Nt 0SS .« v vt ettt e e e e $ (2,519) $ (9,190) $(221,619)

Adjustments to Reconcile Net Loss to Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities:
Depreciation . ... ... ...t 100,074 95,931 104,175
Amortization of Deferred Financing Costs .. ...... ...ttt 3,460 3,963 3,473
Other AMOTtZAtION . . . . ..ottt e e e e e 35,097 36,390 41,024
Impairment of Real Estate, Net .. ......... . i i 1,246 (2,661) 194,552
Provision for Bad Debt . . ... ... . 542 1,110 1,880
Equity in Income of Joint Ventures . ............. ...ttt (1,559) (980) (675)
Distributions from Joint Ventures ... .......... ... .t 1,580 1,033 3,032
Gain on Sale of Real EState . ... ... ...ttt (16,442) (21,789) (11,951)
Gain on Sale of Joint Venture Interests .. ............... ... — — (11,226)
Gain on Change in Control of Interests . ............... ... (776) (689) —
Loss from Retirement of Debt .. ... ... .. .. . . . . 9,684 5,459 4,304
Mark-to-Market Loss on Interest Rate Protection Agreements . . .................... 328 1,718 1,107
Decrease (Increase) in Tenant Accounts Receivable, Prepaid Expenses and Other Assets,

0 S 3,770 (2,933) (1,580)
Increase in Deferred Rent Receivable . ......... ... ... ... ... .. ... .. oo, (3,504) (7,733) (7,041)
Increase (Decrease) in Accounts Payable, Accrued Expenses, Other Liabilities, Rents

Received in Advance and Security Deposits . ......... ... .. i i 10,791 (5,684) 9,411)
Decrease (Increase) in Restricted Cash .. ......... ... .. .. . i, — 117 (15)
Payments of Premiums, Discounts and Prepayment Penalties Associated with

Retirement of Debt . ... ... . . (7,065) (6,528) (6,840)
Cash Book Overdraft . . ....... ... e e 1,715 — —

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities ..................oiiieiiinnn... 136,422 87,534 83,189

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Acquisitions of Real Estate . ........... ... i (55,508) (5,277) (22,408)
Additions to Investment in Real Estate and Non-Acquisition Tenant Improvements and
LeaSe COSES v\ vttt et e e e e (83,222) (85,247) (67,328)
Net Proceeds from Sales of Investments in Real Estate .. ........................... 82,503 75,953 68,046
Contributions to and Investments in Joint Ventures .................c..oouuieenneon.. (190) (155) (777)
Distributions and Sales Proceeds from Joint Venture Interests ... ..................... 90 650 11,519
Repayments of Notes Receivable . ....... ... ... i 14,365 10,394 1,460
Increase in Lender ESCIOWS . . .. ..ottt e e ettt (273) 97) (435)
Net Cash Used in Investing ACHVItIES . . . ... oovvttitt it (42,235) (3,779) (9,923)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Debt and Equity Issuance COStS ... ... ..ottt e e (1,545) (7,162) 4,544)
Proceeds from the Issuance of Common Stock, Net of Underwriter’s Discount .......... 134,905 202,845 50,087
Repurchase and Retirement of Restricted Stock . ........ ... ... ... ... .. . . .. (2,690) (1,001) (298)
Preferred Dividends . . . ... ... (23,258) (15,254) (19,677)
Redemption of Preferred Stock ... ... .. (50,000) — —
Payments on Interest Rate Swap Agreement . . ...ttt (1,144) (489) (450)
Proceeds from Origination of Mortgage Loans Payable .......................... ... 100,599 255,900 105,580
Repayments on Mortgage and Other Loans Payable ............ ... ... ... ... ... (39,121) (71,983) (20,872)
Repayments of Senior Unsecured NOtES . .. ......oouiin i (166,153) (234,307) (259,018)
Proceeds from Unsecured Credit Facility ............... . i, 339,000 390,500 69,097
Repayments on Unsecured Credit Facility ............ ... ... ... ... ... ... ... (390,000) (618,553) (149,280)
Costs Associated with the Retirementof Debt .......... ... ... ... ............... — — (1,008)
Net Cash Used in Financing Activities . ................ it . (99,407) (99,504) (230,383)
Net Effect of Exchange Rate Changes on Cash and Cash Equivalents . ................... 5 (61) 137
Net Decrease in Cash and Cash Equivalents . .......... ... ... . ..., (5,220) (15,749) (157,117)
Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Year ........... ... ... ... . .. 10,153 25,963 182,943
Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year ............ ... ... .. ... ... ... ... $ 4,938 $ 10,153 $ 25,963

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Dollars in thousands except per share data)

1. Organization and Formation of Company

First Industrial Realty Trust, Inc. (the “Company”) was organized in the state of Maryland on August 10,
1993. The Company is a real estate investment trust (“REIT”) as defined in the Internal Revenue Code of 1986
(the “Code”). Unless the context otherwise requires, the terms “Company,” “we,” “us,” and “our” refer to First
Industrial Realty Trust, Inc., First Industrial, L.P. and their other controlled subsidiaries. We refer to our

operating partnership, First Industrial, L.P., as the “Operating Partnership.”

We began operations on July 1, 1994. Our operations are conducted primarily through the Operating
Partnership, of which we are the sole general partner, and through our taxable REIT subsidiaries. We also
conduct operations through other partnerships and limited liability companies, the operating data of which,
together with that of the Operating Partnership and the taxable REIT subsidiaries, is consolidated with that of the
Company as presented herein.

We also own noncontrolling equity interests in, and provide various services to, two joint ventures (the
“2003 Net Lease Joint Venture” and the “2007 Europe Joint Venture”). During 2010, we provided various
services to, and ultimately disposed of our equity interests in, five joint ventures (the ‘2005 Development/
Repositioning Joint Venture,” the “2005 Core Joint Venture,” the “2006 Net Lease Co-Investment Program,” the
“2006 Land/Development Joint Venture,” and the ‘2007 Canada Joint Venture;” together with the 2003 Net
Lease Joint Venture and the 2007 Europe Joint Venture, the “Joint Ventures”). The Joint Ventures are accounted
for under the equity method of accounting. Accordingly, the operating data of our Joint Ventures is not
consolidated with that of the Company as presented herein. The 2007 Europe Joint Venture does not own any
properties. See Note 5 for more information on the Joint Ventures.

As of December 31, 2012, we owned 714 industrial properties located in 26 states in the United States and
one province in Canada, containing an aggregate of approximately 63.4 million square feet of gross leasable area
(4‘GLA?,).

Any references to the number of buildings and square footage in the financial statement footnotes are
unaudited.

2. Basis of Presentation

First Industrial Realty Trust, Inc. is the sole general partner of the Operating Partnership, with an
approximate 95.5% and 94.3% ownership interest at December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively. Noncontrolling
interest of approximately 4.5% and 5.7% at December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively, represents the aggregate
partnership interest in the Operating Partnership held by the limited partners thereof.

Our consolidated financial statements at December 31, 2012 and 2011 and for each of the years ended
December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010 include the accounts and operating results of the Company and our
subsidiaries. Such financial statements present our noncontrolling equity interests in our Joint Ventures under the
equity method of accounting. All intercompany transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

In order to conform with generally accepted accounting principles, we are required in preparation of our
financial statements to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities
and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, and the reported amounts of
revenues and expenses for each of the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010. Actual results could
differ from those estimates.

C-39



FIRST INDUSTRIAL REALTY TRUST, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

Reclassifications and Other Presentation Matters

Certain reclassifications have been made to the 2011 and 2010 financial statements to conform to the 2012
presentation. Additionally, the results of operations for the year ended December 31, 2012 includes $1,528 of
depreciation and amortization expense which should have been recorded as depreciation and amortization
expense during previous periods. Management evaluated these depreciation and amortization expense
adjustments and believes they are not material to the results of the current period or any previous period.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include all cash and liquid investments with an initial maturity of three months or
less. The carrying amount approximates fair value due to the short term maturity of these investments.

Investment in Real Estate and Depreciation

Investment in Real Estate is carried at cost, less accumulated depreciation and amortization. We review our
properties on a continuous basis for impairment and provide a provision if impairments exist. To determine if an
impairment may exist, we review our properties and identify those that have had either an event of change or
event of circumstances warranting further assessment of recoverability (such as a decrease in occupancy or
decline in general market conditions). If further assessment of recoverability is needed, we estimate the future net
cash flows expected to result from the use of the property and its eventual disposition on an individual property
basis. If the sum of the expected future net cash flows (undiscounted and without interest charges) is less than the
carrying amount of the property on an individual property basis, we will recognize an impairment loss based
upon the estimated fair value of such property. For properties we consider held for sale, we cease depreciating
the properties and value the properties at the lower of depreciated cost or fair value, less costs to dispose. If
circumstances arise that were previously considered unlikely, and, as a result, we decide not to sell a property
previously classified as held for sale, we will reclassify such property as held and used. Such property is
measured at the lower of its carrying amount (adjusted for any depreciation and amortization expense that would
have been recognized had the property been continuously classified as held and used) or fair value at the date of
the subsequent decision not to sell. We classify properties as held for sale when all criteria within the Financial
Accounting Standards Board’s (the “FASB”) guidance on the impairment or disposal of long-lived assets are
met.

Interest costs, real estate taxes, compensation costs of development personnel and other directly related
costs incurred during construction periods are capitalized and depreciated commencing with the date the property
is substantially completed. Upon substantial completion, we reclassify construction in progress to building,
tenant improvements and leasing commissions. Such costs begin to be capitalized to the development projects
from the point we are undergoing necessary activities to get the development ready for its intended use and
ceases when the development projects are substantially completed and held available for occupancy.

Depreciation expense is computed using the straight-line method based on the following useful lives:

Years
Buildings and Improvements . ... ....... ... 7 to 50
Land Improvements . .. .. ... ..ot e 31020
Furniture, Fixtures and Equipment . ... ...... ... . i 4t010

Construction expenditures for tenant improvements, leasehold improvements and leasing commissions
(inclusive of compensation costs of personnel attributable to leasing) are capitalized and amortized over the
terms of each specific lease. Capitalized compensation costs of personnel attributable to leasing relate to time
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directly attributable to originating leases with independent third parties that result directly from and are essential
to originating those leases and would not have been incurred had these leasing transactions not occurred. Repairs
and maintenance are charged to expense when incurred. Expenditures for improvements are capitalized.

Upon acquisition of a property, we allocate the purchase price of the property based upon the fair value of
the assets acquired and liabilities assumed, which generally consists of land, buildings, tenant improvements,
leasing commissions and intangible assets including in-place leases, above market and below market leases and
tenant relationships. We allocate the purchase price to the fair value of the tangible assets of an acquired property
by valuing the property as if it were vacant. Acquired above and below market leases are valued based on the
present value of the difference between prevailing market rates and the in-place rates measured over a period
equal to the remaining term of the lease for above market leases and the initial term plus the term of any below
market fixed rate renewal options for below market leases. The above market lease values are amortized as a
reduction of rental revenue over the remaining term of the respective leases, and the below market lease values
are amortized as an increase to base rental revenue over the remaining initial terms plus the terms of any below
market fixed rate renewal options of the respective leases.

The purchase price is further allocated to in-place lease values and tenant relationships based on our
evaluation of the specific characteristics of each tenant’s lease and our overall relationship with the respective
tenant. The value of in-place lease intangibles and tenant relationships, which are included as components of
Deferred Leasing Intangibles, Net are amortized over the remaining lease term (and expected renewal periods of
the respective lease for tenant relationships) as adjustments to depreciation and other amortization expense. If a
tenant terminates its lease early, the unamortized portion of the tenant improvements, leasing commissions,
above and below market leases, the in-place lease value and tenant relationships is immediately written off.

Deferred Leasing Intangibles, net of accumulated amortization (exclusive of Deferred Leasing Intangibles
held for sale) included in our total assets and total liabilities consist of the following:

December 31, December 31,

2012 2011
IN-Place Leases . ... ..o $17,200 $19,587
Above Market Leases .. ... 4,888 5,888
Tenant Relationships . ........ ... ... .. . i 11,102 12,562
Total Included in Total Assets, Net of $36,327 and $34,869 of
Accumulated AMOrtization . . ... ....vouu e $33,190 $38,037
Below Market Leases . . ..o vve oot e e $15,522 $16,567
Total Included in Total Liabilities, Net of $9,389 and $9,340 of
Accumulated Amortization . ............ .. ... $15,522 $16,567
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Amortization expense related to in-place leases and tenant relationships of deferred leasing intangibles,
exclusive of amortization expense related to in-place leases and tenant relationships included in discontinued
operations, was $7,571, $10,740 and $14,668 for the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010,
respectively. Rental revenues increased by $871, $1,529 and $3,003 related to net amortization of above/(below)
market leases, exclusive of net amortization related to above/(below) market leases included in discontinued
operations, for the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively. We will recognize net
amortization related to deferred leasing intangibles over the next five years, for properties owned as of
December 31, 2012 as follows:

Estimated Amortization Estimated Net Increase to
of In-Place Leases and Rental Revenues Related to
Tenant Relationships Above and Below Market Leases
2013 L $5,584 $631
2014 $4,551 $472
2015 $3,750 $455
2016 .o $2,615 $968
2017 $2,227 $908

Construction Revenues and Expenses

Construction revenues and expenses represent revenues earned and expenses incurred in connection with a
subsidiary of the Company acting as a development manager to construct industrial properties for third parties.
We use the percentage-of-completion contract method to recognize revenue. Using this method, revenues are
recorded based on estimates of the percentage of completion of individual contracts. The percentage of
completion estimates are based on a comparison of the contract expenditures incurred to the estimated final costs.
Changes in job performance, job conditions and estimated profitability may result in revisions to costs and
income and are recognized in the period in which the revisions are determined.

Foreign Currency Transactions and Translation

At December 31, 2012, we owned a land parcel located in Toronto, Canada for which the functional
currency was determined to be the Canadian dollar. The assets and liabilities related to this land parcel are
translated to U.S. dollars from the Canadian dollar based on the current exchange rate prevailing at each balance
sheet date. The income statement accounts related to this land parcel are translated using the average exchange
rate for the period. The resulting translation adjustments are included in Accumulated Other Comprehensive
Income.

Deferred Financing Costs

Deferred financing costs include fees and costs incurred to obtain long-term financing. These fees and costs
are being amortized over the terms of the respective loans. Accumulated amortization of deferred financing costs
was $15,063 and $13,086 at December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively. Unamortized deferred financing costs
are written-off when debt is retired before the maturity date.

Investments in Joint Ventures

Investments in Joint Ventures represent our noncontrolling equity interests in our Joint Ventures. We
account for our Investments in Joint Ventures under the equity method of accounting, as we do not have a
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majority voting interest, operational control or financial control. Control is determined using accounting
standards related to the consolidation of joint ventures and variable interest entities. In order to assess whether
consolidation of a variable-interest entity is required, an enterprise is required to qualitatively assess the
determination of the primary beneficiary of a variable interest entity (“VIE”) based on whether the entity (1) has
the power to direct matters that most significantly impact the activities of the VIE and (2) has the obligation to
absorb losses or the right to receive benefits of the VIE that could potentially be significant to the VIE.
Additionally, they require an ongoing reconsideration of the primary beneficiary and provide a framework for the
events that trigger a reassessment of whether an entity is a VIE.

Under the equity method of accounting, our share of earnings or losses of our Joint Ventures is reflected in
income as earned and contributions or distributions increase or decrease our Investments in Joint Ventures as
paid or received, respectively. Differences between our carrying value of our Investments in Joint Ventures and
our underlying equity of such Joint Ventures are amortized over the respective lives of the underlying assets.

On a continuous basis, we assess whether there are any indicators that the value of our Investments in Joint
Ventures may be impaired. An investment is impaired if our estimate of the fair value of the investment is less
than the carrying value of the investment, and such decline in fair value is deemed to be other than temporary. To
the extent impairment has occurred, the loss shall be measured as the excess of the carrying amount of the
investment over the fair value of the investment. Our estimates of fair value for each investment are based on a
number of subjective assumptions that are subject to economic and market uncertainties including, among others,
demand for space, market rental rates and operating costs, the discount rate used to value the cash flows of the
properties, the cap rate used to estimate the terminal value of the underlying properties and the discount rate used
to value the Joint Ventures’ debt. As these factors are difficult to predict and are subject to future events that may
alter our assumptions, our fair values estimated in the impairment analyses may not be realized.

Stock Based Compensation

We account for stock based compensation using the modified prospective application method, which
requires measurement of compensation cost for all stock-based awards at fair value on the date of grant and
recognition of compensation over the service period for awards expected to vest.

Net income, net of preferred dividends and redemption of preferred stock, is allocated to common
stockholders and participating securities based upon their proportionate share of weighted average shares plus
weighted average participating securities. Participating securities are unvested share-based payment awards that
contain non-forfeitable rights to dividends or dividend equivalents. Restricted stock awards granted to employees
and directors are considered participating securities as they receive non-forfeitable dividend or dividend
equivalents at the same rate as common stock. See Note 9 for further disclosure about participating securities.

Revenue Recognition

Rental income is recognized on a straight-line method under which contractual rent increases are recognized
evenly over the lease term. Tenant recovery income includes payments from tenants for real estate taxes,
insurance and other property operating expenses and is recognized as revenue in the same period the related
expenses are incurred by us.

Revenue is generally recognized on payments received from tenants for early lease terminations upon the
effective termination of a tenant’s lease and when we have no further obligations under the lease.
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Interest income on notes receivable is recognized based on the accrual method unless a significant
uncertainty of collection exists. If a significant uncertainty exists, interest income is recognized as collected.

We provide an allowance for doubtful accounts against the portion of tenant accounts receivable including
deferred rent receivable, which is estimated to be uncollectible. Accounts receivable in the consolidated balance
sheets are shown net of an allowance for doubtful accounts of $1,875 and $2,675 as of December 31, 2012 and
2011, respectively. Deferred rent receivable in the consolidated balance sheets is shown net of an allowance for
doubtful accounts of $1,733 and $2,302 as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively. For accounts receivable
we deem uncollectible, we use the direct write-off method.

Gain on Sale of Real Estate

Gain on sale of real estate is recognized using the full accrual method, when appropriate. Gains relating to
transactions which do not meet the full accrual method of accounting are deferred and recognized when the full
accrual method of accounting criteria are met or by using the installment or deposit methods of profit
recognition, as appropriate in the circumstances. As the assets are sold, their costs and related accumulated
depreciation are written off with resulting gains or losses reflected in net income or loss. Estimated future costs
to be incurred by us after completion of each sale are included in the determination of the gain on sales.

Notes Receivable

Notes receivable are primarily comprised of mortgage notes receivable that we have made in connection
with sales of real estate assets. The notes receivable are recorded at fair value at the time of issuance. Discounts
on notes receivable are accreted over the life of the related note receivable. Interest income is accrued as earned.
Notes receivable are considered past due when a contractual payment is not remitted in accordance with the
terms of the note agreement. On a quarterly basis, we evaluate the collectability of each mortgage note receivable
on an individual basis based on various factors which may include payment history, expected fair value of the
collateral and internal and external credit information. A loan is considered impaired when, based upon current
information and events, it is probable that we will be unable to collect all amounts due under the existing
contractual terms. When a loan is considered impaired, the amount of the loss accrual is calculated by comparing
the carrying amount of the note receivable to the present value of expected future cash flows. Since the majority
of our notes receivable are collateralized by a first mortgage, the loans have risk characteristics similar to the
risks in owning commercial real estate.

Income Taxes

We have elected to be taxed as a REIT under the Code. To qualify as a REIT, we must meet a number of
organizational and operational requirements, including a requirement to distribute at least 90% of our adjusted
taxable income to our stockholders. Management intends to continue to adhere to these requirements and to
maintain our REIT status. As a REIT, we are entitled to a tax deduction for some or all of the dividends we pay
to shareholders. Accordingly, we generally will not be subject to federal income taxes as long as we currently
distribute to shareholders an amount equal to or in excess of our taxable income. If we fail to qualify as a REIT
in any taxable year, we will be subject to federal income taxes and may not be able to qualify as a REIT for four
subsequent taxable years.

REIT qualification reduces, but does not eliminate, the amount of state and local taxes we pay. In addition,
our financial statements include the operations of taxable corporate subsidiaries that are not entitled to a
dividends paid deduction and are subject to corporate federal, state and local income taxes. As a REIT, we may
also be subject to certain federal excise and franchise taxes if we engage in certain types of transactions. A
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benefit/provision has been made for federal, state and local income taxes in the accompanying consolidated
financial statements. In accordance with FASB’s guidance, the total benefit/provision has been separately
allocated to income (loss) from continuing operations, income (loss) from discontinued operations and gain (loss)
on sale of real estate. The provision for excise and franchise taxes has been reflected in general and
administrative expense in the consolidated statements of operations and has not been separately stated due to its
insignificance.

During 2005, we recorded a $745 franchise tax reserve related to a potential state franchise tax assessment
for the 1996-2001 tax years. During the year ended December 31, 2011, we received a refund from the state,
representing amounts paid during 2006 related to the 1996-2001 tax years. Based on the refund received and
discussions with the taxing authorities, as of December 31, 2011, management believes that it is unlikely that
any franchise tax amounts will be assessed by the state for such tax years. As such, during the year ended
December 31, 2011, we reversed $745 of franchise taxes. Franchise taxes are recorded within general and
administrative expense.

Earnings Per Share (“EPS”)

Basic net income (loss) per common share is computed by dividing net income (loss) available to common
shareholders by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding for the period. Diluted net income
(loss) per common share is computed by dividing net income (loss) available to common shareholders by the
sum of the weighted average number of common shares outstanding and any dilutive non-participating securities
for the period. See Note 9 for further disclosure about EPS.

Derivative Financial Instruments

Historically, we have used interest rate protection agreements (“Agreements”) to fix the interest rate on
anticipated offerings of senior unsecured notes or convert floating rate debt and preferred stock to fixed rate.
Receipts or payments that result from the settlement of Agreements used to fix the interest rate on anticipated
offerings of senior unsecured notes are amortized over the life of the derivative or the life of the debt and
included in interest expense. Receipts or payments resulting from Agreements used to convert floating rate debt
to fixed rate debt are recognized as a component of interest expense. Agreements which qualify for hedge
accounting are marked-to-market and any gain or loss that is effective is recognized in other comprehensive
income (shareholders’ equity). Agreements which do not qualify for hedge accounting are marked-to-market and
any gain or loss is recognized in net income (loss) immediately. Amounts accumulated in other comprehensive
income during the hedge period are reclassified to earnings in the same period during which the forecasted
transaction or hedged item affects net income (loss). The credit risks associated with Agreements are controlled
through the evaluation and monitoring of the creditworthiness of the counterparty. In the event that the
counterparty fails to meet the terms of Agreements, our exposure is limited to the current value of the interest
rate differential, not the notional amount, and our carrying value of Agreements on the balance sheet. See
Note 14 for more information on Agreements.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Financial instruments other than our derivatives include tenant accounts receivable, net, notes receivable,
accounts payable, other accrued expenses, mortgage and other loans payable, unsecured credit facility and senior
unsecured notes. The fair values of the tenant accounts receivable, net, accounts payable and other accrued
expenses approximate their carrying or contract values. See Note 6 for the fair values of the mortgage and other
loans payable, unsecured credit facility and senior unsecured notes and see Note 4 for the fair value of our notes
receivable.
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Discontinued Operations

The FASB’s guidance on financial reporting for the disposal of long lived assets requires that the results of
operations and gains or losses on the sale of property or property held for sale be presented in discontinued
operations if both of the following criteria are met: (a) the operations and cash flows of the property have been
(or will be) eliminated from the ongoing operations of the Company as a result of the disposal transaction and
(b) we will not have any significant continuing involvement in the operations of the property after the disposal
transaction. The guidance also requires prior period results of operations for these properties to be reclassified
and presented in discontinued operations in prior consolidated statements of operations.

Segment Reporting

Management views the Company as a single segment based on its method of internal reporting.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In May 2011, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update No. 2011-04, “Fair Value Measurements and
Disclosures (Topic 820) — Amendments to Achieve Common Fair Value Measurement and Disclosure
Requirements in U.S. GAAP and IFRS” (“ASU 2011-04”). ASU 2011-04 clarifies the application of existing fair
value measurement requirements, changes certain principles related to measuring fair value and requires
additional disclosures about fair value measurements. Specifically, the guidance provides that the concepts of
highest and best use and valuation premise in a fair value measurement are only relevant when measuring the fair
value of nonfinancial assets and are not relevant when measuring the fair value of financial assets and liabilities.
Required disclosures are expanded under the new guidance, especially for fair value measurements that are
categorized within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy, for which quantitative information about the unobservable
inputs used, and a narrative description of the valuation processes in place and sensitivity of recurring Level 3
measurements to changes in unobservable inputs are required. Entities are also required to disclose the
categorization by level of the fair value hierarchy for items that are not measured at fair value in the balance
sheet but for which the fair value is required to be disclosed. ASU 2011-04 is effective for annual periods
beginning after December 15, 2011, and is to be applied prospectively. The adoption of this guidance did not
have a material impact on our financial statements.

4. Investment in Real Estate
Acquisitions

In 2010, we acquired three industrial properties comprising, in the aggregate, approximately 0.5 million
square feet of GLA, including one industrial property purchased from the 2005 Development/Repositioning Joint
Venture. The purchase price of these acquisitions totaled approximately $22,408, excluding costs incurred in
conjunction with the acquisition of the industrial properties.

In 2011, we acquired one industrial property comprising approximately 0.7 million square feet of GLA
through the purchase of the 85% equity interest in one property from the institutional investor in the 2003 Net
Lease Joint Venture (see Note 5). The gross agreed-upon fair value for the industrial property was $30,625,
excluding costs incurred in conjunction with the acquisition of the industrial property. The acquisition was
funded through the assumption of a mortgage loan, whose carrying value approximated fair market value, in the
amount of $24,417 and a cash payment of $5,277 (85% of the net fair value of the acquisition). We accounted for
this transaction as a step acquisition utilizing the purchase method of accounting. Due to the change in control
that occurred, we recorded a gain during the year ended December 31, 2011 of $689 related to the difference
between our carrying value and fair value of our equity interest on the acquisition date.
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In 2012, we acquired one industrial property comprising approximately 0.4 million square feet of GLA
through the purchase of the 85% equity interest in one property from the institutional investor in the 2003 Net
Lease Joint Venture (see Note 5) and several land parcels. The gross agreed-upon fair value for the industrial
property was $21,819, excluding costs incurred in conjunction with the acquisition of the industrial property. The
acquisition was funded through the assumption of a mortgage loan, which was subsequently paid off on the date
of acquisition and whose carrying value approximated fair market value, in the amount of $12,026 and a cash
payment of $8,324 (85% of the net fair value of the acquisition). We accounted for this transaction as a step
acquisition utilizing the purchase method of accounting. Due to the change in control that occurred, we recorded
a gain during the year ended December 31, 2012 of $776 related to the difference between our carrying value and
fair value of our equity interest on the acquisition date. The purchase price of the land parcels was approximately
$46,695, excluding costs incurred in conjunction with the acquisition of the land parcels.

We value third party acquisitions and acquisitions of unconsolidated joint venture partner interests in
industrial properties on a similar basis generally by applying an income capitalization approach. The fair value
measurements are based on significant inputs not observable in the market and thus represent Level 3
measurements. The fair value estimates for each of the industrial properties acquired from our joint venture
partner during the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011 were based on a capitalization rate of approximating
7.3% and 8.4%, respectively. The fair value measurements also include consideration of the fair market value of
debt.

Intangible Assets (Liabilities) Subject To Amortization in the Period of Acquisition

The fair value at the date of acquisition of in-place leases, tenant relationships, above market leases and
below market leases recorded due to the real estate property acquired for the years ended December 31, 2012 and
2011, which is recorded as deferred leasing intangibles, is as follows:

Year Ended Year Ended
December 31, December 31,
2012 2011
IN-Place Leases . . ..o oottt e e e $1,750 $2,511
Tenant Relationships ........... .. ... ... $1,012 $1,553
ADOVE Market Leases . . « .« v v ve et e e e e e e $ — $2,883
Below Market Leases . .. ..ottt e $ (102) $ —

The weighted average life in months of in-place leases, tenant relationships, above market leases and below
market leases recorded at the time of acquisition as a result of the real estate property acquired for the years
ended December 31, 2012 and 2011 is as follows:

Year Ended Year Ended
December 31, December 31,
2012 2011
In-Place Leases . . . ...t 118 56
Tenant Relationships . .......... . . i, 178 116
Above Market Leases .. ... N/A 56
Below Market Leases .. ... 118 N/A

Sales and Discontinued Operations

In 2010, we sold 13 industrial properties comprising approximately 1.1 million square feet of GLA and several
land parcels. Gross proceeds from the sales of the 13 industrial properties and several land parcels were
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approximately $71,019. The gain on sale of real estate was approximately $11,951, of which $11,092 is shown in
discontinued operations. The 13 sold industrial properties and one land parcel that received ground rental revenues
meet the criteria to be included in discontinued operations. Therefore the results of operations and gain on sale of
real estate for the 13 sold industrial properties and one land parcel that received ground rental revenues are included
in discontinued operations. The results of operations and gain on sale of real estate for the several land parcels that
do not meet the criteria to be included in discontinued operations are included in continuing operations.

In 2011, we sold 36 industrial properties comprising approximately 2.9 million square feet of GLA and one
land parcel. Gross proceeds from the sales of the 36 industrial properties and one land parcel were approximately
$86,643. Included in the 36 industrial properties sold is one industrial property totaling approximately 0.4 million
square feet of GLA that we transferred title to a lender in satisfaction of a non-recourse mortgage loan (See
Note 6). The gain on sale of real estate was approximately $21,789, of which $20,419 is shown in discontinued
operations. The 36 sold industrial properties meet the criteria to be included in discontinued operations.
Therefore the results of operations and gain on sale of real estate for the 36 sold industrial properties are included
in discontinued operations. The results of operations and gain on sale of real estate for the one land parcel that
does not meet the criteria to be included in discontinued operations are included in continuing operations.

In 2012, we sold 28 industrial properties comprising approximately 4.2 million square feet of GLA and one
land parcel. Gross proceeds from the sales of the 28 industrial properties and one land parcel were approximately
$85,561. The gain on sale of real estate was approximately $16,442, of which $12,665 is shown in discontinued
operations. The 28 sold industrial properties meet the criteria to be included in discontinued operations.
Therefore the results of operations and gain on sale of real estate for the 28 industrial properties sold are included
in discontinued operations. The results of operations and gain on sale of real estate for the one land parcel that
does not meet the criteria to be included in discontinued operations are included in continuing operations.

At December 31, 2012, we had three industrial properties comprising approximately 0.4 million square feet
of GLA held for sale. The results of operations of the three industrial properties held for sale at December 31,
2012 are included in discontinued operations. There can be no assurance that such industrial properties held for
sale will be sold.

The following table discloses certain information regarding the industrial properties included in our
discontinued operations for the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010:

Year Ended December 31,
2012 2011 2010

Total REVENUES . . . o oot $ 8,701 $18,871 $ 25,318
Property Expenses . .. ... (3,660) (7,589) (10,601)
Impairment of Real Estate . ............ ... ... ... ........ (1,410) (4,973) (66,026)
Depreciation and Amortization . . . .............oooiuieo.... (1,612) (4,473) (10,306)
Interest Expense .......... ... — (63) (268)
Gainon Saleof Real Estate .. ......... ... ... .............. 12,665 20,419 11,092
Provision for Income Taxes .................... ... ........ — (1,246) —

Income (Loss) from Discontinued Operations ............. $14,684  $20,946  $(50,791)

At December 31, 2012 and 2011, we had notes receivable outstanding of approximately $41,201 and $55,502,
net of a discount of $255 and $319, respectively, which are included as a component of Prepaid Expenses and Other
Assets, Net. At December 31, 2012 and 2011, the fair value of the notes receivable was $44,783 and $58,734,
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respectively. The fair value of our notes receivable was determined by discounting the future cash flows using the
current rates at which similar loans with similar remaining maturities would be made to other borrowers. The
current market rates we utilized were internally estimated; therefore, we have concluded that our determination of
fair value of our notes receivable was primarily based upon Level 3 inputs, as discussed below.

In 2009, we originated a note receivable with a purchaser of one of our industrial properties. During July
2012, we were notified that the sole tenant in the industrial property that serves as collateral for the note
receivable filed for Chapter 7 bankruptcy. As of the date of this filing, the mortgagor is current on its loan
payments and we are not aware of any information that would cause us to believe that the mortgagor will not pay
us all amounts due on the note receivable. As of December 31, 2012, the note receivable had an outstanding
principal balance of $7,660, offset by an unamortized discount of $2535, resulting in a carrying value of $7,405.

Impairment Charges

During the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, we recorded the following net non-cash
impairment charges:

Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended

December 31, December 31, December 31,
2012 2011 2010

Operating Properties — Held for Sale and Sold Assets . . $1,410 $ 4,973 $ 66,026
Impairment — Discontinued Operations ......... $1,410 $ 4,973 $ 66,026
Land Parcels — Sold ASSetS . .. ...vveeeeenen... $ — $(5,879) $ 8,275
Operating Properties — Held for Use .. .............. (164) (514) 105,826
Land Parcels — HeldforUse ...................... — (1,241) 14,425
Impairment — Continuing Operations ........... $ (164) $(7,634) $128,526
Total Net Impairment . ................... $1,246 $(2,661) $194,552

On October 22, 2010, we amended our existing revolving credit facility. In conjunction with the
amendment, management identified a pool of real estate assets to be classified as held for sale. At the time of the
amendment, management reassessed the holding period for the pool of real estate assets and determined that
certain of the industrial properties were impaired. The Company recorded an aggregate impairment charge
(reversal) of $1,246, $(2,661) and $185,397 for the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010.

The net impairment charges for assets that qualify to be classified as held for sale are calculated as the
difference of the carrying value of the properties and land parcels over the fair value less costs to sell. On the date
an asset no longer qualifies to be classified as held for sale, the carrying value must be reestablished at the lower
of the estimated fair market value of the asset or the carrying value of the asset prior to held for sale
classification, adjusted for any depreciation and amortization that would have been recorded if the asset had not
been classified as held for sale. The net impairment charges recorded during the years ended December 31, 2012,
2011 and 2010 are due to updated fair market values for certain industrial properties in the pool of real estate
assets identified to be classified as held for sale in the fourth quarter of 2010, whose estimated fair market values
have changed since October 31, 2010 and were either sold or were classified as held for sale at December 31,
2011 and/or December 31, 2010, but no longer qualify to be classified as held for sale at December 31, 2012.
Catch-up depreciation and amortization has been recorded during the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011,
if applicable, for certain assets that are no longer classified as held for sale.
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In addition to the impairments recorded above, during the three months ended March 31, 2010, we recorded
an impairment charge in the amount of $9,155 related to a property comprised of 0.3 million square feet of GLA
located in Grand Rapids, Michigan in connection with the negotiation of a new lease.

The accounting guidance for the fair value measurement provisions for the impairment of long lived assets
recorded at fair value establishes a three-tier fair value hierarchy, which prioritizes the inputs used in measuring
fair value. These tiers include: Level 1, defined as observable inputs such as quoted prices in active markets for
identical assets; Level 2, defined as inputs other than quoted prices in active markets that are either directly or
indirectly observable; and Level 3, defined as unobservable inputs in which little or no market data exists,
therefore requiring an entity to develop its own assumptions. The fair market values were determined using
widely accepted valuation techniques including discounted cash flow analyses using expected cash flows,
internal valuations of real estate and third party offers.

For operational real estate assets, the most significant assumptions used in the discounted cash flow analyses
included the discount rate, projected occupancy levels, market rental rates, capital expenditures and the terminal
capitalization rate. For the valuation of land parcels, we reviewed recent comparable sales transactions, to the
extent available, or if not available, we considered older comparable transactions, adjusted upward or downward
to reflect management’s assumptions about current market conditions. In all cases, members of our management
team that were responsible for the individual markets where the land parcels were located determined the internal
valuations. Valuations based on third party offers include bona fide contract prices and letter of intent amounts
that we believe are indicative of fair value.

The following table presents information about our real estate assets that were measured at fair value on a
non-recurring basis during the year ended December 31, 2011. Real estate assets measured at fair value on a non-
recurring basis during the year ended December 31, 2012 were either sold or are recorded at carrying value at
December 31, 2012. The table indicates the fair value hierarchy of the valuation techniques we utilized to
determine fair value.

Fair Value Measurements on a
Non-Recurring Basis Using:

Quoted Prices in
Year Ended Active Markets for Significant Other Unobservable

December 31, Identical Assets Observable Inputs Inputs Total
Description 2011 (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Impairment
Long-lived Assets Held for
Sale or Sold* ........... $23,252 — — $23,252 $(4,451)
Long-lived Assets Held and
Used* ................. $50,895 — — $50,895 (2,566)
$(7,017)

* Excludes industrial properties and land parcels for which an impairment reversal of $9,678 was recorded
during the year ended December 31, 2011, since the related assets are recorded at carrying value, which is
lower than estimated fair value at December 31, 2011.

5. Investments in Joint Ventures

On May 16, 2003, we entered into the 2003 Net Lease Joint Venture with an institutional investor to invest
in industrial properties. We own a 15% equity interest in and provide property management services to the 2003
Net Lease Joint Venture. As of December 31, 2012, the 2003 Net Lease Joint Venture owned five industrial
properties comprising approximately 2.7 million square feet of GLA. The 2003 Net Lease Joint Venture is
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considered a variable interest entity in accordance with the FASB guidance on the consolidation of variable
interest entities. However, we continue to conclude that we are not the primary beneficiary of this venture. As of
December 31, 2012, our investment in the 2003 Net Lease Joint Venture is $1,012. Our maximum exposure to
loss is currently equal to our investment balance. We acquired the 85% equity interest in one property on
February 13, 2012 and the 85% equity interest in another property on May 26, 2011, in each case from the
institutional investor in the 2003 Net Lease Joint Venture (see Note 4).

During December 2007, we entered into the 2007 Europe Joint Venture with an institutional investor to invest
in, own, develop, redevelop and operate industrial properties. We continue to hold our 10% equity interest in the
2007 Europe Joint Venture. As of December 31, 2012, the 2007 Europe Joint Venture did not own any properties.

On August 5, 2010, we sold our interests in the 2005 Development/Repositioning Joint Venture, the 2005
Core Joint Venture, the 2006 Land/Development Joint Venture and the 2007 Canada Joint Venture to our joint
venture partner generating sale proceeds of approximately $5.0 million. We recorded an $11,226 gain related to
the sale, which is included in Gain on Sale of Joint Venture Interests for the year ended December 31, 2010.

On March 21, 2006, we entered into the 2006 Net Lease Co-Investment Program with an institutional
investor to invest in industrial properties. We owned a 15% equity interest in and provided property management,
asset management and leasing management services to the 2006 Net Lease Co-Investment Program. Pursuant to
the buy/sell provision in the 2006 Net Lease Co-Investment Program’s governing agreement that our
counterparty exercised on May 25, 2010, we sold our interest in the real estate property assets in the 2006 Net
Lease Co-Investment Program to our counterparty and received $4,541 in net proceeds. In connection with the
sale, we wrote off our carrying value for the 2006 Net Lease Co-Investment Program and recorded an $852 gain,
which is included in Equity in Income of Joint Ventures for the year ended December 31, 2010.

At December 31, 2012 and 2011, we have receivables from the Joint Ventures in the aggregate amount of
$19 and $137, respectively. These receivable amounts are included in Prepaid Expenses and Other Assets, Net.
During the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, we recognized fees of $516, $970 and $4,952,
respectively, from our Joint Ventures.

The combined summarized financial information of the investments in Joint Ventures is as follows:

December 31, December 31,

2012 2011
Condensed Combined Balance Sheets:
Gross Investment in Real Estate ... .........o oo, $115,488 $155,555
Less: Accumulated Depreciation .. .......................... (38,535) (41,342)
Net Investment in Real Estate . ......................... 76,953 114,213
Other ASSELS .« . oo e 17,327 23,364
Total ASSELS . ottt et e $ 94,280 $137,577
Indebtedness . . ..ot $ 81,764 $112,261
Other Liabilities . ... ... e 4,817 5,779
Equity ... 7,699 19,537
Total Liabilities and Equity ............... ... ... .... $ 94,280 $137,577
Company’s Share of Equity . .............ccoiiiiiinnn... $ 1252 $ 3,029
Basis Differentials(1) ............. ... .. . . (448) (1,564)
Carrying Value of the Company’s Investments in Joint
VENLUTES -« o v e e et e e e e e e e e e e $ 804 $ 1,465
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(1) This amount represents the aggregate difference between our historical cost basis and the basis reflected at
the joint venture level. Basis differentials are primarily comprised of impairments we recorded to reduce
certain of our investments in the 2003 Net Lease Joint Venture to fair value and certain deferred fees which
are not reflected at the joint venture level.

Year Ended December 31,
2012 2011 2010
Condensed Combined Statements of Operations:
Total REVENUES . . .o oot $12,385  $12,442  $ 51,552
Expenses:
Operatingand Other ............. ... ... ... ..... 2,188 2,350 23,111
Impairment of Real Estate ........................ — — 3,268
Depreciation and Other Amortization . . .............. 5,632 5,673 25,480
Interest Expense . ........... ... i 6,087 6,311 27,263
Total Expenses . .......... .o, 13,907 14,334 79,122
Discontinued Operations:
(Loss) Income Attributable to Discontinued
OPerations . .. .......ouuuunini i 207) 11 (309)
Gainon Saleof Real Estate ....................... 4,974 3,137 2,761
Income from Discontinued Operations . .......... 4,767 3,148 2,452
Gainon Saleof Real Estate ........................... — — 808
Net Income (LOSS) ... .o v $ 3245 $ 1,256  $(24,310)
Equity in Income of Joint Ventures ............. $ 1559 $ 980 $ 675
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6. Indebtedness

The following table discloses certain information regarding our indebtedness:

Mortgage and Other Loans

Payable, Net

Unamortized Premiums . . . ..

FIRST INDUSTRIAL REALTY TRUST, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

(};Ltls;ircn;l;ntg Interest Effective
Rate at Interest
December 31, December 31, December 31, Rate at Maturity
2012 2011 2012 Issuance Date
January 2014 -
$763,616 $690,256  4.03% - 8.26% 4.03% - 8.26% September 2022

(161) (305)

Mortgage and Other Loans Payable,

Gross

Senior Unsecured Notes, Net

2016 Notes
2017 Notes
2027 Notes
2028 Notes

$763,455 $689,951

2012 NO0teS © v v v

2032 Notes
2014 Notes
2017 II Notes

Subtotal

159,510 $159,455 5.750%
55,385 59,600 7.500%
6,066 6,065 7.150%
55,261 124,894 7.600%
— 61,817 N/A

11,500 34,683 7.750%
79,683 86,997 6.420%
106,745 106,716 5.950%

$474,150 $640,227

Unamortized Discounts ................... 2,570 4,625
Senior Unsecured Notes, Gross . ........... $476,720 $644,852
Unsecured Credit Facility ................ $ 98,000 $149,000 1.912%

Mortgage and Other Loans Payable, Net

591%
7.52%
7.11%
8.13%
N/A

7.87%
6.54%
6.37%

1.912%

01/15/16
12/01/17
05/15/27
07/15/28
04/15/12
04/15/32
06/01/14
05/15/17

12/12/14

During the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, we originated or assumed the following mortgage

loans:
Number of Property
Industrial Carrying
Properties Value at
Mortgage Loan  Interest Origination Maturity Amortization Collateralizing GLA December 31,
Financing Principal  Rate Date Date Period Mortgage  (In millions) 2012
I-VI $100,599  4.03% August 29,2012 September 2022 30-year 31 3.8 $103,671
Number of Property
Industrial Carrying
Properties Value at
Mortgage Loan Interest Origination/Assumption Maturity = Amortization Collateralizing GLA December 31,
Financing Principal Rate Date Date Period Mortgage  (In millions) 2011
VII-XIV $178,300 4.45% May 2, 2011 June 2018 30-year 32 59 $206,291
XV 24417  5.579% May 26, 2011 February 2016 30-year 1 0.7 28,991
XVI-XXVI 77,600  4.85% September 23, 2011 October 2021 30-year 24 23 84,403
$280,317 $319,685
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For Mortgage Financings I through XIV and Mortgage Financings XVI through XXVI, principal
prepayments are prohibited for 12 months after loan origination, after which prepayment premiums are
calculated at the greater of yield maintenance or 1% of the outstanding balance. For Mortgage Financing XV,
principal prepayments are prohibited until three months prior to maturity, but defeasance is allowed subject to
certain conditions.

During the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, we paid off and retired prior to maturity mortgage
loans payable in the amount of $14,112 and $62,662, respectively. In connection with these repurchases prior to
maturity, we recognized $361 and $2,128 as loss from retirement of debt for the years ended December 31, 2012
and 2011, respectively.

On September 20, 2011, we transferred title to a property totaling approximately 0.4 million square feet of
GLA and an escrow balance in the amount of $1,845 to a lender in satisfaction of a $5,040 non-recourse
mortgage loan. We recognized a $147 loss related to the transaction, which is included in loss from retirement of
debt for the year ended December 31, 2011.

As of December 31, 2012, mortgage loans payable are collateralized by, and in some instances cross-
collateralized by, industrial properties with a net carrying value of $949,557. We believe the Operating
Partnership and the Company were in compliance with all covenants relating to mortgage loans payable as of
December 31, 2012.

Senior Unsecured Notes, Net

During the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, we repurchased and retired the following senior
unsecured notes prior to maturity:

Principal Amount Repurchased Purchase Price
For the For the For the For the
Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended
December 31, December 31, December 31, December 31,
2012 2011 2012 2011
2014 NOteS .. vvve e $ 9,000 $ 1,144 $ 9,439 $ 1,143
2016 Notes . ....ovviiiii . — 500 — 475
2017 NOtES .. vvvee e 4,223 27,619 4,632 27,506
2017IINoOtes .. ..vvvvi i — 10,969 — 10,182
2027 NOtes .. vvi e — 7,500 — 7,500
2028 NOES v vvv e 69,680 65,025 72,541 63,861
2032 N0tES v vt 23,400 — 24,001 —

$106,303 $112,757 $110,613 $110,667

In connection with these repurchases prior to maturity, we recognized $9,323 and $2,012 as loss from
retirement of debt for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively, which is the difference
between the purchase price of $110,613 and $110,667, respectively, and the principal amount retired of $106,303
and $112,757, respectively, net of the pro rata write-off of the unamortized debt issue discount, the unamortized
deferred financing costs, the unamortized settlement amount of the interest rate protection agreements and the
professional services fees related to the repurchases of $598, $728, $3,247 and $440, respectively, and $135,
$717, $3,250 and $0, respectively.
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On September 15, 2011, we paid off and retired our 4.625% Notes due 2011, at maturity, in the amount of
$128,900.

On April 16, 2012, we paid off and retired our 2012 Notes, at maturity, in the amount of $61,829.

The indentures governing our senior unsecured notes contain certain financial covenants, including
limitations on incurrence of debt and debt service coverage. We believe the Operating Partnership and the
Company were in compliance with all covenants relating to senior unsecured notes as of December 31, 2012.
However, these financial covenants are complex and there can be no assurance that these provisions would not be
interpreted by our noteholders in a manner that could impose and cause us to incur material costs.

Unsecured Credit Facility

We have maintained an unsecured credit facility since 1997. During December 2011, we entered into a
$450,000 unsecured revolving credit agreement (the “Unsecured Credit Facility””) which replaced our previous
unsecured credit facility. We may request that the borrowing capacity under the Unsecured Credit Facility be
increased to $500,000, subject to certain restrictions. We wrote off $1,172 of unamortized deferred financing
costs reflected in Loss from Retirement of Debt for the year ended December 31, 2011 related to our previous
unsecured credit facility. At December 31, 2012, the Unsecured Credit Facility provides for interest only
payments at LIBOR plus 170 basis points or at a base rate plus 170 basis points, at our election. The margin on
our LIBOR or base rate borrowings could increase based on our leverage ratio. The Unsecured Credit Facility
matures on December 12, 2014, unless extended an additional one year at our election, subject to certain
conditions. At December 31, 2012, borrowings under the Unsecured Credit Facility bore interest at a weighted
average interest rate of 1.912%.

The Unsecured Credit Facility contains certain financial covenants, including limitations on incurrence of
debt and debt service coverage. Under the Unsecured Credit Facility, an event of default can also occur if the
lenders, in their good faith judgment, determine that a material adverse change has occurred which could prevent
timely repayment or materially impair our ability to perform our obligations under the loan agreement. We
believe that we were in compliance with all covenants relating to the Unsecured Credit Facility as of
December 31, 2012. However, these financial covenants are complex and there can be no assurance that these
provisions would not be interpreted by our lenders in a manner that could impose and cause us to incur material
costs.

Indebtedness

The following is a schedule of the stated maturities and scheduled principal payments of our indebtedness,
exclusive of premiums and discounts, for the next five years ending December 31, and thereafter:

Amount
2003 $ 14,339
200 . 234,097
200 63,636
2000 . 295,309
2007 174,153
Thereafter .. ... 556,641
Total .. $1,338,175
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Fair Value

At December 31, 2012 and 2011, the fair value of our indebtedness was as follows:

December 31, 2012 December 31, 2011
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
Amount Value Amount Value
Mortgage and Other Loans Payable, Net .. $ 763,616 $ 814915 $ 690,256 $ 743,419
Senior Unsecured Debt, Net ............ 474,150 516,943 640,227 630,622
Unsecured Credit Facility .............. 98,000 98,192 149,000 149,000
Total .......................... $1,335,766  $1,430,050 $1,479,483  $1,523,041

The fair values of our mortgage and other loans payable were determined by discounting the future cash flows
using the current rates at which similar loans would be made based upon similar leverage levels and similar
remaining maturities. The current market rates we utilized were internally estimated; therefore, we have concluded
that our determination of fair value for our mortgage and other loans payable was primarily based upon Level 3
inputs. The fair value of the senior unsecured notes was determined by using rates, as advised by our bankers, that
are based upon recent trades within the same series of the senior unsecured notes, recent trades for senior unsecured
notes with comparable maturities, recent trades for fixed rate unsecured debt from companies with profiles similar
to ours, as well as overall economic conditions. We have determined that our estimation of the fair value of fixed
rate unsecured debt was primarily based upon Level 3 inputs. The fair value of the Unsecured Credit Facility was
determined by discounting the future cash flows using current rates at which similar loans would be made to
borrowers with similar credit ratings and for the same remaining term, assuming no repayment until maturity. The
current market rate utilized for our Unsecured Credit Facility was internally estimated; therefore, we have
concluded that our determination of fair value was primarily based upon Level 3 inputs.

7. Stockholders’ Equity
Preferred Stock

On May 27, 2004, we issued 50,000 Depositary Shares, each representing 1/100th of a share of our 6.236%,
Series F Flexible Cumulative Redeemable Preferred Stock, $0.01 par value (the “Series F Preferred Stock™), at an
initial offering price of $1,000.00 per Depositary Share. Dividends on the Series F Preferred Stock are
cumulative from the date of initial issuance and are payable quarterly in arrears. The coupon rate of our Series F
Preferred Stock resets every quarter at 2.375% plus the greater of (i) the 30 year Treasury constant maturity
treasury (“CMT”) Rate, (ii) the 10 year Treasury CMT Rate or (iii) 3-month LIBOR. For the fourth quarter of
2012, the coupon rate was 5.285%. With respect to the payment of dividends and amounts upon liquidation,
dissolution or winding up, the Series F Preferred Stock ranks senior to payments on our Common Stock and pari
passu with our Series G Preferred Stock (hereinafter defined), Series J Preferred Stock (hereinafter defined) and
Series K Preferred Stock (hereinafter defined). The Series F Preferred Stock is redeemable for cash at our option,
in whole or in part, at a redemption price equivalent to $1,000.00 per Depositary Share, or $50,000 in the
aggregate, plus dividends accrued and unpaid to the redemption date. The Series F Preferred Stock has no stated
maturity and is not convertible into any other securities of the Company. In October 2008, we entered into an
interest rate swap agreement to mitigate our exposure to floating interest rates related to the forecasted reset rate
of the coupon rate of our Series F Preferred Stock (see Note 14).

On May 27, 2004, we issued 25,000 Depositary Shares, each representing 1/100th of a share of our 7.236%,
Series G Flexible Cumulative Redeemable Preferred Stock, $0.01 par value (the “Series G Preferred Stock™), at
an initial offering price of $1,000.00 per Depositary Share. Dividends on the Series G Preferred Stock are
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cumulative from the date of initial issuance and are payable semi-annually in arrears for the period from the date
of original issuance of the Series G Preferred Stock through March 31, 2014 (the “Series G Initial Fixed Rate
Period”’), commencing on September 30, 2004, at a rate of 7.236% per annum of the liquidation preference (the
“Series G Initial Distribution Rate”) (equivalent to $72.36 per Depositary Share). On or after March 31, 2014, the
Series G Initial Distribution Rate is subject to reset, at our option, subject to certain conditions and parameters, at
fixed or floating rates and periods. Fixed rates and periods will be determined through a remarketing procedure.
Floating rates during floating rate periods will equal 2.500% (the initial credit spread), plus the greater of (i) the
3-month LIBOR, (ii) the 10 year Treasury CMT Rate, and (iii) the 30 year Treasury CMT Rate, reset quarterly.
Dividends on the Series G Preferred Stock are payable semi-annually in arrears for fixed rate periods subsequent
to the Series G Initial Fixed Rate Period and quarterly in arrears for floating rate periods. With respect to the
payment of dividends and amounts upon liquidation, dissolution or winding up, the Series G Preferred Stock
ranks senior to payments on our Common Stock and pari passu with our Series F Preferred Stock, Series J
Preferred Stock (hereinafter defined) and Series K Preferred Stock (hereinafter defined). On or after March 31,
2014, subject to any conditions on redemption applicable in any fixed rate period subsequent to the Series G
Initial Fixed Rate Period, the Series G Preferred Stock is redeemable for cash at our option, in whole or in part, at
a redemption price equivalent to $1,000.00 per Depositary Share, or $25,000 in the aggregate, plus dividends
accrued and unpaid to the redemption date. The Series G Preferred Stock has no stated maturity and is not
convertible into any other securities of the Company.

On January 13, 2006, we issued 6,000,000 Depositary Shares, each representing 1/10,000th of a share of our
7.25%, Series J Cumulative Redeemable Preferred Stock, $0.01 par value (the “Series J Preferred Stock™), at an
initial offering price of $25.00 per Depositary Share. The Series J Preferred Stock is redeemable in whole or in
part, at our option, at a cash redemption price of $25.00 per depositary share. Dividends on the Series J Preferred
Stock, represented by the Depositary Shares, are cumulative from the date of initial issuance and are payable
quarterly in arrears. However, during any period that both (i) the depositary shares are not listed on the NYSE or
AMEX, or quoted on NASDAQ, and (ii) we are not subject to the reporting requirements of the Exchange Act,
but the preferred shares are outstanding, we will increase the dividend on the preferred shares to a rate of 8.25%
of the liquidation preference per year. With respect to the payment of dividends and amounts upon liquidation,
dissolution or winding up, the Series J Preferred Stock ranks senior to payments on our Common Stock and pari
passu with our Series F Preferred Stock, Series G Preferred Stock and Series K Preferred Stock (hereinafter
defined). We redeemed 2,000,000 Depositary Shares of the Series J Preferred Stock on December 21, 2012, at a
redemption price of $25.00 per Depositary Share, and paid a prorated fourth quarter dividend of $0.407812 per
Depositary Share, totaling $816. Due to the partial redemption of the Series J Preferred Stock, one-third of the
initial offering costs associated with the issuance of the Series J Preferred Stock, as well as costs associated with
the partial redemption, totaling $1,804 are reflected as a deduction from net loss to arrive at net loss available to
First Industrial Realty Trust, Inc.’s common stockholders in determining earnings per share for the year ended
December 31, 2012.

On August 21, 2006, we issued 2,000,000 Depositary Shares, each representing 1/10,000th of a share of our
7.25%, Series K Flexible Cumulative Redeemable Preferred Stock, $0.01 par value (the “Series K Preferred
Stock™), at an initial offering price of $25.00 per Depositary Share. The Series K Preferred Stock is redeemable
in whole or in part, at our option, at a cash redemption price of $25.00 per depositary share. Dividends on the
Series K Preferred Stock, represented by the Depositary Shares, are cumulative from the date of initial issuance
and are payable quarterly in arrears. With respect to the payment of dividends and amounts upon liquidation,
dissolution or winding up, the Series K Preferred Stock ranks senior to payments on our Common Stock and pari
passu with our Series F Preferred Stock, Series G Preferred Stock and Series J Preferred Stock.

The Company has 10,000,000 shares of preferred stock authorized. All series of preferred stock have no
stated maturity (although we may redeem all such preferred stock on or following their optional redemption dates
at our option, in whole or in part).
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The following table summarizes the preferred shares outstanding at December 31, 2012 and 2011:

Year Ended 2012 Year Ended 2011
Shares Liquidation Shares Liquidation
Outstanding Preference Outstanding Preference
Series F Preferred Stock .................. 500 $ 50,000 500 $ 50,000
Series G Preferred Stock .. ................ 250 $ 25,000 250 $ 25,000
Series J Preferred Stock . ................. 400 $100,000 600 $150,000
Series K Preferred Stock ... ............... 200 $ 50,000 200 $ 50,000

Shares of Common Stock

For the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, 535,026, 125,784, and 27,586 limited partnership
interests in the Operating Partnership (“Units”) were converted into an equivalent number of shares of common
stock, resulting in a reclassification of $4,763, $1,109 and $316, respectively, of Noncontrolling Interest to First
Industrial Realty Trust Inc.’s Stockholders’ Equity.

During the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, we announced underwritten public offerings of
9,400,000 and 17,300,000 shares of the Company’s common stock to the public. Proceeds to us for the years
ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, net of total expenses of $127 and $2,370, were approximately $116,715 and
$201,150, respectively.

On May 4, 2010, we entered into distribution agreements with sales agents to sell up to 10,000,000 shares of
the Company’s common stock from time to time in “at-the-market” offerings (the “2010 ATM”). During the year
ended December 31, 2010, we issued 5,469,767 shares of the Company’s common stock under the 2010 ATM
for approximately $44,117, net of $900 paid to the sales agent. On December 31, 2010, we concluded the 2010
ATM as a result of the expiration of the distribution agreements with our sales agents.

On February 28, 2011, we entered into distribution agreements with sales agents to sell up to 10,000,000
shares of the Company’s common stock, for up to $100,000 aggregate gross sale proceeds, from time to time in
ATM offerings (the “2011 ATM”). During the year ended December 31, 2011, we issued 115,856 shares of the
Company’s common stock under the 2011 ATM resulting in proceeds to us of approximately $1,391, net of $28
paid to the sales agent. On February 29, 2012, we terminated the 2011 ATM in preparation for the
commencement of the 2012 ATM (defined hereafter).

On March 1, 2012, we entered into distribution agreements with sales agents to sell up to 12,500,000 shares
of the Company’s common stock, for up to $125,000 aggregate gross sale proceeds, from time to time in ATM
offerings (the “2012 ATM”). During the year ended December 31, 2012, we issued 1,532,598 shares of the
Company’s common stock under the 2012 ATM resulting in net proceeds to us of approximately $18,063, net of
$369 paid to the sales agent.

Under the terms of the ATMs, sales were made primarily in transactions that were deemed to be “at-the-
market” offerings, including sales made directly on the New York Stock Exchange or sales made through a
market maker other than on an exchange or by privately negotiated transactions.

On August 8, 2008, the Company’s Dividend Reinvestment and Direct Stock Purchase Plan (“DRIP”)
became effective. Under the terms of the DRIP, stockholders who participate may reinvest all or part of their
dividends in additional common stock of the Company at a discount from the market price, at our discretion,
when the shares are issued and sold directly by us from authorized but unissued shares of the Company’s
common stock. Stockholders and non-stockholders may also purchase additional shares at a discounted price, at
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our discretion, when the shares are issued and sold directly by us from authorized but unissued shares of the
Company’s common stock, by making optional cash payments, subject to certain dollar thresholds. During the
years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, we did not issue any shares of the Company’s common stock under
the direct stock purchase component of the DRIP. During the year ended December 31, 2010, we issued
875,402 shares of the Company’s common stock under the direct stock purchase component of the DRIP for
approximately $5,970. The DRIP terminated effective June 9, 2012.

During the year ended December 31, 2010, 23,567 shares of common stock were awarded to certain
directors. The common stock shares had a fair value of approximately $128 upon issuance.

The following table is a roll-forward of our shares of common stock outstanding, including unvested
restricted shares of common stock (see Note 13), for the three years ended December 31, 2012:

Shares of
Common Stock
Outstanding
Balance at December 31,2009 . . . ... ... .. ... .. ... 61,845,214
Issuance of Common Stock, Including Vesting of Restricted Stock Units ......... 6,518,736
Issuance of Restricted Stock Shares . . ... . 573,198
Repurchase and Retirement of Restricted Stock Shares .................... ... (123,438)
Conversion of Operating Partnership Units .............. ... .. ... ... ....... 27,586
Balance at December 31,2010 ... ...... ... ... ... ... ... 68,841,296
Issuance of Common Stock, Including Vesting of Restricted Stock Units ......... 17,646,586
Issuance of Restricted Stock Shares . . ... 292,339
Repurchase and Retirement of Restricted Stock Shares .................... ... (98,603)
Conversion of Operating Partnership Units ............... ... ... ... ....... 125,784
Balance at December 31,2011 ... ... ... ... ... ... ... ... 86,807,402
Issuance of Common Stock, Including Vesting of Restricted Stock Units ......... 11,085,905
Issuance of Restricted Stock Shares . . ... 565,137
Repurchase and Retirement of Restricted Stock Shares .................... ... (225,557)
Conversion of Operating Partnership Units ................ ... ... ... ....... 535,026
Balance at December 31,2012 .. . ... ... . ... ... ... 98,767,913

Dividends/Distributions

The coupon rate of our Series F Preferred Stock resets every quarter at 2.375% plus the greater of (i) the
30 year Treasury CMT Rate, (ii) the 10 year Treasury CMT Rate or (iii) 3-month LIBOR. For the fourth quarter
of 2012, the new coupon rate was 5.285%. See Note 14 for additional derivative information related to the
Series F Preferred Stock coupon rate reset.
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The following table summarizes dividends/distributions declared for the past three years:

Year Ended 2012 Year Ended 2011 Year Ended 2010
Dividend/ Dividend/ Dividend/
Distribution Total Distribution Total Distribution Total
per Share/ Dividend/ per Share/ Dividend/ per Share/ Dividend/
Unit Distribution Unit Distribution Unit Distribution
Common Stock/Operating
Partnership Units ........... $ 0.0000 $ — 3 0.0000 $ — 3 0.0000 $ —
Series F Preferred Stock ....... $ 5,455.8891 $ 2,728 $ 6,510.9028 $ 3,256 $ 6,736.1540 $ 3,368
Series G Preferred Stock ....... $ 7,236.0000 $ 1,809 $ 7,236.0000 $ 1,809 $ 7,236.0000 $ 1,809
Series J Preferred Stock* ...... $18,125.2000 $10,785 $18,125.2000 $10,875 $18,125.2000 $10,875
Series K Preferred Stock ....... $18,125.2000 $ 3,625 $18,125.2000 $ 3,625 $18,125.2000 $ 3,625

* The distribution per share related to redeemed preferred stock was pro-rated as discussed in the “Preferred

Stock” section.

8. Supplemental Information to Statements of Cash Flows

Interest Paid, Net of Capitalized Interest ....................
Capitalized Interest . ........... ...
Income Taxes (Refunded) Paid ............................

Supplemental Schedule of Non-Cash Investing and Financing
Activities:

Distribution Payable on Preferred Stock .. .................

Exchange of Units for Common Stock:

Noncontrolling Interest . ........... ... ... ... ... ......
Common Stock ....... .. ... .. L
Additional Paid-in-Capital .............................

Property Transfer to Lender in Satisfaction of Non-Recourse
Mortgage Loan:

Net Investment in Real Estate .. .........................
Prepaid Expenses and Other Assets, Net . .................
Mortgage Loan Payable, Net .. ..........................

Loss from Retirementof Debt . . .......................

Mortgage Loan Payable Assumed in Conjunction with a Property

ACQUISTLION ..ot

Notes Receivable Issued in Conjunction with Certain Property
Sales ...

Write-off of Fully Depreciated Assets .....................

Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended
December 31, December 31, December 31,
2012 2011 2010
.. $83,504 $100,375 $105,276
.. $ 1,997 $ 437 $ —
. % (9 $ 1,876 $ 3,663
.. 452 $ 4,763 $ 452
. $(4763)  $ (1,109 $  (316)
.. 5 1 1
.. 4,758 1,108 315
$ — $ — $ —
.. 3 — $ (3,200) $ —
.. — (1,987) —
.. — 5,040 —
.. $ — § (147) $ —
.. $12,026 $ 24,417 $ —
. 3 — $ 7,029 $ 168
... $(46,801) $(58,357) $(59,485)
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9. Earnings Per Share (EPS)

The computation of basic and diluted EPS is presented below:

Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended
December 31, December 31, December 31,
2012 2011 2010
Numerator:
Loss from Continuing Operations . ....................... $ (20,980) $ (31,054) $ (171,345)
Gain on Sale of Real Estate, Net of Income Tax Provision . ... 3,777 918 517
Noncontrolling Interest Allocable to Continuing Operations . . . 1,962 3,027 14,841
Loss from Continuing Operations Attributable to First
Industrial Realty Trust,Inc. ........................ (15,241) (27,109) (155,987)
Preferred Dividends . .. ....... ... ... .. i (18,947) (19,565) (19,677)
Redemption of Preferred Stock ............ ... ... ... ... (1,804) — —
Loss from Continuing Operations Available to First
Industrial Realty Trust, Inc.’s Common Stockholders .... $ (35992) $ (46,674) $ (175,664)
Income (Loss) from Discontinued Operations, Net of Income
Tax Provision .............. ...t $ 14,684  $ 20,946 $  (50,791)
Noncontrolling Interest Allocable to Discontinued
OPErations . . ..o vttt e (761) (1,282) 3,957
Income (Loss) from Discontinued Operations Attributable to
First Industrial Realty Trust,Inc. .................... $ 13923 % 19,664 $ (46,834)
Net Loss Available to First Industrial Realty Trust, Inc.’s
Common Stockholders . .......... ... .. ... ... ....... $ (22,069) $ (27,0100 $ (222,498)
Denominator:
Weighted Average Shares — Basic and Diluted ............ 91,468,440 80,616,000 62,952,565
Basic and Diluted EPS:
Loss from Continuing Operations Available to First
Industrial Realty Trust, Inc.’s Common Stockholders .... $ 0.39) $ (0.58) $ (2.79)
Income (Loss) from Discontinued Operations Attributable to
First Industrial Realty Trust, Inc.’s Common
Stockholders . ........ ... $ 015 $ 024 % (0.74)
Net Loss Available to First Industrial Realty Trust, Inc.’s
Common Stockholders . ........................... $ 024) $ 034) $ (3.53)

Participating securities include 288,627, 673,381 and 662,092 of unvested restricted stock awards
outstanding at December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010 respectively, which participate in non-forfeitable dividends of
the Company. Participating security holders are not obligated to share in losses, therefore, none of the net loss
attributable to First Industrial Realty Trust, Inc. was allocated to participating securities for the years ended

December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010.
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The number of weighted average shares — diluted is the same as the number of weighted average shares —
basic for the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010 as the effect of stock options and restricted unit
awards (that do not participate in non-forfeitable dividends of the Company) was excluded as its inclusion would
have been antidilutive to the loss from continuing operations available to First Industrial Realty Trust, Inc.’s
common stockholders. The following awards were anti-dilutive and could be dilutive in future periods:

Number of Number of Number of
Awards Awards Awards
Outstanding At Outstanding At Outstanding At
December 31, December 31, December 31,
2012 2011 2010

Non-Participating Securities:
Restricted Unit Awards . .......... ... ... ... ion... 483,500 731,900 1,012,800
OPLOMS - e eee e e e e e e e e e — 25,201 98,701

10. Income Taxes

The components of income tax (provision) benefit for the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010
are comprised of the following:

2012 2011 2010

Current:

Federal ...... ... ... . . . . $(5,210) $ (622) $ (893)

State ... (253) (502)  (2,372)

Foreign . ... i (10) 41) (95)
Deferred:

Federal ........ ... .. . . . . . — (284) 163

State ... (49) 2) 40

Foreign . ... ... . — (697) (148)

$(5,522) $(2,148) $(3,305)

Deferred income taxes represent the tax effect of the temporary differences between the book and tax basis
of assets and liabilities. Deferred tax assets (liabilities) include the following as of December 31, 2012 and 2011:

2012 2011

Investments in Joint VENtUIes . ............. it .. $ 11  $ 15
Prepaid Rent .. ... ... o 13 45
Restricted StOCK . ... .. 5 43
Impairment of Real Estate ........... ... . .. 5,519 5,683
Foreign Net Operating Loss Carryforward . .. ......... . ... ... .. ... 854 828
Valuation ALIOWanCe . ............. it e e (5,244) (5,078)
(.14 1> A 588 483

Total Deferred Tax Assets, Net of Allowance . ...........c.ouuuneoa... $1,746  $ 2,019
Straight-line Rent .. ... ... . . 1) (85)
FiXed ASSetS .ottt (1,666) (1,946)
(10157 (158) (108)

Total Deferred Tax Liabilities .................0 i, $(1,915)  $(2,139)

Total Net Deferred Tax Liabilities .. ............ ... i ... $ (169) $ (120)
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A valuation allowance is recorded if we believe it is more likely than not that all or some portion of our
deferred tax assets will not be realized. We do not have projections of future taxable income or other sources of
taxable income in the taxable REIT subsidiaries significant enough to allow us to believe it is more likely than
not that we will realize our deferred tax assets. Therefore, we have recorded a valuation allowance against our
deferred tax assets. An increase or decrease in the valuation allowance that results from a change in
circumstances, and which causes a change in our judgment about the realizability of the related deferred tax
assets, is included in the current tax provision.

As of December 31, 2012 and 2011, we had net deferred tax liabilities of $169 and $120, after valuation
allowances of $5,244 and $5,078, respectively. As of December 31, 2011 and 2010, we had net deferred tax
(liabilities) assets of $(120) and $863, after valuation allowances of $5,078 and $9,301, respectively. The
decrease in the valuation allowance of $4,223 from December 31, 2010 to December 31, 2011 is primarily
related to a decrease in net deferred tax assets and liabilities due to the sales of property.

The income tax provision pertaining to income from continuing operations and gain on sale of real estate
differs from the amounts computed by applying the applicable federal statutory rate as follows:

2012 2011 2010

Tax Benefit (Provision) at Federal Rate Related to Continuing

OPErationS ..ottt ettt $ 557  $(2,162) $ 5,141
State Tax Provision, Net of Federal Benefit (Provision) ........... (244) (521) (2,320)
Non-deductible Permanent Items, Net ... ...................... 32 (54) (58)
IRS Audit Adjustment and Accrued Interest .................... (5,523) — —
Change in Valuation Allowance ............................. (166) 1,853 (6,108)
Foreign Taxes, Net .. ...t (10) (96) (211)
Other ... (168) 78 251

Net Income Tax Provision ..............c.coouuiiiinnninn... $(5,522) $ (902) $(3,305)

We evaluate tax positions taken in the financial statements on a quarterly basis under the interpretation for
accounting for uncertainty in income taxes. As a result of this evaluation, we may recognize a tax benefit from an
uncertain tax position only if it is “more-likely-than-not” that the tax position will be sustained on examination
by taxing authorities. As of December 31, 2012, we do not have any unrecognized tax benefits.

We file income tax returns in the U.S., and various states and foreign jurisdictions. In general, the statutes of
limitations for income tax returns remain open for the years 2009 through 2012. One of our taxable REIT
subsidiaries which liquidated in September 2009 is currently under examination by the Internal Revenue Service
(“IRS”) for 2008 and for the tax year ended September 1, 2009.

IRS Tax Settlement

On August 24, 2009, we received a private letter ruling from the IRS granting favorable loss treatment under
Sections 331 and 336 of the Code on the tax liquidation of one of our former taxable REIT subsidiaries. On
November 6, 2009, legislation was signed that allowed businesses with net operating losses for 2008 or 2009 to
carry back those losses for up to five years. As a result, we received a refund from the IRS of $40,418 in the
fourth quarter of 2009 (the “Refund”) in connection with this tax liquidation. As previously reported, the IRS
examination team, which is required by statute to review all refund claims in excess of $2,000 on behalf of the
Joint Committee on Taxation, indicated to us that it disagreed with certain of the property valuations we obtained
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from an independent valuation expert in support of our fair value of the liquidated taxable REIT subsidiary and
our claim for the Refund. We have reached an agreement with the regional office of the IRS on a proposed
adjustment to the Refund. The total agreed-upon adjustment to taxable income is approximately $13,700, which
equates to approximately $4,806 of taxes owed. We must also pay accrued interest which was approximately
$542 as of December 31, 2012. During the year ended December 31, 2012, the Company recorded a charge of
$5,348 related to the agreed-upon adjustment which is reflected as a component of income tax expense. The
settlement amount is subject to final review and approval by the Joint Committee on Taxation. There can be no
assurance that the settlement amount will be approved at the level we currently anticipate, nor can we provide an
estimate of the timing of the final approval.

In addition, we are currently in discussions with the regional office of the IRS to determine the timing of the
impact of the proposed tax settlement on the tax characterization of the distributions to the limited partners of the
Operating Partnership and the stockholders of the Company which is likely to result in additional capital gain
income being allocable to the limited partners of the Operating Partnership and the stockholders of the Company.

Michigan Tax Issue

As of December 31, 2008, we had paid approximately $1,400 (representing tax and interest for the years
1997-2000) to the State of Michigan regarding business loss carryforwards the appropriateness of which was the
subject of litigation initiated by us. On December 11, 2007, the Michigan Court of Claims rendered a decision
against us regarding the business loss carryforwards. Also, the court ruled against us on an alternative position
involving Michigan’s Capital Acquisition Deduction. We filed an appeal to the Michigan Appeals Court in
January 2008; however, as a result of the lower court’s decision, an additional approximately $800 (representing
tax and interest for the year 2001) had been accrued through June 30, 2009 for both tax and financial statement
purposes. On August 18, 2009, the Michigan Appeals Court issued a decision in our favor on the business loss
carryforward issue. The Michigan Department of Treasury appealed the decision to the Michigan Supreme Court
on September 29, 2009; however, we believed there was a very low probability that the Michigan Supreme Court
would accept the case. Therefore, in September 2009 we reversed our accrual of $800 (related to the 2001 tax
year) and set up a receivable of $1,400 for the amount paid in 2006 (related to the 1997-2000 tax years), resulting
in an aggregate reversal of prior tax expense of approximately $2,200. On April 23, 2010, the Michigan Supreme
Court reversed the decision of the Michigan Appeals Court and reinstated the decision of the Michigan Court of
Claims. Based on the most recent ruling of the Michigan Supreme Court, we reversed the receivable of $1,400
and paid approximately $800, for a total of approximately $2,200 of tax expense for the year ended
December 31, 2010, which is included in continuing operations.

Federal Income Tax Treatment of Share Distributions

For income tax purposes, distributions paid to common shareholders are classified as ordinary income,
capital gain, return of capital or qualified dividends. We did not pay common share distributions for the years
ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010.

C-64



FIRST INDUSTRIAL REALTY TRUST, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

For income tax purposes, distributions paid to preferred shareholders are classified as ordinary income,
capital gain, return of capital or qualified dividends. For the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, the
preferred distributions per depositary share were classified as follows:

As a Percentage

As a Percentage As a Percentage

Series J Preferred Stock 2012 of Distributions 2011 of Distributions 2010 of Distributions
Ordinary Income . ............ $ — 0.00%  $0.3130 23.02%  $1.4652 80.84%
Long-term Capital Gains .. .... — 0.00% — 0.00% — 0.00%
Unrecaptured Section 1250
Gain..................... — 0.00% — 0.00% 0.2423 13.37%
Return of Capital . ............ 2.2657 100.00% 1.0402 76.52% — 0.00%
Qualified Dividends .......... — 0.00% 0.0062 0.46% 0.1050 5.79%
$2.2657 100.00%  $1.3594 100.00%  $1.8125 100.00%
As a Percentage
Series J Preferred Stock — Depositary Shares Redeemed* 2012 of Distributions
Ordinary INCOME . . .. ..ottt $ — 0.00%
Long-term Capital Gains ......... ...t — 0.00%
Unrecaptured Section 1250 Gain . ..., — 0.00%
Returnof Capital ........ .. ... . . . 2.2203 100.00%
Qualified Dividends . ........... ... .. — 0.00%
$2.2203 100.00%

* Schedule relates to the 2,000,000 Depositary Shares of the Series J Preferred Stock that were redeemed on
December 21, 2012. The 2012 redemption had no impact on the tables for 2011 or 2010.

As a Percentage

As a Percentage As a Percentage

Series K Preferred Stock 2012 of Distributions 2011 of Distributions 2010 of Distributions
Ordinary Income ............. $ — 0.00%  $0.3130 23.02%  $1.4652 80.84%
Long-term Capital Gains .. .... — 0.00% — 0.00% — 0.00%
Unrecaptured Section 1250
Gain..................... — 0.00% — 0.00% 0.2423 13.37%
Return of Capital . ............ 2.2657 100.00% 1.0402 76.52% — 0.00%
Qualified Dividends .......... — 0.00% 0.0062 0.46% 0.1050 5.79%
$2.2657 100.00%  $1.3594 100.00%  $1.8125 100.00%

As discussed in the “IRS Tax Settlement” section, we are currently in discussions with the regional office of
the IRS to determine the timing of the impact of the proposed tax settlement on the tax characterization of the
distributions to the limited partners of the Operating Partnership and the stockholders of the Company which is
likely to result in additional capital gain income being allocable to the limited partners of the Operating

Partnership and the stockholders of the Company.
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11. Restructuring Costs

We committed to a plan to reduce organizational and overhead costs in October 2008 and have subsequently
modified that plan during 2011 and 2010 with the goal of further reducing these costs. The following summarizes
our restructuring costs for each of the years ended December 31:

2011 2010
Pre-tax Restructuring Costs:
Employee Severance and Benefits™ .. .......... ... ... .. ... ... $ — $ 525
Termination of Certain Office Leases ......................... 1,200 647
Other . .o 353 686
Total Restructuring Costs . .. ..o vt ei e $1,553  $1,858
2012 2011 2010
Included in Accounts Payable, Accrued Expenses and Other Liabilities,
Net Related to Lease Payments and Other Costs Incurred But Not
Yet Paid as of December 31, ......... .. $1,464 $1,959 $1,574

* Includes $0 and $156, respectively, of non-cash costs which represents the accelerated recognition of restricted
stock expense for certain employees for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010.

12. Future Rental Revenues

Our properties are leased to tenants under net and semi-net operating leases. Minimum lease payments
receivable, excluding tenant reimbursements of expenses, under non-cancelable operating leases in effect as of
December 31, 2012 are approximately as follows:

2003 $ 239,906
200 . 200,280
20 LS e 163,521
2000 . 126,950
20 LT e 99,841
Thereafter . ... 346,529

TOtAl .ot $1,177,027

13. Stock Based Compensation

We maintain five stock incentive plans (the “Stock Incentive Plans”) which are administered by the
Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors. There are 11,500,000 shares authorized for issuance under
the Stock Incentive Plans. Only officers, certain employees, our Independent Directors and our affiliates
generally are eligible to participate in the Stock Incentive Plans.

The Stock Incentive Plans authorize (i) the grant of stock options that qualify as incentive stock options
under Section 422 of the Code, (ii) the grant of stock options that do not so qualify, (iii) restricted stock/unit

awards (including awards subject to performance conditions), and (iv) dividend equivalent rights. The exercise
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price of the stock options is determined by the Compensation Committee. Special provisions apply to awards
granted under the Stock Incentive Plans in the event of a change in control in the Company. As of December 31,

2012, awards covering 1,376,144 shares of common stock were available to be granted under the Stock Incentive
Plans.

Stock option transactions for the year ended December 31, 2012 are summarized as follows:

Weighted Aggregate
Average Intrinsic
Options Exercise Price Value
Outstanding at December 31,2011 ....................... 25,201 $31.57 $—
Expired . ... ... (25,201) $31.57

Outstanding at December 31,2012 ....................... —

In September 1994, the Board of Directors approved and we adopted a 401(k)/Profit Sharing Plan. Under
our 401(k)/Profit Sharing Plan, all eligible employees may participate by making voluntary contributions. We
may make, but are not required to make, matching contributions. For the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011
and 2010, matching contributions of $284, $197 and $194, respectively, were recorded.

For the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, we awarded 565,137, 292,339 and 573,198 shares,
respectively, of restricted stock awards to certain employees which had a fair value of approximately $7,065,
$3,248 and $3,336, respectively, on the date of approval by the Compensation Committee of the Board of
Directors and/or the Board of Directors. The restricted stock awards generally vest over a period of three to four
years. Compensation expense will be charged to earnings over the vesting period for the shares expected to vest.

For the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, we recognized $8,559, $3,759 and $6,040 in
restricted stock amortization related to restricted stock and unit awards, of which $32, $0 and $0, respectively,
was capitalized in connection with development activities. At December 31, 2012, we had $3,282 in
unrecognized compensation related to unvested restricted stock and unit awards. The weighted average period
that the unrecognized compensation is expected to be recognized is 0.90 years.

Restricted stock and unit award transactions for the year ended December 31, 2012 are summarized as
follows:

Weighted
Average

Grant Date

Awards Fair Value
Outstanding at December 31,2011 ........ ... . ... ... ... 1,405,281 $ 7.00
Issued . ..o 565,137 $12.50
Forfeited . . ... oot (17,433) $10.92
Vested ..o (1,180,858) $ 9.57
Outstanding at December 31,2012 . ........ ... ... ... ... 772,127 $ 7.02

14. Derivatives

Our objectives in using interest rate derivatives are to add stability to interest expense or preferred stock
dividends and to manage our cash flow volatility and exposure to interest rate movements. To accomplish this
objective, we primarily use interest rate swaps as part of our interest rate risk management strategy. Interest rate
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swaps designated as cash flow hedges involve the receipt of variable-rate amounts from a counterparty in
exchange for fixed-rate payments over the life of the agreements without exchange of the underlying notional
amount.

Our Series F Preferred Stock is subject to a coupon rate reset. The coupon rate resets every quarter at
2.375% plus the greater of (i) the 30 year Treasury CMT Rate, (ii) the 10 year Treasury CMT Rate or
(iii) 3-month LIBOR. For the fourth quarter of 2012, the new coupon rate was 5.285%. In October 2008, we
entered into an interest rate swap agreement with a notional value of $50,000 to mitigate our exposure to floating
interest rates related to the forecasted reset rate of the coupon rate of our Series F Preferred Stock (the “Series F
Agreement”). This Series F Agreement fixes the 30-year U.S. Treasury rate at 5.2175%. Accounting guidance for
derivatives does not permit hedge accounting treatment related to equity instruments and therefore the mark-to-
market gains or losses related to this agreement are recorded in the statement of operations. For the years ended
December 31, 2012 and 2011, losses of $328 and $1,718, respectively, are recognized as Mark-to-Market Loss
on Interest Rate Protection Agreements. Quarterly payments are treated as a component of the mark-to-market
gains or losses and totaled $1,169 and $574 for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives designated and that qualify as cash flow
hedges is recorded in Other Comprehensive Income (“OCI”) and is subsequently reclassified to earnings through
interest expense over the life of the derivative or over the life of the debt. In the next 12 months, we will amortize
approximately $2,421 into net income (loss) by increasing interest expense for interest rate protection agreements
we settled in previous periods.

The following is a summary of the terms of our derivatives and their fair values, which are included in
Accounts Payable, Accrued Expenses and Other Liabilities, Net on the accompanying consolidated balance
sheets:

Fair Value Fair Value

As of As of
Notional December 31, December 31,
Hedge Product Amount Strike Trade Date Maturity Date 2012 2011
Derivatives Not Designated as
Hedging Instruments:
Series F Agreement™ ........ $ 50,000 5.2175% October 2008 October 1, 2013 $(826) $(1,667)

* Fair value excludes quarterly settlement payment due on Series F Agreement. As of December 31, 2012 and
2011, the outstanding payable was $305 and $280, respectively.

The following is a summary of the impact of the derivatives in cash flow hedging relationships on the
statement of operations and the statement of OCI for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011:

Year Ended
December 31, December 31,
Interest Rate Products Location on Statement 2012 2011
Amortization Reclassified from OCI into Income (Loss) . ...  Interest Expense $(2,271) $(2,166)

Our agreements with our derivative counterparties contain provisions where if we default on any of our
indebtedness, then we could also be declared in default on our derivative obligations subject to certain thresholds.

The guidance for fair value measurement of financial instruments includes a three-tier fair value hierarchy,
which prioritizes the inputs used in measuring fair value. These tiers include: Level 1, defined as observable
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inputs such as quoted prices in active markets; Level 2, defined as inputs other than quoted prices in active

markets that are either directly or indirectly observable; and Level 3, defined as unobservable inputs in which
little or no market data exists, therefore requiring an entity to develop its own assumptions.

The following table sets forth our financial liabilities that are accounted for at fair value on a recurring basis
as of December 31, 2012 and 2011:

Fair Value Measurements at Reporting
Date Using:

Quoted Prices in
Active Markets for Significant Other Unobservable

Identical Assets Observable Inputs Inputs
DeLimion Fair Value (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Liabilities:
Series F Agreement at December 31,2012 ... $ (826) — — $ (826)
Series F Agreement at December 31,2011 ... $(1,667) — — $(1,667)

The following table presents the quantitative information about the Level 3 fair value measurements at
December 31, 2012:

Quantitative Information about Level 3 Fair Value Measurements:

Fair Value at

Description December 31, 2012 Valuation Technique Unobservable Inputs Range
Discounted Cash Long Dated 2.82% - 2.91%
Series F Agreement .......... $(826) Flow Treasuries(A)
Own Credit 0.98% - 1.59%
Risk(B)

(A) Represents the forward 30 year Treasury CMT Rate.

(B) Represents credit default swap spread curve used in the valuation analysis.

The valuation of the Series F Agreement is determined using widely accepted valuation techniques
including discounted cash flow analysis on the expected cash flows of the instrument. This analysis reflects the
contractual terms of the agreements including the period to maturity. In adjusting the fair value of the interest
rate protection agreements for the effect of nonperformance risk, we have considered the impact of netting and
any applicable credit enhancements. To comply with the provisions of fair value measurement, we incorporated a
credit valuation adjustment (“CVA”) to appropriately reflect both our own nonperformance risk and the
respective counterparty’s nonperformance risk in the fair value measurements. However, assessing significance
of inputs is a matter of judgment that should consider a variety of factors. One factor we consider is the CVA and
its materiality to the overall valuation of the derivatives on the balance sheet and to their related changes in fair
value. We consider the Series F Agreement to be classified as Level 3 in the fair value hierarchy due to a
significant number of unobservable inputs. The Series F Agreement swaps a fixed rate 5.2175% for floating rate
payments based on 30-year Treasury. No market observable prices exist for long-dated Treasuries. Therefore, we
have classified the Series F Agreement in its entirety as a Level 3.
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The following table presents a reconciliation of our liabilities classified as Level 3 at December 31, 2012
and 2011:

Fair Value Measurements

Using Significant
Unobservable Inputs
(Level 3)
Derivatives
Ending Liability Balance at December 31,2010 ............. .. ....ooiiiinnn.... $ (523)
Total Unrealized Losses:

Mark-to-Market on Series F Agreement .. .......... ... .. ... .. .. ... (1,144)
Ending Liability Balance at December 31,2011 ......... ... .. ... .. .. .. ... ...... $(1,667)
Total Unrealized Gains:

Mark-to-Market on Series F Agreement .......... .. .. .. .. . . .. 841
Ending Liability Balance at December 31,2012 ......... ... .. .. . . . ... $ (820)

15. Commitments and Contingencies

In the normal course of business, we are involved in legal actions arising from the ownership of our
industrial properties. In our opinion, the liabilities, if any, that may ultimately result from such legal actions are
not expected to have a materially adverse effect on our consolidated financial position, operations or liquidity.

Seven properties have leases granting the tenants options to purchase the property. Such options are
exercisable at various times at appraised fair market value or at a fixed purchase price in excess of our
depreciated cost of the asset. We have no notice of any exercise of any tenant purchase option.

At December 31, 2012, we had an outstanding letter of credit and performance bonds in the aggregate
amount of $9,546.

At December 31, 2012, we have committed to the development of three industrial buildings totaling
approximately 1.5 million square feet of GLA. The estimated total construction costs as of December 31, 2012,
are approximately $107,723 (unaudited). Of this amount, approximately $45,793 (unaudited) remains to be
funded. There can be no assurance that the actual completion cost will not exceed the estimated completion cost
stated above.

Ground and Operating Lease Agreements

For the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, we recognized $1,565, $1,955 and $3,047,
respectively, in operating and ground lease expense.
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Future minimum rental payments under the terms of all non-cancelable ground and operating leases under
which we are the lessee as of December 31, 2012 are as follows:

2003 $ 2,090
) 1,790
20 LS e 1,673
2000 e 1,702
2007 e 1,732
Thereafter . . ..o 26,938

TOtal™ .o $35,925

* Minimum rental payments have not been reduced by minimum sublease rentals of $8,339 due in the future
under non-cancelable subleases.

16. Subsequent Events

From January 1, 2013 to February 28, 2013, we sold one industrial property and one land parcel for
approximately $2,565. Additionally, we acquired one land parcel for a purchase price of $6,250, excluding costs
incurred in conjunction with the acquisition.

From January 1, 2013 to February 28, 2013, we repurchased and retired $4,000 of our senior unsecured
notes maturing in 2028 for a payment of $4,565.

The Board of Directors approved a first quarter 2013 common dividend of $0.085 per share/unit for
shareholders of record on March 29, 2013 with a payable date of April 15, 2013. The effective record date will be
March 28, 2013 as March 29, 2013 is a New York Stock Exchange holiday. The Board of Directors also
approved a first quarter 2013 preferred dividend of $0.45313 per depositary share related to both the Series J and
the Series K Preferred Stock for preferred stockholders of record on March 15, 2013, a first quarter 2013
preferred dividend of $13.3125 per depositary share related to the Series F Preferred Stock for preferred
stockholders of record on March 29, 2013 and a first quarter 2013 preferred dividend of $36.18 per depositary
share related to the Series G Preferred Stock for preferred stockholders of record on March 29, 2013. All first
quarter 2013 preferred dividends are payable on April 1, 2013.
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17. Quarterly Financial Information (unaudited)

The following tables summarize our quarterly financial information.

The first, second and third fiscal

quarters of 2012 and all fiscal quarters in 2011 have been revised in accordance with guidance on accounting for
discontinued operations. Net (Loss) Income Available to First Industrial Realty Trust, Inc.’s Common
Stockholders and Participating Securities and basic and diluted EPS from Net (Loss) Income Available to First

Industrial Realty Trust, Inc.’s Common Stockholders have not been affected.

Year Ended December 31, 2012

First Second Third Fourth
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter

Total REVENUES . . . . oottt e e e e e e e $80,862  $82,305 $79,779  $84,327
Equity in Income of Joint Ventures ......................... 91 37 28 1,403
Noncontrolling Interest Allocable to Continuing Operations . . . .. 536 972 184 466
(Loss) Income from Continuing Operations, Net of

Noncontrolling Interest . .......... ... ... . ... (4,362) (11,929) 125 (2,656)
Income from Discontinued Operations ...................... 5,953 2,535 5,478 718
Noncontrolling Interest Allocable to Discontinued Operations . . . (329) (134) (265) (33)
Gainon Saleof Real Estate . .............................. — — 3,777 —
Noncontrolling Interest Allocable to Gain on Sale of Real

Y — — (196) —

Net Income (Loss) Attributable to First Industrial Realty Trust,

InC. o 1,262 (9,528) 8,919 (1,971)
Preferred Dividends ........... ... .. .. .. i (4,762) (4,798) (4,725) (4,662)
Redemption of Preferred Stock .......... ... .. .. ... ... ... — — — (1,804)

Net (Loss) Income Available .. .......................... $(3,500) $(14,326) $ 4,194  $(8,437)
Income from Discontinued Operations Allocable to Participating

SeCUrities ... ... — — (33) —

Net (Loss) Income Available to First Industrial Realty Trust,

Inc.’s Common Stockholders ... ....................... $(3,500) $(14,326) $ 4,161  $(8,437)

Basic and Diluted Earnings Per Share:
Loss from Continuing Operations Available to First Industrial
Realty Trust, Inc.’s Common Stockholders . .............. $ (0.11) $ (0.19) $ (0.01) $ (0.09)
Income from Discontinued Operations Attributable to First

Industrial Realty Trust, Inc.”s Common Stockholders .. . ... $ 006 $ 003 $ 006 $ 0.01

Net (Loss) Income Available to First Industrial Realty Trust,

Inc.’s Common Stockholders .. ...................... $ (0.04) $ (0.16) $ 004 $ (0.09)
Weighted Average Shares Outstanding — Basic and Diluted .... 86,575 87,981 93,488 97,738

C-72



FIRST INDUSTRIAL REALTY TRUST, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

Year Ended December 31, 2011

First Second Third Fourth
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
Total Revenues . . ..., $79,603  $78,801 $ 78,252  $79,220
Equity in Income of Joint Ventures ................ 36 99 772 73
Noncontrolling Interest Allocable to Continuing
Operations ..............oviiiiininnennennnn. 849 477 963 794
Loss from Continuing Operations, Net of
Noncontrolling Interest .. ..................... (6,208) (2,490) (10,626) (8,647)
Income from Discontinued Operations, Net of Income
Tax (Provision) Benefit ....................... 2,674 2,873 6,134 9,265
Noncontrolling Interest Allocable to Discontinued
Operations .. ........ouvuvnininennenenennnn.. (196) (187) (360) (539)
Gain on Sale of Real Estate, Net of Income Tax
Provision ........... ... .. ... ... . — — 918 —
Noncontrolling Interest Allocable to Gain on Sale of
RealEstate ............... ... ... ... — — (56) —
Net (Loss) Income Attributable to First Industrial
Realty Trust,Inc. .......................... (3,730) 196 (3,990) 79
Preferred Dividends ............................ (4,927) (4,947) (4,928) (4,763)
Net Loss Available to First Industrial Realty Trust,
Inc.’s Common Stockholders .. ............... $(8,657) $(4,751) $ (8,918) $(4,684)
Basic and Diluted Earnings Per Share:
Loss from Continuing Operations Available to First
Industrial Realty Trust, Inc.’s Common
Stockholders . ..., $ (0.16) $ (0.09) $ (0.17) $ (0.16)
Income from Discontinued Operations Attributable
to First Industrial Realty Trust, Inc.’s Common
Stockholders .. ............ i $ 004 $ 003 $ 007 $ 0.10
Net Loss Available to First Industrial Realty Trust,
Inc.’s Common Stockholders ................. $ (0.12) $ (0.06) $ (0.100 $ (0.05)
Weighted Average Shares Outstanding — Basic and
Diluted ........ ... ... . 70,639 79,727 85,930 85,941
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FIRST INDUSTRIAL REALTY TRUST, INC.

SCHEDULE III:
REAL ESTATE AND ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION
As of December 31, 2012
(k)
Gross Amount
Amounts Carried At
Included Amounts Within Close of Period
in Real Estate Net Investment December 31,
Held for Sale in Real Estate 2012
Land ....... ... . . $ 2,390 $ 691,726 $ 694,116
Buildings and Improvements .................. 7,104 2,403,654 2,410,758
Less: Accumulated Depreciation ............... (2,958) (732,635) (735,593)
Subtotal ........ ... .. .. 6,536 2,362,745 2,369,281
Construction in Progress . ..................... — 26,068 26,068
Net Investment in Real Estate .. ............ $ 6,536 $2,388,813 $2,395,349
Deferred Rent Receivable, Net and Other Assets,
Net .o 229
Total at December 31,2012 . .............. $ 6,765

(1) Depreciation is computed based upon the following estimated lives:

Buildings and Improvements

Land Improvements
Tenant Improvements

(m) Includes foreign currency translation adjustments.

7 to 50 years
3 to 20 years
Life of lease

At December 31, 2012, the aggregate cost of land and buildings and equipment for federal income tax
purpose was approximately $3.1 billion (excluding construction in progress).

The changes in investment in real estate, including investment in real estate held for sale, for the three years
ended December 31, 2012 are as follows:

Balance, Beginning of Year
Acquisition of Real Estate Assets
Construction Costs and Improvements
Disposition of Real Estate Assets

Impairment of Real Estate

Balance, End of Year

Write-off of Fully Depreciated Assets

C-92

2012 2011 2010
(In thousands)
$3,115,050  $3,140,649  $3,351,626
65,770 22,953 17,595
74,116 72,822 49,881
(94,093) (91,312) (50,929)
(1,246) 2,661 (194,552)
(28,655) (32,723) (32,972)
$3,130,942  $3,115,050  $3,140,649




FIRST INDUSTRIAL REALTY TRUST, INC.
SCHEDULE III:

REAL ESTATE AND ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION
As of December 31, 2012

The changes in accumulated depreciation, including accumulated depreciation for real estate held for sale,
for the three years ended December 31, 2012 are as follows:

2012 2011 2010
(In thousands)
Balance, Beginningof Year ................. i $695,931 $663,310 $597,461
Depreciation for Year .. ... ... 100,074 95,931 104,175
Disposition of ASSEtS . .. ...ttt (31,757) (30,587) (5,354)
Write-off of Fully Depreciated ASSets . ..........c..uuitininennenan.. (28,655) (32,723) (32,972)
Balance, Endof Year . ...... ... $735,593  $695,931  $663,310
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MARKET INFORMATION

The following table sets forth for the periods indicated the high and low closing prices per share and
distributions declared per share for our common stock, which trades on the New York Stock Exchange under the
trading symbol “FR.”

Quarter Ended High Low Distribution Declared
December 31,2012 . ... ... .. $14.10  $12.66 $0.0000
September 30,2012 .. ... .. $13.60  $11.99 $0.0000
June 30,2012 .. ... $12.72  $11.09 $0.0000
March 31,2012 ... ... $12.38  $10.30 $0.0000
December 31, 2011 ..ot $10.23 $ 7.54 $0.0000
September 30,2011 ................ i $12.23 $ 7.81 $0.0000
June 30,2011 . ..o $12.67  $10.51 $0.0000
March 31,2011 . ... $11.89 $ 945 $0.0000

We had 487 common stockholders of record registered with our transfer agent as of February 28, 2013.
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Performance Graph

The following graph provides a comparison of the cumulative total stockholder return among the Company,
the FTSE NAREIT Equity REIT Total Return Index (the “NAREIT Index”) and the Standard & Poor’s 500
Index (“S&P 5007). The comparison is for the periods from December 31, 2007 to December 31, 2012 and
assumes the reinvestment of any dividends. The closing price for our common stock quoted on the NYSE at the
close of business on December 31, 2007 was $34.60 per share. The NAREIT Index includes REITs with 75% or
more of their gross invested book value of assets invested directly or indirectly in the equity ownership of real
estate. Upon written request, we will provide stockholders with a list of the REITs included in the NAREIT
Index. The historical information set forth below is not necessarily indicative of future performance. The
following graph was prepared at our request by Research Data Group, Inc., San Francisco, California.

COMPARISON OF 5 YEAR CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN*
Among First Industrial Realty Trust Inc., the S&P 500 Index, and the FTSE NAREIT Equity

REITs Index
$250
—{1 First Industrial Realty Trust, Inc.
$200 —— S&P 500
—O— FTSE NAREIT Equity REITs
$150

W
$50 \D\D/D’/_D/u

1 1 1 1 1 1
12/07 12/08 12/09 12/10 12/11 12/12

$0

*$100 invested on 12/31/07 in stock or index, including reinvestment of dividends Fiscal year ending
December 31

Copyright©2013 S&P, a division of The McGraw-Hill Companies Inc. All rights reserved.

12/07 12/08  12/09 12/10 12/11 12/12
FIRST INDUSTRIAL REALTY TRUST, INC. . . .. $100.00 $2430 $16.83 $ 28.19 § 32.92 §$ 4531
S&PS500 ... .. $100.00 $63.00 $79.67 $ 91.67 $ 93.61 $108.59
FTSE NAREIT Equity REITs . ................. $100.00 $62.27 $79.70 $101.99 $110.45 $130.39

* The information provided in this performance graph shall not be deemed to be ‘“soliciting material,” to be
“filed” or to be incorporated by reference into any filing under the Securities Act of 1933 or the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 unless specifically treated as such.

C-95



CORPORATE MANAGEMENT AND DIRECTORS

CORPORATE MANAGEMENT
Bruce W. Duncan
President and Chief Executive Officer

Scott A. Musil

Chief Financial Officer, Chief
Accounting Officer, Treasurer and
Assistant Secretary

Johannson L. Yap
Chief Investment Officer and
Executive Vice President — West Region

David G. Harker
Executive Vice President — Central Region

Peter O. Schultz
Executive Vice President — East Region

Christopher M. Schneider
Chief Information Officer and Senior Vice President —
Operations

Donald Stoffle
Executive Director — Dispositions

Robert Walter
Senior Vice President — Capital Markets

John W. Lee
General Counsel and Secretary

Arthur J. Harmon
Senior Director — Investor Relations

DIRECTORS

W. Ed Tylert

Chairman

First Industrial Realty Trust, Inc.
Chief Executive Officer

Ideapoint Ventures

Director

Nanophase Technologies Corporation

Bruce W. Duncani

President and Chief Executive Officer

First Industrial Realty Trust, Inc.

Chairman

Starwood Hotels & Resorts Worldwide, Inc.

Matthew S. Dominski:§
Principal

Polaris Capital, LLC

Director

CBL & Associates Properties, Inc.

H. Patrick Hackett, Jr.*§%
Chief Executive Officer

HHS Co.

Director

Wintrust Financial Corporation
Textura Corporation

North Shore Bank

John Rau*§

President, Chief Executive Officer and Director
Miami Corporation

Director

AGL Resources Inc.

BMO Financial Corp.

BMO/Harris Bank

L. Peter Sharpe*

Former President and Chief Executive Officer
Cadillac Fairview Corporation

Director

Postmedia Network Canada Corp.

Morguard Corporation

Allied Properties Real Estate Investment Trust

§  Nominating/Corporate
Governance Committee

¥ Compensation Committee

*  Audit Committee

+  Investment Committee
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CORPORATE AND STOCKHOLDER INFORMATION

Executive Office

First Industrial Realty Trust, Inc.
311 South Wacker Drive, Suite 3900
Chicago, IL 60606

Phone: 312.344.4300

Fax: 312.922.6320
www.firstindustrial.com

info @firstindustrial.com

Stock Exchange Listing
New York Stock Exchange
Symbol: FR

Registrar and Transfer Agent
Computershare Trust Company, N.A.
P.O. Box 43078

Providence, RI 02940-3078
800.446.2617

Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chicago, Illinois

Corporate Counsel

Barack Ferrazzano Kirschbaum &
Nagelberg LLP

Chicago, Illinois

10-K Report

A copy of the Company’s Form 10-K as filed with
the Securities and Exchange Commission is
available on the Company’s website and may also
be obtained free of charge by contacting the
Director of Investor Relations and Corporate
Communications, First Industrial Realty Trust,
Inc. Included in such report were the
certifications required by Section 302 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act.

Annual Meeting

The Annual Meeting of Stockholders of First
Industrial Realty Trust, Inc., will be held on
Thursday, May 9, 2013, at 9:00 A.M. CDT at the
10th Floor Conference Room, 311 South Wacker
Drive, Chicago, Illinois.
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To contact First Industrial’s Audit Committee:
Chairman of the Audit Committee

c/o First Industrial Realty Trust, Inc.

311 South Wacker Drive, Suite 3900

Chicago, IL 60606

To contact First Industrial’s Nominating/Corporate
Governance Committee:

Chairman of the Nominating/Corporate
Governance Committee

c/o First Industrial Realty Trust, Inc.

311 South Wacker Drive, Suite 3900

Chicago, IL 60606
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